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RISK FACTORS

The Issuer believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its obligations under Covered
Bonds issued under the Programme. All of these factors are contingencies which may or may not occur and
the Issuer is not in a position to express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring.

In addition, factors which the Issuer believes may be material for the purpose of assessing the market risks
associated with Covered Bonds issued under the Programme are also described below.

The Issuer believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing in
Covered Bonds issued under the Programme, but the inability of the Issuer to pay interest, principal or
other amounts on or in connection with any Covered Bonds may occur for other reasons and the Issuer does
not represent that the statements below regarding the risks of holding any Covered Bonds are exhaustive.
Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Base Prospectus
or incorporated by reference herein and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

Words and expressions defined in Definitions shall have the same meaning in this section.

RISKS SPECIFIC TO THE ISSUER
Covered Bonds are obligations of the Issuer only

The Covered Bonds will constitute unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer secured by a special creditor
privilege (“privilégio creditorio especial”) created under the Covered Bonds Law over the Cover Pool (as
defined in Terms and Conditions of the Covered Bonds) maintained by the Issuer. An investment in the
Covered Bonds involves a reliance on the creditworthiness of the Issuer, which will be liable solely in its
corporate capacity for its obligations in respect of the Covered Bonds and such obligations will not be the
obligations of its officers, members, directors, employees, security holders or incorporators. The Covered
Bonds are not guaranteed by any person. In addition, an investment in Covered Bonds involves the risk that
subsequent changes in the actual or perceived creditworthiness of the Issuer may adversely affect the market
value of the relevant Covered Bonds.

Factors that may affect the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations under Covered Bonds issued under
the Programme

Global Financial Volatility

The Issuer's performance is reliant on economic activity and the conditions of global financial markets.
After the economic and financial credit crisis of 2007-2008, global growth has recovered and financial
markets stabilized on the basis of proactive economic policies put into practice around the globe, with
particular emphasis on central banks’ policies in developed economies. Short term interest rates have been
slashed to the minimum threshold, in some cases turned negative, and the major central banks supplied
ample funding and liquidity to the world financial system, embarking on so-called non-conventional
monetary policies. Last year, the monetary policy of the main central banks remained strongly
accommodative, but different stages of the economic cycle of the developed economies entailed a divergent
position of the monetary policy stance. In particular, by the end of 2015, the U.S. Federal Reserve started a
new monetary policy cycle of normalization of its key interest rate with a second upward movement in its



key rates in December 2016. Meanwhile, the European Central Bank (“ECB”) has strengthened the ultra-
accommodative nature of its policy given the undershoot in inflation and inflation expectations, and the
persistent low economic growth and credit market fragmentation in the euro-area. Additionally, political
factors have been confounding expectations and constraining the outlook, adding uncertainty. The result of
the British referendum last June 2016 caused some instability in financial markets and the reassessment of
economic growth prospects, scenarios that have been in the meantime readjusted due to the protracting
nature of the Brexit process. Indeed, its main effects will probably only be plainly felt within a few years’
time. Also relevant has been the result of the Presidential elections in the United States, where the candidate
Donald Trump won the elections, causing a shift in expectations due to his aggressive proposals in terms of
fiscal policy.

Despite the efforts of Governments and central banks, almost ten years after the onset of the international
financial crisis, the global economic situation continues to be characterized by slow growth, low inflation
and almost exhaustion of the usual economic policy tools in the developed world, especially as far as
monetary policy is concerned. Additionally, high debt levels remain in several economies, both at public
and private sector level, and are also restraining aggregate demand growth and hindering the economy’s
response to ultra-loose monetary conditions.

Despite the more positive mood at the beginning of 2017, economic growth might disappoint and financial
instability may return, especially in the euro-area. The heavy political agenda in Europe during the year of
2017 is one of the reasons to expect that the spectre of EU disintegration scenario might eventually return.
The focus will particularly be on the results of Dutch and French elections, as the far-right candidates with
anti-EU pledges seems to be well positioned. Also the German elections may put Angela Merkel’s position
at stake. Furthermore, on the economic front, the high expectations of global consensus about the
effectiveness of Mr. Trump’s looser fiscal policy may eventually be disappointed; additionally, final results
will also depend on the Federal Reserve’s stance that would become much stricter if Trump’s policies are
perceived as inflationary. Negative developments in the international trade area due to the implementation
of protectionist policies may also occur, as well as any disruption with a major global player (especially
China) causing unexpected dislocations in geopolitical risks.

In the Eurozone, the speculation about next monetary policies grows and the increasing possibility that the
ECB starts reverting its ultra-loose monetary policy stance will probably cause some volatility, with more
negative impact in the peripherals perceived to be more vulnerable, such as Portugal. In this case, the
sovereign risk premium would be pressured with negative implications for financing costs internally. A
worst-case scenario might include a disorderly increase in long term interest rates, with negative impacts on
households’ and firms’ confidence indices and economic growth. In an adverse scenario, this could have a
negative impact on balance-sheet valuations and risk perceptions might change, with impact on the capacity
of the Issuer to access international wholesale financial markets.

Euro-zone debt crisis

The instability that affected the euro-zone sovereign debt markets since 2010 has abated and peripheral
markets risk premium (notably Portugal, Spain, Italy and Ireland) have returned to levels more in line with
the ones experienced prior to the debt crisis. Comparing to the 2010-2012 debt crises in Europe, the
European institution framework looks now more robust and capable to withstand adverse shocks that may
come from this process. Both Ireland and Portugal ended with success their external financing programs



with the European Commission (the “EC”), the ECB and the International Monetary Fund (the “IMF”) (the
EC together with the ECB and the IMF, the “Troika”) and are now issuing regularly on the sovereign debt
market; fiscal consolidation continued in peripheral markets and several structural reforms have been
enacted in the more vulnerable economies, including Spain and Italy; finally, the completion of the Asset
Quality Review in the European banking system and the progress in the Banking Union, including the launch
of the Single Supervisory Mechanism and of the Single Resolution Mechanism, also gave more resilience
to the monetary union architecture. But the main factor behind the sustained fall of risk premium in the
peripheral countries was the implementation of the Public Sector Purchase Programme by the ECB since
March 2015 and recently extended until December 2017. Despite this support, the increasing strength of
populist political forces in several European countries led Governments to change their stance and favour
more expansionary fiscal policies. In some cases previous reforms or expenditure cuts which were
implemented in order to render public accounts more sustainable have been reverted, causing some worries
among some market participants.

Additionally, the banking sector problems aggravated in 2016, especially in Italy, where non-performing
loans (“NPLs”) are particularly high and some banks had to receive public financial support. In Portugal,
the delay in the process of sale of Novo Banco, S.A. (“Novo Banco”) is a pending question aggravating the
country’s risk perception due to uncertainty regarding the potential operation’s costs for the public sector.
In a hypothetical scenario of huge financial instability, a more disruptive framework might return, and create
difficulties in the access of peripheral markets institutions to the international capital markets. In the case
of Portugal, the eligibility of public debt to participate in the Public Sector Purchase Programme depends
on maintaining an investment grade rating, which is currently only assigned by one of the credit rating
agencies recognized by the ECB, DBRS Ratings Limited (“DBRS”).

Uncertainty is likely to continue in 2017: internally, economic growth might disappoint if external risks
regarding global demand are to materialize. In that case, the EC may recommend the adoption of additional
fiscal consolidation measures in order to achieve the desired consolidation pace (keeping the deficit below
the 3 per cent of gross domestic product (“GDP”’) threshold and reducing the structural primary deficit by
at least 0.5 p.p. of GDP), which could potentially lead to political crisis with effects on the financing cost
of the whole economy. Externally, if a more global economic scenario is confirmed, particularly in Europe,
speculation about the pace of ECB tapering would increase, pressuring the sovereign’s risk premium.
Additionally, the upward interest rate cycle by the U.S. Federal Reserve might eventually bring volatility
and instability to the international financial markets, with an impact on the Issuer. Financial instability may
also arise due to the intensification of geopolitical risks, once the new North-American presidency takes
hold.

In the event of negative developments in the financial markets, the Issuer’s ability to access the capital
markets and obtain funding to support its business activities on acceptable terms may be adversely affected.
A lack of ability to refinance assets on the balance sheet or maintain appropriate levels of capital to protect
against deteriorations in their value could force the Issuer to liquidate assets held at depressed prices or on
unfavourable terms.

The current financial and economic environment is a source of challenges for the Issuer, and may adversely
affect its business, financial conditions and results of operations in the following ways:

. Since the economic and financial crisis of 2007-2008, whose consequences have been aggravated by
the European sovereign debt crisis in 2010-2012, the business was affected notably through higher



funding costs, both wholesale and retail, and by the depreciation of its shares price and asset values.
In case of further deteriorations on market conditions, the Issuer will be affected. Any worsening of
the current economic climate could jeopardise the Issuer’s strategy and adversely affect its
profitability;

. The decline in interest rates in the developed reference markets, including the euro, with negative
interest rates registered in the whole spectrum of the yield curve (hegative Euribor rates) constitutes
also a challenge for the Issuer;

. The Issuer is exposed to potential losses if certain financial institutions, or other counterparties to the
Issuer, become insolvent or are not able to meet their financial obligations to the Issuer;

. Numerous banks worldwide have been and are being supported in part by various "rescue plans" and
other types of support by their home country governments or are perceived to have huge amounts of
capitalisation needs. The Issuer is uncertain as to how much longer governmental support will be
needed to keep these banks solvent and whether governments will have the means or the political will
to continue this support. Any failure of government support to continue could result in more bank
failures and heightened lack of confidence in the global banking system, thus increasing the
challenges faced by the Issuer and other financial institutions.

Economic and financial situation in Portugal

The economic and financial crisis in Portugal, specifically the developments that have been on the basis of
the Economic and Financial Assistance Programme (Programa de Assisténcia Economica e Financeira; the
“PAEF”) by the Troika in the period 2011-2014, have affected negatively the Issuer’s financial condition,
business and results of operations and any further deterioration of the economic conditions may further
affect the Issuer.

Since a substantial part of the Issuer’s activities is performed in Portugal, the Issuer depends on the
developments in the Portuguese economy, which in turn is affected by the developments of the economic
and financial situation in the Eurozone.

After steady economic growth during the years of 1995 — 2000, the Portuguese economy registered a small
and unbalanced expansion in the first decade of the 21st century, mainly driven by domestic demand while
several imbalances emerged, namely as far as the external situation and debt levels were concerned. As a
consequence of the international financial crisis and consequent great recession, the Portuguese economic
framework deteriorated and by 2009 Portugal’s GDP contracted by 3 per cent.. The economy recovered in
2010 but the intensification of the euro sovereign debt crisis exposed the domestic vulnerabilities,
particularly due to high external financing needs and important imbalances that urged to be corrected in
order to achieve a more sustainable growth path.

The Portuguese economy registered a contraction of 6.8 per cent.!, from the end of 2010 to 2013, during the
period of external financial assistance. Domestic demand has been particularly affected, having dropped
14.3 per cent. in this period with particular emphasis to investment whose contraction was particularly
abrupt, above 30 per cent.. Private consumption has also receded, about 10 per cent., reflecting the fall in

! Source: Instituto Nacional de Estatistica (“INE”) data and the Issuer’s calculations.



disposable income and the deterioration seen in the labour market. Indeed, in the same period,
unemployment reached historical highs, at 17.5 per cent.? in the first quarter of 2013. The economy returned
to growth in the second half of 2013 whereas unemployment fell despite remaining in historically high
levels: 12.4 per cent. for the whole of 2015.

Since 2014, Portugal returned to a slow growth, advancing 0.9 per cent. in that year and 1.5 per cent. in
2015. In 2016 final annual GDP is expected to advance between 1-1.2 per cent., according to the IMF and
the Bank of Portugal forecasts, respectively, accelerating moderately to 1.1-1.4 per cent in 2017. Near term
growth prospects continue to be weak as domestic demand and exports continue to be hindered by structural
factors, related to lack of competitiveness and high debt level at the private sector. As such, external risks,
essentially related to disappointment on external demand front, or the return of financial instability due to
faster than expected pace of tightening by the U.S. Federal Reserve, by an eventual lack of support from the
ECB (tapering effect), or eventually by the intensification of geopolitical risks, would impact negatively the
economic activity, eventually pressuring financing costs for domestic agents and put at stake some of the
improvements already achieved, with unfavourable consequences for the Issuer.

Domestic demand should continue to contribute positively to growth, considering in particular the restitution
of salaries and pensions approved in 2016. Nevertheless, there are several obstacles that may prevent this
positive scenario to materialize. The still high unemployment rate and higher uncertainty, both internally
and externally, may lead to more cautious decisions by households and to the delay of investment decisions
by companies. Unemployment rates should keep at double digit levels, and wage policies will remain
contained in the private sector, suggesting that the evolution of disposable income and private consumption
may also remain feeble. Gross capital formation should practically stagnate after the drop seen in 2016, as
deleveraging at private sector level continues to proceed and some uncertainty regarding business fiscal
policies prevail. Foreign demand is also expected to contribute positively to growth, driven by exports that
should take advantage of the normalization of fuel exports (after the technical stoppage on the main refinery
at the beginning of 2016) and should also benefit from an expected stabilization of the economic situation
of Angola, due to higher oil prices.

Portugal has successfully restored market access, issuing close to €17 billion in debt in 2014 and €20 and
€17 billion in 2015 and 2016, respectively, through syndications and auctions®, excluding debt exchanges.
These issues have met strong demand by foreign investors and an increasing part has been taken by
institutional investors, reflecting the renewed optimism amongst international investors as far as the
sovereign risk is concerned. A new issue of €3 billion in debt by Portugal through syndication was concluded
in January 2017. Following the decrease in funding costs, Portugal obtained authorization to make an early
repayment of half of the IMF assistance loan (circa €13 billion). In 2015, Portugal repaid €8.4 billion and
€4.5 billion in 2016 — equivalent to around 43 per cent. of the loan. Repayments were originally due in
November 2015 and April 2018.

The ECB Sector Purchase Programme has been one of the main supports for the Portuguese sovereign bond
market in recent years, promoting declining financing costs for the State. However, in 2016 the situation
has changed, particularly by the year end: the spread over the European benchmark widened by around 180
basis points during the year and the yield of the 10 years OT (Obriga¢oes do Tesouro) surpassed 4 per cent.
in the beginning of 2017. Part of this movement has been due to better prospects about global economy and
the return of inflation in the Eurozone. However, it also represents specific concerns of investors regarding

2 Source: INE.
3 Source: Agéncia de Gestdo da Tesouraria e da Divida Pdblica - IGCP, E.P.E. (“IGCP”).



the Portuguese economy given its persistent vulnerability and fragilities in a scenario of absence or even
reversion of structural reforms and still high debt burden, particularly at the public sector but also at the
corporate sector level. Public debt ratio is estimated to have reached 129.7 per cent. of GDP by the end of
2016%, one of the highest among EU peers. Going forward, this metric is expected to improve, benefitting
from gradually higher economic growth and an expected improvement on fiscal position. Furthermore, the
ECB monetary support should continue to limit the rise of Portuguese financing costs. However, this is a
scenario under significant risks, as eligible debt to the Public Sector Purchase Programme is diminishing
and ECB lacks arguments to change the parameters of its programme within an environment of higher
growth and inflation. Hence, investors’ concerns are expected to persist, weighing on Portuguese financing
costs. Additionally, increasing speculation about a possible change of ECB policy, notably the
announcement of a gradual decline on the amount of purchases under the quantitative easing program should
also add pressure to Portuguese financing costs, although this process of tapering should not start before
2018.

Additionally, there are also domestic factors that may induce further deterioration in the Portuguese
sovereign risk perception. Indeed, the State Budget for 2017 includes expansionary measures that may pose
some risks to the achievement of the target for the public balance in 2016 and, consequently, may lead to
an increase in financing needs, curbing the correction path for public ratios. Furthermore, an optimistic
macroeconomic scenario is seen as an additional risk to the Government’s target for public ratios. These
risks have been highlighted by the fact that major international rating agencies consider that sovereign rating
is still sub-investment grade, emphasizing fiscal and financial risks.

Despite this framework, public financing needs for 2017 will probably be comfortably met, as estimated
cash buffer (€10.2 billion) represents around 40 per cent. of gross financing needs. In 2017-2018, the
Treasury Bonds that will reach maturity amount to circa €16 billion® and scheduled reimbursements to the
IMF ascend to about €5 billion in the same period (€1.5 billion in 2017 and €3.5 billion in 2018). Failure to
achieve higher growth standards or to proceed with fiscal consolidation and reach a sustained downward
path of the public debt should also affect the conditions of the Portuguese economy, thereby threatening its
recovery. Any further deterioration of global economic conditions, including the return of strong instability
in international financial markets, adverse changes in the credit risk of other countries in the EU, problems
related to the solvency of Portuguese or international banks or changes in the Eurozone’s scenario, may lead
to additional concerns relating to Portugal’s economy. Furthermore, in case global risk perceptions worsen
substantially, the structural imbalances that persist — visible on high debt levels both at public and private
sector level and on negative net foreign assets position, the worst among developed countries (circa -103.6
per cent. of GDP® in the third quarter of 2016) — will highlight the still high vulnerability of the Portuguese
economy and be reflected on the international capital and financial markets. Thus, the mentioned
uncertainties had and may continue to have a significant impact in the Issuer’s financial condition, business
and results of operations.

Regarding the banking system, the regulatory regime in force established that credit institutions and
investment firms should preserve a common equity tier 1 (“CET1”) capital ratio not below 7 per cent..
According to the Bank of Portugal, the CET 1 ratio reached 12.3 per cent. for the Portuguese banking system
in September 2016, down from 12.4 per cent. registered in December 2015. The banking system is adjusting

4 Source: IGCP Investors Presentation, January 2017.
% Source: IGCP and Bloomberg data and the Issuer’s calculations.
¢ Source: Bank of Portugal.



but continues to operate in a difficult environment. Balance-sheet challenges persist largely on account of
the heavily indebted corporate sector. Even though weak credit fundamentals in combination with extremely
low interest rates on mortgage portfolios and declining lending volumes continue to constrain the
performance of the sector, there are signs of improving profitability based on the reduction of provisions
and operational costs. Recent developments relating to Portugal’s banking system include the approval by
European Authorities of the recapitalization programme of Caixa Geral de Depositos, S.A. (“Caixa Geral
de Depositos™), a bank totally held by the State, through a public capital injection of €2.7 billion and the
issuance of €1 billion debt to be taken by private investors.

Since the beginning of 2011, Portugal suffered several rating changes. Fitch Ratings Limited (“Fitch”)
downgraded Portugal to BB+ in November 2011 and changed the outlook to positive in April 2014. In
March 2016, Fitch reaffirmed the rating assigned to long term public debt at BB+ but changed the outlook
to “Stable”, which was confirmed in August 2016. Standard & Poor’s Credit Market Services Europe
Limited (“S&P”’) downgraded Portugal to BB in January 2012, revised the outlook to positive in March
2015 and upgraded Portugal to BB+ in September 2015, with stable outlook, having reaffirmed the
classification in September 2016. Moody’s Investors Service Ltd (“Moody's”) upgraded Portugal to Ba2 in
May 2014 and to Bal in July 2014 with stable outlook, reaffirming the classification in March 2016. DBRS
rating agency, a Toronto based rating provider, also recognized by the ECB as far as collateral eligibility is
concerned, assigned an initial rating of A (low) in November 2010 with a negative outlook and downgraded
it to BBB in October 2011, with a negative outlook. In January 2012 the rating was downgraded again to
BBB (low) keeping the negative outlook. In May 2014, DBRS changed the outlook to stable, which was
later confirmed in October 2016. The BBB (low) is the lowest level in the investment grade DBRS
classification.

Current economic conditions in Portugal entail the containment in the demand for credit and for financial
products and services in the markets in general. Alongside with financial assets quality deterioration, these
may have an adverse effect on the financial condition and results of the Issuer.

Banking Markets and Competition

Structural changes in the Portuguese economy over the past several years have significantly increased
competition in the Portuguese banking sector.

The Issuer faces intense competition in all of its areas of operation (including, among others, banking,
investment banking, specialised credit and asset management). The competitors of the Issuer in the
Portuguese market are Portuguese commercial banks, savings and investment banks and foreign banks that
entered the Portuguese market. Mergers and acquisitions involving the largest Portuguese banks have
resulted in a significant concentration of market share. According to data collected from APB — Portuguese
Banking Association, currently, the Portuguese financial system is quite concentrated. In the first half of
2016, the five largest banks controlled 84.3 per cent. of total assets, and the two largest, 46.4 per cent.. The
principal competitors of the Issuer in the banking sector (ranking in terms of assets as of 30 June 2016) are
Caixa Geral de Depdsitos, the Millennium BCP group, the Novo Banco and the Santander/Totta group.

Although the Issuer believes that it is in a strong position to continue to compete in the Portuguese market,
there is no assurance that it will be able to compete effectively in some or all segments in which it operates,
or that it will be able to maintain or increase the level of its results of operations.
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Additionally, the business, earnings and financial condition of the Issuer have been and will continue to be
affected by the current crisis in the global financial markets and the global economic outlook. The earnings
and financial condition of the Issuer have been, and their respective future earnings and financial condition
are likely to continue to be, affected by depressed asset valuations resulting from poor market conditions.
The actual or perceived failure or worsening credit of other financial institutions and counterparties could
adversely affect the Issuer.

The Issuer's exposure to adverse political, governmental or economic developments related to its
international expansion

The Issuer continues to pursue its international strategy, with particular emphasis on its market position in
Angola and Mozambique.

The oil price level remains a determinant factor in conditioning Angolan economic activity, as oil still
represents close to 98 per cent. of total exports and about half of the Executive’s tax revenues, emphasizing
the need to accelerate the diversification process. On average, the price of a barrel of Brent fell below USD
30 in the first months of 2016, less than half the value observed in 2014, although a following recovery will
allow the average price of Angolan exported barrels in 2016 to slightly surpass USD 40 for the average of
the year. This price is broadly in line with the USD 40.9 projected in the revised 2016 State General Budget,
which was necessary to implement after the original estimate of USD 45 proved inaccurate in the beginning
of 2016. The State Budget assumed a higher budget deficit of 5.9 per cent (5.5 per cent in the previous
version), allowing for extra spending and lower oil revenues. At the same time, the Government adjusted
the execution of the Budget to available funds, even posting a budget surplus of 1.4 per cent. of the GDP in
the first half of the year — it is also known that part of the planned spending was frozen pending authorization
from the Finance Ministry. The State Budget for 2017 follows the same broad strategy in maintaining a
large predicted budget deficit (5.8 per cent.), and a conservative prediction of USD 46 for oil prices, and
the country’s relative fiscal prudence could retain the confidence of investors in spite of the withdrawal of
the request for an Extended Fund Facility from the IMF. In keeping with the pressures coming from falling
reserves and a challenging external balance outlook, 2016 saw another significant devaluation of the
Kwanza, at a total of 22.6 per cent. against the USD, taking place between January and April — the rate has
been kept constant throughout the rest of the year.

Growth outlook is still grim: the Government expected economic activity to have expanded 1.1 per cent. in
2016, with the oil sector growing 0.8 per cent. and the non-oil economy expanding 1.2 per cent., already a
deceleration in comparison with the estimated growth of 3 per cent. (6.5 per cent. from oil, 1.5 per cent. by
non-oil) in 2015; however, other predictions are not so optimistic, with the IMF estimating stagnation in
2016 and the Economist Intelligence Unit pointing towards 0.6 per cent growth. For 2017, expectations are
of a slightly better outlook, with 1.8 per cent. growth in the oil sector and 2.3 per cent. in the remaining
economic activity, leading Angola to grow 2.1 per cent., according to the Executive, still a very low rhythm
when considering the economy’s early stage of development along with a rapid pace of population growth.
However, it is likely that growth is tilted more to the non-oil part of the economy, as the OPEC cuts mean
that Angola will need to slightly reduce output instead of increasing it — meaning stagnating oil sector
growth — while likely receiving a larger revenue from oil due to higher prices — thus allowing for more
revenue to flow into the non-oil sector. The largest negative risk lies with a failure of the oil sector deal,
resulting in a renewed drop in prices; moreover, other more varied negative risks exist in the near future
situation that might imperil the Issuer’s capacity to generate value from the Angolan market.
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In sectorial terms, according to the official scenario, growth will be larger in the energy (40.2 per cent.),
agriculture (7.3 per cent.) and manufacturing (4.0 per cent.) sectors. In terms of the oil sector, output up
until November averaged 1.74 mbd, a decrease of 1.6 per cent. in comparison with the same period of 2015.
While this is a negative development for 2016, it is likely to ease the adjustment for the 1.70 mbd target
imposed by the Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries (“OPEC”) deal on Angola.

The current account balance closed 2015 with a deficit of 10.0 per cent. of GDP according to official
estimates. As expressed in dollars, in the first six months of 2016, the goods balance contracted 14 per cent.
relative to the same period of 2015, reflecting the downswing in export revenues (-32 per cent.).

Economic Indicators and Forecasts

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016E 2017F

Real Gross Domestic Product growth (yoy, %) 3.4 3.9 5.2 6.8 4.8 3.0 1.1 2.1
QOil Sector -3.0 5.6 4.3 -0.9 -2.6 6.3 0.8 1.8
Non-oil sector 7.8 9.7 5.6 10.9 8.2 1.5 1.2 2.3

Oil production (million barrels/day) 1.76 1.63 1.72 1.72 1.67 1.78 1.79 1.82

Price of Angolan oil (average, USD/barrel) 76.5 108.7 111.0 107.5 100.7 50.0 40.9 40.9

Co’?S;;“er Price Index (yoy change, end-of- 15.3 11.4 9.0 7.7 75 14.3 385 385

perio

Fiscal Balance (% GDP) 8.1 10.3 6.7 0.3 -6.6 -3.3 -5.9 -5.8

Non- oil Primary Fiscal Balance (% GDP) -47.4 -51.1 -53.7 -48.3 -44.6 -22.5 -15.8 -

Gross Foreign Intermational Reserves (million 19 57 56301 30808 31,154 27,276 24,550 18600 18,900

of USD, end of period)

Average exchange rate (AKZ/USD) 91.9 94.0 95.6 96.9 98.5 120.1 166.1 166.1

Source: BNA, Min. Finangas, FMI (World Economic Outlook October 2016 and Article 1V, Nov 2015), Bloomberg
Note: P - preliminar; F - Forecast

Net foreign reserves resumed their downward trajectory, after a stable period in the beginning of 2016,
standing at USD 20.3 billion in November 2016, down 18.4 per cent. from a year ago levels. The drop in
export revenues against a backdrop of a steep fall in oil prices on the international markets is behind this
trend, even though the implementation of proactive measures by the monetary authority — restrictions on
withdrawals and transactions in foreign currency, currency devaluation, search for alternative external
financing — helped to counter this tendency. According to the IMF, the amount of international reserves was
enough to cover around 7.1 months of imports in 2015.

Following a period of a more restrictive stance in 2015 and first months of 2016, with Banco Nacional de
Angola (“BNA”) raising its benchmark rate at the meetings of the Monetary Policy Committee of March
(+25 basis points), June (+50 basis points), July (+50 basis points), August (+50 basis points) and December
(+50 basis points) to 11 per cent. at the end of 2015 and proceeding with three rate hikes in 2016, in January
(+100 basis points), in March (+200 basis points), and in June (+200 basis points), the reference rate has
been left stable at 16 per cent. for the remainder of 2016; the mandatory reserves coefficient was raised to
30 per cent..

The halt to the restrictive path of monetary policy was mainly due to an ongoing deceleration of the inflation
rate, after having reached alarming values in 2016: annual inflation is likely to have reached an average of
32 per cent. in 2016, with the year-on-year rise of prices amounting to 41.2 per cent. in November 2016.
Monthly inflation peaked at 4.0 per cent. in July, after which it has gradually decreased. Inflation is expected
to moderate somewhat in 2017, although it should still stand well above the BNA interval target of 7 — 9
per cent.. Besides the impact of the currency’s depreciation on imported prices, the higher inflation rate also
reflects the scarcity of foreign currency caused by the still artificially high exchange rate, which limits
imports, in particular of food and raw materials.
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As of October 2016, total lending to the economy’ registered an 19 per cent. year-on-year (“yoy”) increase,
reflecting a 18 per cent. yoy surge in credit to the private sector. At the same time, total deposits recorded a
20 per cent. change yoy, with an increase in deposits denominated in local and foreign currency (24 per
cent. yoy and 13 per cent. yoy, respectively).

The kwanza is not freely convertible and may not, except in the limited circumstances, be exported from or
imported into Angola. This means that cross-border payments and transfers need to be effected in foreign
currency, which may result in an additional risk to the Issuer.

The Issuer can give no assurance that it will be successful in Angola, Mozambique or any of the other
international markets where it operates. The Issuer's international operations are exposed to the risk of
adverse political, governmental or economic developments in the countries in which it operates. These
factors could have a material adverse effect on the Issuer's financial condition, business and its results of
operations.

As of 31 December 2016, the contribution from international operations to consolidated net profit was €
166.3 million, which corresponds to 16.1 per cent. growth when compared to the € 143.3 million
contribution recorded in 2015. The main contributions to the profit from international activity corresponded:
(i) to Banco de Fomento Angola’s (“BFA”) contribution of € 162.7 million, relating to the 50.1 per cent.
appropriation of its individual profit (which corresponds to a 19.9 per cent. increase relative to 2015 (135.7
M.€)); and (ii) to Banco Comercial e de Investimentos’s (“BCI”) contribution of € 5.4 million, relating to
the appropriation of its 30 per cent. of its individual net profit (equity accounted), which corresponds to a
43 per cent. yoy decrease.

Regarding BFA, loan impairments in 2016 amounted to € 15.8 million, down from € 33.6 million relative
to 2015. Loan impairments, after deducting recoveries (€ 2.2 million), totaled € 13.6 million and represented
1.05 per cent. of the average loan portfolio (1.88 per cent in 2015). At the end of 2016, credit at risk at BFA
stood at € 72.7 million which corresponded to 5.4 per cent. of the gross loan portfolio. Credit at risk was
down € 14.4 million in relation to 31 December 2015 (adjusted for write-downs), which corresponded to
0.1 per cent. of the loan portfolio. Credit at risk cover by accumulated loan provisions in the balance sheet
decreased from 122 per cent. in 2015 to 108 per cent. at the end of 2016.

Loan impairments

In million €, consolidation currency (M.€)
% of loan % of loan
Dec. 15 portfolio’ bec. 16 portfolio’
Loan impairments 1 33.6 1.99% 15.8 1.21%
(-) Recoveries of loans in arrears written off 2 19 0.11% 55 017%
Loan impairments net of recoveries [=1- 2] 3 31.7 1.88% 13.6 1.05%

1) Average balance of performing loans. In annualised terms.

Source: Banco BPI unaudited 2016consolidated results

Financial sector regulation

The Issuer operates in a highly regulated industry and its banking activities are subject to extensive

7 Source: Banco Nacional de Angola.
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regulation by, among others, the ECB, the Bank of Portugal, the European Banking Authority (“EBA”), the
European Securities and Markets Authority (“ESMA”), the European Insurance and Occupational Pensions
Authority (“EIOPA”), the CMVM and the Insurance and Pensions Funds Supervisory Authority (“ASF”),
as well as the BNA and other supervisory authorities, from the EU and the countries in which the Issuer
conducts its activities. Such regulations relate to liquidity, capital adequacy and permitted investments,
ethical issues, money laundering, privacy, securities (including debt instruments) issuance and
offering/placement, financial intermediation issues, record-keeping, marketing and selling practices.

Those regulations are complex and its fulfilment entails high costs as regards time spending and other
resources. Additionally, non-compliance with the applicable regulations may cause damages to the Issuer’s
reputation, application of penalties and even loss of authorization to carry out its activities.

The financial market tensions and increasing difficulties in the transmission mechanism of the central
banking system for the Euro (“Eurosystem’) monetary policy have created the need for the establishment
of integrated supervision in the euro area (the Single Supervisory Mechanism) as a first step towards a
banking union and the materialisation of a true economic and monetary union. The Banking Union should
rely — in the long term — on three complementary pillars: the Single Supervisory Mechanism, the Single
Resolution Mechanism and the European Deposit Insurance Scheme. The Council Regulation (EU) No.
1024/2013, of 15 October 2013, established the Single Supervisory Mechanism composed of the ECB and
competent national authorities (NCAS) of participating Member States. The Single Supervisory Mechanism
is further regulated by Regulation (EU) No. 468/2014, of the ECB, of 16 April 2014. The ECB will be
responsible for the prudential supervision of credit institutions in the euro area, with a view to contributing
to the safety and soundness of credit institutions and the stability of the financial system within the EU and
each Member State, with full regard and duty of care for the unity and integrity of the internal market. The
Regulation (EU) No. 806/2014, of the European Parliament and of the Council, of 15 July 2014, established
uniform rules and a uniform procedure for the resolution of credit institutions and certain investment firms
in the framework of a Single Resolution Mechanism (comprised of the Single Resolution Board and the
national resolution authorities) and a Single Resolution Fund. The Single Resolution Mechanism of banks
will contribute to the resolution of institutions without affecting systemic stability and the financial situation
of the countries where they operate. A proposal for a Regulation of the European Parliament and of the
Council amending the Regulation (EU) No. 806/2014 in order to establish an European Deposit Insurance
Scheme is currently under discussion at a EU level. A common system of deposit protection will help reduce
the likelihood of potential deposit runs, which, in a contagion situation, would rapidly constrain banking
liquidity. These three pillars of the Banking Union are based on the assumption that a single prudential
rulebook will be maintained, which may be more flexible for macro-prudential policy purposes, under the
European Union coordination.

On 23 November 2016, the EC released a proposal for EU banking system reforms aimed at completing the
post-crisis regulatory agenda designed to strengthen the resilience of EU banks. The proposals amend
important pieces of legislation, namely the Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and
of the Council of 26 June 2013, on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms
(“CRR?”), the Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013, on
access to the activity of credit institutions and the prudential supervision of credit institutions and
investments firms (“CRD 1V”), the Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council
of 15 May 2014 (“BRRD”), and the Single Resolution Mechanism Regulation (SRMR), including a number
of very relevant topics, among others: the introduction of a leverage ratio; the introduction of a net stable
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funding ratio (NSFR); a review of the trading book; and the adoption of new standards on the total loss-
absorbing capacity (TLAC) of global systemically important institutions (G-Slls), including its interaction
with MREL.

Additionally, as a consequence of the persistence of the financial crisis and the subsequent government
intervention, regulation in the financial services sector has increased substantially and is expected to
continue to do so, which may include the imposition of higher capital requirements, demanding duties of
information and restrictions on certain types of activity or transaction. Also, new regulations may restrict or
limit the type or volume of transactions in which the Issuer participates, or that the fees or commissions that
the Issuer charges on certain loans or other products must be changed, and consequently any of these events
may have a material adverse effect on the Issuer’s business, financial condition and the results of its
operations.

The fulfilment of both the current and future capital requirements as set out by the European authorities
and by the Bank of Portugal could lead the Issuer’s Group to attract additional capital and/or to face
adverse consequences

The own funds requirements’ represent a measure of the activity risk, notably of the credit risk, market
(currency and trading portfolio risks included) and operational risks, which are calculated according to the
prudential regulations in force.

Regarding credit risk, the Issuer’s Group applies the standard approach to obtain the prudential capital
requirements. As to the operational risk, the Issuer’s Group uses the basic indicator approach. The capital
should not only cover the applicable requirements on current activity (such as the solvability ratio
requirements and any other requirements imposed by the supervisory authorities) but also take into account
the strategic needs of growth, subject to market conditions (such as the cost of capital and cost of debt) as
well as preserve a solid reputation among its customers, shareholders and other stakeholders.

The own funds required to meet those objectives are calculated taking into account the financial statements
of the Issuer, pursuant to the applicable law or regulations in force. Basel |1l Recommendations were enacted
as European Union law through the CRD 1V and the CRR. CRR is directly applicable to the Member States
since 1 January 2014 and includes provisions regarding, for instance, own funds requirements, minimum
capital ratios, liquidity ratios.

Regarding capital ratios, the banks were obliged to a minimum compliance with a gradually increase until
1 January 2019 (Core Tier 1 of 4.5 per cent., Tier 1 of 6 per cent. and a total ratio of 8 per cent. in 2019).

CRD 1V includes general rules and supervision powers, wages, governance and disclosure requirements as
well as an introduction of 5 additional capital buffers:

. A capital conservation buffer of 2.5 per cent. of risk-weight assets;

. Countercyclical capital buffer rate between 0 and 2.5 per cent. of Core Tier 1 assets, pursuant to the
conditions to be established by the competent authorities;

. Systemic risk buffer: i) applicable to the institutions with a global systemic importance: between 1
and 3.5 per cent.; ii) applicable to other institutions with a systemic importance: between 0 and 2 per
cent.; and iii) macroprudential systemic risk: between 1 and 3 per cent. or between 3 and 5 per cent.,
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depending on the economical conjecture.

These buffers, apart from the macroprudential systemic risk, were determined to apply gradually from 2016,
although the Member States could anticipate this.

The Bank of Portugal, in the exercise of its powers as national macro-prudential authority, set the
countercyclical buffer rate at O per cent. of the total risk exposure amount, which started in 1 January 2016.
This buffer applies to all credit exposures to the domestic private non-financial sector of credit institutions
and investments firms in Portugal subject to the supervision of Bank of Portugal or the ECB (Single
Supervisory Mechanism), as applicable. The Bank of Portugal reviews this decision on a quarterly basis.

Considering the minimum capital levels already defined on both the CRR and CRD IV, banks shall comply
with:

. Minimum CET 1 ratio: 7 per cent. (4.5 per cent. base value and an additional 2.5 per cent. of capital
conservation buffer);

. Minimum Tier 1 ratio: 8.5 per cent. (6 per cent. base value and an additional 2.5 per cent. capital
conservation buffer);

. Total ratio: 10.5 per cent. (8.0 per cent. base value and an additional 2.5 per cent. capital conservation
buffer).

The CRD IV has been transposed in Portugal by Decree-Law no. 157/2014 which has amended several laws
and decree-laws, including the General Regime for Credit Institutions and Financial Companies
(“RGICSF”, enacted by Decree-Law no. 298/92, dated 31 December, as amended from time to time). These
were accompanied by the entry into force of Bank of Portugal's Notice No. 6/2013, of 23 December 2013,
which established how the transitional provisions of the CRD IV would apply to minimum capital
requirements and the respective calculation.

A 5 year transitory period was projected in order to adapt the previous applicable rules to the new
regulations.

As of 31 December 2016, as per the Issuer’s 2016 unaudited consolidated results, the Issuer’s CET | capital
calculated according to the CRD IV / CRR rules applicable in 2016 stood at:

» CET1 phasing in (rules for 2016): 11.4 per cent., and

» CETL1 fully implemented: 11.1 cent..

Own funds and own funds requirements Amounts in M€
CRD IV/ CRR Phasing in CRD IV / CER Fully implemented
31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 16 = .
1
(rules for 2015)  (rules for 2016) 31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 16
Commeon Equity Tier 1 capital 25743 27547 23134 26788
Risk weighted assets 237023 241221 236528 24076.1
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio 10.9% 11.4% 0.8% 11.1%

Source: Banco BPI’s 2016 unaudited consolidated results
In the domestic activity, the CET1 calculated according to CRD IV / CRR rules were as follows:

* CETI phasing in (rules for 2016) amounted to 1.8 Bi.€ and corresponded to a CET1 ratio of 11.2
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cent. (11.0 cent. in 2015, according to the rules for that year);

* CETI fully implemented amounted to 1.7 Bi.€ and corresponded to a CET 1 ratio of 10.6 cent. (9.9
cent. in 2015).

In the international activity, the Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) calculated according to CRD IV / CRR
rules were as follows:

* CETI phasing in (rules for 2016) amounted to 0.9 Bi.€ and corresponded to a CET1 ratio of 11.9
cent. (10.6 cent. in 2015, according to the rules for that year);

* CETI fully implemented amounted to 1.0 Bi.€ and corresponded to a CET1 ratio of 12.3 cent. (9.5
cent. in 2015).

On 15 December 2016 Banco BPI informed the market that on 12 December 2016 has received the ECB’s
decision regarding minimum prudential requirements to be fulfilled from the 1 of January 2017 onwards, a
decision based on the results of the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP).

According to the SREP decision for 2017, Banco BPI should comply with the following capital ratios on 1
January 2017:

Minimum requirements for 2017

Consolidated Individual I
Phasing-in Of which:
Total : . — . Total
Pillar 1 Pillar 2 Buffers ! Guidance Pillar 2
CET1 925% 4.50% 2.50% 1.25% 1.0% 8.25%2
T1 9.75% 6.00% 2.50% 1.25% - 9.75%
Racio total 11.75% 8.00% 2.50% 1.25% - 11.75%
1) As determined by the Bank of Portugal, the capital conservation buffer for 2017 was set at 1.25%, the comnter-cyclical buffer 15 currently 0% and the O-5II

buffer is zere in 2017.
1) The difference between the requirement for individual CET1 and consolidated CET1 results from the fact that the Pillar 2 guidance only applies te
consolidated CET1. The Pillar 2 guidance is not Maxinum Distnibutable Amount (MDA relevant.

Source: Banco BPI’s 2016 unaudited consolidated results

Considering these requirements, and taking into account the figures observed at 31 December 2016, adjusted
by the 2017 phasing-in factors and by the sale of 2 per cent. of BFA Banco BPI complies with the new
minimum required CET1 ratios and Tier 1.

31 December 2016 pro-forma ratios®
M€ Consolidated | Banco BPI individual

31 December 2016 pro-forma®

CET1 11.0% 10.7%
T1 11.0% 10.7%
Total Capital Ratio 11.0% 10.7%

(Excess) / Need of capital against the minimum + 0.25% buffer

CET1 (248) (354)
T1 (166) (114)
Total Capital Ratio 162 206

1) Ratios at 31 Dec.16, calculated with phasing-in 2017 factors and after sale of 2% of BFA.
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Source: Banco BPI’s 2016 unaudited consolidated results

For a total capital ratio of 12.0 per cent. (minimum SREP of 11.75 per cent. + 0.25 per cent. buffer), the
issue of subordinated debt in the amount of 206 M.€ will be required.

The past existence of a voting cap and the past exceeding of the large limits exposure by BFA were factors
that weighed negatively on Banco BPI's SREP valuation. It is Banco BPI’s understanding that, taking in
consideration that these two issues have been resolved, the capital ratio required to Banco BPI under SREP
will be lower.

In accordance with the statement published by the Issuer on 16 December 2014, the EC published under,
among other provisions, paragraph 7 of Article 114 of the CRR, the list of countries with regulations and
supervision equivalent to those of the European Union (the EC Implementing Decision No. 2014/908/EU,
of 12 December 2014). The list includes 17 countries or territories and does not include the Republic of
Angola. Consequently, as from 1 January 2015 the indirect exposure in kwanzas of the Issuer: (i) to Angolan
State, and (ii) to BNA, is no longer considered, for the purpose of the calculation of the Issuer’s capital
ratios, weighted for risk established in Angolan regulations for that type of exposure, and starts being
considered weighted by risk established in the CRR.
This means that as from 1 January 2015, the indirect exposure in kwanzas of the Issuer to Angolan State
and to BNA is no longer weighted at 0 per cent. or 20 per cent. depending on the exposure, in the calculation
of capital ratios, and started being weighted at 100 per cent..
Considering the fact that the Issuer adhered to the Special Regime for Deferred Tax Assets and the
implementation of new risk weights for indirect exposure of the Issuer to Angolan State and to BNA, the
proforma CET1 ratios at 31 December 2014 were:
. CET1 “Phasing in” (rules applicable in 2014): 10.2 per cent. (2.0 p.p. lower than the ratio calculated
considering the risk weights in force in 31 December 2014);
. CET1 “fully implemented” (fully implemented rules): 8.6 per cent. (1.0 p.p. lower than the ratio
calculated considering the risk weights in forced in 31 December 2014).
The loss of regulatory and supervision equivalence in Angola also has the consequence of indirect exposure
in kwanzas of the Issuer to Angolan State and to BNA (the latter with the exception of the minimum cash
reserves) to be no longer exempt from application of the limit to large exposures established in article 395
of the CRR. Termination of this exemption implies that the indirect exposure of the Issuer to the Angolan
State exceeds, as from 1 January 2015, the limit to large exposures.
the Issuer requested the ECB to approve a change of the consolidation method of BFA, in order to start
applying, for prudential purposes, the equity method, which the ECB has not received favourably.
After the presentation of other alternative solutions, which were not approved, on 7 October 2016, in
accordance with a communication issued by the Issuer available on the website of the CMVM and of the
Issuer, Unitel, SA (“Unitel”) has given its agreement to the operation relating to the sale of 26,111 shares
representing 2 per cent. of the share capital of BFA, for the price of € 28 million, which was proposed in
the letter disclosed to the market on 20 September 2016. In this respect, the two parties signed:

a) The contract for the purchase and sale of BFA’s shares corresponding to 2 per cent. of its share
capital, which will result in the Issuer’s and Unitel’s holdings in BFA’s share capital henceforth
standing at 48.1 per cent. and 51.9 per cent., respectively;

b) The new shareholder agreement relating to BFA.
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The purchase and sale contract provides that the transfer to Unitel of the 2 per cent. shareholding in BFA is
dependent upon the fulfilment of the following suspensive conditions:
a) BNA authorisation with regard to the increase in the qualified shareholding already held by Unitel
in BFA;
b) The authorisation of the capital operations required for the payment to the Issuer, and the related
transfer to Portugal of the agreed price of € 28 million;
€) BNA’s authorisation for the alteration to BFA’s statutes; and
d) Approval of the operation by the Issuer’s General Meeting.
On 31 October 2016, it was announced on the website of the CMVM the convening of a General Meeting
of the Issuer to meet on 23 November of 2016, at 4:00 p.m.. Under the terms of the notice, the meeting was
called at the request of the Board of Directors, and the agenda was as follows: "Single point: To resolve on
the sale by Banco BPI, SA to Unitel, SA of 26 111 (twenty-six thousand, one hundred and eleven) shares
representing, together, 2% (two percent) of the share capital of Banco de Fomento de Angola, S.A., under
the terms set forth in the purchase and sale agreement entered into between those two entities.”
Following a proposal submitted by the representative of the shareholder CaixaBank, SA (“CaixaBank™),
the General Meeting approved by 65.68 per cent. of the votes cast the suspension of the meeting and its
continuation thereof on 13 December 2016 at 2.30 pm.
On the General Meeting held on 13 December 2016, the Issuer’s shareholders approved the sale by the
Issuer to Unitel of 26,111 (twenty-six thousand, one hundred and eleven) shares representing 2 per cent. of
the share capital of BFA, as provided in the purchase and sale agreement entered into between those two
entities.
On 12 December 2016, the Issuer informed that, on 9 December 2016, Unitel paid to the Issuer, via its
international correspondent bank for US dollars, and pursuant to the terms of the BFA promissory agreement
for the purchase and sale of shares entered into between the Issuer and Unitel on 9 December 2008, the
amount of USD 30 million, corresponding to the last instalment of the purchase and sale price of 49.9 per
cent. of BFA that on that date of 2008 was concluded.
The Issuer informed the market on 12 December 2016 that the BNA had communicated that it did not
oppose the practice of the following acts:
a) Partial amendment to the Articles of Association of BFA, namely Articles 7, 9, 13, 14, 15 and 19;
b) Increase in Unitel's qualifying holding in the capital stock of BFA, through the acquisition of 26,111
(twenty-six thousand, one hundred and eleven) common shares representing 2 per cent. of the share
capital,
¢) Indirect acquisition of a qualified holding representing 48.1 per cent. of the share capital of BFA,
following the settlement of the mandatory and general public offering launched by CaixaBank on
all shares representing the share capital of the Issuer.
In the same communication, the BNA also informed that the three operations referred to above were
understood to be indivisible, i.e. it is assumed that they should occur simultaneously or almost
simultaneously, or if for some reason it would not be possible to assure simultaneity, the operation referred
to in (b) shall precede the operations referred to in (a) and (c).
The Issuer informed the market, through the press releases disclosed on the 13 and 15 December 2016, that
it had received confirmation that the transfer to Portugal of BFA dividends regarding the year 2015 (in the
amount equivalent to € 36.9 million) and the part of 2014 dividends that had not yet been transferred (in the
amount equivalent to € 29.2 million) was authorized by the BNA. On 5 January 2017, the Issuer informed
the market that the transfer of those dividends took place, and the aggregate amount of USD 73.4 million (€
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66.1 million) was received in the Issuer’s account at its international correspondent bank for US dollars.
With this receipt, the process of transferring all BFA dividends whose transfer to Portugal was pending was
complete.
Additionally, on 5 January 2017, the Issuer informed the market that in execution of the sale and purchase
agreement, which was announced to the market on 7 October 2016, the transfer in favour of Unitel of a
shareholding interest representing 2 per cent. of the share capital and voting rights of BFA became effective
on that date. As a result of this transfer, the Issuer and Unitel's shareholdings in BFA stood at 48.1 per cent.
and 51.9 per cent., respectively.
The sale of the 2 per cent. of BFA will be accounted for in the first quarter of 2017. On 31 December 2016,
the form of recognition of BFA's participation in the consolidated accounts according to IFRS 5 was altered
to “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”.
In Banco BPI’s earnings release with its unaudited consolidated results for the year of 2016, published on
26 January 2016, incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus, the information is presented in
accordance with said IFRS 5 standard (unless expressly stated otherwise):
» BFA has been classified as a discontinued operation;
» The contribution of BFA to the Consolidated Net profit was recorded in the Income
Statement in a single caption ‘“Net Profit of discontinued operations";
» The total assets and liabilities of BFA are presented separately in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet using the captions "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” and
"Non-current liabilities held for sale and discontinued operations”.
Thus, the consolidated values of most of the cost / income items as well as assets / liabilities mainly reflect
the BPI Domestic activity, since BCl Mozambique is recognized by equity method, and BPI Capital Africa
and BPl Mogambique — both part of the International activity segment and consolidated by global
integration —, have reduced expression.
2015 income statements are re-presented reflecting the retroactive application of IFRS 5 to the recognition
of the 2015 BFA results.
On 2 February 2017 Banco BPI informed the market that on 30 January 2017 was notified of a legal action
challenging a corporate resolution.
Such legal action challenges the validity of Banco BPI’s General Meeting resolution passed on December
13 2016, which approved Banco BPI’s Board of Directors proposal to sell to Unitel, S.A. a stakeholding
comprised of 26 111 (twenty-six thousand, one hundred and eleven) shares, representing 2 per cent. (two
per cent.) of the share capital of Banco de Fomento Angola, S.A., pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement mentioned above. The legal action was filed by 4 shareholders holding together 175 920 shares,
representing 0.0121 per cent. of Banco BPI’s share capital. Banco BPI understands that the merits relied on
to support the invalidity of the resolution do not proceed and will contest the case, within the legal period
for such purpose.
The abovementioned legal action and Banco BPI” notification in such action do not suspend the effects of
the contested decision.

Requirements related to the liquidity ratios

Basel 1ll recommendations endorse the implementation of liquidity coverage ratios of short and
medium/long term liabilities, known as Liquidity Coverage Ratio and the Net Stable Funding Ratio. The
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (“LCR”), addresses the sufficiency of the high quality liquidity assets to meet
short-term liquidity needs under a severe stress scenario and is calculated in accordance with the Delegated
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Regulation (EU) 2015/61 of the EC, of 10 October 2014. The Net Stable Funding Ratio (“NSFR”) will seek
to establish a minimum acceptable amount of stable funding based on the liquidity characteristics of an
institution’s assets and activities over one year period and is estimated in accordance with Basel Il
methodology.

In 2017, for the purpose of the LCR financial institutions should maintain portfolio of high quality liquid
assets corresponding to 80 per cent. of its total net cash outflows in the following 30 days.

Although this implementation process is close to being concluded, there are still some uncertainties
regarding the implementation of Basel 111, which could entail additional changes to the Issuer and may have
a negative impact on the Issuer’s results.

The performance of the financial assets is in general inversely correlated with its liquidity. The fulfilment
of those ratios by the Issuer may lead to the constitution of portfolios with high liquidity assets but low
profitability. Additionally, it may lead to an increase in the financing costs, since the ratios favours the long-
term financing over the short-term. These changes may have a negative impact on the Issuer’s results.

Risks relating to the rules governing the formation of impairments and provisions

European and Portuguese regulations establishes minimum provisioning requirements regarding current
loans, non-performing loans, overdue loans, impairment for securities and equity holdings, sovereign risk
and other contingencies. Any change in the applicable requirements could have a material adverse effect on
the results of operations of the Issuer. For instance, the introduction of the concept of “expected losses”
pursuant to IFRS 9, could lead to a negative impact on the Issuer’s results.

IFRS 9 introduces changes in the way in which financial institutions calculate impairment loss on their
financial instruments, in particular as regards loans to Customers. IFRS 9 uses an expected loss model
(Expected Credit Loss — ECL) replacing the incurred loss model used by IAS 39. In accordance with this
new model, entities must recognize expected losses prior to the occurrence of the loss events. There is also
the need to include forward-looking information in the estimates of expected loss, with the inclusion of
future trends and scenarios, namely macroeconomic scenarios. The ECL concept required by IFRS 9 also
has differences in relation to the Expected Loss concept set out in CRD IV.

Compliance Risks

The Issuer is subject to rules and regulations related to the prevention of money laundering and terrorism
financing. Compliance with anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist financing rules entails significant cost
and effort. Non-compliance with these rules may have serious consequences, including adverse legal and
reputational consequences. Although the Issuer believes that its current anti-money laundering and anti-
terrorism financing policies and procedures are adequate to ensure compliance with applicable legislation,
the Issuer cannot ensure that it will comply at all times with all rules applicable to money laundering and
terrorism financing as extended to the whole group and applied to its workers in all circumstances. A
possible violation, or even any suspicion of a violation of these rules, may have serious reputational, legal
and financial consequences, which could have a material and adverse effect on the Issuer’s business,
financial condition or results of operations.
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The creation of a deposit protection system applicable throughout the EU may result in additional costs
to the Issuer

On 2 July 2014, Directive 2014/49/EU providing for the establishment of deposit guarantee schemes (the
“recast DGSD”) and the harmonization of the deposit guarantee systems throughout the EU entered into
force. The recast DGSD introduces harmonised funding requirements (including risk-based levies),
protection for certain types of temporary high balances, a reduction in pay-out deadlines, harmonisation of
eligibility categories (including an extension of scope to cover deposits by most companies regardless of
size) and new disclosure requirements and was transposed in Portugal through Law no. 23-A/2015, of 26
March 2015, amended by Law no. 66/2015, of 6 July 2015.

Furthermore, a proposal for a Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council amending the
Regulation (EU) No. 806/2014 in order to establish an European Deposit Insurance Scheme is currently
under discussion at a EU level.

As a result of these developments, the Issuer’s Group may incur additional costs and liabilities which may
adversely affect the Issuer’s operating results, financial condition and prospects. The additional indirect
costs of the deposit guarantee systems may also be significant, even if they are much lower than the direct
contributions to the fund, as in the case of the costs associated with the provision of detailed information to
clients about products, as well as compliance with specific regulations on advertising for deposits or other
products similar to deposits, thus affecting the activity of the relevant banks and consequently their business
activities, financial condition and results of operations.

Potential impact of the recovery and resolution measures

Decree-Law no. 31-A/2012, of 10 February, introduced the legal framework for the adoption of resolution
measures into the RGICSF. Such resolution framework has been further amended by Decree Law no. 114-
AJ2014, of 1 August, Decree Law no. 114-B/2014, of 4 August, Law no. 23-A/2015, of 26 March, and
Decree-Law no. 140/2015, of 31 July, which have transposed the BRRD.

The provisions of the BRRD aim at harmonizing the resolution procedures of, among other things, credit
institutions of European Union Member States and provide the authorities of such Member States with tools
that aim to prevent insolvency or, when insolvency occurs, to mitigate its adverse effects, by maintaining
the systemically key functions of said institutions.

This new framework provides for, among others, the following features:

e Preparation and planning stage: Preparation for adopting measures of recovery and resolution,
including (a) drawing up and submitting recovery plans by credit institutions to the competent
authority for evaluation, which shall provide for the measures to be taken for restoring their
financial position following a significant deterioration of their financial position and (b)
drawing up of a resolution plan for each credit institution or group;

o Early intervention stage: When the institution breaches the applicable legal requirements
governing its activity or is likely to breach them in the near future, the competent authority is
conferred with power to, among others, require that the board of directors of the credit
institution draws up an action plan within a specific timeline; require that the credit institution
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draws up and submits for consultation a plan for debt restructuring with its creditors according
to the recovery plan; require changes in the legal or business structures of the credit institutions;

o Resolution measures: The resolution measures that may be implemented by the resolution
authority, either individually or in conjunction, are:

o Sale of business tool: transfer to a purchaser, by virtue of a decision of the resolution
authority, of shares or other instruments of ownership or of some or all of the rights and
obligations, corresponding to assets, liabilities, off-balance sheet items and assets under
management, of the institution under resolution, without the consent of the shareholders
of the institution under resolution or of any third party other than the acquirer;

o Bridge institution tool: establishment of a bridge institution by the resolution authority,
to which shares or other instruments of ownership or some or all of the rights and
obligations, corresponding to assets, liabilities, off-balance sheet items and assets under
management, of the institution under resolution are transferred without the consent of
the shareholders of the institution under resolution or of any third party;

o Asset separation tool (to be used only in conjunction with another resolution measure):
transfer, by virtue of a decision of the resolution authority, of rights and obligations,
corresponding to assets, liabilities, off-balance sheet items and assets under
management, of an institution under resolution or of a bridge institution to one or more
asset management vehicles, without the consent of the shareholders of the institutions
under resolution or of any third party other than the bridge institution. The asset
management vehicles are legal persons owned in total or partially by the relevant
resolution fund,;

o Bail-in tool: write-down or conversion by the resolution authority of any obligations of
an institution under resolution, except for the some obligations, as defined under the
applicable law. In exceptional circumstances, when the bail-in tool is implemented, the
resolution authority may exclude or partially exclude certain liabilities from the
application of the write-down or conversion powers. This exception shall apply in case
it is strictly necessary and proportionate and shall fall under the specific requirements
provided by law.

Until 31 December 2015, the Bank of Portugal was the relevant resolution authority. Nonetheless, under
Regulation (EU) no. 806/2014, the Bank of Portugal saw its powers as resolution authority in relation to the
Issuer transferred to the Single Resolution Board as from 1 January 2016.

The implementation of resolution measures is not subject to the prior consent of the credit institution’s
shareholders nor of the contractual parties related to assets, liabilities, off-balance-sheet items and assets
under management to be sold or transferred. The application of the resolution measures shall ensure that the
shareholders of the institution bear losses first, followed by creditors of the institution in accordance with
the order of priority of their claims under normal insolvency proceedings. These actions may have a direct
effect on shareholders and the Issuer’s Group expected returns and additional indirect impacts through
changes to such institutions’ business activities.

The determination of which securities issued by the Issuer will be subject to write-down, conversion or bail-
in is likely to be inherently unpredictable and may depend on a number of factors which may be outside of
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the Issuer's control. There may be many factors, including factors not directly related to the Issuer, which
could result in such a determination.

Also, in accordance with article 145-Y of the RGICSF, financial institutions will be required to meet a
minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL) capable of being bailed in. The
requirement will be equal to a percentage of total of liabilities and own fund of the financial institution. The
Bank of Portugal, in the exercise of its powers as national macro-prudential authority and having duly
notified the ECB, under Article 5 of Council Regulation (EU) No. 1024/2013, of 15 October 2013, which
did not object to such decision, and after having also consulted the National Council of Financial
Supervisors, under Article 2 (3) (b) of Decree-Law No. 228/2000, of 23 September, as amended from time
to time, decided to impose capital buffers to credit institutions identified as systemically important
institutions (“O-SIIs”). For that purpose, as set out in the legal and regulatory provisions, the Bank of
Portugal published on 29 December 2015 a table with the names of the banking groups identified as O-SllIs
in 2015 and the respective capital buffers, as a percentage of the total risk exposure amount. These buffers
shall consist of CET 1 capital on a consolidated basis and are applicable since 1 January 2017 onwards. In
the case of the Issuer the buffer is 0.50 per cent.. Simultaneously, the Bank of Portugal also published a
more detailed document on the methodology for identification and calibration of the O-SII’s buffer. Later,
on 30 November 2016, the Bank of Portugal published a table with the names of the banking groups
identified as O-Slls in 2016 and the respective capital buffers, as a percentage of the total risk exposure
amount. These buffers shall consist of CET 1 capital on a consolidated basis and are applicable from 1
January 2018 and 1 January 2019 onwards, as applicable. In the case of the Issuer the buffers are 0.25 per
cent. and 0.50 per cent., respectively.

In order to comply with this ratio, the Issuer may be requested in the future to issue additional liabilities
capable of being bailed in.

Following the decision to apply a resolution measure to Banco Espirito Santo, S.A. (“BES”), most of its
business was transferred to a bridge bank, whose corporate designation is “Novo Banco”, created especially
for that purpose. The capitalization of “Novo Banco” was ensured by the Resolution Fund.

The Resolution Fund has its own resources as provided for in the RGICSF. Nevertheless, the
implementation of the Single Resolution Mechanism had a significant impact in this regard as the initial and
periodic contributions from the participating institutions have been (by reference to the date of the
implementation of the BRRD in Portugal) and are now fully transferred to the Single Resolution Fund.
Therefore, in order to understand what are exactly the resources of the Resolution Fund, the provisions of
the RGICSF in this regard must be construed in conjunction with the provisions of the Regulation (EU) No.
806/2014.

In this context, the Resolution Fund can count with the resources arising from the following sources: ()
contributions over the banking sector, (b) initial, periodic and special contributions from institutions
participating in the Resolution Fund and collected before the implementation of the BRRD in Portugal, (c)
initial, periodic and special contributions from institutions participating in the Resolution Fund collected
pursuant to Decree-Law no. 24/2013, of 19 February, and due under the transitional regime provided for in
Law no. 23-A/2015, of 26 March (aimed at enabling compliance with the obligations undertaken by the
Resolution Fund in the context of the application of resolution measures before 31 December 2014), (d)
initial, periodic and special contributions from the investment firms not subject to the ECB’s supervision,
branches of credit institutions of third countries, entities relevant for the payments system not subject to the
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ECB’s supervision, (¢) proceeds derived from investment applications and from the Resolution Fund
activity, (f) donations, (g) loans, and (h) other proceeds legally or contractually allocated to the Resolution
Fund.

In the specific case of the resolution measure relating to BES, the Resolution Fund provided € 4.9 billion to
pay up the share capital of “Novo Banco”. Of this amount, € 377 million corresponded to the Resolution
Fund’s own financial resources, resulting from the contributions already paid by the participating
institutions, € 3.9 billion corresponded to a loan granted by the Portuguese State to the Resolution Fund
which will subsequently be repaid and remunerated by the Resolution Fund and € 700 million corresponded
to a banking syndicated loan made to the Resolution Fund, with the contribution of each credit institution
depending on various factors, including their size. As of 31 December 2016, the Issuer’s share of this loan
was € 116 million.

The periodic contributions (and even the special contributions) of the participating institutions either in
relation to the Single Resolution Fund or the Resolution Fund are calculated for each participating institution
taking into account the relevant level of financial liabilities, excluding own funds and deducting deposits
guaranteed by Deposit Guarantee Fund (the “Reserve Base™), the institution’s risk profile and the economic
outlook as well as the contribution’s impact in the institution. Regarding the periodic contributions of the
participating institutions referred to in paragraph (c) above, For 2015 and pursuant to the Instruction 33/2014
issued by the Bank of Portugal the rate was set at 0.015 per cent. For 2016 and pursuant to the Instruction
19/2015 issued by the Bank of Portugal the rate has been set up at 0.02 per cent.. For 2017 and pursuant to
the Instruction 21/2016 issued by the Bank of Portugal the rate has been set up at 0.0291 per cent.

According to the legal framework in force, after the sale of Novo Banco, the proceeds from that sale will be
primarily allocated to repaying the Resolution Fund, including a remuneration corresponding to the
financing costs borne by the Resolution Fund, plus a share to cover the administrative and operational costs
of such support.

The amount received by the Resolution Fund from the sale of Novo Banco will be used to repay the loans
obtained. It has been stipulated by contract that the Resolution Fund may only repay other liabilities after
the State loan has been fully repaid and remunerated.

In the event that the proceeds from the sale of Novo Banco exceed the sum of the amounts provided by the
Resolution Fund, the respective surplus will revert to BES” insolvent estate (BES's authorisation has already
been revoked and, as such, the relevant liquidation proceeding is now ongoing).

In the event that the proceeds from the sale of Novo Banco are insufficient to repay the loans, the Resolution
Fund will use its own funds to finance the possible shortage. As previously mentioned, these funds are
partially obtained from periodic contributions to the Resolution Fund (including the contribution over the
banking sector) and might also be obtained through special contributions. The definition of the financing
structure of a possible shortage (in terms of type of contribution, its distribution in time, and any recourse
to temporary loans) will depend on the amount of such shortage. In any case, it is expected that the financing
will be structured in such a manner as not to jeopardise the solvency of any bank and to preserve financial
stability.

The sale process of the Resolution Fund’s holding in Novo Banco, which was re-launched on 15 January
2016, is ongoing and the deadline for the sale process, as publicly disclosed, is currently August 2017 and
there is no certainty as to whether the sale process will occur or when it will be completed.
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On 20 December 2015 the sale of the business of Banif — Banco Internacional do Funchal, S.A. (“Banif”)
and of most of its assets and liabilities to Banco Santander Totta, S.A. (“Banco Santander Totta”) by the
amount of € 150 million was disclosed. This operation involved an estimated public support of € 2,255
million to cover future contingencies, of which € 489 million are supported by the Resolution Fund and €
1,766 million directly by the Portuguese State, as a result of the definitions of the assets and liabilities to be
sold as agreed between the Portuguese authorities, European bodies and Banco Santander Totta.

In January 2013, Banif was recapitalised by the Portuguese State in the amount of € 1,100 million (€ 700
million under the form of special shares and € 400 million in hybrid instruments). This recapitalisation plan
also included a capital increase by private investors in the amount of € 450 million, which was concluded
in June 2014. Since then, Banif reimbursed the Portuguese State of € 275 million of hybrid instruments, but
was not able to reimburse a € 125 million tranche in December 2014.

Banif’s sale process was previous initiated, but on 19 December 2015 the Ministry of Finance informed the
Bank of Portugal that such voluntary sale was not feasible and thus the sale would have to be made in the
context of a resolution procedure.

As referred, Banif was sold to Banco Santander Totta for the amount of € 150 million, and accordingly the
overall activity of Banif was transferred to Banco Santander Totta, apart from some assets transferred to an
asset management vehicle (previously Naviget and later renamed to Qitante) set up in the context of the
resolution. Banif will maintain a very limited set of assets that will be wound up in the future, retaining as
well the shareholders’ equity, and subordinated and related parties debt.

The Resolution Fund is ultimately financed by the banking system, and thus the outcome of any disposals
to be made by or on behalf of the Resolution Fund will ultimately be borne by the institutions which are
required to fund the Resolution Fund, including the Issuer.

No details can yet be anticipated on the potential impact which the resolution of Banif and/or the resolution
of BES, as described above, may have on the Issuer.

Changes to tax legislation and to other laws or regulation

The Issuer might be adversely affected by changes in the tax legislation and other laws or regulations
applicable in Portugal, EU, Angola and other countries in which it operates or may operate in the future, as
well as by changes of interpretation by the competent tax authorities or courts of legislation and regulation.
The measures taken by the Portuguese Government to balance public accounts and to stimulate the economy
may result in higher taxes or lower tax benefits. Further changes or difficulties in the interpretation of or
compliance with new tax laws and regulations might negatively affect the Issuer’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Risks relating to legislation on deferred tax assets

The CRR — which reflects the international regulatory framework for Banks developed by the Basel
Committee in 2010 (the so-called Basel 111), in relation to capital requirements and computation of solvency
ratios of credit institutions — requires Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) to be deducted from Common Equity Tier
1 capital.
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Article 39 of the CRR, however, contains an exception for DTA that do not rely on future profitability,
foreseeing that such DTA are not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital. For such purposes, DTA
are deemed not to rely on future profitability when:

a) They are automatically and mandatorily replaced without delay with a tax credit in the event that
the institution reports a loss when the annual financial statements of the institution are formally approved,
or in the event of liquidation or insolvency of the institution;

b) The abovementioned tax credit may, under national tax law, be offset against any tax liability of the
institution or any other undertaking included in the same consolidation as the institution for tax purposes
under that law or any other undertaking subject to the supervision on a consolidated basis;

c) Where the amount of tax credits referred to in point (b) exceeds the tax liabilities referred to in that
point, any such excess is replaced without delay with a direct claim on the central government of the Member
State in which the institution is incorporated.

The deduction of DTA to Common Equity Tier 1 capital would thus have a special impact on credit
institutions established in Member States where national tax law imposes a time mismatch between the
accounting and tax recognition of certain gains and losses — namely Italy, Spain and Portugal.

In this regard, the Italian and Spanish Governments enacted, in 2011 (ltaly) and 2013 (Spain, with
retroactive effects to 2011), amendments to national tax law that allow the conversion of DTA into tax
credits, with the aim of fulfilling the requirements for non-deductibility of DTA from Common Equity Tier
1 capital of resident credit institutions.

The Portuguese Government approved Law no. 61/2014, of 26 August 2014, as amended from time to time,
which implements a similar regime, allowing Corporate Income Taxpayers to convert DTA arising from
credit impairment losses and post-employment and long-term employment benefits into tax credits.

This Law foresees that any DTA arising from the abovementioned items, accounted in taxable periods
starting on or after 1% January 2015, or registered in the taxpayers accounts in the last taxable period prior
to that date, may be converted into tax credits when the taxpayer: (i) reports an annual accounting loss when
the annual financial statements of the institution are formally approved by the competent corporate bodies;
or (ii) enters into a liquidation procedure, as a result of voluntary dissolution, court-ordered insolvency or,
if applicable, cancellation of authorisation by the regulator or supervisory body. The conversion of DTA
depends, however, on the constitution of a special reserve, equivalent to the amount of the tax credit obtained
increase by 10 per cent, as well as on the issuance of warrants to the Portuguese Republic. The tax credits
obtained with the conversion of DT As may be offset against any State taxes on income and on assets payable
by the taxpayer or any companies included in the same tax group or in the same group for purposes of
prudential consolidation under the CRR.

The amendments to the DTA conversion regime enacted by Law no. 23/2016, of 19 August, establish that
the DTA conversion is not applicable to any DTA arisen from the mismatch between the accounting and
tax regimes from 1% January, 2016 onwards, without precluding its applicability to DTA generated
concerning previous fiscal years.

Risks associated with the implementation of its risk management policies

Within its normal activity the Issuer is exposed to a number of risks that include market risk, credit risk,
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country risk, liquidity risk, counterparty risk, operational risk and legal risk. The Issuer has implemented
management policies and procedures designed to ensure that each of those risks is duly monitored and
controlled. Although the Issuer has followed best practices in this area and takes into account what are
believed to be worst case scenarios in calculations, the policies and procedures it employs to identify and
manage these risks may not be fully effective.

Credit Risk

Risks arising from changes in credit quality and the repayment of loans and amounts due from borrowers
and counterparties are inherent in a wide range of the Issuer' business. Adverse changes in the credit quality
of Issuer' borrowers and counterparties, a general deterioration in Portuguese or global economic conditions,
or increased systemic risks in financial systems, could affect the recovery and value of the Issuer's assets
and require an increase in provision for bad and doubtful debts and other provisions. This would have a
material adverse effect on the Issuer's financial condition and results of operations. The Issuer faces the risk
of its borrowers and counterparties being unable to fulfil their payment obligations.

Maximum exposure to credit risk at 30 June 2016, by type of financial instrument, is as follows:

Type Gross Net
of financial book Impairment book
instrument value value
Balance sheet items

Deposits at other credit institutions 414 231 414 231

Financial assets held for trading and
at fair value through profit or loss 3828 416 3828 416
Financial assets available for sale 5750 821 (142 764) 5608 057
Loans and advances to credit institutions 989 562 989 562
Loans and advances to customers 24 926 304 (971 411) 23 954 893
Held to maturity investments 16 319 16 319

Derivatives
Hedging derivatives 46 614 46 614
Trading derivatives® 264 419 264 419
36 236 686 (1114 175) 35122 511
Off balance sheet items

Guarantees provided 1439114 (25 883) 1413231
Irrevocable credit lines 1481 (1205) 276
1440 595 (27 088) 1413 507
37 677 281 (1 141 263) 36 536 018

1 This caption is presented in the balance sheet as financial assets held for trading and at fair value through profit or loss.

Source: the Issuer’s 2016 Half Year Report

While the Issuer analyses its exposure to such borrowers and counterparties on a regular basis, as well as its
exposure to certain economic sectors and regions which the Issuer believes to be particularly critical,
payment defaults may result from circumstances which are unforeseeable or difficult to predict. In addition,
the security and collateral provided to the Issuer may be insufficient to cover its exposure, for instance, as a
result of sudden depreciations in the market which dramatically reduce the value of collateral. As such, in
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case borrowers or other material counterparties fail to comply with their payment obligations to the Issuer,
this would have a material adverse effect on each of the Issuer’s financial condition and results of operations.
The Issuer is strongly dedicated to the management of credit risks and to the analysis of credit transactions.
Credit portfolio management is an ongoing process that requires interaction between the various teams
responsible for the management of risk during the consecutive stages of the credit process, with the purpose
of improving risk control methodologies, risk assessment and control tools, as well as in procedures and
decision circuits.

The Issuer continues to record credit-quality indicators at relatively good levels, having reinforced the
provision of credit risk.

Loans in arrears for more than 90 days, credit at risk and loan impairments

Dec. 15 Dec. 16
MLE % of loan _ % of loan
o portfolio ¥ h portfolio !
Loans in arrears for more than 90 days 841.4 3.6% 683.3 2.9%
Credit at risk (consolidation perimeter IAS/TFRS)” 1070.9 4.5% 862.6 3.7%
Impairments and provisions for loans and guarantees (in the 906.7 38% 7177 31%
balance sheet)
Write offs (in the period) 162.0 186.1
Note:
Gross loan portfolio 23 668.1 234310

1) As % of the gross loan portfolio.

2) Calculated in accordance with credit at risk definition of Bank of Portugal Instruction 23/2011 and considering the IAS /IFRS consolidation
perimeter which results in the consolidation in full of BPI Vida e Pensdes (whereas in Bank of Portugal supervision perimeter that subsidiary 1s
recognised using the equity method). According to Instruction 23/2011 and taken into account the supervision perimeter, at 31 Dec. 2016 the
credit at risk amounts to 862.6 M.€ and the credit at risk ratio to 3.9%.

Source: Banco BPI’s 2016 unaudited consolidated results

Notwithstanding the above, factors such as unexpected deterioration of global economic conditions,
unexpected political events or a general lack of liquidity in economy may result in credit losses which exceed
the amount of provisions of the Issuer or the maximum expected losses planned through the risk
management procedures.

To the extent that the Issuer’s Group transactions are mainly located in Portugal, the Issuer is particularly
exposed to the risk of a general economic contraction or to another event affecting default rates in Portugal.

If the economic environment continues to weaken, unemployment continues to increase and interest rates
start to rise sharply, the financial condition of the Issuer customers and their ability to repay their loans may
have a significant adverse effect on the Issuer's financial condition and results of operations.

An increase in the Issuer Group's provisions for losses resulting from defaulted loans or possible losses
which exceed the amount of such provisions may have a significantly adverse effect on the Issuer.

Market Risk

The most significant market risks the Issuer faces are interest rate, foreign exchange and bond and equity
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price risks. Changes in interest rate levels, yield curves and spreads may affect the interest rate margin
realised between lending and borrowing costs. Changes in exchange rates affect the value of assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and may affect income from foreign exchange dealing. The
performance of financial markets may cause changes in the value of the Issuer’s investment and trading
portfolios. The Issuer has implemented risk management methods intended to mitigate and control these
and other market risks, and exposure to such risks is constantly measured and monitored. However, it is
difficult to predict with accuracy changes in economic or market conditions and to anticipate the effects that
such changes could have on the Issuer’s financial condition and results of operations.

Infrastructure Risk

The Issuer faces the risk that computer or telecommunications systems could fail, despite efforts to maintain
these systems in good working order. Given the high volume of transactions the Issuer process on a daily
basis, certain errors may be repeated or compounded before they are discovered and successfully rectified.
Shortcomings or failures of the Issuer’s internal processes, employees or systems, including any of its
financial, accounting or other data processing systems, could lead to financial loss and damage to the
Issuer’s reputation. In addition, despite the contingency plans it has in place, the Issuer’s ability to conduct
business may be adversely affected by disruption to the infrastructure that supports its operations and the
communities in which it does business.

Operational Risk

Operational risk represents the risk of losses or of a negative impact on the relationship with clients or other
stakeholders resulting from inadequate or negligent application of internal procedures, or from people
behaviour, information systems, or external events. Operational risk also includes the business/strategic risk
(i.e., the risk of losses through fluctuations in volume, business, earnings, prices or costs).

Legal risk is also included in the above definition. Legal risk represents the risk of losses arising from non-
compliance with the regulations in force (due to inadequate document retention, failure to change processes
as required by new legislation and/or differences in the interpretation of the law) or resulting from legal
action.

The Issuer's business is dependent on its ability to process a very large number of transactions efficiently
and accurately. Operational risk and losses can result from fraud, errors by employees, failure to document
transactions properly or to obtain proper internal authorisation, failure to comply with regulatory
requirements and conduct of business rules, equipment failures, natural disasters or the failure of external
systems such as, for example, those of the Issuer's suppliers or counterparties. Although the Issuer has
implemented risk controls and loss mitigation actions, and substantial resources are devoted to developing
efficient procedures and to staff training, it is not possible to implement procedures which are fully effective
in controlling each of these operational risks.

Risks relating with market transactions on the Issuer’s own portfolio

The Issuer performs transactions in the market using its own portfolio, which includes entering into interest
rate, credit, equity markets and currency rates derivative instruments, as well as the sale and purchase of
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bonds and shares issued in the domestic and in the international markets and the participation in transactions
in the primary and secondary public capital debt markets.

Transactions on the Issuer's own portfolio involve a certain degree of risk. The future results of such
transactions will mainly depend on market conditions, and the Issuer may incur losses which may negatively
affect its financial condition and results.

At the end of December 2016, the portfolio of financial assets available for sale amounted to 3.9 Bi.€, at
market prices. The fair value reserve (before deferred taxes) was positive by 14 M.€.

The Issuer reduced its exposure to MLT Italian public debt by 2/3, through divestments mainly carried out
in the third and fourth quarters, amounting by the end of 2016 to 195 M.€ at market values.

At 31 December 2016 the portfolio of financial assets available for sale was comprised by 2.9 Bi.€ of EU

sovereign short term debt (1.9 Bi.€ of Portuguese Treasury Bills, 501 M.€ of Italian debt and 485 M.€ of
Spanish debt), 534 M.€ of EU sovereign medium and long term debt (339 M.€ of Portuguese Treasury
Bonds and 195 M.€ of MLT Italian public debt), 154 M.€ of corporate bonds, 117 M.€ of equities and 176
M.€ of participating units.

Portfolio of financial assets available for sale Amounts in M€
31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 16
AE Acquisitio - Gains / (losses) b Acquisition Gains / (losses)l}
n value Book value in securities in derivatives Total|  Vvalue Book value . .in o -in Totall
securities derivatives
Public debt 3081 3160 96 -99 -4 3 400 3420 40 -43 -3
Portugal 1746 1778 34 -36 -2 2228 2248 25 -27 -2
Of which
TBonds 320 351 34 -36 -1 319 339 25 -27 -3
TBills 1426 1427 0 0 1900 1909 0 0
Ttaly 505 562 61 - 63 -3 185 195 15 -16 -1
T-Bills Spain 440 440 0 0 486 485 0 0
T-Bills Italy 390 390 0 0 501 501 0 0
Corporate Bonds 234 227 -15 -6 -21 158 154 -10 0 -10
Equities 134 133 46 46 137 117 27 27
Other 244 194 -1 -1 232 176 0 0
Total 3693 3723 126 -106 20 3027 3876 57 -43 14

1) Farr value reserve before deferred taxes. Includes the impact of mterest rate hedging.

Source: Issuer’s 2016 unaudited consolidated results

The Issuer has a policy of reviewing the status of its portfolio of available for sale financial assets every
quarter, notably as regards the possible recognition of impairments. As a result of this periodical review the
Bank may be forced to recognise losses in the income statement in the future.

Liquidity risk
The inability of any corporate entity, including the Issuer, to anticipate and provide for unforeseen decreases

or changes in funding sources could have consequences on such corporate entity's ability to meet its
obligations when they fall due.
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Since the second half of 2007, the wholesale funding markets (including the international debt capital
markets) experienced significant disruptions. Such disruptions have resulted in an increase in the cost and a
reduction in the availability of wholesale market funding across the financial services sector. The businesses
of the Issuer and its respective abilities to access sources of liquidity have been constrained as a result.
During this period, the Issuer has continued to manage its respective funding requirements closely. If the
wholesale funding markets deteriorate further, it may have a material adverse effect on the liquidity and
funding of financial services institutions including the Issuer. There can be no assurance that the wholesale
funding markets will not deteriorate further.

Considering the inability to access the market, for short or medium long-term funding, the liquidity
operations with the ECB are very important. The ECB establishes the valuation and the eligibility criteria
for collateral assets to be used on repo transactions with financial institutions. Changes to these valuations
or the eligibility criteria can have a negative impact on the amount of available assets for that purpose, and
reduce the liquidity lines available from the ECB.

The rules on asset eligibility for Eurosystem operations were made more flexible, allowing for the creation
of portfolios made up of mortgage, corporate loans and consumer credit. As of 30 June 2016, the Issuer had
a portfolio of assets eligible for obtaining funding from the ECB, totalling € 5.9 billion net of ECB valuation
margins.

The Issuer continuously tracks the evolution of its liquidity, monitoring incoming and outgoing funds in
real time. Projections of short and medium term liquidity are carried out in order to help plan the funding
strategy in the monetary and capital markets. Total funding obtained by the Issuer from the ECB amounted
to € 2 billion at the end of June 2016, corresponding entirely to funds raised under the TLTRO (Targeted
Longer-term Refinancing Operations).The refinancing needs for medium and long-term debt up till the end
of 2021, net of redemptions in the bonds portfolio, are nil..

Counterparty Risk

The Issuer’s business operations lead to contractual arrangements with customers, suppliers, financing
partners, and trading counterparts which expose the Issuer to counterparty risks.

Every corporate exposure is reviewed by the Credit Committee of the Issuer at least once a year. Each limit
is set with a specific validity date with a maximum of one year. Financial counterparties limits, both for
money market and derivatives are proposed by the International Department from a strict set of rules that
take into account counterparties own funds and ratings and are subject to the approval of the Executive
Committee. These limits are also reviewed at least once a year. Rules regarding the composition of the
Credit Committee and credit risk approval and management are documented in internal regulations.

As of 30 September 2016 credit risk exposures of the consolidated position are spread across a wide range
of private individuals (34.6 per cent.), small and medium-sized enterprises (14.7 per cent.), industrial
counterparties (5.8 per cent.), and financial institutions (2.8 per cent.), over a range of geographic regions
Euro Zone (84.5 per cent.); EU other countries (0.3 per cent.); Other Countries (15.2 per cent). The majority
of exposure is to Portuguese counterparties (76.4 per cent.), but there is also significant exposure to
international financial institutions (1.8 per cent) and to Angolan counterparties as a result of the operations
of BFA (13.1 per cent.).

Exposures against limits and counterparts' creditworthiness are monitored to ensure that the risks are at an
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acceptable level, and collateral is actively demanded from counterparts not fulfilling credit requirements.

However, there can be no assurance that the Issuer will not sustain losses as a result of default, litigation or
other actions by one or more of its counterparties. Should this occur, it may negatively impact the ability of
the Issuer to fulfil its obligations under the Covered Bonds issued under the Programme.

Hedging Risk

The Issuer engages in hedging transactions to reduce its exposure to various types of risks associated with
its business. Hedging transactions normally involve taking an offsetting position in a related security or
instrument.

Hedging transactions involves financial instruments whose valuation at each moment depends on a number
of factors, including interest rates, exchange rates, etc., and are effective as long as the financial instruments
represent opposite positions. Even though the Issuer enters into hedging positions in order to mitigate its
risk, unexpected market developments may therefore adversely affect the effectiveness of its hedging
strategies.

Moreover, the Issuer does not hedge all of its risk exposure in all market environments or against all types
of risk. In addition, the manner in which gains and losses resulting from certain ineffective hedges are
recorded may result in additional volatility in its reported earnings. If any of its hedging instruments or
strategies is ineffective, the Issuer could incur losses that might result in a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Reputational Risk

The Issuer, the members of its Board of Directors and Supervisory Board and its employees are subject to
extensive regulation, such as mandatory or soft law rules, regulations, contracts, codes of conduct, corporate
governance codes and duties of behaviour towards its customers.

Non-compliance with applicable laws, regulations or codes could lead, besides the fines and/or substantial
monetary damages, to a serious damage to reputation.

In order to mitigate such risk, the Issuer continuously inspects and evaluates the adequacy of its activities
to the aforementioned. Moreover, each company of the Issuer’s Group has available a code of conduct that
its members of the Board of Directors and of the Supervisory Board and its employees are committed to
respect.

According to the applicable laws and regulations envisaged to impede the utilisation of financial entities in
money laundering operations and in activities associated with economic-financial and organised crime, or
terrorism financing, the companies of the Issuer’s Group have identification mechanisms, internal control
and communication systems, as well as human and material resources, in order to prevent such money
laundering and terrorism financing operations and provide to their directors and employees proper training
for recognising operations which may be related to the aforesaid activities and the persons perpetrating those
activities.

The internal regulations of the Issuers” Group companies already comprise most of the applicable legislation
and regulations.
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The Issuer's Compliance Division is responsible for analysing any occurrence. Without prejudice to the
investigations and control actions that the Board of Directors may develop at its own initiative, employees
of the Issuer’s Group have instructions to inform the Compliance Division about any operation (completed
or to be completed) which, due to their amount or characteristics, could reveal any illicit activities.

The Compliance Division is, as stated above, responsible for the analysis of such occurrences and take or
implement the adequate measures in order to prevent the Issuer’s Group from becoming involved in
operations associated with money laundering and funding of terrorism. Also, the Compliance Division is
empowered to take any action necessary to comply with all other duties arising from the applicable laws or
regulations against organised and economic-financial crime.

Both the Supervisory Board and the Audit and Internal Control Committee are systematically informed
about those occurrences and its follow-up.

The Issuer’s Group provides training to all employees (immediately after their admission and on a
continuous basis pursuant to audits made within the Issuer’s Group and also the technical staff forming part
of the commercial networks) about prevention of money laundering.

Although the Issuer believes that its current anti-money laundering and anti-terrorism financing policies and
procedures are adequate to ensure compliance with applicable legislation, the Issuer cannot ensure that it
will comply at all times with all rules applicable to money laundering and terrorism financing as extended
to the whole Group and applied to its workers in all circumstances, despite of its efforts to provide adequate
training.

A possible violation, or even any suspicion of a violation of these rules and any occurrence of money
laundering operations and /or activities associated with economic-financial, organised crime or terrorism
financing by any of its customers, without a proper approach being taken by the Issuer, may have serious
reputational, legal and financial consequences, which could have a material and adverse effect on the
Issuer’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Impact of regulatory changes

The Issuer is subject to financial services laws, regulations, administrative actions and policies in each
location where it operates. Changes in supervision and regulation, in particular in Portugal, could materially
affect the Issuer’s business, the products and services it offers or the value of its assets. Although the Issuer
works closely with its regulators and continually monitors the situation, future changes in regulation, fiscal
or other policies can be unpredictable and are beyond the control of the Issuer.

If the Issuer’s Group financial condition were to deteriorate due to the above mentioned risks, investors in
Covered Bonds may suffer direct and materially adverse consequences, including non-payment of principal
and/or interests due under the Covered Bonds.

Rating Risk

Credit rating agencies regularly assess the Issuer and its credit risk of long-term debt is based on a diverse
number of factors, including its financial performance, the rating of the Republic of Portugal, and the
conditions affecting the sector in general and the Portuguese banking system in particular.
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At the date of this Prospectus, the credit ratings (long term / short term) and Outlook of the Issuer are:
. S&P: BB+/ B with stable outlook. The last revision occurred on 13 February 2017;

. Moody's: Ba3/Not Prime with stable outlook. The last revision occurred on 18 January 2017;

. Fitch: BBB-/B with stable outlook. The last revision occurred on 9 February 2017.

On 18 January 2017, Moody’s confirmed the following ratings of the Issuer: (1) The Ba3 long-term senior
debt and deposit ratings; and (2) the baseline credit assessment (BCA) of b1. At the same time, the rating
agency has upgraded the following ratings: (1) the subordinated debt ratings to B1 from B2; (2) the junior
subordinated programme ratings to (P)B2 from (P)B3; (3) the backed preference shares rating to B3(hyb)
from Caal(hyb); (4) the bank's adjusted BCA to ba3 from bl; and (5) its long-term Counterparty Risk
Assessment (CRA) to Bal (cr) from Ba2(cr The outlook on the bank's long-term senior debt and deposit
ratings is stable.

On 13 February 2017, S&P upgraded the long-term counterparty credit ratings of the Issuer to BB+ from
BB- and affirmed the 'B' short-term ratings, with stable outlook

On 9 February 2017, Fitch upgraded the Issuer's Long-Term Issuer Default Rating (IDR) to BBB- from BB
with stable outlook and the Short-Term IDR to F3 from B.

The current long-term ratings assigned to the Issuer by Moody's is two notches below the level of the
Republic of Portugal (Bal with stable outlook). Fitch rating is one notch above the rating of the Republic
of Portugal (BB+ with stable outlook). In the case of S&P, the rating of the Issuer is at the same level of the
Republic of Portugal (BB+ with stable outlook).

To the extent that there are reductions on the rating of the Republic of Portugal by the rating agencies it is
likely that they affect bank ratings. Such events may result in the application of higher haircuts to assets
eligible for refinancing of banks with the ECB leading to a reduction of the eligible amount of all such
assets.

There is no guarantee of maintenance of the current credit ratings assigned to the Issuer credit. Additional
lowering of the credit ratings of the Issuer may have implications on credit ratings of collateralized debt
issued by the Issuer which, in turn, can affect the portfolio of assets eligible for funding from the Eurosystem
and increase the cost of the Issuer resources.

Currency risk in International operations

International operations are exposed to foreign exchange risk, which is reflected mainly in the statements
of income and in the balance sheets of the respective subsidiaries of the Issuer’s Group, for the purpose of
consolidation. It is relevant for this purposes the changes in the exchange rates of local currencies against
the euro and in the exchange rate of the U.S. dollar against the euro, due to the high use of the U.S. dollar
in these economies, which explains that a significant share of business customer is expressed in U.S. dollars.
Consequently, even if the amount of revenues, costs and profits of the Issuer’s Group remain unchanged in
local currency, changes in exchange rates may affect the amount of income, costs and profits declared in the
statement of income of the Issuer’s Group. The currency exposure of the Issuer results mainly from the
banking activity of BFA in Angola, but also, although to a much lesser extent, the activity of BCI in
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Mozambique. The currency of Angola is the Kwanza, but the high use of the U.S. dollar in the Angolan
economy explains that a considerable share of business with clients of BFA is expressed in U.S. dollars.
As of 30 June 2016, about one third of deposits and about half of the loan portfolio was denominated in
U.S. dollars:

. Customer resources captured in U.S. dollars (c. 1/3 of the total) decreased by 15 per cent. yoy and
Customer resources in kwanzas (representing c. 2/3 of total resources) increased by 28 per cent. yoy.
When expressed in euros Customer resources decreased 10.5 per cent. yoy.

. The loan portfolio in U.S. dollars (1/2 of the total) decreased by 10 per cent. yoy and the loan portfolio
in kwanzas (1/2 of the total) increased by 26 per cent. yoy. When expressed in euros Loan portfolio
decreased 9.1 per cent. yoy.

A substantial portion of revenue and costs are thus expressed in U.S. dollars or indexed to it.

If the value of the euro was to rise significantly against other currencies, especially the U.S. dollar and the

Kwanza, the values of balance sheet and statement of income items expressed in these currencies would

translate into relatively lower values when converted to euros.

Currency Exchange Rates

AKZ /1 USD USD/1 EUR" AKZ/1EUR
Akz (end of month) $US (end of month) Akz (end of month)
180 166 1.80 200 $ 185
16/1 f
160 - 160 180 180,
140 E[ 1.40 160 148
w 122 \/
120 ,./ 1.20 1.09 112 140
103 ' 125 /_/
100 1.00 120 N
80 0.80 100
Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec .

14 1B 15 15 1B 1% 16 16 16 14 15 15 15 15 186 16 16 16 14 15 15 15 15 16 16 16 16

Source: BNA (Angolan central bank)
Quarterly average exchange rates

A 2015/
2016
AKZ /1 USD 106 114 129 135 121 158 166 166 166 164 35.6%
USD/1EUR 1.1 1.11 112 1.09 1.11 1.1 112 112 112 112 0.9%
AKZ /1 EUR 118 126 144 147 134 176 185 185 185 183 36.8%

1Q15 2Q15 3Q15 4Q15 2015 1Q16 2Q16 3Q16 4Q16 2016

1) Cross rate implicit in the AKZ/ USD and AKZ/EUR exchange rates published by BNA.
Source: Issuer’s information

Evaluation of the exposure to structural foreign exchange rate risk

Regarding the exposure to structural foreign exchange rate risk, the position in kwanza reaches a significant
value due to the participating interest in BFA’s capital. The positions in the remaining currencies are of
minor significance. A stress test to the structural position (depreciation of 30 per cent. in Kwanza and 20 per
cent. in the remaining currencies) reveals, as of 30 June 2016, a capital at risk of € 110 million.
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Structural position, at 30 June 2016 Amounts in M.€
Assets and liabilities by currency

Type of financial instrument

EUR usb AKZ Other Total
Assets
Cash and deposits at central banks 778.3 210.2 1 405.8 6.7 2401.1
Deposits at other credit institutions 211.6 110.1 5.3 35.1 362.1
Financial assets held for dealing 453.9 248.0 1049.4 0.1 1751.4
Financial assets held for dealing and at fair value through profit and loss 0.0 6.5 0.0 0.0 6.5
Financial assets available for sale 3588.8 10455 866.6 0.4 5501.3
Loans and advances to credit institutions 401.3 269.0 1475 2.0 819.7
Loans and advances to Customers 211798 694.4 673.1 86.2 22 633.5
Hedging derivatives 42.6 3.9 0.0 0.1 46.6
Tangible assets 57.7 0.0 102.1 0.7 160.5
Intangible assets 23.2 0.0 3.4 0.0 26.7
Investments in associates and jointly-controlled entities 259.6 0.8 0.0 46.3 306.6
Tax assets 448 .4 0.0 5.7 0.7 454.8
Other assets 439.9 45.0 13.7 5.4 504.1
27 885.2 2633.1 4 272.8 183.9 349749
Liabilities
Resources of central banks 2 000.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 2 000.6
Financial liabilities held for dealing 266.8 2.6 25.3 0.0 294.8
Credit institutions' resources 1167.8 66.5 0.1 1.6 12359
Clients' resources and other loans 18 600.9 3529.0 3839.9 1862 26 156.0
Debts evidenced by certificates 1 000.5 4.1 0.0 0.0 1 004.6
Financial liabilities associated to transferred assets 657.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 657.6
Hedging derivatives 150.8 0.2 0.0 0.0 151.0
Provisions 73.9 20.6 1.3 0.0 95.8
Tax liabilities 31.0 0.6 13.1 0.0 44.7
Other subordinated liabilities 21.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 21.7
Other liabilities 554.8 28.9 31.1 1.4 616.2
Foreign exchange operations pending settlement and forward position operations 1493.0 -1237.4 -178.6 -61.2 15.7
26 019.4 2415.0 3732.2 128.0 32294.6
Shareholders' equity
Shareholders' equity attributable to BPI shareholders 1872.5 7.4 381.1 52.7 2299.0
Non controlling interests 1.8 0.0 379.5 0.0 381.3
1874.3 -7.4 760.6 52.7 2 680.3
Structural position 218.26 -220.08 3.08
Stress test 43.65 66.02 0.62 110.29

Source: Banco BPI’s 2016 First Half Report

BFA Operating Costs
M.€ Jun.15 Jun.16 A M.€ A%

Personnel costs 41.6 43.5 1.9 4.6%
Outside supplies and services 36.6 34.3 -2.4 -6.4%
Depreciation & amortisation 8.3 6.2 2.1 -24.9%
Operating costs 865 840 -25 -2.9%
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Average exchange rate of EUR

Junt5  Jun.16 A%
USD/1EUR 1.110 1.113 0.3%
AKZ [1EUR 1221 1805  47.9%

Source: Issuer’s information

BFA individual accounts expressed in Eur, USD and AKZ

BFA individual accounts expressed in EUR, USD and AKZ

T s RO T In millions of USD (M.USD) In millions of AKZ (M.AKZ)
currency (M.€)
A A

Dec.15 Dec.16 A M.E A %| Dec.15 Dec.16 MLUSD A %| Dec.15 Dec.16 MLAKZ A%
Personnel costs 829 920 9.2 11.0% 916 1027 111 121% 11113 16854 5741 51.7%
General 71.2 63.0 -83 -11.6% 787 702 -85 -10.8% 9523 11518 1995 21.0%
administrative costs
Depreciation and 16.2 13.0 -3.3 -201% 179 145 3.4 -193% 2165 2372 207 9.6%
amortisation
Overhead costs 170.3 168.0 -2.4  -1.4%| 1882 187.3 0.9 -0.5% 22800 30744 7943 34.8%

Source: Issuer’s information
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International activity income statement

International activity income statement Amounts in ME
Decl5|  Dezls Dec.16 Chg.%

as reported| proforma  as reported De d%l:ﬁf:mn :
Financial margin (nammow sense} 308.2 L0 14 38.6%
Gross margin on umt links
Income from equity instniments 0.0 0.0 (100.0%)
Net commissions relating to amortised cost 0.0
Financial margin 308.2 L0 14 38.5%
Technical result of insurance confracts
MNet commission income 68.7 (0.8) (0.3) 62.1%
Net income on financial operations 146.7 0.0 0.1 1723.1%
Net operating income (7.9) (0.0 0.0y (16.6%)
Operating income from banking activity 5157 0.2 1.1 440.7%
Personnel costs 850 21 18 (15.0%)
General admmmstrative costs 71.9 0.7 0.6 (11.1%)
Depreciation and amortisation 16.4 0.1 0.1 (29.6%)
Overhead costs 173.3 19 135 (14.7T%%)
Operating profit before impairments and provisions M4 (2.7 (14) 49.4%
Recovery of loans, interest and expenses Lo
Impairment losses and provisions for leans and guarantees, net 336
Impairment losses and other provisions, net 3.6
Net income hefore income tax 307.1 (2.7 (1L4) 49 4%
Income tax 333 6.3 7.2 132%
Eamings of associated companies (equity method) 10.3 10.3 59 (42.9%)
Net income from continuing operations 2541 1.2 (2.7) (313.3%)
Net income from discontinued operations 282.8 3377 19.4%
Income attmbutable to non-controlling mterests from contimung operations 140.8
ii:;z.:;ih‘ihmab]e to non-controlling mterests from discontinued 140.8 1628 19.9%
Net Income 143.3 143.3 166.3 16.1%

Mote: 2015 proforma reflecting the retroactive application of IFES 3 to the recogmution of BEA 2013 results.

Source: Banco BPI’s 2016 unaudited consolidated results

The Issuer’s Group manages the currency risk to the extent and in the manner it deems appropriate at all
times. However, it does not ensure full coverage of the currency risk associated with its international
operations, namely the coverage of the exchange risk associated with its participation in BFA. Taking in
consideration that as of January 2017 the Issuer holds 48.1 per cent participation in BFA, the coverage of
the exchange risk associated with this participation is now different.
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Strategy Risk

The Issuer is subject to risks of strategy. EXists the possibility that the Issuer makes strategic decisions
whose results may differ significantly from those intended. The strategies adopted reflect decisions made in
a given economic environment, market, competition, statutory, regulatory, and others, which includes
variables that the Issuer is not able to influence and can change significantly in order to become, eventually,
strategies adopted inadequate to the new framework.

Risk of changes in the organization of partnerships

There are some activities of the Issuer’s Group which are partially related to partnerships in various activities
with other companies that are not under the control of the Issuer’s Group, in particular the activities of
bancassurance. These activities depend in part on such partners which the Issuer’s Group does not control.

Described below are some of the business relationship established by the Issuer’s Group:

Caixabank: the Issuer and Caixabank have a partnership embodied in a range of products and services to
support companies operating in the Iberian Peninsula, allowing them to conduct international financial
operations identical to those held in its domestic market conditions.

Allianz Group: the Issuer and Allianz Group have a partnership for insurance of real life and risk classes,
based on a 35 per cent stake in Allianz Portugal and in the insurance distribution agreement through the
commercial network of the Issuer. The Issuer also provides a supply credit insurance for domestic and
foreign customers, through a collaboration protocol with COSEC, 50 per cent owned by the Issuer in
partnership with Euler Hermes (Allianz Group entity), which holds the remaining 50 per cent.

Unitel: the Issuer in conjunction with Unitel have a strategic partnership with BFA. Unitel holds 51.9 per
cent equity of BFA and BPI the remaining 48.1 per cent stake. This partnership aims at the development of
banking activity of BFA in Angola. In October 2016, a shareholders' agreement between the Issuer and
Unitel was concluded containing, among others, rules on the composition of the governing bodies and on
the transfer of shares of BFA.

Risks relating to CaixaBank’s general tender offer

CaixaBank released on the 18 April 2016 the preliminary public announcement for the launch of a general
tender offer (“Offer”) for the acquisition of the shares representing the share capital of the Issuer.

The offered price was € 1.113 per share in cash and it was subject to the elimination of the voting cap in the
Issuer, obtaining more than 50 per cent. of the Issuer's share capital and regulatory approvals.

The General Meeting of Shareholders of the Issuer held on 21 September 2016 approved the removal of the
statutory limit to the counting of votes cast in General Meeting.

After the approval of the removal of the single shareholder voting cap as mentioned above, the CMVM has
revoked a waiver for the launch of a mandatory tender offer which was granted to CaixaBank in 2012,
thereby placing CaixaBank under the obligation of launching a mandatory tender offer. As a consequence,
the existing voluntary tender offer for the Issuer shares was converted, as one of the limits for the takeover
bid was exceeded, to a mandatory tender offer.
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On 21 September 2016, CaixaBank published on the CMVM’s web page a preliminary announcement of a
general and mandatory tender offer over shares representing the share capital of the Issuer and which
modified the former preliminary announcement of 18 of April 2016 described above, in particular regarding
the price offered, now amounting to € 1.134 per share.

The acceptance period of the Offer finalised on 7 February 2017. The Offer has been accepted by a total of
568,362,308 shares of the Issuer, representing 39.1 per cent. of the Issuer’s share capital. As a result, the
stake of CaixaBank in the Issuer has increased from 45.5 per cent. to 84.51 per cent. of the share capital.

CaixaBank has identified certain potential synergies which CaixaBank believes may be achievable if the
Offer is successful, including, among others, streamlining of operational processes at a head office level,
scale benefits, with joint procedures for the award of public contracts, IT infrastructures and architecture
optimization and subcontracting several back-office services, distribution channels, product and other
services and functions development with top Offeror associates, at a low cost.

Whilst CaixaBank believes the underlying assumptions on which it has based its estimates are reasonable,
the degree of its success in achieving such synergies remains subject to uncertainties and could vary
significantly. There can be no assurance that such potential synergies or other anticipated benefits will be
realised in the near future.

Additional information about the Offer can be obtained from the website of the Issuer
(http://bpi.bancobpi.pt/) and from the website of the CMVM (www.cmvm.pt).

Other Risks

As mentioned above, the Issuer may be exposed to other risks or to an unexpected level of risk.
Notwithstanding the implementation of extensive procedures regarding the management of risks and types
of risk identified by the Issuer and to which it is exposed, the Issuer may not ensure that it will not be
affected by the materialisation of risks currently unknown. The Issuer cannot further ensure that, in the event
of the occurrence of exceptionally adverse scenarios, the proceedings used by it in the identification,
monitoring and management of risks will be totally effective.

RISKS SPECIFIC TO THE COVERED BONDS
Portuguese Mortgage Covered Bonds Legislation

The Covered Bonds Law came into effect on 20 March 2006 and the Bank of Portugal Regulations came
into effect on 11 October 2006. The protection afforded to the holders of Covered Bonds by means of the
special creditor privilege on the Cover Pool is based only on the Covered Bonds Law. There is still limited
track record for Covered Bonds in relation to the operation of the Covered Bonds Law.

Obligations under the Covered Bonds

The Covered Bonds will not represent an obligation or be the responsibility of the Arranger in that capacity,
the Common Representative or the Dealer in that capacity or any person other than the Issuer. The Issuer
will be liable solely in its corporate capacity for its obligations in respect of the Covered Bonds and such
obligations will not be the obligations of its officers, members, directors, employees, security holders or
incorporators.
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Extended Maturity of the Covered Bonds

Unless the rating provided by the Rating Agencies appointed by the Issuer at the relevant time in respect of
the Programme is adversely affected by such provisions, an Extended Maturity Date will apply to each
Series of Covered Bonds issued under the Programme. If an Extended Maturity Date is specified in the
applicable Final Terms as applying to a Series of Covered Bonds and the Issuer fails to redeem at par all of
those Covered Bonds in full on the Maturity Date, the maturity of the principal amount outstanding of the
Covered Bonds will automatically be extended on a monthly basis for up to one year to the Extended
Maturity Date, subject as otherwise provided in the applicable Final Terms. In that event, the Issuer may
redeem at par all or part of the principal amount outstanding of those Covered Bonds on an Interest Payment
Date falling in any month after the Maturity Date up to and including the Extended Maturity Date, subject
as otherwise provided in the applicable Final Terms. In that event also, the interest payable on the principal
amount outstanding of those Covered Bonds will change as provided in the applicable Final Terms and such
interest may apply on a fixed or floating basis. The extension of the maturity of the principal amount
outstanding of those Covered Bonds from the Maturity Date up to the Extended Maturity Date will not result
in any right of the holders of Covered Bonds to accelerate payments on those Covered Bonds or constitute
an event of default for any purpose and no payment will be due to the holders of Covered Bonds in that
event other than as set out in the Terms and Conditions (see Terms and Conditions) as amended by the
applicable Final Terms.

Benefit of special creditor privilege (“privilégio creditdrio especial”)

The holders of Covered Bonds issued by the Issuer under the Programme whether outstanding at the date
hereof or in the future benefit from a special creditor privilege (“privilégio creditério especial™) over all
assets comprised in the Cover Pool in relation to the payment of principal and interest on the Covered Bonds
(See Characteristics of the Cover Pool). The Covered Bonds Law establishes that the Common
Representative and any Hedge Counterparties at the date hereof and in the future are also preferred creditors
of the Issuer which benefit from the above mentioned special creditor privilege (“privilégio creditério
especial”).

None of the assets comprised in the Cover Pool are or will be exclusively available to meet the claims of
the holders of certain Covered Bonds ahead of other holders of Covered Bonds or of Other Preferred
Creditors of the Issuer at the date hereof or in the future.

Risk of conflict of interests

Because the Agent, which will act as Calculation Agent unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final
Terms, will normally be the Issuer a potential conflict of interest may exist between the Agent and the
holders of the Covered Bonds, including with respect to certain determinations the Agent must make.

Factors which are material for the purposes of assessing the market risks associated with Covered
Bonds issued under the Programme

The Covered Bonds may not be a suitable investment for all investors.

Each potential investor in the Covered Bonds must determine the suitability of that investment in light of
its own circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

o have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the relevant Covered
Bonds, the merits and risks of investing in the relevant Covered Bonds and the information contained
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or incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus or any applicable supplement;

o have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the relevant Covered Bonds and the impact such
investment will have on its overall investment portfolio;

o have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Covered
Bonds, including Covered Bonds with principal or interest payable in one or more currencies, or
where the currency for principal or interest payments is different from the currency in which such
investor’s financial activities are principally denominated;

o understand thoroughly the terms of the relevant Covered Bonds and be familiar with the behaviour
of any relevant indices and financial markets; and

o be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicable risks.

EU Savings Directive, OECD CRS and Directive 2014/107/EU

Under EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC, as amended from time to time, on the taxation of savings income
(the “EU Savings Directive”), Member States are required to provide to the tax authorities of another
Member State details of payments of interest (or similar income) paid by a person within its jurisdiction to
an individual resident in that other Member State. However, for a transitional period, Austria is instead
required (unless during that period it elects otherwise) to operate a withholding system in relation to such
payments (the ending of such transitional period being dependent upon the conclusion of certain other
agreements relating to information exchange with certain other countries). A number of non-EU countries
and territories including Switzerland have adopted similar measures (a withholding system in the case of
Switzerland). Please note that Luxembourg, who also applied the withholding system until 31 December
2014, has implemented the automatic exchange of information system, effective as of 1 January 2015
onwards.

If a payment were to be made or collected through a Member State which has opted for a withholding system
and an amount of, or in respect of, tax were to be withheld from that payment, neither the Issuer nor the
Paying Agent nor any other person would be obliged to pay additional amounts with respect to any Notes
as a result of the imposition of such withholding tax. The Issuer is required to maintain a Paying Agent in a
Member State that is not obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to the EU Savings Directive.

However, on 10 November 2015 the Council of the European Union adopted the Council Directive (EU)
2015/2060, of 10 November 2015, repealing the EU Savings Directive from 1 January 2017 in the case of
Austria and from 1 January 2016 in the case of all other Member States of the European Union (subject to
on-going requirements to fulfil administrative obligations such as the reporting and exchange of information
relating to, and accounting for withholding taxes on, payments made before those dates). This is to prevent
overlap between the EU Savings Directive and a new automatic exchange of information regime to be
implemented under Council Directive 2011/16/EU on Administrative Cooperation in the field of Taxation
(as amended from time to time). The new regime under Council Directive 2011/16/EU (as amended from
time to time) is in accordance with the Global Standard released by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development in July 2014. Council Directive 2011/16/EU (as amended from time to time) is
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generally broader in scope than the Savings Directive, although it does not impose withholding taxes.

Portugal has implemented the above Savings Directive on taxation of savings income into the Portuguese
law through Decree-Law no. 62/2005, of 11 March 2005, as amended from time to time. Accordingly, it is
expected that Decree-Law no. 62/2005, of 11 March 2005, as amended from time to time, will be revoked.

Moreover, Council Directive 2014/107/EU was transposed to Portuguese national law on October 2016 by
Decree-Law 64/2016, of October 11 (“Portuguese CRS Law”), which amended Decree-Law number
61/2013, of May 10, which transposed Directive 2011/16/EU.

Under the Portuguese CRS Law, the first exchange of information will be enacted in 2017 for information
related to the calendar year 2016.

The proposed financial transactions tax ("FTT")

The EC has published a proposal for a Directive for acommon FTT in Belgium, Germany, Estonia, Greece,
Spain, France, Italy, Austria, Portugal, Slovenia and Slovakia (the "participating Member States").

The proposed FTT has very broad scope and could, if introduced in its current form, apply to certain dealings
in Notes (including secondary market transactions) in certain circumstances. The issuance and subscription
of Notes should, however, be exempt.

Under current proposals, the FTT could apply in certain circumstances to persons both within and outside
of the participating Member States. Generally, it would apply to certain dealings in Notes where at least one
party is a financial institution, and at least one party is established in a participating Member State. A
financial institution may be, or be deemed to be, "established" in a participating Member State in a broad
range of circumstances, including (a) by transacting with a person established in a participating Member
State or (b) where the financial instrument which is subject to the dealings is issued in a participating
Member State.

The FTT proposal remains subject to negotiation between the participating Member States and is the subject
of legal challenge. It may therefore be altered prior to any implementation, the timing of which remains
unclear. Additional EU Member States may decide to participate. Prospective holders of Notes are advised
to seek their own professional advice in relation to the FTT.

US Foreign Account Tax Compliance Withholding

The Issuer and other non-US financial institutions through which payments on the Covered Bonds are made
may be required to withhold US tax at a rate of 30 per cent. or at a rate resulting from multiplying 30 per
cent. by the positive “passthrough percentage” (as defined in US Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act
(“FATCA”)) of the Issuer or of the other non-US financial institutions through which payments on the
Covered Bonds are made, to the payments made after 31 December 2014 in respect of (i) any Covered
Bonds issued after 18" March 2012 and (ii) any Covered Bonds which are treated as equity for US federal
tax purposes, whenever issued, pursuant to the FATCA.

This withholding tax may be triggered if (i) the Issuer is a foreign financial institution (“FFI”) (as defined
in FATCA) which enters into and complies with an agreement with the US Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) to provide certain information on its account holders (a term which includes the holders of its debt
or equity interests that are not regularly traded on an established securities market) (making the Issuer a
participating FFI), and (ii) (a) an investor does not provide information sufficient for the participating FFI
to determine whether the investor is a US person or should otherwise be treated as holding a “United States
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Account” of the Issuer, or (b) any FFI through which payment on such Covered Bonds is made is not a
participating FFI.

If an amount in respect of US withholding tax were to be deducted or withheld from interest, principal or
other payments on the Covered Bonds as a result of a holder's failure to comply with these rules or as a
result of the presence in the payment chain of a non-participating FFI, neither the Issuer nor any paying
agent nor any other person would, pursuant to the conditions of the Covered Bonds be required to pay
additional amounts as a result of the deduction or withholding of such tax. As a result, investors may receive
less interest or principal than expected. Holders of Covered Bonds should consult their own tax advisers on
how these rules may apply to payments they receive under the Covered Bonds.

Portugal has implemented, through Law 82-B/2014, of 31 December, the legal framework based on
reciprocal exchange of information on financial accounts subject to disclosure in order to comply with
FATCA. In addition, Portugal has signed the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the US on 6 August
2015. The IGA has entered into force in 10 August 2016, and through the Decree-Law no. 64/2016, of 11
October 2016, Portuguese government approved the complementary regulation required to comply with
FATCA. Under the referred legislation the Issuer is required to obtain information regarding certain
accountholders and report such information to the Portuguese Tax Authorities, which, in turn, will report
such information to the IRS.

Change of law

The Terms and Conditions of the Covered Bonds are governed by Portuguese law in effect as at the date of
issue of the relevant Covered Bonds. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial
decision or change to Portuguese laws, including the Covered Bonds Law, the Bank of Portugal Regulations
or administrative or judicial practice after the date of issue of the relevant Covered Bonds.

Bearer Covered Bonds where denominations involve integral multiples: Definitive Bearer Covered
Bonds

In relation to any issue of Bearer Covered Bonds (except for Covered Bonds cleared through Interbolsa,
which for the avoidance of doubt will be in dematerialised book-entry form only and will not have integral
multiples) which have denominations consisting of a minimum Specified Denomination and one or more
higher integral multiples of another smaller amount, it is possible that such Covered Bonds may be traded
in amounts that are not integral multiples of such minimum Specified Denomination. In such a case, a holder
who, as a result of such trading, holds an amount which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination
in his account with the relevant clearing system at the relevant time may not receive a Definitive Bearer
Covered Bond in respect of such holding (should Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds be printed) and would
need to purchase a principal amount of Covered Bonds such that its holding amounts to the minimum
Specified Denomination.

If definitive Covered Bonds are issued, holders should be aware that definitive Covered Bonds which have
a denomination which is not an integral multiple of the minimum Specified Denomination may be illiquid
and difficult to trade.

The secondary market generally

Covered Bonds may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never develop. If a
market does develop, it may not be liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able to sell their Covered Bonds
easily or at prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that have a
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developed secondary market. This is particularly the case for Covered Bonds that are especially sensitive to
interest rate, currency or market risks, are designed for specific investment objectives or strategies or that
have been structured to meet the investment requirements of limited categories of investors. These types of
Covered Bonds generally would have a more limited secondary market and more price volatility than
conventional debt securities. Illiquidity may have a severely adverse effect on the market value of Covered
Bonds.

Market Price Risk

The development of market prices of the Covered Bonds depends on various factors, such as changes of
market interest rate levels, the policy of central banks, overall economic developments, inflation rates or the
lack of or excess demand for the Covered Bonds. An investor in the Covered Bonds is therefore exposed to
the risk of an unfavourable development of market prices of its Covered Bonds which materialises if the
investor sells the Covered Bonds prior to the final maturity of such Covered Bonds. If an investor decides
to hold the Covered Bonds until final maturity the Covered Bonds will be redeemed at the amount set out
in the relevant Final Terms.

Interest Rate Risks

Investment in Fixed Rate Covered Bonds involves the risk that subsequent changes in market interest rates
may adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate Covered Bonds.

Credit ratings may not reflect all risks

One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Covered Bonds. The ratings
may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to structure, market, additional factors discussed
above, and other factors that may affect the value of the Covered Bonds. A credit rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be revised or withdrawn by the rating agency at any
time.

In general, European regulated investors are restricted under the CRA Regulation, as amended from time to
time, from using credit ratings for regulatory purposes, unless such ratings are issued by a credit rating
agency established in the EU and registered under the CRA Regulation (and such registration has not been
withdrawn or suspended), subject to transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances whilst the
registration application is pending. Such general restriction will also apply in the case of credit ratings issued
by non-EU credit rating agencies, unless the relevant credit ratings are endorsed by an EU-registered credit
rating agency or the relevant non-EU rating agency is certified in accordance with the CRA Regulation (and
such endorsement action or certification, as the case may be, has not been withdrawn or suspended). Certain
information with respect to the credit rating agencies and ratings will be disclosed in the Final Terms.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or review
or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine
whether and to what extent (1) Covered Bonds are legal investments for it, (2) Covered Bonds can be used
as collateral for various types of borrowing and (3) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any
Covered Bonds. Financial institutions should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to
determine the appropriate treatment of Covered Bonds under any applicable risk-based capital or similar
rules.
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Other Risks

The past performance of Covered Bonds or other mortgage covered securities issued by the Issuer may not
be a reliable guide to future performance of the Covered Bonds.

The Covered Bonds may fall as well as rise in value.

Income or gains from Covered Bonds may fluctuate in accordance with market conditions and taxation
arrangements.

Where Covered Bonds are denominated in a currency other than the reference currency used by the investor,
changes in currency exchange rates may have an adverse effect on the value, price or income of the Covered
Bonds.

Other than as set out in this Base Prospectus, it may be difficult for investors in Covered Bonds to sell or
realise the Covered Bonds and/or obtain reliable information about their value or the extent of the risks to
which they are exposed.

RISKS SPECIFIC TO COVER POOL
Dynamic Nature of the Cover Pool

The Cover Pool may contain mortgage credits, other eligible assets, substitution assets and hedging
contracts, in all cases subject to the limitations provided for in the Covered Bonds Law. At the date hereof,
the Cover Pool contains mortgage credits and other eligible assets in accordance with the Covered Bonds
Law. The Covered Bonds Law permits the composition of the Cover Pool to be dynamic and does not
require it to be static. Accordingly, the composition of mortgage credits (and other permitted assets)
comprised in the Cover Pool will change from time to time in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law —
See The Covered Bonds Law.

Other Assets/Hedging Contracts

The Covered Bonds Law permits the inclusion in the Cover Pool of other eligible assets and hedging
contracts subject to certain restrictions under the Covered Bonds Law and the Bank of Portugal Regulations.
The aggregate amount of other eligible assets cannot exceed 20 per cent. of the total value of the mortgage
credits and other eligible assets comprised in the Cover Pool. See Characteristics of the Cover Pool.

Hedging Contracts

Hedging contracts can be entered into exclusively to hedge risks such as interest rate risk, exchange rate
risk and liquidity risk. At the date of this Base Prospectus it is intended that the Hedging Contracts, if any,
will hedge the interest rate exposure with respect to the Mortgage Credits comprised in the Cover Pool as
well as the interest rate exposure with respect to the Covered Bonds. The Issuer is entitled but not required
to enter into hedging contracts under the Covered Bonds Law, except if the Covered Bonds and the Cover
Pool are denominated in different currencies, in which case the Issuer shall hedge any exchange rate risk
coverage. See Characteristics of the Cover Pool — Hedging Contracts.

Value of security over residential property

The holders of Covered Bonds benefit from a special creditor privilege (“privilégio creditorio especial”)
over all assets comprised in the Cover Pool in relation to the payment of principal and interest on the
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Covered Bonds (See Characteristics of the Cover Pool). The security for a mortgage credit included in the
Cover Pool consists of, among other things, a mortgage over a property granted in favour of the Issuer. The
value of this property and accordingly, the level of recovery on the enforcement of the mortgage, may be
affected by, among other things, a decline in the value of the relevant property and no assurance can be
given that the values of the relevant properties will not decline in the future. A situation where a mortgage
has to be enforced to pay the holders of Covered Bonds is, however, highly unlikely because the Covered
Bonds Law establishes that any mortgage credits which are delinquent for over 90 days must be immediately
substituted. See The Covered Bonds Law.

Amortisation of Mortgage Credits

Mortgage credits which are included in the Cover Pool are and will generally be subject to amortisation of
principal and payment of interest on a monthly basis. They are also subject to early repayment of principal
at any time in whole or part by the relevant borrowers. Early repayments of principal on mortgage credits
may result in the Issuer being required to include further mortgage credits and/or substitution assets in the
Cover Pool in order for the Issuer to comply with the financial matching requirements under the Covered
Bonds Law.

No Due Diligence

None of the Arranger or the Dealer(s) has or will undertake any investigations, searches or other actions in
respect of any assets contained or to be contained in the Cover Pool but will instead rely on representations
and warranties provided by the Issuer in the Programme Agreement.

Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Covered Bonds

A wide range of Covered Bonds may be issued under the Programme. Covered Bonds may have features
which contain particular risks for potential investors, who should consider the terms of the Covered Bonds
before investing.

Reliance upon Interbolsa procedures and Portuguese law

Investments in Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa will be subject to Interbolsa procedures and
Portuguese law with respect to the following:

(@ Form and Transfer of the Covered Bonds

Covered Bonds held through accounts of Interbolsa Participants will be represented in dematerialised book-
entry form (“forma escritural”) and may be registered Covered Bonds (“nominativas”) or bearer Covered
Bonds (“ao portador”).

Covered Bonds will be registered in the relevant issue account opened by the Issuer with Interbolsa and will
be held in control accounts by the Interbolsa Participants on behalf of the relevant holders. Such control
accounts will reflect at all times the aggregate number of Covered Bonds held in the individual securities
accounts opened by the clients of the Interbolsa Participants (which may include Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg). The transfer of Covered Bonds and their beneficial interests will be made through Interbolsa.

(b)  Payments on Covered Bonds

All payments on Covered Bonds (including without limitation the payment of accrued interest, coupons and
principal) will be (i) made by the Issuer to the Agent, (ii) transferred, in accordance with the procedures and
regulations of Interbolsa, from the account held by the Agent with the Bank of Portugal to the accounts of
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the Interbolsa Participants who hold control accounts on behalf of the holders of Covered Bonds and,
thereafter, (iii) transferred by the Interbolsa Participants from their accounts to the accounts of their clients
(which may include Euroclear Bank and Clearstream, Luxembourg).

The holders of Covered Bonds must rely on the procedures of Interbolsa to receive payment under the
Covered Bonds. The records relating to payments made in respect of beneficial interests in the Covered
Bonds are maintained by the Interbolsa Participants and the Issuer accepts no responsibility for, and will
not be liable in respect of, the maintenance of such records.

(c) Portuguese Tax Rules

Pursuant to Decree-Law 193/2005, of 7" November 2005, as amended from time to time, investment income
paid to non-resident holders of Covered Bonds, and capital gains derived from a sale or other disposition of
such Bonds, will be exempt from Portuguese income tax only if certain documentation requirements are
duly complied with.

It should also be noted that, if interest and other types of investment income derived from the Covered
Bonds is paid or made available (“colocado a disposi¢d0”) to accounts in the name of one or more
accountholders acting on behalf of undisclosed entities (e.g., typically ‘“jumbo” accounts) such income will
be subject to withholding tax in Portugal at a rate of 35 per cent unless the beneficial owner of the income
is disclosed. Failure to comply with this disclosure obligation will result in the application of the said
Portuguese withholding tax at a rate of 35 per cent.

Further, interest and other types of investment income obtained by non-resident holders (individuals or legal
persons) without a Portuguese permanent establishment to which the income is attributable that are
domiciled in a country included in the “tax havens” list approved by Ministerial Order No. 150/2004, of 13
February 2011, as amended from time to time, is subject to withholding tax at 35 per cent, which is the final
tax on that income.

The Issuer will not gross up payments in respect of any such withholding tax in case the conditions described
in detail in Taxation below are not fully met, including failure to deliver or incorrect filling of the certificate
or declaration referred to above. Accordingly, holders of Covered Bonds must seek their own advice to
ensure that they comply with all procedures to ensure correct tax treatment of their Covered Bonds.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

Under this Programme, the Issuer may from time to time issue Covered Bonds denominated in any currency
agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer, subject as set out herein. The applicable terms of any
Covered Bonds will be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer prior to the issue of those Covered
Bonds and will be set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Covered Bonds endorsed on or applicable to
the Covered Bonds as modified and supplemented by the applicable final terms attached to, or endorsed on,
such Covered Bonds (the “Final Terms”), as more fully described under Final Terms of the Covered Bonds
below.

This Base Prospectus will be valid for a period of 12 months from the date this Base Prospectus is approved
by the CMVM (completed by any supplement which may be required under article 142 of the Portuguese
Securities Code) for admitting Covered Bonds to trading on Euronext Lisbon or any other regulated market
for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC, of the European Parliament and of the Council, of 21 April 2004,
as amended from time to time, on markets in financial instruments, in an aggregate nominal amount which,
when added to the aggregate nominal amount then outstanding on all Covered Bonds previously or
simultaneously issued under the Programme, does not exceed €7,000,000,000 (subject to increase in
accordance with the Programme Agreement (as defined below)) or its equivalent in other currencies. For
the purpose of calculating the euro equivalent of the aggregate nominal amount of Covered Bonds issued
under the Programme from time to time:

(a) theeuro equivalent of Covered Bonds denominated in another Specified Currency (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms in relation to the Covered Bonds, described under Final Terms of the Covered
Bonds) shall be determined, at the discretion of the Issuer, either as of the date on which agreement
is reached for the issue of Covered Bonds or on the preceding day on which commercial banks and
foreign exchange markets are open for business in London and Lisbon, in each case, on the basis of
the spot rate for the sale of the euro against the purchase of such Specified Currency in the Lisbon
foreign exchange market quoted by any leading international bank selected by the Issuer on the
relevant day of calculation; and

(b) the euro equivalent of Zero Coupon Covered Bonds (as specified in the applicable Final Terms in
relation to the Covered Bonds, described under Final Terms of the Covered Bonds) and other Covered
Bonds issued at a discount or a premium shall be calculated in the manner specified above by
reference to the net proceeds received by the Issuer for the relevant issue.

Covered Bonds issued under the Programme are expected to be rated on issue by at least one rating agency
which has applied to be registered with the European Securities and Markets Authority under the CRA
Regulation.

The rating of Covered Bonds will not necessarily be the same as the rating applicable to the Issuer. A credit
rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision, suspension or
withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organisation. A rating addresses the likelihood that the
holders of the Covered Bonds will receive timely payments of interest and ultimate repayment of principal
at the Maturity Date or the Extended Maturity Date, as applicable.

European regulated investors should be aware that in general they are restricted from using a rating for
regulatory purposes if such rating is not issued by a credit rating agency established in the European Union
and registered under the CRA Regulation, unless the rating is provided by a credit rating agency operating
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in the European Union before 7 June 2010 which has submitted an application for the registration in
accordance with the CRA Regulation and such registration was not refused.

Each potential investor in the Covered Bonds must determine the suitability of that investment in light to its
own circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the relevant Covered
Bonds, the merits and the risks of investing in the relevant Covered Bonds and the information
contained or incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus or any applicable supplement;

have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the relevant Covered Bonds and the impact such
investment will have on its overall investment portfolio;

have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Covered
Bonds, including Covered Bonds with principal or interest payable in one or more currencies, or
where the currency for principal or interest payments is different from the currency in which such
investor’s financial activities are principally denominated;

understand thoroughly the terms of the relevant Covered Bonds and be familiar with the behaviour
of any relevant indices and financial markets; and

be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and others factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicable risks.
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS

In respect of the Issuer, this Base Prospectus comprises a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 26 of
the Prospectus Regulation and Article 135-C of the Portuguese Securities Code, which implemented Article
5.4 of the Prospectus Directive, for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Issuer which,
according to the nature of the Issuer and the Covered Bonds, is necessary to enable investors to make an
informed assessment of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profit and losses and prospects of the
Issuer, as well as of the features and characteristics of the Covered Bonds.

The format and contents of this Base Prospectus comply with the relevant provisions of the Prospectus
Directive, the Prospectus Regulation, the Portuguese Securities Code and all remaining laws and regulations
applicable thereto.

In accordance with, and for the purposes of, Articles 149, 150 and 243 of the Portuguese Securities Code,
the entities and persons referred to below are responsible for the information contained in this Base
Prospectus, subject to the qualifications below. The Issuer, the members of the Board of Directors of the
Issuer and the members of the Supervisory Board and the Statutory Auditor of the Issuer (see Management,
Supervisory Board and Statutory Auditor of the Issuer) are responsible for the information contained in this
Base Prospectus and each of them declares, to the best of their knowledge (having taken all reasonable care
to ensure that such is the case), that the information contained in this Base Prospectus for which each of
them is responsible according to the aforementioned Avrticles is in accordance with the facts and does not
omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

The Statutory Auditor of the Issuer, Deloitte & Associados — SROC, S.A., registered with the CMVM with
number 231, with registered office at Av. Engenheiro Duarte Pacheco, 7, 1070-100 Lisbon, has audited and
expressed an opinion on the financial statements of the Issuer for the financial years ended 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2015 and for the first half year ended on 30 June 2016 and is therefore responsible
for the Legal Certification of Accounts and Auditor’s Reports on these financial periods, which are
incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus (see Documents Incorporated by Reference and General
Information).

This Base Prospectus is to be read in conjunction with all documents which are deemed to be incorporated
herein by reference (see Documents Incorporated by Reference). Any decision to invest in the Covered
Bonds should be based on a consideration of this Base Prospectus as a whole, including those documents
incorporated by reference.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in, or
not consistent with, this Base Prospectus in connection with the issue or sale of the Covered Bonds and, if
given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the
Issuer, the Arranger (as defined in Definitions), the Common Representative (as defined under General
Description of the Programme) or any of the Dealers. Neither the delivery of this Base Prospectus nor any
sale made in connection herewith shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been
no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof or the date upon which this Base Prospectus has
been most recently supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the financial position of the
Issuer since the date hereof or the date upon which this Base Prospectus has been most recently
supplemented or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any
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time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the document
containing the same.

The Issuer will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to
information included in this Base Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of any Covered
Bonds, prepare a supplement to this Base Prospectus or publish a new Base Prospectus to be used in
connection with any subsequent issue of Covered Bonds.

The Arranger, the Common Representative and the Dealer expressly do not undertake to review the financial
condition or affairs of the Issuer during the duration of the Programme or to advise any investor in the
Covered Bonds of any information which may come to their attention. Investors should review, amongst
other things, the financial statements, if any, of the Issuer when deciding whether or not to purchase any
Covered Bonds.

This Base Prospectus or any Final Terms (as defined below) does not constitute an offer to sell or a
solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other than Covered Bonds or an offer to sell or a solicitation of
any offer to buy any Covered Bonds in any circumstance in which such offer or solicitation would not be
authorised or would be unlawful. The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Covered
Bonds may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. The Issuer, the Arranger and the Dealer do not
represent that this Base Prospectus may be lawfully distributed, or that any Covered Bonds may be lawfully
offered, in compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or
pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such
distribution or offering. In particular, no action has been taken by the Issuer, the Arranger or the Dealer
(save for application for approval by the CMVM - the competent authority in Portugal for the purposes of
the Prospectus Directive and the relevant Portuguese laws - as a base prospectus compliant with the
Prospectus Directive and the relevant Portuguese laws) which would permit a public offering of any Covered
Bonds outside the European Economic Area (“EEA”) or distribution of this document in any jurisdiction
where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no Covered Bonds may be offered or sold, directly
or distributed or published in any jurisdiction and neither this Base Prospectus nor any advertisement or
other offering material may be distributed in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that would result
in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus
or any Covered Bonds may come must inform themselves about, and observe any such restrictions on the
distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offering and sale of Covered Bonds. In particular, there are
restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Covered Bonds in the United
States, Japan and the EEA (including the United Kingdom, Italy and Portugal). See Subscription and Sale
and Secondary Market Arrangements.

The Arranger, the Common Representative and the Dealer have not independently verified the information
contained or incorporated in this Base Prospectus. Accordingly, none of the Arranger, the Common
Representative or the Dealer makes any representation, warranty or undertaking, to any investor in the
Covered Bonds, express or implied, or accepts any responsibility, with respect to the accuracy or
completeness of any of the information in this Base Prospectus, except for the information relating to each
of the Arranger, the Common Representative and the Dealer. Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other
financial statements are intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and should not be
considered as a recommendation by the Issuer, the Arranger, the Common Representative or the Dealer that
any recipient of this Base Prospectus or any other financial statements should purchase the Covered Bonds.
Each potential purchaser of Covered Bonds should determine for itself the relevance of the information
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contained in this Base Prospectus and its purchase of Covered Bonds should be based upon its own
independent investigation as it deems necessary (namely of the financial condition, affairs and
creditworthiness of the Issuer and the advantages and risks of investing in Covered Bonds). None of the
Arranger, the Common Representative or the Dealer undertakes to review the financial condition or affairs
of the Issuer during the life of the arrangements contemplated by this Base Prospectus nor to advise any
investor or potential investor in Covered Bonds of any information coming to the attention of the Arranger,
the Common Representative or the Dealer.

This Base Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that, except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii) below
may apply, any offer of Covered Bonds in any Member State of the EEA which has implemented the
Prospectus Directive (each, a “Relevant Member State”) will be made pursuant to an exemption under
the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, from the requirement to publish
a prospectus for offers of Covered Bonds. Accordingly any person making or intending to make an offer
in that Relevant Member State of Covered Bonds which are the subject of a placement contemplated in this
Base Prospectus as completed by final terms in relation to the offer of those Covered Bonds may only do
so (i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus
pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the
Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer, or (ii) if a prospectus for such offer has been
approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State or, where appropriate, approved in
another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State and
(in either case) published, all in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, provided that any such
prospectus has subsequently been completed by final terms which specify that offers may be made other
than pursuant to Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State and such offer is
made in the period beginning and ending on the dates specified for such purpose in such prospectus or final
terms, as applicable. Except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii) above may apply, neither the Issuer nor any
Dealer have authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Covered Bonds in circumstances
in which an obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such
offer.

Neither the Dealer nor the Issuer makes any representation to any investor in the Covered Bonds regarding
the legality of its investment under any applicable laws. Any investor in the Covered Bonds should be able
to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Covered Bonds for an indefinite period of time.

In this Base Prospectus, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, references to “€”,
“EUR” or “euro” are to the lawful currency of the Member States of the European Union that adopt the
single currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union, and as
defined in Council Regulation (EC) No. 974/98, of 3 May 1998 on the introduction of the euro, as amended
from time to time, to “U.S.$”, “USD” or “US dollars” are to United States dollars, the lawful currency of
the United States of America, and to “£” or “GBP” or “pounds sterling” are to pounds sterling, the lawful
currency of the United Kingdom.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents which have previously been published or are published simultaneously with this
Base Prospectus and have been filed with the CMVM shall be incorporated in, and form part of, this Base
Prospectus:

(a) the English translation of the Issuer’s consolidated Annual Report in respect of the financial years
ended on 31 December 2014 and on 31 December 2015;

(b)  the English translation of the Issuer’s first half 2016 interim consolidated Report;

(c) the English translation of the consolidated quarterly information in respect of the first 9 months of
2016 (unaudited accounts);

(d) the English translation of the consolidated results in respect of 2016 (unaudited results);
(e) the articles of association in English of the Issuer (available at www.bancobpi.pt).

Following the publication of this Base Prospectus, a supplement may be prepared by the Issuer and approved
by the CMVM in accordance with article 142 of the Portuguese Securities Code which implemented Article
16 of the Prospectus Directive.

Any statement contained herein or in a document which is incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed
to be modified or superseded for the purposes of this Base Prospectus to the extent that a statement contained
in any document which is subsequently incorporated by reference herein by way of a supplement prepared
in accordance with Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, Article 22/7 of the Prospectus Regulation and
Acrticle 142 of the Portuguese Securities Code modifies or supersedes such earlier statement (whether
expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so
modified or superseded, constitute a part of this Base Prospectus.

Copies of documents incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus can be obtained from the registered
offices of the Issuer at Rua Tenente Valadim, no. 284, Porto and from the specified offices of the Agent at
Rua Tenente Valadim, no. 284, 4100-476 Porto and of the Common Representative at 10 Harewood
Avenue, London, England, NW1 6AA, United Kingdom, as well as from the website of the Issuer whose
link is www.bancobpi.pt.

This Base Prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference can be obtained from the website of the
CMVM, being www.cmvm.pt, except for the articles of association of the Issuer which can be obtained
from www.bancobpi.pt and from www.ir.bpi.pt.

The Issuer will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to
information included in this Base Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of any Covered
Bonds, prepare a supplement to this Base Prospectus or publish a new Base Prospectus to be used in
connection with any subsequent issue of Covered Bonds.

The table below refers to points (a), (b), (c) and (d):
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BANCO BPI
Information Incorporated by Reference Reference

The issuer consolidated results for 2016 (unaudited)

Leading Indicators 23
Consolidated Income Statement 24
Consolidated Balance Sheet 25
Domestic Activity Income Statement 26
Domestic Activity Balance Sheet 27
International Activity Income Statement 28
International Activity Balance Sheet 29

The issuer consolidated results for the first nine months of 2016 (unaudited)

Consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 28
2016 and December 31, 2015

Interim consolidated statements of income for the 29
periods ended September 30, 2016 and 2015

Interim consolidated statements of profit or loss 30
and other comprehensive income for the periods
ended September 30, 2016 and 2015

Interim consolidated statements of changes in 31
shareholders' equity for the periods ended
September 30, 2016 and 2015

Interim consolidated statements of cash flows for 32
the periods ended September 30, 2016 and 2015

Notes to the interim consolidated financial 33-96
statements as of September 30, 2016 and 2015

First Half 2016 Report

Consolidated Balance Sheets 96



nterim consolidated Statements of Income 97

Interim consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss 98
and other Comprehensive Income

Interim statements of changes in shareholders' 99
equity

Interim consolidated Statements of Cash flows 100
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 101 - 283
Auditors report 285 - 287

Annual Report 2015

Consolidated Balance Sheets 144
Consolidated Statements of Income 145
Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and 146-147

other Comprehensive Income

Statements of changes in shareholders' equity 148-149
Consolidated Statements of Cash flows 150-151
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 152-290
Auditors report 292-294
Information about the Members of the Board of 378-383
Directors

Annual Report 2014

Consolidated Balance Sheets 132

Consolidated Statements of Income 133

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive 134-135
Income

Statements of changes in shareholders' equity 136-137
Consolidated Statements of Cash flows 138-139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 140-273

Auditors report 275-276

The information incorporated by reference that is not included in the cross-reference lists contained above,
is considered as additional information and is not required by the relevant schedules of the Regulation (EC)
No 809/2004 of 29 April 2004 implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended (‘“Prospectus Regulation”).
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FORM OF THE COVERED BONDS AND CLEARING SYSTEMS

The Covered Bonds will be held through a central securities depositary (“CSD”’) which can be either (i) a
Portuguese domestic CSD, which will be Interbolsa - Sociedade Gestora de Sistemas de Liquidacdo e de
Sistemas Centralizados de Valores Mobiliarios, S.A. as operator of the Central de Valores Mobiliarios
(“Interbolsa”) or (ii) an international CSD, which will be Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the
Euroclear System (“Euroclear”) and Clearstream Banking, sociét¢ anonyme (“Clearstream,
Luxembourg”).

The information set out below is subject to any change in or reinterpretation of the rules, regulations and
procedures of Interbolsa, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg (together, the “Clearing Systems”)
currently in effect. The information in this section concerning the Clearing Systems has been obtained from
sources that the Issuer believes to be reliable, but none of the Issuer, the Arranger or the Dealer takes any
responsibility for the accuracy thereof. Investors wishing to use the facilities of any of the Clearing Systems
are advised to confirm the continued applicability of the rules, regulations and procedures of the relevant
Clearing System. None of the Issuer, the Arranger or the Dealer will have any responsibility or liability for
any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, interests in the Covered Bonds held
through the facilities of any Clearing System or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records
relating to such interests.

Interbolsa, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg each hold securities for its participants and facilitate
the clearance and settlement of securities transactions by electronic book-entry transfer between their
respective participants. Interbolsa, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg provide various services
including safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement of domestically and internationally traded
securities and, in the case of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, securities lending and borrowing.
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg also deal with domestic securities markets in several countries
through established depository and custodial relationships.

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have established an electronic bridge between their two systems
across which their respective participants may settle trades with each other. Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg participants are world-wide financial institutions, including underwriters, securities brokers
and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations.

Indirect access to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg is available to other institutions and persons that
directly or indirectly through other institutions clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a
participant of either system.

The address of Interbolsa is Avenida da Boavista, 3433, 4100-138 Porto, Portugal, the address of Euroclear
is 1 Boulevard du Roi Albert 11, 1210 Brussels, Belgium and the address of Clearstream, Luxembourg is 42
Avenue J.F. Kennedy, 1855 Luxembourg, Luxembourg.

Any reference herein to Interbolsa, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, wherever the context so
permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

The Covered Bonds have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered
or sold in the United States or to, or for the benefit of, US persons unless an exemption from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act is available or in a transaction not subject to the registration requirements
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of the Securities Act (see Subscription and Sale and Secondary Market Arrangements). Accordingly, the
Covered Bonds will only be issued outside the United States in reliance upon Regulation S under the
Securities Act.

Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa
General

Covered Bonds must be held through Interbolsa when the relevant issue is to be admitted to trading in a
Portuguese regulated market (in particular, Euronext Lisbon).

Interbolsa manages a centralised system (“sistema centralizado”) composed by interconnected securities
accounts, through which securities (and inherent rights) are created, held and transferred, and which allows
Interbolsa to control at all times the amount of securities so created, held and transferred. Issuers of
securities, financial intermediaries, the Bank of Portugal and Interbolsa, as the controlling entity, all
participate in such centralised system.

The centralised securities system of Interbolsa provides for all the procedures required for the exercise of
ownership rights inherent to the covered bonds held through Interbolsa.

In relation to each issue of securities, Interbolsa’s centralised system comprises, inter alia, (i) the issue
account, opened by the relevant issuer in the centralised system and which reflects the full amount of issued
securities; and (ii) the control accounts opened by each of the financial intermediaries which participate in
Interbolsa’s centralised system, and which reflect the securities held by such participant on behalf of its
customers in accordance with its individual securities accounts.

Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa will be attributed an International Securities Identification Number
(“ISIN”) code through the codification system of Interbolsa and will be accepted for clearing through
LCH.Clearnet, S.A., as well as through the clearing systems operated by Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg and settled by Interbolsa’s settlement system. Under the procedures of Interbolsa’s settlement
system, settlement of trades executed through Euronext Lisbon takes place on the second Business Day after
the trade date and is provisional until the financial settlement that takes place at the Bank of Portugal on the
Final Settlement Date.

Form of the Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa

The Covered Bonds of each Series will be in book-entry form and title to the Covered Bonds will be
evidenced by book entries in accordance with the provisions of the Portuguese Securities Code and the
applicable CMVM regulations. No physical document of title will be issued in respect of Covered Bonds
held through Interbolsa. The Covered Bonds may be registered Covered Bonds (“nominativas’”) or bearer
Covered Bonds (“ao portador”), as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The Covered Bonds of each Series will be registered in the relevant issue account opened by the Issuer with
Interbolsa and will be held in control accounts by each Interbolsa Participant on behalf of the holders of the
Covered Bonds. Such control accounts reflect at all times the aggregate of Covered Bonds held in the
individual securities accounts opened by the holders of the Covered Bonds with each of the Interbolsa
Participants. The expression “Interbolsa Participant” means any authorised financial intermediary entitled
to hold control accounts with Interbolsa on behalf of their customers and includes any depository banks
appointed by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg for the purpose of holding accounts on behalf of
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.
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Each person shown in the records of an Interbolsa Participant as being the holder of certain Covered Bonds
is considered to be the owner of such Covered Bonds as recorded therein.

Registering the Covered Bonds with Interbolsa does not necessary mean that the Covered Bonds will be
recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit operations by the
Eurosystem either upon issue, or at any or all times during their life, as such recognition will depend upon
satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility criteria.

Payment of principal and interest in respect of Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa

Whilst the Covered Bonds are held through Interbolsa, payment of principal and interest in Euros in respect
of the Covered Bonds will be (i) credited, according to the procedures and regulations of Interbolsa, by the
Paying Agent (acting on behalf of the Issuer) to the payment current-accounts held in the payment system
of the Bank of Portugal by the Interbolsa Participants whose control accounts with Interbolsa are credited
with such Covered Bonds and thereafter (ii) credited by such Interbolsa Participants from the
aforementioned payment current-accounts to the accounts of the owners of those Covered Bonds or through
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg to the accounts with Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg of
the beneficial owners of those Covered Bonds, in accordance with the rules and procedures of Interbolsa,
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be.

The Issuer must provide Interbolsa with a prior notice of all payments in relation to Covered Bonds and all
necessary information for that purpose. In particular, such notice must contain:

(a) the identity of the Paying Agent responsible for the relevant payment; and
(b) astatement of acceptance of such responsibility by the Paying Agent.

The Interbolsa Participant must inform Interbolsa of the bank accounts to which the relevant payments shall
be made. Interbolsa must notify the Bank of Portugal of the amounts to be settled, which Interbolsa
calculates on the basis of the balances and on the tax rules governing the accounts of the Interbolsa
Participants.

In the case of a partial payment, the amount held in the current account of the Paying Agent with the Bank
of Portugal must be apportioned pro-rata across the Covered Bonds and therefore credited in the securities
accounts held by the holders of Covered Bonds with the Interbolsa Participant. After the financial settlement
has been processed, the Bank of Portugal must confirm that fact to Interbolsa.

Transfer of Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa

Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa may, subject to compliance with all applicable rules, restrictions
and requirements of Interbolsa and Portuguese law, be transferred to a person who wishes to hold such
Covered Bonds. No owner of a Covered Bond will be able to transfer such Covered Bond, except in
accordance with Portuguese Law and the applicable procedures of Interbolsa. Transfers of Covered Bonds
represented by a Global Covered Bond within Interbolsa (if applicable) will be effected in accordance with
the customary rules and operating procedures of Interbolsa applicable to book-entry securities.

Covered Bonds held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg

The Covered Bonds of each Series held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg will be in bearer
form, with or without interest coupons attached, or, except when Covered Bonds are issued in NGN form,
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in registered form, without interest coupons attached. The Covered Bonds have not been and will not be
registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold in the United States or to, or for the
benefit of, US persons except in accordance with Regulation S (see Subscription and Sale and Secondary
Market Arrangements). Accordingly, the Covered Bonds will only be issued outside the United States in
reliance upon Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Bearer Covered Bonds held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg

Each Tranche of Bearer Covered Bonds will be issued in the form of either a temporary bearer global
covered bond (a ““Temporary Bearer Global Covered Bond”) or a permanent bearer global covered bond
(a “Permanent Bearer Global Covered Bond”) as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, which, in either
case, will:

(i)  if the Global Covered Bonds are intended to be issued in NGN form, as stated in the applicable Final
Terms, these should be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to the Common
Safekeeper (as defined below); and

(it)  if the Global Covered Bonds are not intended to be issued in NGN form, be delivered, on or prior to
the original issue date of such Tranche, to a common depositary (the “Common Depositary”) for
Euroclear and/or Clearstream.

Whilst any Bearer Covered Bond is represented by a Temporary Bearer Global Covered Bond and held
through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, payment of principal, interest (if any) and any other
amount payable in respect of such Covered Bond due prior to the Exchange Date (as defined below) will be
made (against presentation of the Temporary Bearer Global Covered Bond if the Temporary Bearer Covered
Bond is not intended to be issued in NGN form) only to the extent that certification (in a form to be provided)
to the effect that the beneficial owners of interests in such Covered Bond are not US persons or persons who
have purchased for resale to any US person, as required by US Treasury regulations, have been received by
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable, has given a like certification (based on the
certifications it has received) to the Agent.

On or after the date (the “Exchange Date”) which is 40 days after a Temporary Bearer Global Covered
Bond is issued, interests in such Temporary Bearer Global Covered Bond will be exchangeable (free of
charge) as described therein either for (i) interests in a Permanent Bearer Global Covered Bond of the same
Series or (ii) for Definitive Covered Bonds in bearer form of the same Series with, where applicable,
receipts, interest coupons and talons attached (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms and subject, in the
case of Definitive Covered Bonds, to such notice period as is specified in the applicable Final Terms), in
each case, against certification of beneficial ownership as described above unless such certification has
already been given, provided that purchasers in the United States and certain US persons will not be able to
receive Definitive Covered Bonds. The holder of a Temporary Bearer Global Covered Bond will not be
entitled to collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount due on or after the Exchange Date
unless, upon due certification, exchange of the Temporary Bearer Global Covered Bond for an interest in a
Permanent Bearer Global Covered Bond or for Definitive Covered Bonds is improperly withheld or refused.

Payments of principal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Bearer Global Covered Bond
will be made, according to the applicable legal and regulatory requirement through Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg (against presentation or surrender, as the case may be, of the Permanent Bearer
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Global Covered Bond if the Temporary Bearer Covered Bond is not intended to be issued in NGN form)
without any requirement for certification.

The applicable Final Terms will specify that a Permanent Bearer Global Covered Bond will be exchangeable
(free of charge), in whole but not in part, for definitive securities in bearer form with, where applicable,
receipts, interest coupons and talons attached only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event.

For these purposes, Exchange Event means in the case of the Covered Bonds that the Issuer has been notified
that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a continuous period of
14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently
to cease business or have in fact done so and no successor clearing system is available. The Issuer will
promptly give notice to holders of Covered Bonds in accordance with Condition 11 (Notices) of the Terms
and Conditions of the Covered Bonds, as the case may be, if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of an
Exchange Event, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (as the case may be) (acting on the instructions
of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Bearer Global Covered Bond) may give notice to the Agent
requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 45 days after the date of receipt of the
first relevant notice by the Agent.

The following legend will appear on all Covered Bonds once all of them shall have an original maturity of
more than 365 days and on all receipts and interest coupons relating to such Covered Bonds.

“ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO
LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE
LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE
CODE.”

The sections referred to provide that United States holders of Covered Bonds, with certain exceptions, will
not be entitled to deduct any loss on Covered Bonds, receipts or interest coupons and will not be entitled to
capital gains treatment of any gain on any sale, disposition, redemption or payment of principal in respect
of Covered Bonds, receipts or interest coupons.

Covered Bonds in global form will be transferable only in accordance with the rules and procedures for the
time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be. References to Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any
additional or alternative clearing system specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Registered Covered Bonds held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg

The Registered Covered Bonds may be represented by a global security in registered form (a “Registered
Global Covered Bond”). Prior to the expiry of the Distribution Compliance Period applicable to each
Tranche of Covered Bonds, beneficial interests in a Registered Global Covered Bond may not be offered or
sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a US person and may not be held
otherwise than through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (as applicable) and such Registered
Global Covered Bond will bear a legend regarding such restrictions on transfer.

In addition, Covered Bonds in definitive registered form may be privately placed to non-US persons outside
the United States on a non-syndicated basis with professional investors only in reliance on Regulation S.
Any such issue of Covered Bonds will be evidenced by a single security registered in the name of the holder
thereof.
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Registered Global Covered Bonds will be deposited with a common depositary for, and registered in the
name of a common nominee of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. Persons holding beneficial
interests in Registered Global Covered Bonds will be required, under the circumstances described below, to
receive delivery of Definitive Registered Covered Bonds.

Payments of principal, interest and any other amount in respect of the Registered Global Covered Bonds
will, in the absence of provision to the contrary, be made to the person shown on the relevant registration
as the registered holder of the Definitive Registered Global Covered Bonds. None of the Issuer, any Paying
Agent or the Registrar (as defined in Terms and Conditions) will have any responsibility or liability for any
aspect of the records relating to or payments or deliveries made on account of beneficial ownership interests
in the Registered Global Covered Bonds or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating
to such beneficial ownership interests.

Interests in a Registered Global Covered Bond will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in
part, for Definitive Registered Covered Bonds without interest coupons or talons attached only upon the
occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, Exchange Event means that the Issuer has been
notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a continuous
period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention
permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and, in any such case, no successor clearing system
is available. The Issuer will promptly give notice to the holders of the Covered Bond in accordance with
Condition 11 (Notices) of the Terms and Conditions if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the
occurrence of an Exchange Event, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (as the case may be) (acting
on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Registered Global Covered Bond) may give notice to
the relevant registration requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 10 days after
the date of receipt of the first relevant notice.

Transfers of Covered Bonds Represented by Global Covered Bonds held through Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg

Interests in a Global Covered Bond may, subject to compliance with all applicable restrictions and
requirements, be transferred to a person who wishes to hold such interest in a Global Covered Bond. No
beneficial owner of an interest in a Global Covered Bond will be able to transfer such interest, except in
accordance with the applicable procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, in each case to the
extent applicable.

Transfers of any interests in Covered Bonds represented by a Global Covered Bond within Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg (as applicable) will be effected in accordance with the customary rules and
operating procedures of the relevant clearing system.

Although Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have agreed to the foregoing procedures in order to
facilitate transfers of beneficial interests in the Covered Bonds among participants and accountholders of
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, they are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform
such procedures, and such procedures may be discontinued at any time. None of the Issuer, the Arranger,
the Common Representative or the Agent will have any responsibility for the performance of Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg or their respective direct or indirect participants or accountholders of their
respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.
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Covered Bonds issued in the NGN form

On 13 June 2006 the European Central Bank (the ‘<“‘ECB”) announced that Covered Bonds in NGN form
are in compliance with the ‘‘Standards for the use of EU securities settlement systems in ESCB credit
operations’’ of the central banking system for the Euro (the “Eurosystem”), provided that certain other
criteria are fulfilled. At the same time, the ECB also announced that arrangements for Covered Bonds in
NGN form will be offered by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg as of 30" June 2006 and that debt
securities in global bearer form issued through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg after 315 December
2006 will only be eligible as collateral for Eurosystem operations if the NGN form is used.

If the Covered Bonds are stated in the applicable Final Terms to be issued in NGN form, they are intended
to be eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and will be delivered on or prior to the original
issue date of the Tranche to a common safekeeper for Euroclear and/or Clearstream (the “Common
Safekeeper”). Depositing the Covered Bonds with the Common Safekeeper does not necessarily mean that
the Covered Bonds will be recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day
credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue, or at any or all times during their life. Such
recognition will depend upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility criteria.

If the Covered Bond is a NGN, the Issuer shall procure that details of each payment in respect thereof are
entered pro rata in the records of Euroclear and/or Clearstream and, in the case of principal payments, the
nominal amount of the Covered Bonds recorded in the records of Euroclear and/or Clearstream will be
reduced accordingly. Each payment so made will discharge the Issuer’s obligations in respect thereof. Any
failure to make the entries in the records of the relevant clearing system shall not affect such discharge.

Where the Covered Bond is a NGN, the Issuer shall procure that any exchange, payment, cancellation,
exercise of any option or any right under the Covered Bonds, as the case may be, in addition to the
circumstances set out above are entered in the records of Euroclear and/or Clearstream and upon any such
entry being made, the nominal amount of the Covered Bonds represented by such Global Covered Bond
shall be adjusted accordingly.
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FINAL TERMS OF THE COVERED BONDS

The form of Final Terms that will be issued in respect of each Tranche of Covered Bonds issued under the Programme,
subject only to the deletion of non-applicable provisions, is set out below:

Final Terms dated [e]

Banco BPI, S.A.

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [[®] per cent./Floating Rate/Zero Coupon] Covered Bonds
due [o]
under the €7,000,000,000 Covered Bonds Programme

THE COVERED BONDS (AS DESCRIBED HEREIN) ARE MORTGAGE COVERED BONDS
ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH DECREE-LAW NO. 59/2006, OF 20 MARCH 2006 (AS
AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME, THE “COVERED BONDS LAW?”). THE ISSUER HAS
THE CAPACITY TO ISSUE COVERED BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COVERED
BONDS LAW. THE FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUER UNDER THE COVERED
BONDS ARE SECURED ON THE COVER POOL MAINTAINED BY THE ISSUER IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE COVERED BONDS LAW.

This document constitutes the Final Terms relating to the issue of Covered Bonds described herein.

PART A — CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the terms and conditions of the Covered
Bonds (the “Terms and Conditions ") set forth in the Base Prospectus dated 16 February 2017 [, as supplemented on
[®]], which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of Directive 2003/71/EC, of the European Parliament and
of the Council, of 4 November 2003, as amended from time to time (the “Prospectus Directive”), Commission
Regulation (EC) no. 809/2004, as amended from time to time (the “Prospectus Regulation”), and Decree-Law no.
486/99, of 13™ November 1999, as amended from time to time (the “Portuguese Securities Code”). The Terms and
Conditions are incorporated by reference into or endorsed upon (as applicable) in each Covered Bond described
herein, as applicable. This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Covered Bonds described herein for the
purposes of Article 135-C.4 of the Portuguese Securities Code, which implemented Article 5.4 of the Prospectus
Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Base Prospectus [, as supplemented]. Full information on the
Issuer and the offer of the Covered Bonds is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and
the Base Prospectus/, as supplemented]. The Base Prospectus/, as supplemented,] is available for viewing at Banco
BPI, S.A., Rua Tenente Valadim, no. 284, 4100-476 Porto, www.bancobpi.pt and www.cmvm.pt. and copies may be
obtained from the same address.

[The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under
the Base Prospectus supplemented on an earlier date.]

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the terms and conditions of the Covered
Bonds (the “Terms and Conditions”) set forth in the Base Prospectus dated [e] [®] [®] [, as supplemented on [e]].
The Terms and Conditions are incorporated by reference into or endorsed upon (as applicable) in each Covered Bond
described herein, as applicable. This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Covered Bonds described herein for

66


http://www.bancobpi.pt/
http://www.cmvm.pt/

the purposes of Article 135-C.4. of the Portuguese Securities Code, which implemented Article 5.4 of the Prospectus
Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Base Prospectus|, as supplemented], which constitutes a base
prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive, save in respect of the Terms and Conditions which are
extracted from the Base Prospectus/, as supplemented | and are attached hereto. Full information on the Issuer and
the offer of the Covered Bonds is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base
Prospectus dated [®] [®][®] [, as supplemented on [®]]. The Base Prospectus [as supplemented] is available for
viewing at Banco BPI, S.A., Rua Tenente Valadim, no. 284, 4100-476 Porto, Portugal, and copies may be obtained
from the same address. A copy of the Base Prospectus [and any supplements thereto] [is] [are] available for viewing
at www.bancobpi.pt and www.cmvm.pt.

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as “Not Applicable” (N/A). Note that the numbering should
remain as set out below, even if “Not Applicable” is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub-paragraphs. Italics
denote guidance for completing the Final Terms.]

[When completing any final terms, or adding any other final terms or information, consideration should be given as
to whether such terms or information constitute “significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 142 of the Portuguese Securities Code which implemented Article 16
of the Prospectus Directive.]

1. (i) Series Number: [e]
(if) [Tranche Number: [e]

(If fungible with an existing Series, details of that Series,
including the date on which the Covered Bonds become

fungible.)]
2. Specified Currency or Currencies: [e]
3. (i) Aggregate Nominal Amount of
Covered Bonds:
A. Series: [®]
B. Tranche: [®]]
(ii) Specify whether Covered Bonds to be  [Yes (if so, specify each Series/Tranche)/No]
admitted to trading
4. (i) TIssue Price: [®] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus
accrued interest from [insert date] (in the case of fungible
issues only, if applicable)]
(ii) [Net Proceeds [e] [an amount equal to: Aggregate Nominal Amount of
(Required only for listed issues)] Covered Bonds minus Estimate of total expenses related
to admission to trading]
5. Specified Denominations: [e]
(N.B. Where Bearer Covered Bonds with multiple
denominations above €100,000 or equivalent are being
used the following language should be used:
"€[100,000] and integral multiples of €[1,000] in excess
thereof up to and including €[199,000]. No Covered Bonds
in definitive form will be issued with a denomination above
€/199,000]")
6. (i) Issue Date: [e]
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

(ii) [Interest Commencement Date (if
different from the Issue Date):

Maturity Date:

Extended Maturity Date:

Interest Basis:

(i) Period to (and including) Maturity
Date:

(if) Period from (but excluding) Maturity
Date up to (and including) Extended
Maturity Date:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment
Basis

Put/Call Options:

(i) Status of the Covered Bonds:

(if) [Date [Board] approval for issuance of
Covered Bonds obtained]:

Method of distribution:
Listing/Admission to Regulated Market

[e]]

[specify date or (for Floating Rate Covered Bonds)
Interest Payment Date falling in or nearest to the relevant
month and year]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[insert date] [If applicable, the date should be that falling
one year after the Maturity Date. If not applicable, insert
“Not Applicable”].

[Unless the rating provided by the rating agencies
appointed by the Issuer at the relevant time in respect of
the Programme is adversely affected by such provisions,
an Extended Maturity Date will apply to each Series of the
Covered Bonds.]

[[®] per cent. Fixed Rate]

[[specify reference rate] +/- [®] per cent. Floating Rate]
[Zero Coupon]

(further particulars specified below)

[Not Applicable] / [[®] per cent. Fixed Rate]

[[specify reference rate] +/- [®] per cent. Floating Rate]
(further particulars specified below)

[Insert “Not Applicable” only if Extended Maturity Date
does not apply]

[Redemption at par]

[Instalment]

[Specify details of any provision for convertibility of
Covered  Bonds into
redemption/payment basis|

another interest or

[Investor Put]

[Issuer Call]

[(further particulars specified below)]

The Covered Bonds will be direct, unconditional and
senior obligations of the Issuer and rank equally with all
other mortgage covered bonds issued or to be issued by the
Issuer. The Covered Bonds will qualify as mortgage

covered bonds for the purposes of the Covered Bonds
Law.

[e]

[Syndicated/Non-syndicated]
[Euronext Lisbon/specify other/None]
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PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

16. Fixed Rate Covered Bonds Provisions

e To Maturity Date:

e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(i) Rate [(s)] of Interest:
e To Maturity Date:

e  From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(ii) Interest Payment Date(s):
e To Maturity Date:

e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(iii) Fixed Coupon Amount [(s)]:
e To Maturity Date:

e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(iv) Broken Amount:
e To Maturity Date:

e  From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If subparagraphs (i) and
(il) not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs
of this paragraph)

[State “Not Applicable’ unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Fixed Rate Covered
Bonds after the Maturity Date.)

[®] per cent. per annum [payable [annually/semi-
annually/quarterly] in arrear]

[Not Applicable]/ [®] per cent per annum.
[payable[annually/semi-annually/quarterly] in arrear]
[State “Not Applicable’ unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Fixed Rate Covered
Bonds after the Maturity Date.]

[[®] in each year up to and including the Maturity Date
! [specify other]]

[Not Applicable] [[®] in each month up to and including
the Extended Maturity Date]/[specify other]

[State “Not Applicable’ unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Fixed Rate Covered
Bonds after the Maturity Date.]

[[®] per [®] in nominal amount]

[Not Applicable] [[®] per [®] in nominal amount]

[State “Not Applicable” unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Fixed Rate Covered
Bonds after the Maturity Date.]

[Insert particulars of any initial or final broken interest
amounts which do not correspond with the Fixed
Coupon Amount [(s)] and the Interest Payment Date(s)
to which they relate]

[Not Applicable] [Insert particulars of any initial or
final broken interest amounts which do not correspond
with the Fixed Coupon Amount [(s)] and the Interest
Payment Date(s) to which they relate]
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(v) Day Count Fraction
e To Maturity Date:

e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(vi) Determination Date(s):
e  To Maturity Date:

e  From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(vii) Other terms relating to the method of
calculating interest for Fixed Rate
Covered Bonds:

17. Floating Rate Covered Bonds Provisions

e To Maturity Date:

e  From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(i) Specified Period(s)/Specified Interest
Payment Dates:

e To Maturity Date:

e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(if) Business Day Convention:

e To Maturity Date:

[State “Not Applicable” unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Fixed Rate Covered
Bonds after the Maturity Date.]

[30/360 or Actual/Actual (ICMA) or [specify other]

[Not Applicable] [30/360 or Actual/Actual (ICMA) or
[specify other]

[State “Not Applicable’ unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Fixed Rate Covered
Bonds after the Maturity Date.]

[Insert day(s) and month(s) on which interest is normally
paid (if more than one, then insert such dates in the
alternative)] in each year]

[Not Applicable] [Insert day(s) and month(s) on which

interest is normally paid (if more than one, then insert
such dates in the alternative)] in each year

[State “Not Applicable’ unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Fixed Rate Covered
Bonds after the Maturity Date.]

[None/give details)

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph.)
[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph.)
[State “Not Applicable’ unless Extended Maturity Date

applies and the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate
Covered Bonds after the Maturity Date. ]

[e]
[Not Applicable]/[®]
[State “Not Applicable” unless Extended Maturity Date

applies and the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate
Covered Bonds after the Maturity Date.]

[Floating Rate Convention/ Following Business Day
Convention/ Modified Following Business Day
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e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(iii) Additional Business Centre(s):
e  To Maturity Date:

e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(iv) Manner in which the Rate of Interest
and Interest Amount is to be
determined:

e To Maturity Date:

e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(v) Party responsible for calculating the
Rate of Interest and Interest Amount
(if not the Calculation Agent):

e To Maturity Date:

e  From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(vi) Screen Rate Determination:
a) To Maturity Date:
e  Reference Rate:

. Interest Determination Date:

Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/other
(give details)]

Applicable]/[Floating Rate Convention/ Following
Business Day Convention/ Modified Following
Business Day Convention/Preceding Business Day
Convention/other  (give details)] [State  “Not
Applicable” unless Extended Maturity Date applies and
the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate Covered Bonds
after the Maturity Date.]

[Not Applicable]/ [®]

[State “Not Applicable’ unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate
Covered Bonds after the Maturity Date. ]

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/other
(give details)]

[Not Applicable]/ [Screen Rate Determination/ISDA
Determination/other (give details)]

[State “Not Applicable’ unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate
Covered Bonds after the Maturity Date. ]

[e]

[Not Applicable]/ [e]
[State “Not Applicable’ unless Extended Maturity Date

applies and the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate
Covered Bonds after the Maturity Date. ]

[e]

[®] (Second London business day prior to start of each
Interest Period if LIBOR (other than Sterling or euro
LIBOR), first day of each Interest Period if Sterling
LIBOR and the second day of on which the TARGET

System is open prior to the start of each Interest Period
if Euribor or euro LIBOR)
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e  Relevant Screen Page:

b) From Maturity Date up to Extended
Maturity Date:

° Reference Rate:

. Interest Determination Date:

. Relevant Screen Page:

(vii) ISDA Determination:
a) To Maturity Date:
e  Floating Rate Option:
e Designated Maturity:
e  Reset Date:

b) From Maturity Date up to Extended
Maturity Date:

e  Floating Rate Option:
e  Designated Maturity:
e  Reset Date:
(viii) Margin(s):
e To Maturity Date:

e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(ix) Minimum Rate of Interest:

e To Maturity Date:

e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(x) Maximum Rate of Interest:

[®] (in the case of Euribor, if not Telerate page 248
ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or
amend the fallback provisions accordingly)

[Not Applicable]

[State “Not Applicable’ unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate
Covered Bonds after the Maturity Date. ]

[e]

[®] (Second London business day prior to start of each
Interest Period if LIBOR (other than Sterling or euro
LIBOR), first day of each Interest Period if Sterling
LIBOR and the second day of on which the TARGET

System is open prior to the start of each Interest Period
if Euribor or euro LIBOR)

[®] (in the case of Euribor, if not Telerate page 248
ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or
amend the fallback provisions accordingly)

[e]
[e]
[e]
[Not Applicable]

[State “Not Applicable” unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate
Covered Bonds after the Maturity Date. ]

[e]
[e]
[e]

[e] per cent. Per annum

Applicable]/ [+/-] [®] per cent. per annum [State “Not
Applicable” unless Extended Maturity Date applies and
the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate Covered Bonds
after the Maturity Date.]

[®] per cent. per annum

Applicable]/ [®] per cent. per annum [State “Not
Applicable” unless Extended Maturity Date applies and
the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate Covered Bonds
after the Maturity Date.]
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18.

(xi)

e To Maturity Date

e From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

Day Count Fraction:
e To Maturity Date

e  From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

(xii) Fall back provisions, rounding

provisions, denominator and any other
terms relating to the method of
calculating interest on Floating Rate
Covered Bonds, if different from those
set out in the Terms and Conditions:

e To Maturity Date

e  From Maturity Date up to
Extended Maturity Date:

Zero Coupon Covered Bonds Provisions

(i)
(i)
(iii)

(iv)

Accrual Yield:
Reference Price

Any other formula/basis of
determining amount payable:

Day Count Fraction in relation to late
payment:

[®] per cent. per annum

[Not Applicable]/ [®] per cent. per annum [State “Not
Applicable” unless Extended Maturity Date applies and
the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate Covered Bonds
after the Maturity Date.]

[Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)
Actual/365 (Sterling)
Actual/360

30/360

30E/360

30E/360 (ISDA)
Other]

(see Condition 4 (Interest) for alternatives)

[Not Applicable]/[Actual/365

Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360

30E/360

Other] (see Condition 4 (Interest) for alternatives)
[State “Not Applicable” unless Extended Maturity Date
applies and the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate
Covered Bonds after the Maturity Date.]

[e]
[Not Applicable]/ [e]
[State “Not Applicable” unless Extended Maturity Date

applies and the Covered Bonds are Floating Rate
Covered Bonds after the Maturity Date.]

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the
remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[®] per cent. per annum
[e]
[e]

[Condition 5.5 applies/specify other]
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PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

19.

20.

21.

22.

Call Option

(i) Optional Redemption Date(s):

(if) Optional Redemption Amount(s) of
each Covered Bond and method, if
any, of calculation of such amount(s):

(iii) If redeemable in part:

(@  Minimum Redemption
Amount:

(b)  Maximum Redemption
Amount:

(iv) Notice period (if other than as set out
in the Terms and Conditions):

Put Option

(i) Optional Redemption Date(s):

(if) Optional Redemption Amount(s) of
each Covered Bond and method, if
any, of calculation of such amount(s):

(iii) Notice period:

Final Redemption Amount of each Covered
Bond

[Early Redemption Amount

of each

Covered Bond payable on an event of
default and/or the method of calculating the
same (if required or if different from that set

(consider applicable day count fraction if not US dollar
denominated)

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

[e]

[e] per Covered Bond of [e] Specified Denomination

[e]

[e]

[e] (NB — If setting notice periods which are different to
those provided in the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer
is advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of
information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other
notice requirements which may apply, for example, as
between the Issuer and the Agent)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs
of this paragraph)

[e]

[@] per Covered Bond of [e] Specified Denomination

[e] (NB — If setting notice periods which are different to
those provided in the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer
is advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of
information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other
notice requirements which may apply, for example, as
between the Issuer and the Agent)

[[¢] per Covered Bond of [e]
Denomination/Other/See Appendix]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

Specified
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out in Condition 6 (Redemption and

Purchase))]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE COVERED BONDS

23.

24.

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

(a) Form of Covered Bonds:

(b) New Global Notes:

Additional Financial Centre(s) or other
special provisions relating to Payment
Dates:

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Definitive Covered Bonds
(and dates on which such Talons mature):

Details relating to Partly Paid Covered
Bonds: amount of each payment
comprising the Issue Price and date on
which each payment is to be made and
consequences (if any) of failure to pay,
including any right of the Issuer to forfeit

the Covered Bonds and interest due on late

payment:
Details relating to Instalment Covered
Bonds:

(i) Instalment Amount(s):
(if) Instalment Date(s):
Redenomination applicable:

Other final terms:

[Bearer Covered Bonds/Exchangeable Bearer Covered
Bonds/Registered Covered Bonds] [Delete as
appropriate)

[Temporary ~ Global  Covered  Bond/Certificate
exchangeable for a permanent Global Covered Bond/
Certificate which is exchangeable for Definitive
Covered Bonds/Certificates on [@] days’ notice/at any
time/in the limited circumstances specified in the
permanent  Global Bond/Certificate]
[Temporary  Global Bond/Certificate
exchangeable for Definitive Covered Bonds/ Certificates
on [e] days’ notice] [Permanent Global Covered
Bond/Certificate exchangeable for Definitive Covered
Bonds/ Certificates on [®] days’ notice/at any time/in the
limited circumstances specified in the Permanent Global
Covered Bond/ Certificate]

[Yes/No]
[Not Applicable/give details]

Covered
Covered

(Note that this item relates to the place of payment and
not Interest Period end dates to which item 17 (iii)
relates)

[Yes/No. If yes, give details)

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]
[Not Applicable/give details]

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (if Redenomination is
applicable, specify the terms of the redenomination in
an Annex to the Final Terms)

[Not Applicable/give details]



(When adding on any other final terms consideration
should be given as to whether such terms constitute
“‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger the
need for a supplement to the Base Prospectus under
Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)

[In order for withholding tax not to apply the holders of
the Covered Bonds must, inter alia, deliver certain tax
certifications. See Taxation section. ]

DISTRIBUTION
30. (i) If syndicated, names of Dealers: [Not Applicable/give names and date of relevant
agreement|
(if) Stabilising Manager (if any): [Not Applicable/give names]
(iii) Commission Payable / Selling [e]
Concession:
31. If non-syndicated, name of relevant Dealer:  [Not Applicable/give name and date of relevant
agreement|
32 Whether TEFRA D or TEFRA C rules [TEFRA D/TEFRA C/TEFRA not applicable]]
applicable or TEFRA rules not applicable:
33. Additional selling restrictions: [Not Applicable/give details |

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list the issue of the Covered Bonds described herein pursuant
to the €7,000,000,000 Covered Bonds Programme of Banco BPI, S.A.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms. [Relevant third party information]
has been extracted from /[specify source]. The Issuer confirms that such information has been accurately reproduced
and that, so far as it is aware, and is able to ascertain from information published by [specify source], no facts have
been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

By
Duly authorised

PART B - OTHER INFORMATION
1. Listing
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2. Ratings

(i) Listing:

(if) Admission to trading:

(iii) Estimate of total expenses related to
admission to trading

Ratings:

[Applicable/None]

[Application has been made for the Covered Bonds
to be admitted to trading on Euronext Lisbon with
effect from [@].] [Not Applicable.]

(Where documenting a fungible issue need to
indicate that original securities are already
admitted to trading.)

[e]

The Covered Bonds to be issued have been rated:
[DBRS: [e]]
[Moody’s: [e]]

[[e] (specifi): [o]]
(The above disclosure should reflect the rating
allocated to Covered Bonds of the type being issued

under the Programme generally or, where the issue
has been specifically rated, that rating.)

[[Insert credit rating agency] is established in the
European Union and has applied for registration
under Regulation (EC) no. 1060/2009, although
notification of the corresponding registration
decision has not yet been provided by the relevant
competent authority.]

[[Insert credit rating agency] is established in the
European Union and is registered under Regulation
(EC) no. 1060/2009.]

[[Insert credit rating agency] is not established in
the European Union and is not registered in
accordance with Regulation (EC) no. 1060/2009.]

[[Insert credit rating agency] is not established in
the European Union and has not applied for
registration under Regulation (EC) no. 1060/2009.
However, the application for registration under
Regulation (EC) no. 1060/2009 of [insert the name
of the relevant EU CRA affiliate that applied for
registration], which is established in the European
Union, disclosed the intention to endorse credit
ratings of [insert credit rating agency].]
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3.

[[Insert credit rating agency] is not established in
the European Union and has not applied for
registration under Regulation (EC) no. 1060/2009.
The ratings [[have been]/[are expected to be]]
endorsed by [insert the name of the relevant EU-
registered credit rating agency] in accordance with
Regulation (EC) no. 1060/2009. [Insert the name of
the relevant EU-registered credit rating agency] is
established in the European Union and registered
under Regulation (EC) no. 1060/2009.]

[[Insert credit rating agency] is not established in the
European Union and has not applied for registration
under Regulation (EC) no. 1060/2009, but it is
certified in accordance with such Regulation.]

[Interests of Natural and Legal Persons Involved in the [Issue/Offer]

Need to include a description of any interest, including conflicting ones, that is material to the issue/offer,

detailing the persons involved and the nature of the interest. May be satisfied by the inclusion of the following
statement:

“Save as discussed in [“Subscription and Sale™], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer

of the Covered Bonds has an interest material to the offer.” — amend as appropriate if there are other interests|

4. Reasons for the Offer, Estimated Net Proceeds and Total Expenses

5.

YIELD

[(i)  Reasons for the offer

[(ii)] Estimated net proceeds

[(ii1)] Estimated total expenses:

Indication of yield:

[e]

(See USE OF PROCEEDS] wording in Base
Prospectus — if reasons for offer different from
making profit and/or hedging certain risks will
need to include those reasons here.)]

[e]
(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will
need to split out and present in order of priority. If

proceeds insufficient to fund all proposed uses state
amount and sources of other funding.)

[e]

[e]

[The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the
basis of the Issue Price. It is not an indication of
future yield.]

[The yield for Floating Rate Covered Bonds is an
estimation only and calculated with reference to

the Rate of Interest that would be payable if the
Issue Date would be an Interest Payment Date
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6. Operational Information

ISIN Code:
Common Code:

Any clearing system(s) other than Interbolsa -
Sociedade Gestora de Sistemas de Liquidacao e
de Sistemas Centralizados de Valores
Mobiliarios, S.A. as operator of the Central de
Valores Mobiliarios, Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V.
as operator of the Euroclear System and
Clearstream Banking. société anonyme and the

relevant identification number(s):
Delivery:

Names and addresses of additional Paying
Agent(s) (if any):

[Intended to be held in a manner which would
allow Eurosystem eligibility:]

and on the assumption that such Rate of Interest
(comprising the relevant rate plus margin) would
not change in the future. Investors should be
aware that the Rate of Interest payable on each
Interest Payment Date will be subject to the
variation of the relevant Reference Rate. The
index used to calculate the yield was /+/]

[e]
[e]
[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]

Delivery [against/free of] payment
[e]

[[Yes] [No]

[Note that the designation “yes” simply means
that the Covered Bonds are intended upon issue
to be (i) deposited with one of Euroclear and/or
Clearstream Luxembourg as common safekeeper
or (ii) registered with Interbolsa — Sociedade
Gestora de Sistemas de Liquidacao e de Sistemas
Centralizados de Valores Mobiliarios, S.A. in its
capacity as a securities settlement system, and
does not necessarily mean that the Covered
Bonds will be recognised as eligible collateral for
Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit
operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue or
at any or all times during their life. Such
recognition will depend upon satisfaction of the
Eurosystem eligibility criteria.][include this text
if “yes” selected in which case, if intended upon
issue to be deposited with one of Euroclear
and/or Clearstream Luxembourg as common
safekeeper, the Covered Bonds must be issued in
NGN form]
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Stabilization Operation

[Not Applicable]
[Applicable]

[If applicable;
Stabilising Manager;
Period;

Other information]
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE COVERED BONDS

The following are the Terms and Conditions of the Covered Bonds which will be incorporated by reference
into, or endorsed upon, each Covered Bond, including any Global Covered Bond (as defined below) and
each Definitive Covered Bond (if applicable), in the latter case only if permitted by the relevant stock
exchange (if any) and agreed by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer at the time of issue but, if not so permitted
and agreed, such Definitive Covered Bond will have endorsed thereon or attached thereto such Terms and
Conditions. The applicable Final Terms in relation to any Tranche of Covered Bonds may specify other
terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the following
Terms and Conditions, replace or modify the following Terms and Conditions for the purpose of such
Covered Bonds and shall be included in a supplement prepared by the Issuer for such purpose. The
applicable Final Terms (or the relevant provisions thereof) will be incorporated by reference or endorsed
upon, or attached to, each Covered Bond. Reference should be made to ‘‘Final Terms of the Covered
Bonds’’ for a description of the content of Final Terms which will specify which of such terms are to apply
in relation to the relevant Covered Bonds.

THE COVERED BONDS (AS DEFINED IN THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS) ARE MORTGAGE COVERED
BONDS (“OBRIGAGOES HIPOTECARIAS”) ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COVERED BONDS LAW (AS
DEFINED). THE ISSUER (AS DEFINED IN THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS) IS A CREDIT INSTITUTION
WITH THE CAPACITY TO ISSUE COVERED BONDS PURSUANT TO THE COVERED BONDS LAwW. THE
FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUER UNDER THE COVERED BONDS LAW ARE SECURED ON THE
ASSETS THAT COMPRISE THE COVER POOL (AS DEFINED BELOW) MAINTAINED BY THE ISSUER IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE COVERED BONDS LAW.

This Covered Bond is one of a Series (as defined below) of mortgage covered bonds issued by Banco BPI,
S.A. (the “Issuer”) in accordance with the procedures set out in the Agency and Payments Procedures (as
defined below).

Depending on the Clearing System through which the Covered Bonds are held (as specified in the applicable
Final Terms), references herein to the Covered Bonds shall be references to the Covered Bonds of this Series
and shall mean:

0] whilst the Covered Bonds are held through Interbolsa, the book-entries corresponding to the units
of the lowest Specified Denomination in the Specified Currency;

(i) in relation to any Covered Bonds represented by a global Covered Bond (a “Global Covered
Bond”), units of the lowest Specified Denomination in the Specified Currency;

(iti)  any Global Covered Bond;

(iv) any Definitive Covered Bonds in bearer form (“Definitive Bearer Covered Bond”) issued in
exchange for a Global Covered Bond in bearer form; and

(V) any Definitive Covered Bond in registered form (“Definitive Registered Covered Bond”), whether
or not in exchange for a Global Covered Bond in registered form.

The Covered Bonds have the benefit of a set of agency and payments procedures (such agency and payments
procedures as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the “Agency and Payments
Procedures”) dated 30" April 2008 and made and agreed by Banco BPI, S.A. (acting in its capacity as
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Agent, which expression shall include any successor) and by any subsequent agent, paying agent, transfer
agent, agent bank and/or registrar appointed by the Issuer.

Interest bearing Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds have interest coupons (“Coupons”) and, if indicated in
the applicable Final Terms, talons for further Coupons (“Talon”) attached on issue. Any reference herein
to Coupons or coupons shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be deemed to include a reference to
Talons or talons. Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds repayable in instalments have receipts (“Receipts”) for
the payment of the instalments of principal (other than the final instalment) attached on issue. Registered
Covered Bonds and Global Covered Bonds do not have Coupons, Receipts or Talons attached on issue.

Any reference to “holders of Covered Bonds” shall mean, in the case of Covered Bonds held through
Interbolsa, the person or entity registered as such in the relevant securities account. In the case of Bearer
Covered Bonds, “holders of Covered Bonds” shall mean the holders of such Covered Bonds and, in the
case of Registered Covered Bonds, the persons in whose name the Covered Bonds are registered and shall,
in relation to any Covered Bonds represented by a Global Covered Bond, be construed as provided below.
Any reference herein to “Receiptholders” shall mean the holders of Receipts. Any reference herein to
“Couponholders” shall mean the holders of the Coupons and shall, unless the context otherwise requires,
include the holders of the Talons.

As used herein, “Tranche” means Covered Bonds which are identical in all respects (including as to listing)
and “Series” means a Tranche of Covered Bonds together with any further Tranche or Tranches of Covered
Bonds which are (i) expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (ii) identical in all respects
(including as to listing) except for their respective Issue Dates, Interest Commencement Dates, interest rates
and/or Issue Prices.

Copies of the Agency and Payments Procedures are available for inspection during normal business hours
at the specified office of the Paying Agent and the Registrar (such Paying Agent and the Registrar being
jointly referred to as the “Agents”). Copies of the applicable Final Terms are obtainable at the CMVM
website — www.cmvm.pt — and during normal business hours at the specified office of each of the Agents
save that, if these Covered Bonds are unlisted, the applicable Final Terms will only be obtainable at the
specified office of each of the Agents by a holder holding one or more unlisted Covered Bonds and such
holder must produce evidence satisfactory to the Issuer and the relevant Agent as to its holding of such
Covered Bonds and identity. The Covered Bonds holders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders are
deemed to have notice of, and are entitled to the benefit of, all the provisions of the Agency and Payments
Procedures and the applicable Final Terms which are applicable to them. The statements in these Terms and
Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Agency and Payments
Procedures.

Words and expressions defined in the Agency and Payments Procedures or used in the applicable Final
Terms shall have the same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions unless the context otherwise
requires or unless otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of inconsistency between the Agency and
Payments Procedures and the applicable Final Terms, the applicable Final Terms will prevail.

As used herein, outstanding means in relation to the Covered Bonds all the Covered Bonds issued other
than:

@) those Covered Bonds which have been redeemed and cancelled pursuant to these Terms and
Conditions;
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(b) those Covered Bonds in respect of which the date for redemption under these Terms and Conditions
has occurred and the redemption moneys (including all interest (if any) accrued to the date for
redemption and any interest (if any) payable under these Terms and Conditions after that date) have
been duly paid to or to the order of the Agent in the manner provided in the Agency and Payments
Procedures (and, where appropriate, notice to that effect has been given to the Covered Bonds
holders in accordance with these Terms and Conditions) and remain available for payment against
presentation of the relevant Covered Bonds and/or Receipts and/or Coupons as applicable;

(c) those Covered Bonds which have been purchased and cancelled under these Terms and Conditions;
(d) those Covered Bonds which have become prescribed under these Terms and Conditions;

(e) those mutilated or defaced Covered Bonds which have been surrendered and cancelled and in
respect of which replacements have been issued pursuant to these Terms and Conditions;

0 (for the purpose only of ascertaining the principal amount of the Covered Bonds outstanding and
without prejudice to the status for any other purpose of the relevant Covered Bonds) those Covered
Bonds which are alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed and in respect of which replacements
have been issued under these Terms and Conditions;

(9) (if applicable) a Temporary Global Covered Bond to the extent that it has been duly exchanged for
the relevant Permanent Global Covered Bond and a Permanent Global Covered Bond to the extent
that it has been exchanged for the Definitive Bearer Covered Bond in each case under its provisions;
and

(h) (if applicable) any Registered Global Covered Bond to the extent that it has been exchanged for
Definitive Registered Covered Bonds and any Definitive Registered Covered Bond to the extent
that it has been exchanged for an interest in a Registered Global Covered Bond.

1. FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE

The Covered Bonds are in bearer (ao portador) or, except when issued in NGN, in registered (nominativas)
form as specified in the applicable Final Terms and, in the case of Definitive Covered Bonds, serially
numbered, in the Specified Currency and the Specified Denomination(s). Covered Bonds of one Specified
Denomination may not be exchanged for Covered Bonds of another Specified Denomination and Bearer
Covered Bonds may not be exchanged for Registered Covered Bonds and vice versa.

The Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa will be in book-entry (escriturais) form and title to the Covered
Bonds will be evidenced by book entries in accordance with the provisions of Portuguese Securities Code
and the applicable CMVM regulations. No physical document of title will be issued in respect of the
Covered Bonds. Each person shown in the records of an Interbolsa Participant as having an interest in
Covered Bonds shall be treated as the holder of the principal amount of the Covered Bonds recorded therein.

For so long as any of the Covered Bonds is represented by a Global Covered Bond held on behalf of
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream, Luxembourg
as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Covered Bonds (in which regard any certificate or other
document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the nominal amount of such Covered
Bonds standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the
case of manifest or proven error) shall be treated by the Issuer and the Agents as the holder of such nominal
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amount of Covered Bonds for all purposes (subject to Condition 2 (Transfers of Covered Bonds)) other than
with respect to the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of Covered Bonds, for which
purpose the bearer of the relevant Bearer Global Covered Bond or the registered holder of the relevant
Registered Global Covered Bond shall be treated by the Issuer and any Agent as the holder of such nominal
amount of such Covered Bonds in accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant Global Covered
Bond. References to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits, be
deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the applicable
Final Terms.

Interest-bearing Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds have (unless otherwise indicated in the applicable Final
Terms) Coupons.

This Covered Bond may be a Fixed Rate Covered Bond, a Floating Rate Covered Bond, a Zero Coupon
Covered Bond, or a combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Interest Basis shown in the
applicable Final Terms.

Terms applicable to other types and structures of Covered Bonds that the Issuer and any Dealer(s) may agree
to issue under the Programme will be set out in the applicable Final Terms.

Where the applicable Final Terms specifies that an Extended Maturity Date applies to a Series of Covered
Bonds, those Covered Bonds may be Fixed Rate Covered Bonds or Floating Rate Covered Bonds in respect
of the period from the Issue Date to and including the Maturity Date and Fixed Rate Covered Bonds,
Floating Rate Covered Bonds in respect of the period from the Maturity Date up to and including the
Extended Maturity Date, subject as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

This Covered Bond may be an Instalment Covered Bond depending upon the Redemption/Payment Basis
shown in the applicable Final Terms.

The Covered Bonds to be issued on or after the date hereof will be issued in denomination per unit equal to
or higher than €100,000 (or its equivalent in another currency) as specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Subject as set out below, title to the Bearer Covered Bonds, Receipts and Coupons will pass by delivery and
title to Registered Covered Bonds will pass upon registration of transfers in accordance with the provisions
of the Agency and Payments Procedures. The Issuer, the Paying Agent and the Common Representative
will (except as otherwise required by law) deem and treat the bearer of any Bearer Covered Bond, Receipt
or Coupon and the registered holder of any Registered Covered Bond as the absolute owner thereof (whether
or not overdue and notwithstanding any notice of ownership or writing thereon or notice of any previous
loss or theft thereof) for all purposes but, in the case of any Global Covered Bond, without prejudice to the
provisions set out in the next succeeding paragraph.

2. TRANSFERS OF COVERED BONDS
The transferability of the Covered Bonds is not restricted.

Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa may, subject to compliance with all applicable rules, restrictions
and requirements of Interbolsa and Portuguese law, be transferred to a person who wishes to hold such
Covered Bond. No owner of a Covered Bond will be able to transfer such Covered Bond, except in
accordance with Portuguese Law and with the applicable procedures of Interbolsa. Transfers of Covered
Bonds represented by a Global Covered Bond within Interbolsa (if applicable) will be effected in accordance
with the customary rules and operating procedures of Interbolsa applicable to book-entry securities.
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Whilst the Covered Bonds are held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, interests in a Global
Covered Bond may, subject to compliance with all applicable restrictions and requirements, be transferred
to a person who wishes to hold such interest in a Global Covered Bond. No beneficial owner of an interest
in a Global Covered Bond will be able to transfer such interest, except in accordance with the applicable
procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, in each case to the extent applicable. Transfers of
any interests in Covered Bonds represented by a Global Covered Bond within Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg will be effected in accordance with the customary rules and operating procedures of the
relevant clearing system.

Any reference herein to Interbolsa, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, wherever the context so
permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the
applicable Final Terms. The holders of Covered Bonds will not be required to bear the costs and expenses
of effecting any registration of transfer as provided above, except for any costs or expenses of delivery other
than by regular uninsured mail and except that the Issuer may require the payment of a sum sufficient to
cover any stamp duty, tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation to the registration.

3. STATUS OF THE COVERED BONDS

The Covered Bonds, any interest thereon and any relative Coupons, if applicable, constitute direct,
unconditional, unsubordinated and secured obligations of the Issuer and rank pari passu without any
preference among themselves. The Covered Bonds are mortgage covered securities issued in accordance
with the Covered Bonds Law, which are secured by the Cover Pool maintained by the Issuer in accordance
with the terms of the Covered Bonds Law, and rank pari passu with all other obligations of the Issuer under
mortgage covered bonds issued or to be issued by the Issuer pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law.

4. INTEREST
4.1 Interest on Fixed Rate Covered Bonds

Each Fixed Rate Covered Bond bears interest on its Principal Amount Outstanding from (and including) the
Interest Commencement Date at the rate(s) per annum equal to the Rate(s) of Interest. Subject as provided
in Condition 4.4, interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year up to (and
including) the Maturity Date (as specified in the relevant Final Terms).

Except as provided in the applicable Final Terms, the amount of interest payable on each Interest Payment
Date in respect of the Fixed Interest Period ending on (but excluding) such date will amount to the Fixed
Coupon Amount. Payments of interest on any Interest Payment Date will, if so specified in the applicable
Final Terms, amount to the Broken Amount so specified.

As used in these Terms and Conditions, “Fixed Interest Period” means the period from (and including) an
Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest
Payment Date.

If interest is required to be calculated for a period other than a Fixed Interest Period, such interest shall be
calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum by the
applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant
Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with
applicable market convention.
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“Day Count Fraction” means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest in accordance with this
Condition 4.1:

(i)

(i)

if “Actual/Actual (ICMA)” is specified in the applicable Final Terms:

(@) in the case of Covered Bonds where the number of days in the relevant period from (and
including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement
Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (the “Accrual Period”) is equal to or shorter
than the Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the number of days in
such Accrual Period divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such Determination
Period and (2) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Final Terms)
that would occur in one calendar year; or

(b) inthe case of Covered Bonds where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination Period
during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:

a.  the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination Period in which
the Accrual Period begins divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such
Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates that would occur in
one calendar year; and

b.  the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination Period
divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination Period and (y)
the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one calendar year; and

if “30/360” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days in the period from (and
including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date) to
(but excluding) the relevant payment date (such number of days being calculated on the basis of a
year of 360 days with 12 30-day months) divided by 360.

In these Terms and Conditions:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

4.2

“Determination Period” means each period from (and including) a Determination Date to (but
excluding) the next Determination Date (including, where either the Interest Commencement Date
or the final Interest Payment Date is not a Determination Date, the period commencing on the first
Determination Date prior to, and ending on the first Determination Date falling after, such date);

“Principal Amount Outstanding” means in respect of a Covered Bond the principal amount of
that Covered Bond on the relevant Issue Date thereof less principal amounts received by the relevant
holder of the Covered Bond in respect thereof; and

“sub-unit” means, with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such currency
that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro, one cent.

Interest on Floating Rate Covered Bonds

(A) Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Covered Bond (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) bears interest on its Principal
Amount Outstanding from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date and such interest will be
payable in arrear on either:

(i) the Specified Interest Payment Date(s) in each year specified in the applicable Final Terms; or
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(i) if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Final Terms, each date

(each such date, together with each Specified Interest Payment Date, an “Interest Payment Date”)
which falls the number of months or other period specified as the Specified Period in the applicable
Final Terms after the preceding Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment
Date, after the Interest Commencement Date.

Such interest will be payable in respect of each Interest Period (which expression shall, in these Terms and
Conditions, mean the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement
Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date).

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Final Terms and (x) if there is no numerically
corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest Payment Date should occur or (y) if any
Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the Business Day
Convention specified is:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

in any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with Condition 4.2.(ii) above, the
Floating Rate Convention (as specified in the applicable Final Terms), such Interest Payment Date
(i) in the case of (x) above, shall be the last day that is a Business Day in the relevant month and the
provisions of (B) below shall apply mutatis mutandis or (ii) in the case of (y) above, shall be
postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar
month, in which event (A) such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the immediately
preceding Business Day and (B) each subsequent Interest Payment Date shall be the last Business
Day in the month which falls the Specified Period after the preceding applicable Interest Payment
Date occurred; or

the Following Business Day Convention (as specified in the applicable Final Terms), such Interest
Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day; or

the Modified Following Business Day Convention (as specified in the applicable Final Terms), such
Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would
thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event such Interest Payment Date shall be
brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day; or

the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to
the immediately preceding Business Day.

In these Terms and Conditions, “Business Day” means a day which is both:

(i)

(i)

a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for
general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in London
and Lisbon and any Additional Business Centre(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on which
commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business
(including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the principal financial
centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than London and Lisbon and any
Additional Business Centre(s)) and which if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New
Zealand dollars shall be Sydney and Auckland, respectively or (2) in relation to any sum payable in
euro, a day on which the TARGET System is open.
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(B) Rate of Interest

Floating Rate Covered Bonds

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Covered Bonds will be determined
in the manner specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(i)

(i)

ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Covered Bonds: Where ISDA Determination is specified in
the applicable Final Terms as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate
of Interest for each Interest Period will be the relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated in the
applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any). For the purposes of this subparagraph, “ISDA Rate”
for an Interest Period means a rate equal to the Floating Rate that would be determined by the Agent
or other person specified in the applicable Final Terms under an interest rate swap transaction if the
Agent or that other person were acting as Calculation Agent for that swap transaction under the
terms of an agreement incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions, as published by the International
Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. and as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the
first Tranche of the Covered Bonds (the “ISDA Definitions”) and under which:

1.  the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Final Terms;
2.  the Designated Maturity is the period specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

3. the relevant Reset Date is either (A) if the applicable Floating Rate Option is based on the
London inter-bank offered rate (LIBOR) or the Eurozone inter-bank offered rate (EURIBOR)
for a currency, the first day of that Interest Period, or (B) in any other case, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph 4.2.(B), “Floating Rate”, “Calculation Agent”, “Floating
Rate Option”, “Designated Maturity” and “Reset Date” have the meanings given to those terms
in the ISDA Definitions.

Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Covered Bonds: Where Screen Rate Determination is
specified in the applicable Final Terms as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be
determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will, subject as provided below, be either:

1. the offered quotation (if there is only one quotation on the Relevant Screen Page); or

2.  the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005 being
rounded upwards) of the offered quotations, (expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for
the Reference Rate which appears or appear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page
as at 11.00 a.m. (London time, in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of
EURIBOR) on the Interest Determination Date in question plus or minus (as indicated in the
applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any), all as determined by the Agent or, where the
applicable Final Terms specifies a Calculation Agent, the Calculation Agent so specified. If
five or more of such offered quotations are available on the Relevant Screen Page, the highest
(or, if there is more than one such highest quotation, one only of such quotations) and the
lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest quotation, one only of such quotations) shall
be disregarded by the Agent for the purpose of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as
provided above) or, as applicable, the relevant Calculation Agent, of such offered quotations.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Request from Reference Banks: If, for the purposes of the calculations described in this Condition
4.2(B), the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if no offered quotations appear thereon, the
Agent shall request each of the Reference Banks to provide the Agent with its offered quotation
(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate at 11.00 a.m. (London time in
the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the Interest Determination Date
(as specified in the applicable Final Terms) in question. If two or more of the Reference Banks
provide the Agent with such offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall
be the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place with 0.000005 being rounded
upwards) of such offered quotations plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if any), all as
determined by the Agent.

Determination by Agent: If on any Interest Determination Date, one only or none of the Reference
Banks provides the Agent with such offered quotations as provided in the preceding paragraph, the
Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall be the rate per annum which the Agent
determines as being the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with
0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as communicated to (and at the request of) the Agent
by the Reference Banks or any two or more of them, at which such banks were offered, at 11.00
a.m. (London time in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the relevant
Interest Determination Date, deposits in the Specified Currency for a period equal to that which
would have been used for the Reference Rate by leading banks in the London inter-bank market (if
the Reference Rate is LIBOR) or the Euro-zone inter-bank market (if the Reference Rate is
EURIBOR) plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if any). However, if one only or none of the
Reference Banks provide the Agent with such offered rates, at the Agent’s request, the Rate of
Interest for the relevant Interest Period will be the offered rate for deposits in the Specified Currency
for a period equal to that which would have been used for the Reference Rate, or the arithmetic
mean (rounded as provided above) of the offered rates for deposits in the Specified Currency for a
period equal to that which would have been used for the Reference Rate, at which, at 11.00 a.m.
(London time in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the relevant
Interest Determination Date, any one or more banks (which bank or banks is or are in the opinion
of the Issuer suitable for such purpose) informs the Agent it is quoting to leading banks in the
London inter-bank market (if the Reference Rate is LIBOR) or the Euro-zone inter-bank market (if
the Reference Rate is EURIBOR) plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if any). If the Rate of
Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this paragraph, the
Rate of Interest shall be determined on the Interest Determination Date for the last preceding Interest
Period (though substituting, where a different Margin is to be applied to the relevant Interest Period
from that which applied to the last preceding Interest Period, the Margin relating to the relevant
Interest Period, in place of the Margin relating to that last preceding Interest Period).

For the purposes of the above, “Reference Banks” means those banks whose offered rates were used
to determine such quotation when such quotation last appeared on the Relevant Screen Page or, if
applicable, those banks whose offered quotations last appeared on the Relevant Screen Page when
no fewer than three such offered quotations appeared.

Reference Rate specified in Final Terms: If the Reference Rate from time to time in respect of
Floating Rate Covered Bonds is specified in the applicable Final Terms as being other than LIBOR
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or EURIBOR, the Rate of Interest in respect of such Covered Bonds will be determined as provided
in the applicable Final Terms.

(C) Minimum Rate of Interest and/or Maximum Rate of Interest

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Minimum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then, in the event
that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance with the provisions of
paragraph 4.2 above is less than such Minimum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period
shall be such Minimum Rate of Interest.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Maximum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then, in the event
that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance with the provisions of
paragraph 4.2 above is greater than such Maximum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest
Period shall be such Maximum Rate of Interest.

(D) Determination of Rate of Interest and calculation of Interest Amounts

The Agent or, where the applicable Final Terms specifies a Calculation Agent, the Calculation Agent so
specified, will at or as soon as practicable after each time at which the Rate of Interest is to be determined,
determine the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period.

The Agent or, where the applicable Final Terms specifies a Calculation Agent, the Calculation Agent so
specified, will calculate the amount of interest payable on the Floating Rate Covered Bonds in respect of
Specified Denomination (an “Interest Amount”) for the relevant Interest Period. Each Interest Amount
shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum
by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant
Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with
applicable market convention.

“Day Count Fraction” means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest for any Interest Period:

0] if “Actual/Actual (ISDA)” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in
the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Interest Period falls in a leap year, the
sum of (I) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a leap year
divided by 366 and (1) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a
non-leap year divided by 365);

(i) if “Actual/365 (Fixed)” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in the
Interest Period divided by 365;

(iii)  if “Actual/365 (Sterling)” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in
the Interest Period divided by 365 or, in the case of an Interest Payment Date falling in a leap year,
366;

(iv)  if“Actual/360” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in the Interest
Period divided by 360;

(v) if “30/360”, “360/360” or “Bond Basis” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of
days in the Interest Period divided by 360 calculated on a formula basis as follows:
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[360 X (Y2 - Yl)] + [30 X (M2 - M1)] + (D2 - Dl)
Day Count Fraction = 360

where:
"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day of the Interest Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a humber, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

"M_" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day of the Interest Period falls;

"D;" is the first calendar day, expressed as a humber, of the Interest Period, unless such
number is 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31 and D, is greater than 29,
in which case D will be 30;

(vi)  if“30E/360” or “Eurobond Basis” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days
in the Interest Period divided by 360 calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360 X (Yz - Yl)] + [30 X (Mz - Ml)] + (Dz - D1)
Day Count Fraction = 360

where:
"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day of the Interest Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

"M_" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day of the Interest Period falls;

"D," is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless such
number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

91



"Dy" is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31, in which case D, will be
30; and

if “30E/360 (ISDA)” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days in the
Interest Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360 X (Yz - Yi)] + [30 X (Mz - M1)] + (Dz - Di)
Day Count Fraction = 360

where:
"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day of the Interest Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

"M_" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day of the Interest Period falls;

"D;" is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless (i) that
day is the last day of February or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D1 will be
30; and

"D2" is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Interest Period, unless (i) that day is the last day of February but not the
Maturity Date or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D2 will be 30.

(E) Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amounts

The Agent, or where the applicable Final Terms specifies a Calculation Agent for this purpose, the
Calculation Agent so specified, will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount for each Interest
Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the Issuer and to any Stock Exchange or
other relevant competent listing authority or quotation system on which the relevant Floating Rate Covered
Bonds are for the time being listed, quoted and/or traded and notice thereof to be published in accordance
with Condition 11 (Notices) as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than the fourth
London Business Day thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Interest Payment Date so notified may
subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative arrangements made by way of adjustment) without
notice in the event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any such amendment or alternative
arrangements will be promptly notified to the Common Representative and each Stock Exchange or other
relevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate Covered Bonds are for the time being listed or by
which they have been admitted to listing and to the holders of Covered Bonds in accordance with Condition
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11 (Notices). For the purposes of this paragraph, the expression “London Business Day” means a day (other
than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks and foreign exchange markets are open for general business
in London.

(F) Certificates to be final

All certificates, communications, opinions, determinations, calculations, quotations and decisions given,
expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this Condition 4.2, whether by the Agent
or the Calculation Agent (if applicable) shall (in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest error)
be binding on the Issuer, the Agent, the other Paying Agents, any Calculation Agent, the Common
Representative and all holders of Covered Bonds and (in the absence of wilful default or bad faith) no
liability to the Issuer, any Calculation Agent, the holders of Covered Bonds shall attach to the Agent in
connection with the exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions pursuant to such
provisions.

4.3 Accrual of interest

Subject as provided in Condition 4.4, interest (if any) will cease to accrue on each Covered Bond (or in the
case of the redemption of part only of a Covered Bond, that part only of such Covered Bond) on the due
date for redemption thereof unless, upon due presentation, payment of principal is improperly withheld or
refused. In such event, interest will continue to accrue until (i) the date on which all amounts due in respect
of such Covered Bond have been paid; and (ii) five days after the date on which the full amount of the
moneys payable in respect of such Covered Bond has been received by the Agent or the Registrar, as the
case may be, and notice to that effect has been given to the holders of Covered Bonds in accordance with
Condition 11 (Notices).

4.4 Interest Rate and Payments from the Maturity Date in the event of extension of maturity of
the Covered Bonds up to the Extended Maturity Date

(A) If an Extended Maturity Date is specified in the applicable Final Terms as applying to a Series of
Covered Bonds and the maturity of those Covered Bonds is extended beyond the Maturity Date in
accordance with Condition 6.8, the Covered Bonds shall bear interest from (and including) the Maturity
Date to (but excluding) the earlier of the relevant Interest Payment Date after the Maturity Date on which
the Covered Bonds are redeemed in full or the Extended Maturity Date, subject to Condition 4.3. In that
event, interest shall be payable on those Covered Bonds at the rate determined in accordance with Condition
4.4(B) on the principal amount outstanding of the Covered Bonds in arrear on the Interest Payment Date in
each month after the Maturity Date in respect of the Interest Period ending immediately prior to the relevant
Interest Payment Date, subject as otherwise provided in the applicable Final Terms. The final Interest
Payment Date shall fall no later than the Extended Maturity Date.

(B) If an Extended Maturity Date is specified in the applicable Final Terms as applying to a Series of
Covered Bonds and the maturity of those Covered Bonds is extended beyond the Maturity Date in
accordance with Condition 6.8, the rate of interest payable from time to time in respect of the principal
amount outstanding of the Covered Bonds on each Interest Payment Date after the Maturity Date in respect
of the Interest Period ending immediately prior to the relevant Interest Payment Date will be as specified in
the applicable Final Terms and, where applicable, determined by the Agent or, where the applicable Final
Terms specifies a Calculation Agent, the Calculation Agent so specified, two Business Days after the
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Maturity Date in respect of the first such Interest Period and thereafter as specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

© In the case of Covered Bonds which are Zero Coupon Covered Bonds up to (and including) the
Maturity Date and for which an Extended Maturity Date is specified under the applicable Final Terms, for
the purposes of this Condition 4.4 the principal amount outstanding shall be the total amount otherwise
payable by the Issuer on the Maturity Date less any payments made by the Issuer in respect of such amount
in accordance with these Conditions.

(D) This Condition 4.4 shall only apply to Covered Bonds to which an Extended Maturity Date is
specified in the applicable Final Terms and if the Issuer fails to redeem those Covered Bonds (in full) on
the Maturity Date (or within two Business Days thereafter) and the maturity of those Covered Bonds is
automatically extended up to the Extended Maturity Date in accordance with Condition 6.8.

5. PAYMENTS
5.1 Method of payment
Subject as provided below:

0] payments in a Specified Currency other than euro will be made by credit or transfer to an account
in the relevant Specified Currency maintained by the payee with, or, at the option of the payee, by
a cheque in such Specified Currency drawn on, a bank in the principal financial centre of the country
of such Specified Currency (which, if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand
dollars, shall be Sydney or Auckland, respectively);

(i) payments in euro will be made by credit or transfer to a euro account (or any other account to which
euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by a euro
cheque; and

(iii)  payments in US dollars will be made by a transfer to a US dollar account maintained by the payee
with a bank outside the United States (which expression as used in this Condition 5 (Payments),
means the United States of America including the State, and District of Columbia, its territories, its
possessions and other areas subject to its jurisdiction or by cheque drawn on a US bank. In no event
will payment be made by a cheque mailed to an address in the United States. All payments of interest
will be made to accounts outside the United States except as may be permitted by United States tax
law in effect at the time of such payment without detriment to the Issuer.

Payments will be subject in all cases to any Clearing System regulations, fiscal or other laws and regulations
applicable thereto in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 7 (Taxation).

5.2 Payments in relation to Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa

Payments of principal and interest in respect of Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa may only be made
in Euro, United States dollar, Japanese yen and Swiss franc until such date as Interbolsa accepts registration
and clearing of securities denominated in currencies other than Euro, United States dollar, Japanese yen and
Swiss franc.

Whilst the Covered Bonds are held through Interbolsa, payment of principal and interest in respect of the
Covered Bonds will be (i) credited, according to the procedures and regulations of Interbolsa, by the Paying
Agent (acting on behalf of the Issuer) to the payment current-accounts held in the payment system of the
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Bank of Portugal by the Interbolsa Participants whose control accounts with Interbolsa are credited with
such Covered Bonds and thereafter (ii) credited by such Interbolsa Participants from the aforementioned
payment current-accounts to the accounts of the owners of those Covered Bonds or through Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg to the accounts with Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg of the beneficial
owners of those Covered Bonds, in accordance with the rules and procedures of Interbolsa, Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be.

5.3 Presentation of Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds and Coupons

(A) Payments of principal in respect of Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds will (subject as provided
below) be made in the manner provided in Condition 5.1 above only against presentation and surrender (or,
in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds, and
payments of interest in respect of Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds will (subject as provided below) be
made as aforesaid only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due,
endorsement) of Coupons, in each case at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States
(which expression, as used herein, means the United States of America (including the States and the District
of Columbia, its territories, its possessions and other areas subject to its jurisdiction)).

(B) Payments of instalments of principal (if any) in respect of Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds, other
than the final instalment, will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in Condition 5.1
above against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of
the relevant Receipt in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Payment of the final instalment will be
made in the manner provided in Condition 5.1 above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case
of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the relevant Bearer Covered Bond in accordance with the
preceding paragraph. Each Receipt must be presented for payment of the relevant instalment together with
the Definitive Bearer Covered Bond to which it appertains. Receipts presented without the Definitive Bearer
Covered Bond to which they appertain do not constitute valid obligations of the Issuer. Upon the date on
which any Definitive Bearer Covered Bond becomes due and repayable, unmatured Receipts (if any)
relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment shall be made in respect thereof.

(© Fixed Rate Covered Bonds in definitive bearer form should be presented for payment together with
all unmatured Coupons appertaining thereto (which expression shall for this purpose include Coupons
falling to be issued on exchange of matured Talons), failing which the amount of any missing unmatured
Coupon (or, in the case of payment not being made in full, the same proportion of the amount of such
missing unmatured Coupon as the sum so paid bears to the sum due) will be deducted from the sum due for
payment. Each amount of principal so deducted will be paid in the manner mentioned above against
surrender of the relative missing Coupon at any time before the expiry of 20 years after the Relevant Date
(as defined in Condition 8 (Prescription)) in respect of such principal (whether or not such Coupon would
otherwise have become void under Condition 8 (Prescription)). Upon the date on which any Fixed Rate
Covered Bond in definitive bearer form becomes due and repayable, all unmatured Talons (if any)
appertaining thereto will become void and no further Coupons will be issued in respect thereof.

(D) Upon the date on which any Floating Rate Covered Bond in definitive bearer form becomes due
and repayable, unmatured Coupons and Talons (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall
become void and no payment or, as the case may be, exchange for further Coupons shall be made in respect
thereof.
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(E) If the due date for redemption of any Definitive Bearer Covered Bond is not an Interest Payment
Date, interest (if any) accrued in respect of such Covered Bond from (and including) the preceding Interest
Payment Date or, as the case may be, the Interest Commencement Date shall be payable only against
surrender of the relevant Definitive Bearer Covered Bond.

5.4 Payments in respect of Bearer Global Covered Bonds held through Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg

Except if otherwise specified in the applicable Final terms, payments of principal and interest (if any) in
respect of Covered Bonds represented by any Global Covered Bond in bearer form held through Euroclear
or Clearstream, Luxembourg (as the case may be) will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner
specified above in relation to Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds and otherwise in the manner specified in the
relevant Global Covered Bond against presentation or surrender, as the case may be, of such Global Covered
Bond at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States. A record of each payment made
against presentation or surrender of any Global Covered Bond in bearer form, distinguishing between any
payment of principal and any payment of interest, will be made on such Global Covered Bond by the Paying
Agent to which it was presented and such record shall be prima facie evidence that the payment in question
has been made.

5.5 Payments in respect of Registered Covered Bonds held through Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg

(A) Payments of principal in respect of each Registered Covered Bond (whether or not in global form)
will be made against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due,
endorsement) of the Registered Covered Bond at the specified office of the Registrar or the Paying Agent.
Such payments will be made by transfer to the Designated Account (as defined below) of the holder (or the
first named of joint holders) of the Registered Covered Bond appearing in the register of holders of the
Registered Covered Bonds maintained by the Registrar (the Register) at the close of business on the third
business day (being for this purpose a day on which banks are open for business in the city where the
specified office of the Registrar is located) before the relevant due date. Notwithstanding the previous
sentence, if (i) a holder does not have a Designated Account or (ii) the principal amount of the Covered
Bonds held by a holder is less than €250,000 (or its approximate equivalent in any other Specified Currency),
payment will instead be made by a cheque in the Specified Currency drawn on a Designated Bank (as
defined below). For these purposes, Designated Account means the account (which, in the case of a payment
in Japanese yen to a non-resident of Japan, shall be a non-resident account) maintained by a holder with a
Designated Bank and identified as such in the Register and Designated Bank means (in the case of payment
in a Specified Currency other than euro) a bank in the principal financial centre of the country of such
Specified Currency (which, if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be
Sydney or Auckland, respectively) and (in the case of a payment in euro) any bank which processes
payments in euro.

(B) Payments of interest in respect of each Registered Covered Bond (whether or not in global form)
will be made by a cheque in the Specified Currency drawn on a Designated Bank and mailed by uninsured
mail on the business day in the city where the specified office of the Registrar is located immediately
preceding the relevant due date to the holder (or the first named of joint holders) of the Registered Covered
Bond appearing in the Register at the close of business on the fifteenth day (whether or not such fifteenth
day is a business day) before the relevant due date (the Record Date) at his address shown in the Register
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on the Record Date and at his risk. Upon application of the holder to the specified office of the Registrar
not less than three business days in the city where the specified office of the Registrar is located before the
due date for any payment of interest in respect of a Registered Covered Bond, the payment may be made by
transfer on the due date in the manner provided in the preceding paragraph. Any such application for transfer
shall be deemed to relate to all future payments of interest (other than interest due on redemption) in respect
of the Registered Covered Bonds which become payable to the holder who has made the initial application
until such time as the Registrar is notified in writing to the contrary by such holder. Payment of the interest
due in respect of each Registered Covered Bond on redemption will be made in the same manner as payment
of the principal amount of such Registered Covered Bond.

© Holders of Registered Covered Bonds will not be entitled to any interest or other payment for any
delay in receiving any amount due in respect of any Registered Covered Bond as a result of a cheque posted
in accordance with this Condition arriving after the due date for payment or being lost in the post. No
commissions or expenses shall be charged to such holders by the Registrar in respect of any payments of
principal or interest in respect of the Registered Covered Bonds.

(D) None of the Issuer or the Agent will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records
relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership interests in the Registered Global Covered
Bonds or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership
interests.

5.6 Payment Day

If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Covered Bond or Coupon is not a Payment Day, the
holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment until the next following Payment Day in the relevant place
and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in respect of such delay. For these purposes,
“Payment Day” means any day which (subject to Condition 8 (Prescription)) is:

0] for Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa, a day on which the TARGET System is open;

(i) for Covered Bonds other than Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa, a day on which commercial
banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including
dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in:

(A)  the relevant place of presentation; or

(B) any Additional Financial Centre specified in the applicable Final Terms; and (ii) either (1)
in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on which
commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general
business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the
principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than
the place of presentation and any Additional Financial Centre and which if the Specified
Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars shall be Sydney or Auckland,
respectively) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET
System is open.

5.7 Interpretation of principal

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to principal in respect of the Covered Bonds shall be deemed
to include, as applicable:
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0] the Final Redemption Amount of the Covered Bonds;
(i) the Optional Redemption Amount(s) (if any) of the Covered Bonds;

(iii) in relation to Covered Bonds redeemable in instalments, the Instalment Amounts (as specified in
the applicable Final Terms); and

(iv) any premium and any other amounts (other than interest) which may be payable by the Issuer under
or in respect of the Covered Bonds.

6. REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE
6.1 Final redemption

Subject to Condition 6.8, unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled or extended as specified
below, each Covered Bond will be redeemed by the Issuer at its Final Redemption Amount specified in, or
determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Final Terms, in the relevant Specified Currency on
the Maturity Date.

6.2 Redemption at the option of the Issuer (Call Option)

If Issuer Call Option is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer may, having given (unless
otherwise specified, in the applicable Final Terms) not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the
Common Representative, the Agent and, in accordance with Condition 11 (Notices), the holders of Covered
Bonds (which notice shall be irrevocable) redeem all or some only (as specified in the applicable Final
Terms) of the Covered Bonds then outstanding on any Optional Redemption Date(s) and at the Optional
Redemption Amount(s) specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Final Terms
together, if applicable, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the relevant Optional Redemption Date(s).
Upon expiry of such notice, the Issuer shall be bound to redeem the Covered Bonds accordingly. Any such
redemption must be of a nominal amount not less than the Minimum Redemption Amount and not more
than the Maximum Redemption Amount in each case as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms. In
the case of a partial redemption of Covered Bonds, either (whilst the Covered Bonds are held through
Interbolsa) the nominal amount of all outstanding Covered Bonds will be redeemed proportionally or (whilst
the Covered Bonds are held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg) the Covered Bonds to be
redeemed (the “Redeemed Covered Bonds”) will be selected individually in accordance with the rules of
the relevant Clearing Systems not more than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption (such date of
selection being hereinafter called the Selection Date).

6.3 Redemption at the option of the holders of Covered Bonds (Put Option)

If Investor Put Option is specified in the applicable Final Terms, upon the holder of any Covered Bond
giving to the Issuer in accordance with Condition 11 (Notices) not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice
the Issuer will, upon the expiry of such notice, redeem, subject to, and in accordance with, the terms
specified in the applicable Final Terms, such Covered Bond on the Optional Redemption Date and at the
Optional Redemption Amount as specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Final
Terms together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the Optional Redemption Date. To
exercise the right to require redemption of this Covered Bond the holder of this Covered Bond must deliver,
at the specified office of any Paying Agent (in the case of Covered Bonds held through Interbolsa and in the
case of Bearer Covered Bonds) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Covered Bonds) at any time during
normal business hours of such Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar falling within the notice
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period, a duly completed and signed notice of exercise in the form (for the time being current) obtainable
from any specified office of any Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar (a Put Notice) and in
which the holder must specify a bank account (or, if payment is required to be made by cheque, an address)
to which payment is to be made under this Condition and, in the case of Registered Covered Bonds, the
nominal amount thereof to be redeemed and, if less than the full nominal amount of the Registered Covered
Bonds so surrendered is to be redeemed, an address to which a new Registered Covered Bond in respect of
the balance of such Registered Covered Bonds is to be sent subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of Condition 2 (Transfers of Covered Bonds). If this Covered Bond is in definitive form, the Put Notice
must be accompanied by this Covered Bond or evidence satisfactory to the Paying Agent concerned that
this Covered Bond will, following delivery of the Put Notice, be held to its order or under its control. If this
Covered Bond is represented by a Global Covered Bond or is in definitive form and held through Euroclear
or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, to exercise the right to require redemption of this Covered
Bond the holder of this Covered Bond must, within the notice period, give notice to the Agent of such
exercise in accordance with the standard procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, as
applicable (which may include notice being given on his instruction by Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg or any common depositary for them to the Agent by electronic means) in a form acceptable to
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg from time to time and, if this Covered Bond represented by a
Covered Bond, at the same time present or procure the presentation of the relevant Global Covered Bond to
the Agent for notation accordingly. Any Put Notice given by a holder of any Covered Bond pursuant to this
paragraph shall be irrevocable. If the Covered Bonds are held through Interbolsa, the right to require
redemption will be exercised directly against the Issuer, through the Paying Agent.

6.4 Instalments

Instalment Covered Bonds will be redeemed in the Instalment Amounts and on the Instalment Dates.

6.5 Purchases

The Issuer or any of its subsidiaries may at any time purchase or otherwise acquire Covered Bonds (provided
that, in the case of Definitive Covered Bonds, all unmatured Receipts, Coupons or Talons appertaining
thereto are purchased therewith) at any price in the open market or otherwise. Such Covered Bonds may be
held, resold or, at the option of the Issuer, surrendered to any Paying Agent and/or Registrar for cancellation.

6.6 Cancellation

All Covered Bonds which are redeemed will forthwith be cancelled (together — if applicable - with all
unmatured Coupons, Receipts and Talons attached thereto or surrendered therewith at the time of
redemption). All Covered Bonds so cancelled and any Covered Bonds purchased and surrendered for
cancellation pursuant to Condition 6.5 above (together with all unmatured Coupons, Receipts and Talons
cancelled therewith) shall be cancelled by Interbolsa or the Agent (as applicable) and cannot be held,
reissued or resold.

6.7 Late payment on Zero Coupon Covered Bonds

If the amount payable in respect of any Zero Coupon Covered Bond to which Condition 6.8 does not apply,
upon redemption of such Zero Coupon Covered Bond pursuant to paragraph 6.1, 6.2 or 6.3 above or upon
its becoming due and repayable as provided in Condition 9 (Events of Default) is improperly withheld or
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refused, the amount due and repayable in respect of such Zero Coupon Covered Bond shall be the amount
calculated according to the following formula:

RPx(1+AY)y
where:

RP means the Reference Price; and
AY means the Accrual Yield expressed as a decimal; and

y is a fraction, the denominator of which is 360 and the numerator of which is equal to the number of days
(calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each) from (and including)
the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Covered Bonds to (but excluding) the date which is the earlier of:

0] the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Zero Coupon Covered Bond have been paid;
and

(i) the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable in respect of such Zero Coupon Covered
Bonds has been received by the Agent and notice to that effect has been given to the holders of
Covered Bonds either in accordance with Condition 11 (Notices) or individually.

6.8 Extension of Maturity up to Extended Maturity Date

(A)  An Extended Maturity Date shall be specified in the applicable Final Terms as applying to each
Series of Covered Bonds unless the rating provided by the rating agencies appointed by the Issuer at the
relevant time in respect of the Programme is adversely affected by such Extended Maturity provisions.

(B) If an Extended Maturity Date is specified in the applicable Final Terms as applying to a Series of
Covered Bonds and the Issuer fails to redeem all of those Covered Bonds in full on the Maturity Date or
within two Business Days thereafter, the maturity of the Covered Bonds and the date on which such Covered
Bonds will be due and repayable for the purposes of these Terms and Conditions will be automatically
extended up to but no later than the Extended Maturity Date, subject as otherwise provided for in the
applicable Final Terms. In that event, the Issuer may redeem all or any part of the principal amount
outstanding of the Covered Bonds on an Interest Payment Date falling in any month after the Maturity Date
up to and including the Extended Maturity Date or as otherwise provided for in the applicable Final Terms.
The Issuer shall give to the holders of Covered Bonds (in accordance with Condition 11(Notices)), the Agent
and the other Paying Agents, notice of its intention to redeem all or any of the principal amount outstanding
of the Covered Bonds in full at least five Business Days prior to the relevant Interest Payment Date or, as
applicable, the Extended Maturity Date. Any failure by the Issuer to notify such persons shall not affect the
validity or effectiveness of any redemption by the Issuer on the relevant Interest Payment Date or as
applicable, the Extended Maturity Date or give rise to rights in any such person.

(© In the case of Covered Bonds which are Zero Coupon Covered Bonds up to (and including) the
Maturity Date to which an Extended Maturity Date is specified under the applicable Final Terms, for the
purposes of this Condition 6.8 the principal amount outstanding shall be the total amount otherwise payable
by the Issuer on the Maturity Date less any payments made by the Issuer in respect of such amount in
accordance with these Terms and Conditions.

(D)  Any extension of the maturity of Covered Bonds under this Condition 6.8 shall be irrevocable.
Where this Condition 6.8 applies, any failure to redeem the Covered Bonds on the Maturity Date or any
extension of the maturity of Covered Bonds under this Condition 6.8 shall not constitute an event of default
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for any purpose or give any holder of Covered Bonds any right to receive any payment of interest, principal
or otherwise on the relevant Covered Bonds other than as expressly set out in these Terms and Conditions.

(E) In the event of the extension of the maturity of Covered Bonds under this Condition 6.8, interest
rates, interest periods and interest payment dates on the Covered Bonds from (and including) the Maturity
Date to (but excluding) the Extended Maturity Date shall be determined and made in accordance with the
applicable Final Terms and Condition 4.4.

P If the Issuer redeems part and not all of the principal amount outstanding of Covered Bonds on an
Interest Payment Date falling in any month after the Maturity Date, the redemption proceeds shall be applied
rateably across the Covered Bonds and the principal amount outstanding on the Covered Bonds shall be
reduced by the level of that redemption.

(G) If the maturity of any Covered Bonds is extended up to the Extended Maturity Date in accordance
with this Condition 6.8, subject to otherwise provided for in the applicable Final Terms, for so long as any
of those Covered Bonds remains in issue, the Issuer shall not issue any further mortgage covered bonds,
unless the proceeds of issue of such further mortgage covered securities are applied by the Issuer on issue
in redeeming in whole or in part the relevant Covered Bonds in accordance with the terms hereof.

(H)  This Condition 6.8 shall only apply to Covered Bonds to which an Extended Maturity Date is
specified in the applicable Final Terms and if the Issuer fails to redeem those Covered Bonds in full on the
Maturity Date (or within two Business Days thereafter).

7. TAXATION
7.1.  Payments free of taxes

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Covered Bonds (and Coupons, if applicable) shall
be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, any Taxes (for which purpose investors
are required in any case to comply with their obligations detailed under the Taxation section) unless the
Issuer or any Paying Agent (as the case may be) is required by law to make any such payment subject to
any such withholding or deduction. In that event, the Issuer or any Paying Agent (as the case may be) shall
be entitled to withhold or deduct the required amount for or on account of Tax from such payment and shall
account to the relevant Tax Authorities for the amount so withheld or deducted.

7.2 No payment of additional amounts

Neither the Issuer nor the Paying Agent will be obliged to pay any additional amounts to the holders of
Covered Bonds in respect of any Tax Deduction made in accordance with Condition 7.1 above.

7.3 Taxing Jurisdiction

If the Issuer becomes subject at any time to any taxing jurisdiction other than the Republic of Portugal,
references in these Terms and Conditions to the Republic of Portugal shall be construed as references to the
Republic of Portugal and/or such other jurisdiction.

7.4 Tax Deduction not Event of Default

Notwithstanding that the Issuer or any Paying Agent is required to make a Tax Deduction in accordance
with Condition 7.1 above, this shall not constitute an Event of Default.

8. PRESCRIPTION
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The Covered Bonds will become void unless presented for payment within 20 years (in the case of principal)
and 5 years (in the case of interest) in each case from the Relevant Date thereof, subject in each case to the
provisions of Condition 5 (Payments). As used in these Terms and Conditions, “Relevant Date” means the
date on which such payment first becomes due, except that, if the full amount of the moneys payable has
not been duly received by the Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, on or prior to such due date, it
means the date on which, the full amount of such moneys having been so received, notice to that effect is
duly given to the holders of Covered Bonds in accordance with Condition 11 (Notices).

9. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT
9.1 Insolvency Event

Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, if an Insolvency Event in respect of the Issuer occurs, and without
prejudice to the specific terms and conditions established for a particular issue of Covered Bonds, the holders
of Covered Bonds may approve a Resolution, by a majority of 2/3 of the Principal Amount Outstanding of
the Covered Bonds of all Series then outstanding, to determine the serving of an Acceleration Notice, in
which case all outstanding Covered Bonds shall immediately become due and payable at their Early
Redemption Amount together with accrued interest.

If an Insolvency Event in respect of the Issuer occurs, the holders of Covered Bonds enjoy, under the
Covered Bonds Law, a special creditor privilege over the Cover Pool (including the Mortgage Credits, the
Other Assets and the Hedging Contracts) with preference over any other general creditor, in relation to the
repayment of principal and payment of interest due under the Covered Bonds. Pursuant to the Covered
Bonds Law, the Common Representative and the Hedge Counterparties also benefit from this special
creditor privilege, which is not subject to registration.

For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions: “Insolvency Event” means the winding-up and dissolution
of the Issuer under any applicable laws and regulations (including under Decree-Law no. 199/2006, of 25
October, as amended, from time to time, Decree-Law no. 298/92, of 31 December, as amended, from time
to time, and/or (if applicable) under the Code for the Insolvency and Recovery of Companies approved by
Decree-Law no. 53/2004, of 18" March, as amended from time to time). Investors should see the Insolvency
of the Issuer section.

9.2 Enforcement

(A) Following the approval of a Resolution as described in Condition 9.1, the holders of the Covered Bonds
(or the Common Representative on their behalf, provided it has been indemnified and/or secured to its
satisfaction) may at any time after service of an Acceleration Notice, at its discretion and without further
notice, take such proceedings against the Issuer, and/or any other person as it may deem fit to enforce the
provisions of the Covered Bonds.

(B) In exercising any of its powers and discretions the Common Representative shall only have regard to
the interests of the holders of Covered Bonds of all Series.

(C) No holder of Covered Bonds shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer or to take any action
with respect to the Common Representative Appointment Agreement, the Covered Bonds or any other
Programme Documents unless the Common Representative, having become bound so to proceed, fails so
to do within a reasonable time and such failure shall be continuing.

10. AGENT, PAYING AGENTS AND REGISTRAR
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(A) The names of the Agent, the Paying Agent and the initial Registrar (only applicable whilst the
Registered Covered Bonds are held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg) and their initial
specified offices are set out below. In the event of the appointed office of any such bank being unable or
unwilling to continue to act as the Agent, or failing duly to determine the Rate of Interest, if applicable, or
to calculate the Interest Amounts for any Interest Period, the Issuer shall appoint such other bank to act as
such in its place.

(B) The Agent may not resign its duties or be removed from office without a successor having been
appointed as aforesaid. The Issuer is entitled to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent or
the Registrar and/or appoint additional or other Paying Agents or the Registrar and/or approve any change
in the specified office through which any Paying Agent or the Registrar acts, provided that:

0] there will at all times be an Agent and, in the case of Registered Covered Bonds held through
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, a Registrar;

(i) the Issuer will, so long as any of the Covered Bonds is outstanding, maintain a Paying Agent (which
may be the Agent) having a specified office in a city approved by the Common Representative in
continental Europe;

(iti))  so long as any of the Covered Bonds are listed on any Stock Exchange or admitted to trading by
any other relevant authority, there will at all times be a Paying Agent with a specified office in such
place as may be required by the rules and regulations of the relevant Stock Exchange or as the case
may be, other relevant authority;

(iv)  the Issuer will ensure that it maintains a Paying Agent in a Member State of the EU that will not be
obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any other
Directive or any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to such
Directive.

11. NOTICES

Notices to the holders of Covered Bonds shall, in respect of the Covered Bonds listed on Euronext Lisbon,
be published on the Euronext Lisbon bulletin and on the CMVM’s information system (WwWw.cmvm.pt).
Furthermore, any such notice shall be disclosed by any further means required to allow a fast access by all
holders of Covered Bonds throughout the European Union and shall be deemed to have been given on the
date of such publication or, if published more than once or on different dates, on the first date on which
publication is made, as provided above.

Notices to holders of the Covered Bonds deposited with a common depositary for Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg may be given by delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg and, in any such case, such notices shall be deemed to have been given to the holders of the
Covered Bonds on the date of delivery to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and, in addition, for so
long as Covered Bonds are listed on a stock exchange and the rules of that stock exchange (or any other
relevant authority) so require, such notice will be published in a daily newspaper of general circulation in
the place or places required by that stock exchange (or any other relevant authority).

12. MEETINGS OF HOLDERS OF COVERED BONDS

(A) The Portuguese Commercial Companies Code contains provisions for convening meetings of the
holders of Covered Bonds to consider any matter attributed to them by law and in their common interest
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(which provisions are described and supplemented in the Common Representative Appointment
Agreement), including the modification by Resolution of these Terms and Conditions or the provisions of
the Common Representative Appointment Agreement.

(B) The quorum at any meeting convened to vote on: (i) a Resolution not regarding a Reserved Matter
will be any person or persons holding or representing whatever the Principal Amount Outstanding of the
Covered Bonds then outstanding; or (ii) a Resolution regarding a Reserved Matter of the Covered Bonds,
will be any person or persons holding or representing at least 50 per cent. of the Principal Amount
Outstanding of the Covered Bonds then outstanding so held or represented or, at any adjourned meeting,
any person being or representing whatever the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Covered Bonds then
outstanding. Each Covered Bond grants its holder one vote. For the sake of clarity, in relation to any Covered
Bonds represented by a Global Covered Bond, each unit of the lowest Specified Denomination in the
Specified Currency shall grant one vote.

© The majorities required to approve a Resolution at any meeting convened in accordance with the
applicable rules shall be: (i) if in respect to a Resolution not regarding a Reserved Matter, the majority of
the votes cast at the relevant meeting; or (ii) if in respect to a Resolution regarding a Reserved Matter, at
least 50 per cent. of the Principal Amount Outstanding of the Covered Bonds then outstanding or, at any
adjourned meeting 2/3 of the votes cast at the relevant meeting.

For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, a “Reserved Matter” means any proposal: (i) to change
any date fixed for payment of principal or interest in respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series,
(i) to reduce the amount of principal or interest due on any date in respect of the Covered Bonds of all or
of a given Series or to alter the method of calculating the amount of any payment in respect of the Covered
Bonds of all or of a given Series on redemption or maturity; (iii) to effect the exchange, substitution or
conversion of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series into shares, bonds or other obligations or
securities of the Issuer or any other person or body corporate formed or to be formed; (iv) to change the
currency in which amounts due in respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series are payable; (V)
to alter the priority of payment of interest or principal in respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given
Series; (vi) any other provided for pursuant to Portuguese law; or (vii) to amend this definition;

(D) A Resolution approved at any meeting of the holders of Covered Bonds of a Series shall, subject as
provided below, be binding on all the holders of Covered Bonds of such Series, whether or not they are
present at the meeting. Pursuant to the Common Representative Appointment Agreement, the Common
Representative may convene a single meeting of the holders of Covered Bonds of more than one Series if
in the opinion of the Common Representative there is no conflict between the holders of such Covered
Bonds, in which event the provisions of this paragraph shall apply thereto mutatis mutandis.

(E) Notwithstanding the provisions of the immediately preceding paragraph, any Resolution to direct
the Common Representative to accelerate the Covered Bonds pursuant to Condition 9 (Events of Default
and Enforcement) or to direct the Common Representative to take any enforcement action (each a
“Programme Resolution™) shall only be capable of being passed at a single meeting of the holders of
Covered Bonds of all Series then outstanding.

(F) Any such meeting to consider a Programme Resolution may be convened by the Issuer or the
Common Representative or by holders of Covered Bonds of any Series.
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(G) A Programme Resolution passed at any meeting of the holders of Covered Bonds of all Series shall
be binding on all holders of Covered Bonds of all Series, whether or not they are present at the meeting.

(H) In connection with any meeting of the holders of Covered Bonds of more than one Series where
such Covered Bonds are not denominated in euro, the nominal amount of the Covered Bonds of any Series
not denominated in euro shall be converted into euro at the relevant exchange rate at the date of the meeting.

13. INDEMNIFICATION OF THE COMMON REPRESENTATIVE CONTRACTING WITH THE ISSUER

(A) If, in connection with the exercise of its powers and discretions (i) the Common Representative is
of the opinion that the interests of the holders of Covered Bonds of any one or more Series would be
materially prejudiced thereby, the Common Representative shall not exercise such powers and discretions
without the approval of such holders of Covered Bonds by a Resolution or by a written resolution of such
holders of Covered Bonds of at least the majority of the Principal Amount Outstanding of Covered Bonds
of the relevant Series then outstanding.

(B) The Common Representative shall not be required to expend its own funds or otherwise incur or
risk incurring any liability in the performance of its duties or in the exercise of any of its rights, powers,
authorities or discretions if it has grounds for believing the repayment of such funds is not reasonably
assured to it under the Covered Bonds Law or if it has not been provided with adequate indemnity against
or security for such risk or liability. Notwithstanding any Programme Resolution or any other Resolution
approved at any meeting or any written resolution of any holders of Covered Bonds, the Common
Representative may (i) refrain from taking any action until it has been provided with sufficient funds or
adequate indemnity against or security for any liability it may incur as a result of any such actions and (ii)
refrain from doing anything which might in its opinion be contrary to any law of any jurisdiction or which
might otherwise render it liable to any person and (iii) do anything which is in its opinion necessary to
comply with any such law, and in no circumstances shall be liable to the holders of Covered Bonds for any
consequences of such actions or inaction. The Common Representative Appointment Agreement contains
further provisions for the indemnification of the Common Representative and for its relief from
responsibility.

14, REPLACEMENT OF COVERED BONDS, COUPONS AND TALONS

Should any Covered Bond, Receipt, Coupon or Talon (if applicable) be lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or
destroyed, it may be replaced, in accordance with Article 51 of the Portuguese Securities Code, at the
specified office of the financial intermediary where such Covered Bond, Receipt, Coupon or Talon (if
applicable) is registered or deposited (as the case may be) upon payment by the claimant of such costs and
expenses as may be incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity as the
Issuer may reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Covered Bonds, Receipts, Coupons or Talons must be
surrendered before replacements will be issued.

15. OVERCOLLATERALISATION, VALUATION OF COVER POOL AND ISSUER COVENANTS
15.1 Maintenance of overcollateralisation

For so long as the Covered Bonds are outstanding, and regardless of the time of issue of the Covered Bonds,
the Value (determined in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law and the Bank of Portugal Regulations)
of the Cover Pool maintained by the Issuer shall at all times be a minimum of 105.26 per cent. of the
aggregate Value of all outstanding Covered Bonds issued under the Programme less any Covered Bonds
held by the Issuer pursuant to article 19.1 of the Covered Bonds Law and not cancelled or such other
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percentage as may be selected by the Issuer from time to time and notified to the Cover Pool Monitor (the
“Qvercollateralisation Percentage”), provided that:

0] the Overcollateralisation Percentage shall not, for so long as there are Covered Bonds outstanding,
be reduced by the Issuer below 105.26 per cent.; and

(i) (A) so long as the Covered Bonds are rated A3 or above by Moody’s, the Issuer shall not at any
time reduce the Overcollateralisation Percentage which applies for the purposes of this Condition
15, unless, always provided that (i) above is satisfied, Moody’s has confirmed in writing to the
Issuer that such reduction would not result in any credit rating then assigned to the Covered Bonds
by Moody’s being reduced, removed, suspended or placed on credit watch and (B) so long as the
Covered Bonds are not rated A3 or above by Moody’s, the Issuer shall not at any time reduce the
Overcollateralisation Percentage which applies for the purposes of this Condition 15.

15.2  Issuer Covenants
For so long as any of the Covered Bonds are outstanding, the Issuer shall ensure that:

(A) Loan-to-Value: the Value of a Mortgage Credit granted by the Issuer may not exceed either 80 per cent.
of the Current Property Value, in case of a Property intended primarily for residential purposes, or 60 per
cent. of the Current Property Value, in case of a Property intended primarily for commercial purposes;

(B) Asset Cover: the aggregate value of the Other Assets may not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate value
of the Cover Pool;

(C) Average Maturity: the remaining average Maturity of all outstanding Covered Bonds is at all times
shorter than the remaining average Maturity of the Cover Pool entered in the Register;

(D) Interest Cover: the total amount of interest receivable on the Cover Pool will at all times be at least
equal to or exceed the total amount of interest payable on the outstanding Covered Bonds;

(E) Valuations: all the required valuations of Covered Bonds, Mortgage Credits, Hedging Contracts, Other
Assets and Properties will be made in compliance with the requirements of the Covered Bonds Law and the
Bank of Portugal Regulations (in particular Regulation 5/2006 and Regulation 6/2006);

(F) Cover Pool Monitor: the Cover Pool Monitor will be provided with all necessary elements and
information to monitor compliance by the Issuer of Condition 15 in accordance with the Covered Bonds
Law and in the terms set forth in the Cover Pool Monitor Agreement;

(G) Mortgage Credits: the Mortgage Credits included in the Cover Pool are not Non-Performing Mortgage
Credits; and

(H) Liabilities: The net present value of the liabilities arising from issues of Covered Bonds cannot exceed
the net present value of the Cover Pool, including any Hedging Contracts. This ratio must also be met for
200 basis points parallel shifts of the yield curve.

16. FURTHER ISSUES

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time without the consent of the holders of Covered Bonds to
create and issue further securities with the same terms and conditions of the Covered Bonds of any Series
or the same in all respects save for the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon, issue date
and/or purchase price and so that the same shall be consolidated and form a single Series with the
outstanding Covered Bonds of such Series.
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17. GOVERNING LAW

The Common Representative Appointment Agreement, the Agency and Payments Procedures, the Covered
Bonds, and the other Transaction Documents are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with,
Portuguese law unless specifically stated to the contrary.

18. DEFINITIONS
In these Terms and Conditions, the following defined terms have the meanings set out below:

“Acceleration Notice” means a notice served on the Issuer pursuant to Condition 9 (Events of Default and
Enforcement).

“Additional Security” means any other encumbrances or guarantees the benefit of which is vested in the
Issuer as security for the repayment of a Mortgage Credit.

“Agency and Payments Procedures” means the set of agency and payments procedures (such agency and
payments procedures as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated) dated 30" April 2008 and made and
agreed by Banco BPI, S.A. (acting in its capacity as Agent, which expression shall include any successor)
and by any subsequent agent, paying agent, transfer agent, agent bank and/or registrar appointed by the
Issuer, as amended.

“Agent” means Banco BPI, S.A., with head office at Rua Tenente Valadim, no. 284, 4100-476 Porto.
“Banco BPI1” means Banco BPI, S.A., with head office at Rua Tenente VValadim, no. 284, 4100-476 Porto.

“Bank of Portugal Regulations” means the legislation passed by the Bank of Portugal regulating certain
aspects of the Covered Bonds Law, namely Notice 5/2006, Notice 6/2006, Instruction 13/2006, Notice
7/2006 and Notice 8/2006 and any relevant regulations or instructions that may be issued by the Bank of
Portugal in the future.

“Base Prospectus” means the base prospectus dated 16 February 2017, prepared in connection with the
Programme.

“Bearer Covered Bonds” means any Covered Bonds in bearer (ao portador) form issued (whether or not
in global form).

“Central de Valores Mobiliarios” means the Portuguese Centralised System of Registration of Securities.

“Clearing Systems” means Interbolsa, and/or Euroclear, and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or, in
relation to any Series of Covered Bonds, any other clearing system depositary as specified in the relevant
Final Terms, and, each, a “Clearing System”.

“Clearstream, Luxembourg” means Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg.

“CMVM” means the Comissdo do Mercado de Valores Mobiliérios, the Portuguese Securities Market
Commission.

“Common Representative” means BNP Paribas Trust Corporation UK Limited, in its capacity as
representative of the holders of the Covered Bonds pursuant to Article 14 of the Covered Bonds Law in
accordance with the Terms and Conditions and the terms of the Common Representative Appointment
Agreement, having its registered office at 10 Harewood Avenue, London, England, NW1 6AA, United
Kingdom.

107



“Common Representative Appointment Agreement” means the agreement dated 30" April 2008 entered
into between the Issuer and the Common Representative and which sets out the terms and conditions upon
and subject to which the Common Representative has agreed to act as Common Representative, as amended
from time to time.

“Couponholders” means the persons who for the time being are holders of the Coupons.

“Coupons” means the interest coupons related to the Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds and for the time
being outstanding or, as the context may require, a specific number of such coupons.

“Cover Pool” means the pool of assets maintained by the Issuer and allocated to the issue of Covered Bonds
under the Programme, held to the benefit of the holders of Covered Bonds and the Other Preferred Creditors,
and including the Mortgage Credits, the Hedging Contracts and the Other Assets, as specified in the
Register.

“Cover Pool Monitor” means Deloitte & Associados — SROC, S.A., member of the Portuguese Association
of the Chartered Accountants (“Ordem dos Revisores Oficiais de Contas ), registered with the CMVM with
registration number 231, with registered office at Avenida Engenheiro Duarte Pacheco, 7, 1070-100, Lisbon,
Portugal.

“Cover Pool Monitor Agreement” means the agreement dated 30 April 2008 entered into between the
Issuer and the Cover Pool Monitor, as amended from time to time.

“Covered Bond” means any mortgage covered bond issued by the Issuer pursuant to the Covered Bonds
Law in the form specified in the applicable Final Terms and “Covered Bonds” shall be construed
accordingly.

“Covered Bonds Law” means the Portuguese legal framework applicable to the issuance of covered bonds,
enacted by Decree-Law no. 59/2006, of 20" March 2006, as amended from time to time.

“Current Property Value” means, in relation to a Property securing a Mortgage Credit, the updated
Property Valuation of such Property;

“DBRS” means DBRS Ratings Limited, which as it is not established in the EU and has not applied for
registration under the CRA Regulation, issues ratings that are endorsed in accordance with the CRA
Regulation by DBRS Ratings Limited (entity registered with the European Securities and Markets Authority
under the CRA Regulation);

“Dealer” means Banco BPI, S.A., with head office at Rua Tenente Valadim, no. 284, Porto.

“Definitive Covered Bond” means any definitive Covered Bond, in bearer or registered form, issued only
in exchange for a Global Covered Bond in bearer form held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

“Definitive Bearer Covered Bond” means any definitive Covered Bond in bearer form issued only in
exchange for a Global Covered Bond in bearer form held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

“Definitive Registered Covered Bond” means any definitive Covered Bond in registered form issued
whether or not in exchange for a Global Covered Bond in registered form held through Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg.

“EU” means the European Union.
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“Euro”, “€”or “euro” means the lawful currency of Member States of the European Union that adopt the
single currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union, and as
defined in Council Regulation (EC) No. 974/98, of 3 May 1998, on the introduction of the euro, as amended
from time to time.

“Euroclear” means Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V.

“Euronext Lisbon” means the regulated market managed by Euronext Lisbon - Sociedade Gestora de
Mercados Regulamentados, S.A.

“Eurosystem” means the monetary authority which comprises the ECB and the national central banks of
the EU Member States whose currency is the Euro.

“Final Terms” means, in relation to each Tranche, the applicable final terms attached to, or endorsed on,
such Covered Bonds.

“Fixed Interest Period” means the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest
Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date.

“Global Covered Bond” means any global covered bond (whether temporary or permanent, if applicable).

“Hedge Counterparties” means the party or parties that, from time to time, will enter into Hedging
Contracts with the Issuer in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law.

“Hedging Contracts” means the hedging contracts entered into by the Issuer in accordance with the
Covered Bonds Law for the purpose hedging interest rate, exchange or liquidity risks in relation to the Cover
Pool.

“Instruction 13/2006” means the regulatory instruction (“Instru¢ao”) no. 13/2006 issued by the Bank of
Portugal relating to certain information duties applicable in relation to the issue of mortgage covered bonds
in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law.

“Interbolsa” means Interbolsa — Sociedade Gestora de Sistemas de Liquidacéo e de Sistemas Centralizados
de Valores Mobiliarios, S.A. as operator of the Central de VValores Mobiliarios.

“Interbolsa Participant” means any authorised financial intermediary entitled to hold control accounts
with Interbolsa on behalf of their customers and includes any depository banks appointed by Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg for the purpose of holding accounts on behalf of Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

“Interest Amount” means, as applicable, the amount of interest payable on the Floating Rate Covered
Bonds in respect of Specified Denomination, calculated by the Calculation Agent pursuant to Condition 4
(Interest).

“ISDA” means the International Swaps and Derivatives Association Inc.

“Issue Date” means the date so specified in the applicable Final Terms being, in respect of any Covered
Bond, the date of issue and purchase of such Covered Bond pursuant to and in accordance with the
Programme Agreement or any other agreement between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s).

“Loan to Value” means, in respect of a Mortgage Credit, the ratio of the aggregate Value of such Mortgage
Credit to the Current Value of the Property securing such Mortgage Credit.
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“Maturity” means the final legal maturity of any outstanding Covered Bonds, Mortgage Credits, Hedging
Contracts or Other Assets, as applicable.

“Moody's” means Moody's Investors Service Ltd, which is registered with the European Securities and
Markets Authority under the CRA Regulation.

“Mortgage” means, in respect of any Mortgage Credit, the charge by way of legal mortgage over the
relevant Property together with all other encumbrances or guarantees the benefit of which is vested in the
Issuer as security for the repayment of that Mortgage Credit.

“Mortgage Credit” means the pecuniary credit receivables secured by a Mortgage and/or any Additional
Security which is comprised in the Cover Pool and which complies with the following eligibility criteria
established in the Covered Bonds Law:

(a) itis a pecuniary receivable not yet matured, which is neither subject to conditions nor encumbered,
judicially seized or apprehended and which is secured by first ranking mortgages over residential or
commercial real estate located in an EU Member State;

(b) notwithstanding (a) above, it is a pecuniary receivable secured by a junior mortgage but where all
Mortgage Credits ranking senior thereto are held by the Issuer and also allocated to the Cover Pool,;

(c) it is a receivable secured by (i) a personal guarantee granted by a credit institution, or (ii) an
appropriate insurance policy, in any case together with a mortgage counter guarantee evidencing (a)
or (b) above.

“NGN” means any bearer Covered Bond to be issued in new global note form.

“Non-Performing Mortgage Credits” means, with respect to a Mortgage Credit, that such Mortgage
Credit:

@) is in the course of being foreclosed or otherwise enforced; or
(b) has one or more payments of principal or interest past due more than 90 days.

“Notice 5/2006” means the regulatory notice (“Aviso”) no. 5/2006 issued by the Bank of Portugal and
published on 11 October 20086, relating to the valuation of real estate assets serving as security for mortgage
credits comprised in cover pools allocated to the issue of mortgage covered bonds in accordance with the
Covered Bonds Law.

“Notice 6/2006” means the regulatory notice (“Aviso”) no. 6/2006 issued by the Bank of Portugal and
published on 11 October 2006, relating to the prudential limits applicable in relation to the issue of mortgage
covered bonds in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law.

“Notice 7/2006” means the regulatory notice (“Aviso”) no. 7/2006 issued by the Bank of Portugal and
published on 11 October 2006, relating to the weighting coefficient applicable to the ownership of covered
bonds issued in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law.

“Notice 8/2006” means the regulatory notice (“Aviso”) no. 8/2006 issued by the Bank of Portugal and
published on 11 October 2006, relating to the insolvency, winding-up or dissolution of a credit institution
which has issued covered bonds issued in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law.
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“Other Assets” means all assets other than Mortgage Credits and Hedging Contracts which comply with
the eligibility criteria established in the Covered Bonds Law and which are included in the Cover Pool as
specified in the Register, including:

(a) deposits with the Bank of Portugal, in cash or in securities eligible for credit transactions in the
Eurosystem;

(b)  current or term account deposits with credit institutions (which are not in a control or group
relationship with the Issuer) having a rating equal to or higher than the minimum rating required at
any time by the Rating Agencies, provided that such minimum rating shall in any event be at least
equal to «A-» or equivalent; and

(c) other assets complying simultaneously with the requisites of low risk and high liquidity as defined by
the Bank of Portugal,

The Issuer undertakes that on any Business Day the Other Assets include assets specified under ()
above corresponding to “AAA” or equivalent rated sovereign bonds from a EU Member-State, or
Italian Sovereign Bonds, the United States, Japan and/or Canada or other assets specified under (b)
above with credit institutions having a minimum rating at least equal to “A” or equivalent, in an
amount (as calculated by the Issuer on such Business Day) at least equal to the interest payments due
by the Issuer under the outstanding Covered Bonds during the next 90 days.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Other Assets do not include any cash collateral that may be transferred
under the Hedging Contracts.

“Other Preferred Creditors” means the Common Representative (or any successor thereof) and the Hedge
Counterparties.

“Overcollateralisation Percentage” means 105.26 per cent. or such other percentage as may be selected
by the lIssuer from time to time and notified to the Cover Pool Monitor, provided that: (i) the
Overcollateralisation Percentage shall not, for so long as there are Covered Bonds outstanding, be reduced
by the Issuer below 105.26 per cent.; and (ii) (A) so long as the Covered Bonds are rated A3 or above by
Moody’s, the Issuer shall not at any time reduce the Overcollateralisation Percentage which applies for the
purposes of Condition 15, unless, always provided that (i) above is satisfied, Moody’s has confirmed in
writing to the Issuer that such reduction would not result in any credit rating then assigned to the Covered
Bonds by Moody’s being reduced, removed, suspended or placed on credit watch and (B) so long as the
Covered Bonds are not rated A3 or above by Moody’s, the Issuer shall not at any time reduce the
Overcollateralisation Percentage which applies for the purposes of Condition 15.

“Paying Agents” means the paying agents named in the Agency and Payments Procedures together with
any successor or additional paying agents appointed from time to time in connection with the Covered Bonds
under the Agency and Payments Procedures.

“Permanent Bearer Global Covered Bond” means any Covered Bond issued in the form of a permanent
bearer global covered bond.

“Portuguese Commercial Companies Code” means the commercial companies code approved by Decree-
Law no. 262/86, dated 2 September 1986, as amended from time to time.

“Portuguese Securities Code” means Decree-Law no. 486/99, of 13 November 1999, as amended from
time to time.
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“Programme” means the €7,000,000,000 covered bonds programme established on 30 April 2008 for the
issuance of Covered Bonds by the Issuer as described in this Base Prospectus.

“Programme Agreement” means the agreement dated 30 April 2008 entered into between the Issuer and
the Dealer, as amended from time to time.

“Programme Documents” means the Base Prospectus, the Programme Agreement, the Agency and
Payments Procedures, the Common Representative Appointment Agreement, the Cover Pool Monitor
Agreement and any other agreement or document entered into from time to time by the Issuer pursuant
thereto and in relation to the Programme.

“Programme Resolution” means any Resolution directing the Common Representative to accelerate the
Covered Bonds pursuant to Condition 9 (Events of Default and Enforcement) or directing the Common
Representative to take any enforcement action and which shall only be capable of being passed at a single
meeting of the holders of Covered Bonds of all Series then outstanding.

“Property” means, in relation to any Mortgage Credit, the property upon which the repayment of such
Mortgage Credit is secured by the corresponding Mortgage and “Properties” means all of them.

“Property Valuation” means, in relation to any Property:

(@) the amount determined as the commercial value or the market value (as applicable) of such Property
in accordance with the most recent independent valuation of such Property, at the time or after the
relevant Mortgage Credit was originated, in accordance with Notice 5/2006; and

(b) the amount determined by resorting to the use of adequate and recognised indexes or statistical
methods, whenever an independent valuation of the Property is not required pursuant to the Covered
Bonds Law and Notice 5/2006.

“Rating Agencies” means Moody’s which is registered with the European Securities and Markets Authority
under the CRA Regulation; DBRS which as it is not established in the EU and has not applied for registration
under the CRA Regulation, issues ratings that are endorsed in accordance with the CRA Regulation by
DBRS Ratings Limited, which is registered with the European Securities and Markets Authority under the
CRA Regulation; and any other rating agency registered under the same CRA Regulation.

“Rating” means the then current rating of rated Covered Bonds given by the relevant Rating Agency and
“Ratings” means all of such Ratings;

“Receiptholders” means the persons who for the time being are holders of the Receipts.
“Receipts” means the principal receipts related to the Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds.

“Reference Banks” means those banks whose offered rates were used to determine a quotation when such
quotation last appeared on the Relevant Screen Page or, if applicable, those banks whose offered quotations
last appeared on the Relevant Screen Page when no fewer than three such offered quotations appeared.

“Reference Price” means the reference price appearing in the relevant Final Terms.

“Register” means the register of the Cover Pool and associated collateral maintained by the Issuer in
accordance with the Covered Bonds Law and the Bank of Portugal Regulations;

“Registered Covered Bond” means any covered bond in registered form.
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“Relevant Date” means the date on which a payment first becomes due, except that, if the full amount of
the moneys payable has not been duly received by the Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, on or prior
to such due date, it means the date on which, the full amount of such moneys having been so received, notice
to that effect is duly given to the holders of Covered Bonds in accordance with Condition 11 (Notices).

“Reserved Matter” means any proposal: (i) to change any date fixed for payment of principal or interest in
respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series, (ii) to reduce the amount of principal or interest
due on any date in respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series or to alter the method of
calculating the amount of any payment in respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series on
redemption or maturity; (iii) to effect the exchange, substitution or conversion of the Covered Bonds of all
or of a given Series into shares, bonds or other obligations or securities of the Issuer or any other person or
body corporate formed or to be formed; (iv) to change the currency in which amounts due in respect of the
Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series are payable; (v) to alter the priority of payment of interest or
principal in respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series; (vi) any other provided for pursuant to
Portuguese law; or (vii) to amend this definition.

“Resolution” means a resolution adopted at a duly convened meeting of holders of Covered Bonds and
approved in accordance with the applicable provisions.

“Series” means a Tranche of Covered Bonds together with any further Tranche or Tranches of Covered
Bonds which are (i) expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (ii) identical in all respects
(including as to listing) except for their respective Issue Dates, Interest Commencement Dates, interest rates
and/or Issue Prices.

“Stock Exchange” means Euronext Lisbon or any other stock exchange where Covered Bonds may be
listed as per the relevant Final Terms and references herein to the relevant Stock Exchange shall, in relation
to any Covered Bonds, be references to the stock exchange or stock exchanges on which such Covered
Bonds are from time to time, or are intended to be, listed.

“sub-unit” means, with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such currency that is
available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro, one cent.

“Talon” and “Talons” means the talons for further Receipts and further Coupons attached to the Definitive
Bearer Covered Bonds on issue.

“TARGET System” means the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross Settlement Express Transfer
Payment System which utilises a single shared platform and which was launched on 19 November 2007
(TARGET 2).

“Tax” shall be construed so as to include any present or future tax, levy, impost, duty, charge, fee, deduction
or withholding of any nature whatsoever (including any penalty or interest payable in connection with any
failure to pay or any delay in paying any of the same) imposed or levied by or on behalf of any Tax Authority
and “Taxes”, “taxation”, “taxable” and comparable expressions shall be construed accordingly.

“Tax Authority” means any government, state, municipal, local, federal or other fiscal, revenue, customs
or excise authority, body or official anywhere in the world exercising a fiscal, revenue, customs or excise
function including, the Portuguese Tax and Customs Authority, the Irish Revenue Commissioners and H.M.
Revenue and Customs.

“Tax Deduction” means any deduction or withholding on account of Tax.
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“Temporary Bearer Global Covered Bond” means any Covered Bond issued in the form of a temporary
bearer global covered bond.

“Terms and Conditions” means in relation to the Covered Bonds, the terms and conditions to be endorsed
on or applied to the Covered Bonds and any reference to a particular numbered Condition shall be construed
in relation to the Covered Bonds accordingly.

“Tranche” means Covered Bonds which are identical in all respects (including as to listing).
“Treaty” means the treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as amended from time to time.

“U.S.$”, “USD” or “US dollars” means United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America.

“Value” means:

@) in relation to a Mortgage Credit, (i) for the purpose of the Overcollateralisation Percentage, an
amount equal to the book value of such Mortgage Credit entered on the Register, together with any
matured and accrued interest; and (ii) for the purpose of Loan to Value calculation, an amount equal
to the book value of such Mortgage Credit entered on the Register;

(b) in relation to any Other Assets:

(i) the aggregate amount of any deposits together with any matured and accrued interest, as entered
on the Register;

(ii) the value resulting from the rules regarding valuation of margins defined by the Eurosystem for
securities eligible for Eurosystem credit transactions or, if lower, the nominal value of such
securities, including matured and accrued interests.

114



CHARACTERISTICS OF THE COVER POOL

INTRODUCTION — CAPACITY TO ISSUE COVERED BONDS

In general, only duly licensed credit institutions allowed by law to grant mortgage loans, and having own
funds not lower than €7,500,000, may issue covered bonds. The Issuer complies with these requirements
and is thus allowed to issue covered bonds under the Covered Bonds Law.

ISSUER REQUIRED TO MAINTAIN COVER PooL

The Issuer may issue Covered Bonds only if it maintains a related Cover Pool in compliance with the
Covered Bonds Law. The Cover Pool contains mortgage credit assets, substitution assets and other eligible
assets (including hedging contracts) subject to the limitations provided for in the Covered Bonds Law. The
Covered Bonds Law allows for the composition of the Cover Pool to be dynamic and does not require it to
be static. Accordingly, the mortgage credit assets (and other permitted assets) to be comprised in the Cover
Pool may change from time to time after the date hereof in order to ensure compliance with the requirements
of the Covered Bonds Law and with the Bank of Portugal Regulations (as defined in Definitions).

To enable it to issue Covered Bonds, the Issuer has established and will maintain a segregated register (the
“Register”) in relation to the Cover Pool for the purposes of the Covered Bonds Law. The Issuer plans to
issue from time to time further Covered Bonds and will include in the relevant Cover Pool, additional
mortgage credit assets or substitution assets as security for those Covered Bonds in accordance with relevant
provisions of the Covered Bonds Law, as further detailed below.

The Issuer is required, as soon as practicable after becoming aware that it has contravened the provisions of
the Covered Bonds Law, to take all possible steps to prevent the contravention from continuing or being
repeated.

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR ASSETS COMPRISED IN THE COVER POOL

Only mortgage credits or receivables which comply with the legal eligibility criteria described below may
be included in the Cover Pool:

Mortgage Credits Eligibility Criteria

(@) unmatured financial receivables, which are neither subject to encumbrances or possession orders and
which are secured by first ranking mortgages over residential or commercial real estate located in an
EU Member State;

(b) mortgage credits secured by junior mortgages provided all mortgage credits secured by senior
mortgages are held by the Issuer and allocated to the Cover Pool,

(c) receivables secured by a personal guarantee granted by a credit institution or an appropriate insurance
policy, with a mortgage counter guarantee meeting the above criteria.

“Other Assets” Eligibility Criteria:

The following assets may also be included in the Cover Pool as Other Assets:
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(a) deposits with the Bank of Portugal, in cash or in securities eligible for credit transactions in the
Eurosystem (which is the monetary authority of the euro area which comprises the ECB and the
national central banks of the EU Member States whose currency is the euro);

(b) current or term account deposits with credit institutions (which are not in a control or group
relationship with the Issuer) having a rating equal to or higher than the minimum rating required at
any time by the Rating Agencies, provided that such minimum rating shall in any event be at least
equal to «A-» or equivalent; and

(c) other assets meeting both the low risk and high liquidity requirements of the Bank of Portugal
Regulations.

The Issuer undertakes that on any Business Day the Other Assets include assets specified under (a) above
corresponding to “AAA” or equivalent rated sovereign bonds from a EU Member-State, or Italian Sovereign
Bonds, the United States, Japan and/or Canada or other assets specified under (b) above with credit
institutions having a minimum rating at least equal to “A” or equivalent, in an amount (as calculated by the
Issuer on such Business Day) at least equal to the interest payments due by the Issuer under the outstanding
Covered Bonds during the next 90 days.

The aggregate value of the Other Assets may not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate value of the Cover
Pool allocated as collateral to all Covered Bonds issued by the Issuer.

At the date of this Base Prospectus, the Issuer intends to include in the Cover Pool mortgage credits which
are located in Portugal and secured primarily on residential property for the purposes of the Covered Bonds
Law.

The Issuer does not intend at the date of this Base Prospectus to include either (i) Mortgage Credits which
have their primary security over commercial property or (ii) Mortgage Credits in respect of which the
associated Property is located for the purposes of the Covered Bonds Law outside Portugal without first
obtaining (in each case for so long as the Covered Bonds are rated by such rating agency) from Moody’s
and DBRS a confirmation that any such action will not result in a downgrade of the rating then ascribed by
such rating agency to the Covered Bonds.

HEDGING CONTRACTS

The Covered Bonds Law allows the Cover Pool to include hedging contracts aimed exclusively at hedging
risks, namely interest rate, exchange rate or liquidity risks. These hedging contracts will form part of the
Cover Pool and may be taken into account in the assessment of the financial ratios and requirements of the
Covered Bonds Law and described in this section.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Covered Bonds Law, any such hedging contract can only be entered into
(i) in a regulated market of an EU Member State, or (ii) recognised market of an OECD country, or (iii)
with a counterparty which is a credit institution with a rating of at least «A-» or equivalent. The Covered
Bonds Law empowers the Bank of Portugal to develop, by regulatory notice (“Aviso”), the eligibility criteria
for hedging contracts to form part of the Cover Pool.

Also pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, the Register shall, in relation to each Hedging Contract, identify
(i) the Covered Bonds to which the relevant Hedging Contract relates; (ii) the corresponding Cover Pool;
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(iii) the nominal value of the Hedging Contract; (iv) the Hedge Counterparty; and (v) the commencement
date and the maturity date of such Hedging Contract.

If a particular Tranche of Covered Bonds is issued in a denomination other than the euro, the Issuer must
enter into Hedging Contracts for the purpose of hedging any currency exchange risk.

Interest rate exposure of the Issuer relating to Mortgage Credits comprised in the Cover Pool will be
managed through the Hedging Contracts. Interest rate swaps will be entered into with a Hedge Counterparty
relating to both the Cover Pool and the Covered Bonds issued by the Issuer. The Hedging Contracts will
qualify as derivative financial instruments for the purposes of the Covered Bonds Law.

LOAN-TO-VALUE RESTRICTIONS

Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, the amount of any mortgage credit asset included in the Cover Pool
may not exceed (i) the value of the corresponding Mortgage, and (ii) 80 per cent. of the value of the Property,
if it is residential property, or 60 per cent. of the value of the Property, if it is commercial property. See
Valuation of Cover Pool below.

WEIGHTED AVERAGE TERM TO MATURITY

The Covered Bonds Law sets out certain criteria, including matching weighted average term to maturity,
which are required to be met by the Issuer in respect of its Cover Pool. In any case, the average maturity of
the outstanding Covered Bonds may not exceed, at any time, the average maturity of the Mortgage Credits
and Other Assets allocated to the relevant issuance.

OVERCOLLATERALISATION

Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, the nominal principal amount of any Covered Bonds outstanding
irrespective of the fact those Covered Bonds are Zero Coupon Bonds or not may not exceed 95 per cent. of
the aggregate nominal amount of the Cover Pool less any Covered Bonds acquired by the Issuer pursuant
to the Covered Bonds Law and not cancelled. In addition, the aggregate amount of interest payable to the
holders of Covered Bonds may not exceed, at any time, the amount of interest to be collected under the
Cover Pool (including both the Mortgage Credits and the Other Assets) allocated to the Covered Bonds.

In compliance with the above legal requirements, Condition 15 (Overcollateralisation, Valuation of Cover
Pool and Issuer Covenants) requires the lIssuer to over-collateralise of the Cover Pool with respect to
outstanding Covered Bonds at a minimum level of 105.26 per cent. or such other percentage as may be
selected by the Issuer from time to time and notified to the Cover Pool Monitor, provided that: (i) the
Overcollateralisation Percentage shall not, for so long as there are Covered Bonds outstanding, be reduced
by the Issuer below 105.26 per cent.; and (ii) (A) so long as the Covered Bonds are rated A3 or above by
Moody’s, the Issuer shall not at any time reduce the Overcollateralisation Percentage which applies for the
purposes of Condition 15, unless, always provided that (i) above is satisfied, Moody’s has confirmed in
writing to the Issuer that such reduction would not result in any credit rating then assigned to the Covered
Bonds by Moody’s being reduced, removed, suspended or placed on credit watch and (B) so long as the
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Covered Bonds are not rated A3 or above by Moody’s, the Issuer shall not at any time reduce the
Overcollateralisation Percentage which applies for the purposes of Condition 15.

See Terms and Conditions of the Covered Bonds.

For the purposes of the calculation by the Issuer and the Cover Pool Monitor of the level of
overcollateralisation referred to above:

() Mortgage Credits shall be included at their outstanding principal amount, together with any accrued
but unpaid interest;

(b) the Covered Bonds shall be accounted according to the nominal value of outstanding principal
irrespective of the fact those Covered Bonds are Zero Coupon Bonds or not, including matured and
accrued interest;

(c) inrelation to any Other Assets:

(i)  deposits shall be accounted for according to their amount together with any accrued but unpaid
interest; and

(if)  securities eligible for Eurosystem credit transactions shall be accounted for by one value
resulting from the rules regarding margin valuation laid down by the Eurosystem or, if lower,
according to their nominal value, including accrued but unpaid interests.

Also for the purpose of these calculations the Issuer and the Cover Pool Monitor shall use the exchange
rates published by the ECB shall be used as a reference.

In addition, the net present value of the liabilities arising from issues of Covered Bonds cannot exceed the
net present value of the Cover Pool, including any Hedging Contracts. This ratio must also be met for 200
basis point parallel shifts in the yield curve.

COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS

The Cover Pool Monitor must, pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law and in the terms set forth in the Covered
Bonds Law and in the Cover Pool Monitor Agreement, monitor the Issuer’s compliance with the financial
requirements established in the Covered Bonds Law and in the Bank of Portugal Regulations described in
this section. The Issuer must, as soon as practicable after becoming aware that it has failed to comply with
any provisions of the Covered Bonds Law summarised herein (or when it is reasonable to expect that they
will not be complied with), take all steps to comply with that provision, by undertaking one or more of the
following procedures:

(a) allocating new mortgage credit assets, with or without substitution of those already allocated to the
Covered Bonds; and/or

(b) allocating additional Other Assets; and/or

(c) acquiring Covered Bonds in the secondary market.

VALUATION OF COVER POOL
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The Covered Bonds Law sets out certain requirements and criteria which are required to be met by the Issuer
in respect of the valuation of Mortgage Credits comprised in the Cover Pool.

The Covered Bonds Law empowers the Bank of Portugal to specify, by regulatory notice (“Aviso™),
requirements in relation to the valuation basis and methodology, time of valuation and any other matter that
it considers relevant for determining the value of mortgage credit assets or Other Assets for the purposes of
the Covered Bonds Law. The Covered Bonds Law also empowers the Bank of Portugal to specify, by
regulatory notice, requirements in relation to the valuation basis and methodology, time of valuation and
any other matter that it considers relevant for determining the value of substitution assets that are to be
comprised in the Cover Pool. These requirements are set out in Notice 6/2006.

Valuation of Properties
General Overview

The value of each Property associated with a Mortgage Credit comprised in the Cover Pool corresponds to
the commercial value of such Property, determined in accordance with prudent criteria and taking into
consideration (i) the sustainable long term characteristics of such Property, (ii) the standard conditions of
the local market, (iii) the current use of the relevant Property, and (iv) any alternative uses of the Property
in question.

Pursuant to the requirements of Notice 5/2006, the commercial value awarded by the Issuer to each of the
Properties related to Mortgage Credits comprised in the Cover Pool may not be higher than the market value
of such Property. For these purposes, the “market value” of each Property shall correspond to the price by
which the relevant Property can be purchased by a third party able to complete such purchase on the date of
the valuation of the Property, assuming that (i) the Property is publicly put on sale, (ii) the market conditions
allow for a regular transfer of such Property, and (iii) there is a normal period of time to, considering the
nature of the Property in question, to negotiate the purchase and sale of such Property.

Valuation by expert

Prior to the inclusion in the Cover Pool of the related Mortgage Credit, each Property must be valued by a
real estate valuation expert. Such valuation shall be reviewed by a real estate valuation expert whenever (i)
the information available to the Issuer indicates that there may have been a substantial decrease in the value
of the Property or (ii) the value of the Property may have materially decreased in relation to general market
prices.

A valuation made by a real estate valuation expert prior to the enactment of Notice 5/2006 may, however,
be used by the Issuer provided that:

(a) the valuations are carried out by a valuation expert who is independent from the credit analysis and
credit decision process within the Group;

(b) the valuations are subject to a written report from the valuation expert that includes in a clear and
accurate way elements that allow the understanding of the analysis and conclusions of the valuation
expert;

(c) the Properties have been valued in light of the corresponding market value, as established by Notice
5/2006; and
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(d) there has been no evidence that the relevant Property is over-valued at the time of allocation of the
relevant Mortgage Credit to the issue of Covered Bonds.

The real estate valuation experts appointed from time to time by the Issuer to conduct the required valuation
of Properties shall be independent and be adequately qualified and experienced for the performance of their
functions. The Issuer may not appoint a real estate valuation expert with any potential conflicts of interest,
notably where there is (i) any specific interest of the real estate valuation expert in the Property subject to
the valuation; (ii) any relationship, commercial or personal, with the borrower of the Mortgage Credit related
to the Property subject to valuation, or (iii) where the remuneration of the valuation expert is dependent on
the valuation of the relevant Property.

The Issuer may appoint a valuation expert within the Group, provided such valuation expert is independent
from the credit analysis and decision making process within the Group.

The selection of real estate valuation experts by the Issuer must ensure adequate diversification and rotation,
and the Issuer shall maintain a permanent and updated list of selected valuation experts, setting out the
criteria which have led to the respective selection, as well as the Properties valued by each valuation expert.
This list shall be sent to the Bank of Portugal by the end of January in each year, indicating, if applicable,
any changes made to such list from the list submitted the previous year.

Under Notice 5/2006, the Bank of Portugal may, in relation to a given Property, require the Issuer to appoint
another valuation expert, in particular when the value resulting from the previous valuation raises doubts as
to its correctness.

Methods of valuation

The Issuer must ensure that each real estate valuation expert it appoints uses one of the following methods
of valuation, which shall be chosen in light of the specific characteristics of the Property subject to valuation,
as well as of the specific conditions of the local market:

(@) Cost method,;

(b) Income method; or
(c) Comparison method.
Valuation report

Each real estate valuation expert appointed by the Issuer shall prepare a report in relation to the valuation
of each Property, setting out, in a clear and detailed manner, all the elements relevant for the full
understanding of the analysis and conclusions of such valuation, in particular:

@) the identification of the relevant Property, with a detailed description of its characteristics;

(b) a description and basis of the method(s) of valuation, any parameters used and/or assumptions
adopted, identifying the manner in which the volatility effects of the short term market or the market
temporary conditions were taken into account;

(c) a description of possible qualifications to the analysis;

(d) the valuation of the Property, in terms of both the value of the Property and of the market value of
the Property;
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(e) a statement of the valuation expert that he has effected the valuation according to the applicable
requirements set out in the Covered Bonds Law and in the Bank of Portugal Regulations;

(f the date of the valuation and the identification and the signature of the valuation expert.
Subsequent valuations of Properties and subsequent update of the value of Properties

In respect of Mortgage Credits that exceed (i) 5 per cent. of the own funds of the Issuer or (ii) €500,000, in
the case of residential Properties, or €1,000,000, in the case of commercial Properties, the valuation of the
relevant Property shall be reviewed by a real estate valuation expert at least every three years.

The Issuer shall also perform any internal check of the value of each of the Properties once every three
years, for residential Properties, and at least once a year for commercial Properties.

The Issuer may be required to conduct Property valuations whenever there is relevant information that
indicates that a substantial decrease of the Property value has taken place or that the property value may
have suffered a material decline in relation to standard market prices.

For the purpose of conducting an update of the valuation of the Properties, the Issuer may resort to
recognised indexes or statistical methods. In this case, the Issuer shall send the Bank of Portugal a report
with the detailed description of such indexes and statistical methods, as well as the grounds for their use,
together with an opinion on the adequacy of such indexes and statistical methods produced by a reputable
independent valuation expert.

All subsequent updates of the value of the Properties shall be documented by the Issuer, setting out the
description of the relevant criteria and the frequency of the review.

The Issuer shall provide the Cover Pool Monitor with all information necessary for the Cover Pool Monitor
to supervise in the terms set forth in the Covered Bonds Law and in the Cover Pool Monitor Agreement,
compliance by the Issuer with the requirements set forth in the Covered Bonds Law and in Notice 5/2006
relating to the valuation of the Properties securing the Mortgage Credits comprised in the Cover Pool.

Valuation of Other Assets
Pursuant to Notice 6/2006, the Other Assets shall be valued as follows:

(a) the deposits shall be accounted for according to their amount together with any accrued but unpaid
interest; and

(b) the securities eligible for Eurosystem credit transactions shall be for the value resulting from the rules
regarding margin valuation laid down by the Eurosystem or, if lower, according to the nominal value
of such securities, including accrued but unpaid interest.

Insurance

Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, if any property mortgaged as security for payment of interest and
principal in relation to a mortgage credit asset comprised in the Cover Pool does not have adequate insurance
policy contracted by the relevant owner, the Issuer must obtain such insurance coverage adequate to the
risks inherent to the relevant property. The Issuer must bear the costs of such insurance. In any case, the
insurance policy attached to any property included in the Cover Pool must provide for a full coverage,
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allowing, in case of total loss, for such property to be rebuilt. Any compensation due under any such
insurance policies must be paid directly to the Issuer, up to the limit of the relevant Mortgage Credit.

COVER POOL SEGREGATED REGISTER AND SPECIAL CREDITOR PRIVILEGE
Autonomous pool of assets and segregated register

Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, the Cover Pool constitutes an autonomous pool of assets (patriménio
auténomo), not liable for any general indebtedness incurred by the Issuer until all amounts due to the holders
of Covered Bonds and the Other Preferred Creditors are fully paid and discharged.

The Covered Bonds Law provides that the appropriate particulars of each asset comprised in the Cover Pool
(including Mortgage Credits, Other Assets and Hedging Contracts) must be recorded in a segregated register
within, and maintained by, the Issuer, such register to record the following:

0] the outstanding principal amount;

(i) the applicable interest rate;

(iii)  the applicable maturity;

(iv)  the notary’s office where the relevant mortgage was entered into, when applicable; and

(V) the reference regarding the definitive inscription of the mortgages in the corresponding real estate
registry.

Pursuant to Article 4.3 of the Covered Bonds Law, the Cover Pool is identified in the transaction documents
by a code. The key to such code is deposited with the Bank of Portugal which has promulgated, by regulatory
notice (“Aviso”), the conditions under which the holders of Covered Bonds may have access to the
segregated register of the Cover Pool.

Special creditor privilege

Under the Covered Bonds Law, the holders of Covered Bonds enjoy a special creditor privilege over the
Cover Pool (including the Mortgage Credits, the Other Assets and the Hedging Contracts) with preference
over any other general creditor, in relation to the repayment of principal and payment of interest due under
the Covered Bonds. Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, this special creditor privilege applies automatically
for the benefit of the holders of Covered Bonds, the Common Representative and the Hedge Counterparties
and is not subject to registration.

The mortgages created as security for the mortgage credit assets comprised in the Cover Pool shall prevail
over all other real estate preferential claims.

122



INSOLVENCY OF THE ISSUER

The Covered Bonds Law governs the impact on the Covered Bonds of a possible insolvency or winding-up
of the Issuer, so as to ensure due protection to the holders of Covered Bonds. In the event of dissolution and
winding-up (including on grounds of insolvency) of the Issuer, the Covered Bonds Law establishes that the
Cover Pool shall be segregated from the insolvency estate of the Issuer and will not form part thereof until
full payment of any amounts due to the holders of Covered Bonds. The amounts corresponding to payment
of interest and repayment of principal of the Mortgage Credits and Other Assets will not form part of the
insolvency estate of the Issuer.

The Cover Pool will, in such an event, be separated from the Issuer’s insolvency estate so as to be
autonomously managed until full payment of the amounts due to the holders of Covered Bonds. In this
situation, pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, the holders of Covered Bonds are entitled to adopt a
resolution approving the immediate acceleration of the Covered Bonds by a majority of at least two thirds
of the votes of the holders of Covered Bonds then outstanding, in which case the entity appointed to manage
the Cover Pool shall provide for the liquidation thereof to the benefit of the holders of Covered Bonds.

If an Insolvency Event occurs in relation to the Issuer, the plan for voluntary dissolution and winding-up of
the Issuer, which shall be submitted to the Bank of Portugal pursuant to Article 35-A of the Credit
Institutions General Regime, shall identify a Substitute Credit Institution appointed to (i) manage the Cover
Pool allocated to the outstanding Covered Bonds and (ii) ensure that the payments of any amounts due to
the holders of such Covered Bonds are made. Such plan shall also describe the general framework and
conditions under which those actions will be rendered by the Substitute Credit Institution.

In addition, if the authorisation of the Issuer to act as a credit institution in Portugal is revoked, the Bank of
Portugal is required, simultaneously with the decision to revoke such authorisation, to appoint a Substitute
Credit Institution to manage the Cover Pool allocated to the Covered Bonds outstanding and to ensure that
payments due to the holders of such Covered Bonds are made.

The fees to be paid to the appointed Substitute Credit Institution shall be determined by the Bank of Portugal
at the time of such appointment and shall be paid out of the Cover Pool.

In accordance with Notice 8/2006, any Substitute Credit Institution appointed by the Bank of Portugal to
service the Cover Pool following an Insolvency Event of the Issuer shall:

0] immediately upon being appointed, prepare an opening balance sheet in relation to the Cover
Pool, supplemented by the corresponding explanatory notes:

(i) perform all acts and things necessary or desirable for the prudent management of the Cover
Pool and respective guarantees in order to ensure the timely payment of all amounts due to
holders of Covered Bonds, including, without limitation:

a. selling the Mortgage Credits comprised in the Cover Pool,;

b. ensuring the timely collection in respect of the Mortgage Credits comprised in the
Cover Pool,

c. performing all other acts and administrative services in connection with such Mortgage
Credits and related Mortgages and Additional Security;
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(i) maintain and keep updated a segregated register of the Cover Pool in accordance with the
Covered Bonds Law; and

(iv) prepare an annual financial report in relation to the Cover Pool and the outstanding Covered
Bonds, which report shall be the subject of an audit report produced by an independent auditor.
The independent auditor shall be appointed as Cover Pool Monitor by the Substitute Credit
Institution in accordance with article 34 of the Covered Bonds Law.

Furthermore, any Substitute Credit Institution appointed by the Bank of Portugal to service the Cover
Pool following an Insolvency Event of the Issuer shall perform all acts and things necessary or
convenient for maintaining the relationship with the borrowers under such Mortgage Credits.

In the event of insolvency of the Issuer, the assets allocated to one or more issues of Covered Bonds
will be segregated from the corresponding insolvent estate and will be managed autonomously by a
third party until full payment of the amounts due to the holders of Covered Bonds has been made. In
any case, and even if the Issuer is declared insolvent, the Covered Bonds Law determines that timely
payments of interest and reimbursements under the Covered Bonds shall continue to be carried out.
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COMMON REPRESENTATIVE OF THE HOLDERS OF COVERED BONDS

BNP Paribas Trust Corporation UK Limited, with registered office at 10 Harewood Avenue, London,
England, NW1 6AA, United Kingdom has been appointed by the Issuer as representative of the holders of
the Covered Bonds pursuant to Article 14 of the Covered Bonds Law and in accordance with the Terms and
Conditions and the terms of the Common Representative Appointment Agreement.

The Issuer has appointed the Common Representative to represent the holders of Covered Bonds. According
to the Covered Bonds Law and to the relevant provisions of the Portuguese Commercial Companies Code,
the Common Representative may be entitled to perform all the necessary acts and actions in order to ensure
protection of the holders of Covered Bonds, namely: (a) to represent the holders of Covered Bonds in respect
of all matters arising from the issuance of the Covered Bonds and to enforce on their behalf their legal or
contractual rights; (b) to enforce any decision taken by the general meetings of the holders of Covered
Bonds, in particular those where the acceleration of the Covered Bonds may be decided; (c) to represent the
holders of Covered Bonds in any judicial proceedings, including judicial proceedings against the Issuer and,
in particular, in the context of any winding-up, dissolution or insolvency commenced by or against the
Issuer; (d) to collect and examine all the relevant documentation in respect of the Issuer which is provided
to its shareholders; and (e) to provide the holders of Covered Bonds with all relevant information regarding
the issuance of the Covered Bonds it may become aware of by virtue of its role as Common Representative
under the Common Representative Appointment Agreement.

The holders of the Covered Bonds may at any time, by means of resolutions passed in accordance with the
Terms and Conditions and the Common Representative Appointment Agreement, remove the Common
Representative and appoint a new common representative.
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COVER POOL MONITOR

APPOINTMENT OF A COVER POOL MONITOR

The Covered Bonds Law requires that the Board of Directors of the Issuer appoints a qualified person or
entity to be the monitor of the Cover Pool (the “Cover Pool Monitor”) who shall be responsible, for the
benefit of the holders of Covered Bonds, for monitoring the compliance by the Issuer of the requirements
contained in the Covered Bonds Law and the Bank of Portugal Regulations.

Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, the Cover Pool Monitor must be an independent auditor registered
with the CMVM. For these purposes, an independent auditor must be an auditor which is not related with
or associated to any group of interests within the issuing entity and is not in a position that hinders its
independent analysis and decision-making process, notably in light of (i) holding 2 per cent. or more of the
issued share capital of the Issuer, either directly or on behalf of a third party; or (ii) having been re-elected
for more than two terms either consecutive or not. For this purpose, a term corresponds to a period of four
years.

The Issuer is responsible for paying any remuneration or other money payable to the Cover Pool Monitor
in connection with the Cover Pool Monitor’s responsibilities in respect of the Issuer and the holders of
Covered Bonds.

ROLE OF THE COVER POOL MONITOR

Pursuant to the Cover Pool Monitor Agreement, dated 30 April 2008, as amended from time to time, the
Issuer appointed Deloitte & Associados, SROC S.A. as Cover Pool Monitor. Deloitte & Associados, SROC
S.A. is registered with the CMVM under registration number 231.

The Cover Pool Monitor Agreement reflects the requirements of the Covered Bonds Law in relation to the
appointment of a monitor in respect of the requirements (namely, financial requirements and the
requirements set forth in Condition 15 (Overcollateralisation, Valuation of Cover Pool and Issuer
Covenants)) concerning the Cover Pool and the Covered Bonds. The Cover Pool Monitor Agreement
provides for certain matters such as overcollateralisation (see Characteristics of the Cover Pool), valuation
of assets comprised in the Cover Pool, the payment of fees and expenses by the Issuer to the Cover Pool,
the resignation of the Cover Pool Monitor and the replacement by the Issuer of the Cover Pool Monitor.

DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE COVER POOL MONITOR

In accordance with the Covered Bonds Law, the Cover Pool Monitor is required to monitor, for the benefit
of the holders of the Covered Bonds, compliance by the Issuer of the financial and prudential requirements
established in the Covered Bonds Law and in the Bank of Portugal Regulations in respect of the Cover Pool.
In particular, the Cover Pool Monitor shall be engaged to assess compliance by the Issuer with the
requirements set forth in Condition 15.

Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law and the Bank of Portugal Regulations, the Cover Pool Monitor is
entitled to be provided with all information required to monitor compliance by the Issuer with the
requirements relating to outstanding Covered Bonds and the Cover Pool.
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In the performance of its duties, the Cover Pool Monitor must produce an annual report with an assessment
of the Issuer’s compliance with the requirements established in the Covered Bonds Law and in the Bank of
Portugal Regulations, in particular those requirements relating to the level of collateralisation, the loan-to-
value ratios limitations and the valuation of assets comprised in the Cover Pool.

The Cover Pool Monitor will perform certain quarterly agreed upon procedures in the terms set forth in the
Cover Pool Monitor Agreement in order to prepare a quarterly report to be delivered to the Issuer indicating
any non-compliance by the Issuer with the requirements of the Cover Pool and/or the Covered Bonds Law.

If as a result of the work referred to in the precedent paragraph a non-compliance with the Covered Bonds
Law and/or the Requirements of the Cover Pool is identified by the Cover Pool Monitor, it shall notify the
Issuer, as soon as reasonably practicable, of such event. If the non-compliance remains unremedied within
10 business days after such notification, the Cover Pool Monitor will notify the Arranger and the relevant
Dealers of the non-compliance.

The Covered Bonds Law empowers the Bank of Portugal to promulgate, by regulatory notice (“aviso™),
after consultation with the CMVM and the Portuguese Association of the Chartered Accountants (“Ordem
dos Revisores Oficiais de Contas™), the requirements applicable to the content, format and disclosure of any
reports of the Cover Pool Monitor. Until the present date the Bank of Portugal has not issued any notice on
these matters.

REMUNERATION AND TERMINATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF THE COVER POOL MONITOR

In accordance with the Cover Pool Monitor Agreement, the Cover Pool Monitor shall be remunerated by
the Issuer for its services as Cover Pool Monitor at a rate as may from time to time be agreed between the
Issuer and the Cover Pool Monitor.

The Issuer may at any time terminate the appointment of the Cover Pool Monitor and appoint a new entity
to act in such capacity. Any such termination shall not become effective until a new cover pool monitor is
appointed in accordance with the terms of the Cover Pool Monitor Agreement. Additionally, the Cover Pool
Monitor may retire at any time upon giving not less than three calendar months’ notice in writing to the
Issuer. Such retirement shall not become effective until the appointment of a new cover pool monitor.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER
The Issuer is a commercial bank and the holding company of the BPI Group.

The BPI Group is a financial and multi-specialist group, focusing predominantly on commercial banking in
Portugal. It has a comprehensive spectrum of financial services and products for business, institutional and
individual customers.

As of 30 June 2016, the Issuer served approximately 1,719 thousand customers through its multi-channel
distribution network comprising 469 retail branches, 39 investment centres, 52 corporate centres, a network
of 25,640 commercial partners, a home-banking service and a telephone banking service.

In addition, Banco Portugués de Investimento, the BPI Group’s original matrix, is engaged in investment
banking business — Equities and Corporate Finance. With regard to asset management, the Issuer manages
unit trust (mutual) funds, pension funds and life-capitalisation insurance, which it distributes via the Issuer
and Banco Portugués de Investimento.

In Angola, the Issuer has a 48.1 per cent. shareholding in BFA, which, at the end of December 2016 (when
the Issuer still held 50.01 per cent. of the share capital of BFA) served a total of 1,6 million customers with
a network of 166 branches, 9 investment centres and 16 corporate centres.

In Mozambique, as of 31 December 2016, BCI served a total of 1,5 million thousand customers with a
network of 193 branches, 27 business centres and 1 corporate centre. The contribution to the result of the
30 per cent stake in BCI (Mozambique) was € 5.4 million.

In the insurance business, the Issuer has a partnership arrangement with Allianz for general insurance and
life assurance, through which the Issuer has an equity stake of 35 per cent. in Allianz Portugal and there is
an agreement covering insurance distribution via the Issuer’s commercial network. The Issuer also controls
50 per cent. of Cosec, an operator in the credit-insurance and insurance-guarantee market.

The Issuer is the parent company of the companies shown below and the Issuer’s financial results are
partially dependent upon the cash flows and dividends from these subsidiaries.
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1) Capital allocation at 30 September 2016. In the Capital allocation calculation it was excluded the fair value reserve (net of
deferred tax) on financial assets available for sale.

2) The sale of 2% of BFA's share capital to Unitel was completed in January 2017, with Banco BPI now holding 48.1% of BFA's
capital and Unitel 51.9%.

HISTORY

Banco BPI, S.A. was formed on 25 May 1998 by the merger of Banco Fonsecas & Burnay, Banco de
Fomento e Exterior and Banco Borges & Irmao. Later that year Banco Universo (an in-store bank) was
acquired by Banco BPI.

In 2002, BPI - SGPS incorporated Banco BPI and simultaneously assumed the core business mission of a
commercial bank, adopting the name Banco BPI and assuming the role as the entity at the Group's helm.

In 2011, BPI Group completed its 30 year of existence since the creation of SPI — Sociedade Portuguesa de
Investimentos in 1981.

ESTABLISHMENT AND DOMICILE

The Issuer is domiciled in Rua Tenente Valadim, 284, 4100-476 Porto, Portugal. The telephone number of
the Issuer is +351 22 2075000.

LEGAL FORM

The Issuer is registered as a bank with the Bank of Portugal and operates under the legal name of “Banco
BPI, S.A.”. The Issuer also operates under the commercial name of “BP1”. It is a limited liability company
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(“Sociedade Andnima”) under Portuguese law registered for an indefinite term in the Commercial Register
of Porto, under no. 501 214 534 as at 23 October 1981.

OBJECT AND PURPOSE

According to its constitutional documents (in particular to article 3 of the Issuer’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association), the scope of the Issuer is to carry on banking business including any additional, related or
similar operations compatible with the said business to the full extent permitted by law. The Issuer may also
participate in partnership association agreements, complementary corporate conglomerates or European
conglomerates of economic interest and may acquire, either originally or subsequently, shares or portions
of capital in public limited companies and interests in unlimited liability companies of any object
whatsoever and even if subject to special laws.

SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2016, Banco BPI's capital was held by 17.778 Shareholders, of whom 17.351 were
Individuals owning 9.8 per cent. of the capital, while 427 institutional investors and companies owned the
remaining 90.2 per cent. of the capital.

Shareholders owning more than 2 per cent. of Banco BPI’s capital

At 31 December 2016

Shareholders No. of shares held % of capital held
CaixaBank, S.A. 662 888 388 45.499% M
Santoro Finance — Prestacdo de Servigos, S.A. 270643 372 18.576% @
Allianz SE 122 744 370 8.425%
Violas Ferreira Financial, S.A. 39 063 392 2.681% @
Banco BIC, S.A. 33283372 2.284%©

Note: Shareholder positions recorded at 31 December 2016 at the securities clearing house (Central de Valores Mobiliarios — CVM),
based on the information received from the Central de Valores Mobiliarios and public information disclosed to the market.

At 10 February 2017, Banco BPI held 110.222 treasury shares (0.01 per cent. of capital).

1) The stake held through Caixabank, S.A. (“CaixaBank™), is also imputable to Criteria Caixa, S.A.U., which holds 45.3 per cent.
of Caixabank, S.A. voting rights according to communication disclosed to the market on 16 January 2017, which is in turn
controlled by Caixa d'Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona, “La Caixa”, holder of 100 per cent. of the respective voting rights, in
terms of article 20(1)(d) of the Cddigo dos Valores Mobiliarios (‘“Portuguese Securities Code” or “PSC”).

The acceptance period for the offer for the shares of Issuer ("the Offer") finalised on 7 February 2017. The Offer has been
accepted by a total of 568,362,308 shares of the Issuer, representing 39.1 per cent. of the Issuer’s share capital. As a result, the
stake of CaixaBank in the Issuer has increased from 45.5 per cent. to 84.51 per cent. of the share capital.

2) Directly held by Santoro Finance — Prestagdo de Servigos, SA (“Santoro Finance”), and imputable, in terms of article 20(1)(b)
of the PSC, to Santoro Financial Holdings, SGPS (“Santoro”), as owner of the entire capital of Santoro Finance, and to Eng.
Isabel José dos Santos, in her capacity as shareholder of Santoro Financial Holdings, SGPS.
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In the context of the Offer and as disclosed to the market on 15 February 2017, Santoro Finance sold 270,643,372 shares (18.576
per cent. of Issuer’s share capital) and accordingly, no longer holds any share of BPI’s share capital.

3) Indirect stake held by subsidiaries controlled by Allianz SE, holding of Allianz Group, and imputable, in terms of article 20(1)(b)

4)

of the PSC; direct shareholding of 8.275 per cent. held by Allianz Europe Ltd. (100 per cent. held by Allianz SE) and a direct
shareholding of 0.150 per cent. held by Companhia de Seguros Allianz Portugal (65 per cent. held by Allianz SE).

The shareholding imputable to HVF — SGPS, S.A. which wholly owns the share capital of Violas Ferreira Financial, S.A.
includes 227 273 shares held by Edgar Alves Ferreira (0.016 per cent. of Banco BPI's capital), member of the Board of Directors
of HVF — SGPS.

5) Shareholding according to the communication sent by Banco BIC to Banco BPI on 26 February 2016 and announced to the

market on the same date, which includes 27 646 900 shares directly held by Banco BIC, S.A. (1.90 per cent. of Banco BPI’s
share capital) and, in terms of the provisions of article 20(1)(d) of the PSC, includes 5 634 822 shares held by Fernando Leonidio
Mendes Teles (0.387 per cent. of Banco BPI’s share capital) and 1 650 shares held by Fernando José Aleixo Duarte who are,
respectively, the Chairman of the Board of Directors and a Director of Banco BIC.

In the context of the Offer and as disclosed to the market on 14 February 2017, Banco BIC sold 27,646,900 shares (1.90 per
cent. of Issuer’s share capital) and accordingly no longer holds any share of BPI’s share capital.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW OF THE ISSUER

The Issuer’s Group activity is divided into two main geographic areas:

(@)

(b)

Domestic operations: corresponds to commercial banking business in Portugal, the provision overseas
of banking services to non-residents - namely to emigrant Portuguese communities and services
provided in the Madrid branch - and investment banking, private equity, asset management and
insurance operations. Thus, domestic operations are divided into:

i) Commercial Banking;
ii) Investment Banking;
iii) Equity investments and others; and

International operations: Consist of the operations in Angola carried out by BFA, in Mozambique by
BCI and BPI Mogambique — Sociedade de Investimento, S.A. and in South Africa by BPI Capital
Africa (Proprietary) Limited.

Commercial banking

The Issuer’s Group operations are focused mainly on commercial banking.

Commercial banking includes:

Retail Banking — includes commercial operations with private clients, sole traders and businesses
with turnover of up to € 5 million through a multi-channel distribution network made up of traditional
branches, investment centres, home banking services and telephone banking. It also includes the
Private Banking area which is responsible for implementing strategies and investment proposals
presented to customers and ensures the management of their financial assets.

Corporate Banking, Project Finance and Institutional Banking — includes commercial operations with
companies with a turnover of more than € 2 million and also with Retail Banking for the segment of
up to €5 million. This also includes project finance services and relationships with entities of the
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Public Sector, Public and Municipal Companies, the State Business Sector, Foundations and
Associations. This segment operates through a network of business centres, institutional centres and
home banking services adapted to the business needs.

Investment banking
Investment banking covers the following business areas:

. Corporate finance — This includes rendering consultancy services relating to the analysis of
investment projects and decisions, market privatisation operations and the structuring of merger and
acquisition processes.

. Share department—Includes trading activities, financial instrument primary market, brokerage and
research.
. Portfolio management — Includes services rendered to BPI Global Investment Fund Management

Company, S.A. in the management of BPI Alternative Fund — Iberian Equities Long Short.

Equity investments and others

This segment includes essentially Financial Investments and Private Equity activities. The BPI Group
Private Equity area invests essentially in unlisted companies with the following objectives: the development
of new products and technologies, financing of investments in working capital, acquisitions and the
strengthening of financial autonomy.

This segment also includes the Issuer’s residual activity, such segments representing individually less than
10 per cent. of total income, net profit and the Issuer’s Group assets.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 January 2017, the Issuer's share capital amounted to €1,293,063,324.98 and was represented by
1,456,924,237 ordinary shares with no nominal value (all issued shares are fully paid).

SELECTED HISTORICAL KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables contain selected key financial information for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2015 (audited), for the first half year of 2016 (audited), for the first nine months of 2016 (unaudited) and
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (unaudited).
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Consolidated balance sheet Amgunts in M€

31 Drec.15 31 Dec. 16

as reported as reported
Assets
Cash and deposits at central banks 27282 876.6
Deposits at other credit institutions 612.1 3002
Loans and advances to credit institutions 1230.0 637.6
Loans and advances to Customers 24 2816 227358
Financial assets held for trading and at fair value through profit or loss 34746 21979
Financial assets available for sale 635004 38764
Held to maturity investments 224 16.3
Hedging denivatives 913 258
Investments in associated companies and jointly controlled entities 2104 175.7
Investment properties
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations 612959
Other tangible assets 1951 310
Intangible assets 201 25.6
Tax assets 4202 471.8
Other assets 6688 598.0
Total assets 40 673.3 351847
Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Resources of central banks 15207 2000.0
Financial hiabilities held for trading 2043 2127
Resources of other credit institutions 13118 10964
Besources of Customers and other debts 281778 219677
Debts secunties 10774 506.8
Technical provisions 36631 20488
Financial liabilities relating to transferred assets 689.5 3354
Hedging denvatives 161.6 97.8
Non-current Liabilities held for sale and discontinued operations 50514
Provisions 909 702
Tax liabilities 92.0 0
Contingent convertible subordinated bonds
Other subordinated debt and participating bonds 693 69.3
Other liabilities 6802 7774
Subsenbed share capital 12931 12031
Beserves 883.0 840.7
Other equity instruments 5.2 43
Treasury shares (12.8) (10.8)
Net profit 2364 3132
Shareholders’ equity attributable to the shareholders of BPI 24069 24405
Non-controlling interests 4286 468.0
Shareholders' equity 18355 21908.5
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 40 673.3 382847
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Consolidated income statement Ameunts in ME
Dec.15 Dez.15 Dec.l6 ';}]:: lo:
as reported proforma  asreported| proforma /
Decld
Financial margin (namow sense) 6246 3174 364.2 14.8%
Gross margin on umt nks 13.0 130 13.5 3.8%
Income from equity instruments 47 47 8.5 719.9%
Net commissions relating to amortised cost 211 211 21.2 0.5%
Financial margin 663.4 356.2 4074 14.4%
Techmical result of msurance contracts 318 318 24.6 (22.6%)
Net commission mcome 3247 255.2 1504 1%
Net mcome on financial operations 194.6 479 489 2.1%
Net operating income (32.6) (247 (23.8) 3.7%
Operating income from banking activity 1181.9 666.4 T16.6 7.5%
Personnel costs 3853 3024 308.0 1.9%
(General administrative costs 2492 172.0 la8.o (5.3%)
Depreciation and amortisation 36.1 199 14 7.5%
Overhead costs a70.6 S00.3 4979 (0.5%0)
Operating profit before impairments and provisions 5113 la6.1 218.6 3l.6%%
Fecovery of loans, inferest and expenses 18.2 162 13.7 (15.3%)
Impairment losses and provisions for loans and guarantees, net 137.0 103 4 330 (68.1%)
Impairment losses and other provisions, net 19.5 159 36.5 129 4%
Net income before income tax 3719 63.1 162.9 155.1%
Income tax 91 21 4.7 1998.3%
Eamungs of asseciated companies (equity method) 334 334 6.2 (21.7%)
Netincome from continuing operations 3772 LR 1444 51.0%
Net income from discontinued operations 2828 g 19.4%
];;;;ctlieﬂ?lrstﬁbutnble to non-controlling interests from continuing 140.8 0.0 0.0 11%
]:;ﬂn::tlf;ltsmbumble to non-controlling interests from discontinued 140.8 165.8 10.9%
Net Income 2364 236.4 3132 32.5%
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BANCO SR 5 &
CONSOUDATED BALANCE SHEETS A% OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND DECEMBER 31, 2015
{Translation of balance shasts originally Issued In Portuguese - Note 5)
[

AMOUNEs EXprac5ed In thousands of ELrp)
Sep. M, 1% Dec. 31, 15
Eamounts befiora Impalrmant,
Motea impairment, depreciation  depreciation and Hat Mat Hotes Sep. 30, 16 Dec. 31,15
and amortisation amortization
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Cash and deposits &t central banks a1 2341 59 2 341 5688 273 165 Resourcss of central banks 414 2000 737 1520735
Depresits 3t oMer Cradh INGtHuBoNE 42 345 375 M5 375 612 055 Financial iabilites heid for rEdng 41544 247 081 294 6
Financdlal assets held for trading and at far value through RESOUIGEE OF oher credit Insirions 4.16 1143 09 131173
proft of lss 4344 3983 554 3 563 B34 3674604 Resources of cusiomers and oiher debits 417 26 062 826 28 177 814
Finanda assets avallable for sale 45 5962 531 123 70 5 B35 B38 6509 358 Dedt securities 4.18 546 423 1077 381
Loars and advances {0 credt Instiutions 46 953 178 955 178 1230043 Financial labilities relating 1o rarsfemed assets 419 641 674 669 522
Losares and advances i cusiomers a7 24 543 629 541 230 3 802 358 24 261 622 Hedging derfvatves 44 126 155 161 556
Held to maturtty Invesiments 48 16 317 16 17 22 417 Provisions 4.7 100 952 55 854
Hedging dertvatives 44 34 76 3 TED o1 286 Techrical prowisions 4 2335 085 3 663 184
Cmer anginie assats 49 633 965 ATETE 157 228 195095 Tax Baniities 4m 45 74T 92 050
INtEngie 355Et5 410 128 243 99178 29108 29138 Other sunordinated felt and pamicipating bonds 423 B85 456 60 12
IMvastmIts IN 35500iaEd COMEAnies and |ointly sanfrolizg Other llaclizes 424 554 052 SE0 158
entities 4an 186 520 186520 210447 Total Lishities 35 906 326 37 837 733
Tax assats 412 453 853 453653 420 114 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Cmer assets 413 S2 42 32609 459 673 665 796 Subscrined share capital 425 1263 063 1293 063
Other exquity Instruments 476 4306 5134
Fevalustion resenes 477 { 214 205) { a7 564)
Other reserves and retalned samings 4.7 1130 250 o7z 587
[TreasLiy Sares) 4.26 {109z { 12797
Consolated net INcome of Me BP1 Goup 4.43 182 915 236 360
Sharshoiders” equity aftributabie to Me sharshoiders of BPI 2 386 217 2 406 852
Hon-coninoling Inerests 4.7 435 779 438 647
Tolal Sharsholders’ Equity 2 511 396 2 B35 435
Total Assets &) 351 775 TETs 45 B 718 5 40 673 292 Toial Liabilidss and Shareholders' Equity 3716328 A0 613 22
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Guarantess given and other contingent lablities 430 1625 841 1 628 TB1
OF which:
[Guarantass and sureties] I1 432 514] [t 457 o7
[others] [193 4215 [E31 711]
Commitments 4.30 3484 377 3372509
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BANCO 5.8

INTERIM CONZOUDATED STATEMENT S OF INCOME FOR THE PERMODS EMDED SEFTEMSER 30, 2016 AND 2015

(Translation of statements of cash iows ongindily lssued In Poruguess - Note S5)
[Amounts expressed In thousands of Euro)

Hotse 3rd Guarter 2016 3rd Quartsr 2015 Sap. 30, 2018 Sep. 30, 2015

IMEerest and Similar Income 244174 21735 720 347 883 579
Interest and similar expensss i 57 352} { 107 930) [ 124 330) [ 387 360}
Financial margin [narmow senzs) 231 186 782 153 B85 535 517 268 213
3r0SE Margn on unit Inks im 3% S 10 308 o074
Income from equity Instruments 433 = 3= 3943 3538
Met commission relating to amontised cost 434 5258 4671 15816 14 557
Financlal margin 135331 182 270 555 585 493 488
Technical resut of INSurance contracts 435 5385 £ 206 18 881 27 607
Commissions racetved Ta 882 76 452 230 057 151
Commissions pald {10 150} {5 614) {30 471) { 30 429)
Other Income, net 12204 14 858 35 268 35 365
&t commizsion Income 435 #0968 81706 234 855 37107
33N and 1055 an OpEraions at far vaue 34473 57434 113 385 154 241
ain and 1055 on 3s5Els avallabie for 538 1154 8 23 30 [ 564}
Irterest and financial gain and loss with pensions [ 144 a3 1184 [ 29
Mst Income on Tinancial operations 437 T3 58 285 138 350 153 648
Opearting Income 3702 7T 12 845 71 361
Oparating expenses {3478 i 4 B26) { 29 867) {22 123)
Other taxes {9 418) {5 534) 22 668) 16 554)
Mat oparating Income 438 (3153 13143 {39 689 {17 318)
Oparating Income from banking acavity 305 622 07 304 307 362 B34 534
Personnel costs 23 157 475) (98 218 [ 252 335) [ 255 253
Generl aoministratve costs 440 { 60 430) (60 &77) [ 185 082) [ 167 735)
Depreciation and amortisation 4.904.10 (8541) [ B744) {25 542) 26 248)
Ovarhaad coats | 165 445) | 158 B33) [ 505 340) [ 502 482)
FRecovery of oans, INenest and epenses 5807 E517 14 202 14 304
Impalrment losses and proviskans foF Ioans and gUarantess, net am {5851 (26 535) { 52 978) [ 113 £37)
Impalment los5es and ofer provisions, net am | 5963) {1954 [ 41 649) { 17 969)
Met Income befors Income tax 133 423 116 £33 321 613 274 330
INCome & a4 |16 028) [12 067) (37 573) | 37 606}
Eamings of associated companies (equity method) 442 4042 10 &21 25 388 23158
Giobal consollgatad nat Incoma 121443 114 847 305 445 250 480
Income atioutadie to non-conzoiling INberests 429 | 44 458) [ 40 057) [ 126 530) [ 109 512)
Conaolidated net Income of Me B Group 243 76985 74730 182 915 150 968
Earnings per ehare (In Euro)

Baslc 0053 0181 0126 0104

Diluted 0.053 [.180 0126 004
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BAMCO BFI, 5.4

INTERIM CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIODS ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

[Translation of statements of cash flows originally ksued In Poruguess - Note 5
{Amounts expressed In thousands of Eurs)

Sep. 30, 18 Sep. 30,15
Attributable te sharsholders of Attributable fo non- Total Affributable to shareholders of Atirbutable to non-controdiing Total
thes BPI Group controdiing Intsrest tha BRI Group Intarast
Consolldated net Incomsa 182915 126 530 5 445 150 368 108 512 260 480
Incoms not In the afed statemants of Income:
Itema that will noé be reclazaiflad to net Incoma
Actuanal deviatons { 106 193) { 106 133) o7 385 97 385
Tax sffect 25 425 29 425 [ 26 B39) | 2B B38)
| 7 TEE) [ [ 76 TEE) 68 545 [ &8 546
tema that may bs raclassifed subsequently to net Incoms
Forelgn exchange transiation dffarences {117 780} [ B3 581) {206 371) [ BS B84) {77 062) [ 162 T46)
Revaluaton reserves of fnanclal assets avalabie for sake: { 10900} { 10900) 2961 29611
Tax eflect 2039 2039 {8TT1) (BT}
Valuation of assets of assoclated companies 652 852 {7 791) (771}
Tan effect { 331) [ 331) 2 302 2302
[ 126 320) [ &8 591) [214911) [ 70 333) {77 062} [ 147 395)
Income not In the ted statements of Incoms [ 203 0&8) [ 88 531) 291 679) [1787) [ 77 062} | 78 843)
Conzolldated comprehens|ve Incomsa {20173) 37339 17 TEE 145 181 32450 181 631
37 Quarter 2016 3™ Quarter 2015
attributable to shareholders of attributabls to non- Total affributabls to sharsholders of Atiributabls to non-controdling Total
the BPI Group controdling Interest tha BPI Group Intarast
Conzolldated net Incoms TE 385 44 458 121443 T4 T30 40057 114 g47
Incoms nof Included In the conaolidated statements of Income:
Itema that will noé be reclasaifiad to net Incoms
Actuanal geviaions 19816 19 B16 {7 627) (7627}
Tax effect [5175) {5 175) 1385 1385
14641 [ 14 641 [ & 242) [ {6242
ema that may bs reclassifled subsequently to net Incoms
Foreign exchange fransiation Gmarences [9729) [ 15) [ 9744) [ 51 056) [ 44 855) {95 921)
Revaluaton regerves of financial asssts avalabie for sake: £450 S450 17 184 17 134
Tax effect [ 1478} [ 14786) {4 715) [ 4TIE)
Waluation of assets of assoclated companies 1096 1086 242 242
Tax effect | 157) [ 15T) | 22) i 22)
[4816) [ 15) | 4831) [ 38 367) [ 44 865) | 83232)
Incomse not Inthe ted statements of Income 5825 [ 15) 3810 [ 44 805} [ 44 8E5) | 83 474)
Consolldated comprehenslve Incoms BEE10 44 443 131253 30181 { 4 808} 25373
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BANCDBF, 3.4

CONIOUDATED EBALANCE EHEETE AZ OF JUME 34, 2018 AND DECEMEER 31, 316

(Transiafon of balance shests originally Issued in Fortugue se - Nob= 5

[Amounts In thousands of Euro]
Jun. 30, 18 Do 31,16
Zmounts befone Impalmment,
Hotes and et Hat Hoies. Jun. 39,18 Deo. 31,16
and amortication amortication
AZIETE LUAELMES
Cash and deposis at ceniral banks 41 Z401 =8 ZaniosE 2728 185 Fesounces of ceniral banks 414 2000 E15 1sX 73
Deposits af other credit InsStuSion:s 4z a3 414231 B1Z D55 Financial Babilbes heid for tading ERESEY ETE s
Financial ass=ts heid for ding and ot S vake orentor sz Resounces of obher credit insituSons. 415 1235548 131 ™
4342 405235 4092835 3ET4 504 Fesounces of cusiomerns and other debis 417 T TS T2 2EBATT B4
Financial assets avalabie for S§e a5 STs0EN A2TES Se80sT 5509 388 Debt seOames 415 Bl 372 1077 33
Lo and aovances 10 oredit nstiutions a8 Sgase2 Sg3se 1230 =3 Financial Iabifbes reiaing o ansfaTed amets 419 BaT E2S = h=r
Lo and Svances 10 CUSIDmers AT 24325 30= sF1an 23354853 24 281622 Hedgng dervaltes L4 51027 81555
Heid o matuty mvestmems a8 18313 165313 22417 Prowisons 420 35807 =l
Hedging oervalives a2 2558 45892 91288 Technical Do Sons 41 2881007 3E83 0
Other Dngibse assats 43 636 222 475ET2 80 550 135 095 Tax labiftes 4 L3 BET 82050
Intsngibie 3ssats 490 12aE3s g7 ees 26EEE 22138 Other subominai=d dedt and parbopating bonds 4.3 83 EM gs sz
Othar ||aniTtes 4 E37 gas £ 155
Invesiments In assocated companies and jointly confrolied entiies: an e - 0 47 Tomr Liattes Yy e TE
Tax assets 412 455 135 455135 4% 14 BHAREHOLDERS" EGANTY
Cther assets 493 30 e52 3 E02 453052 582 TSE  Subscribed shane capial 4% 1253 DE3 1253 D63
Other exuiy Instrumernis 4 4378 B
FRevaluafion reserses. 428 (208 .450) [ 87554)
Other reserves and refained eamings 43 1115388 572 cET
(Treasury shanes) 43 [ 11544 {12797
Conesolidaisd net income of e BPI Group 4.4 05 530 235 368
squity o the of BR = s B4 = 408 BEZ
MOR-Connoiing Intenests 4.3 381 348 A28 87
Total Srarholier Equity 2 880 160 3 B3 4
Total Acxet &0 BT E 802 1718318 E 35E 534 40 BT 782 Totl Lishiltse snd Equity EE 368 534 80 871 T2
OFF BALANCE JHEET TEM3
Guamniees given and offer contingent labiltes 4.3 1548302 1828 781
OF which:
[Camraniess and sursties] 1 43%114] [1 457 O70)
[Cmnes] (0% 155 E3 T
Commiimenis 4.31 3 375285 3372508
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BANCO BPIL 5.A

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NCOME FOR PERIODS ENDED JUNE 20, 206 AND 20135

[Translation of statements of income originally issued in Portuguese - Mote 5)
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Euno)

Hotes Jun. 30, 2016 Jun. 30, 2045

Interest and similar income 476 173 a01 754
Interest and similar expenses {137 438) | 289 430)
Financial margin (nammow sense) 432 JWTI 312334
Gross margin on unit links 433 T 53mg
Income from equity instruments 434 3910 3502
Net commission relating te amortised cost 435 10 5538 9 EBG
Financial margin 360 254 31 218
Technical result of msurance contracts 435 13425 19401
Commissions received 151 105 152 6e2
Commissions paid {20 .281) {20B815)
Other income, net 23085 23827
Net commission income 437 153 885 155 401
Gam and loss on operations at fair value 79438 85 807
‘Gain and loss on assets avaiable for sale 24 455 | BE52)
Interest and financial gain and loss with pensions 1328 | 472)
Netincome on financial operations 433 105219 93 283
Operating income 9144 14 144
Dperating expenses { 28 289) (17207)
Other taxes {13252) { 11020)
Net operating income 439 { 30 497) (14173
O perating income from banking activity 602 360 387 230
Personnel costs 440 { 184 B81) { 182 07T)
General administrative costs 441 (127 632) { 127 DG2)
Depreciation and amortisation 4.9/4.10 {17 001) {17 504)
Owverhead costs {339 484) {333 643)
Recowery of loans, inferest and expenses 8285 TTET
Imgaiment losses and provisions for loans and guarantess. net 420 {47 285) (88 002)
Impaiment losses and other provisions, net 420 { 35 6:BE) { 16 035)
Net income before income tax 188 190 158 437
Income tax 442 {21 545) [ 25541)
Eamings of associated companies (equity method) 443 213587 12737
Global consolidated net incoms 188 002 145 633
Income attributable to non-controlling interests 4.30 {82072) ( &2 455)
Consolidated net income of the BP1 Group 444 105 930 TE 178
Earnings per share (in Euro)

Basic 444 0073 0.053

Diduted 444 0.073 0.052

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.
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DENCODRLIA,

NTERIE COMELUIDATED STATERENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHEHSIVE INCOME

FOR PERIODS EMDED JUNE 30 21€ AND 2015

(Tranganon of (Laemants of MZQM 3N JONGT Lomg

Income orginally S5usd In Porugusse - Moo 5)

[Amounts sipreseed N thousands of Eurn)
Jun 0, % Hun. 315
ATIFIDYLIBIS B ARAFEhIGSE o ATIMDULIBN 10 S30- Tetan EIBGRSD I 1 RRATERIAEM of AEABAINE o hos- Totsl
tha BRI Gioep controdiing Intersst ®e BFI Group controling it

Consclidated net Incoms WS 330 82072 188 02 TR 178 & 455 145 £33

e A Inciuded In e comionosied slaiementy of Incoms;

Itema iRat will not e reciassified bo net Income
AN SDIONE | 8 00R) [ 938 i) s L
Tax efMect M 500 M B0 [ 30 224) {30 224)
[ELE ] 91 &) T4 TI T4 TR
[T 1t My D8 reclanEEe MADERUENTY 1D Nt o
Fofbigh enthange ERELNon BMeenced { 108 081) 88 ETE) [ 1598 837 [ 34838 132 15T) {84 825)
R resaries of AEEAT FeNII0W O B3

RevakTON Of IRINCLN JAEEE JraRa0 T 1aie i 18 7ET) (I8 TET) 774G 7740
Ta et drre A [EE ) {2748
Transfer bo noome retuling Fom et {22 380y [ 22 3amy anE 458
Tax emect LRk ] L3+ {144 [ 188
Transfer fio inoome retuliing from mpaiment recogrized in the perod 24 7T 24 78T 41 424
Tax emest % 782) [&TE) [RR: -] 11183
VIUTON OF 3T OF 500N COMEanE [ ddd) | ) (803 (5033
Tax emect i 172) (L] 2334 2334
[ 121 S04) a8 5T (210 b8dy (31 %) (22 137) [ RLZ]]
o RO INCluded In the conpolidated Matements of INComs [ 212313) i 88 578y 1307 469 42 KX (32 137) 19 525
D IR COMDE o i M Ao [ ok 383 [ % S0y RLE L] 113 00 3T Ha 155 e
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CONSOLIDATED BALANMCE SHEETS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2015
AND 2014 PROFORMA AND 1 JANUARY 2014 PROFORMA

[Mransiiion of sxiemonix orgirally Esued in Portupguess — nola 5]
[Amounts expressed In fouwsands of o)

31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14 1 Jan. 14
Proforma Proforma
Mites Amaunts before Imipalrment, Net et Met
depreciation and
depreciation and
ASSETS
Cash and deposks at caniral banks 41 2 72E 185 2728185 1834 203 1372211
Deposis gt other credt Instiitions 42 612058 3 &12 055 3R0 475 4639 4BT
Financdial &ssets haid for trading and
& far value throwgh proft or loss 43744 3674 604 3 674 604 3M7733 1317 558
Financial assels avaliabia for sale 45 & 625 939 119 551 & 509 388 7525778 9624 243
Lens and advances to credl Instfiutions 46 1 Z30 043 1 Z30 043 2 SEARLT 1 885 070
Loans and advances fo Customerns 47 25 260 276 7B 654 24 281 622 25 268 968 25965 133
Held to maturly Imvestmients 4B 22417 22417 EA 3R7 135 877
Hedging demales 4.4 91 766 91 286 148 533 154 043
Mon-current assats held for sak 48 11604
Investment propenies 4.10 154 777 164 948
Ofher tangibiie assals 411 £33 349 408 BS54 185 095 204 239 197 337
Intangibie sesats 412 123 532 =l = 25 138 24 BER 19 149
Investments In assocksied companies
and joimtty confrolled entities 413 Z10 447 Z10 447 212 980 271 952
Tax assels 414 420 214 420 214 422 531 539 632
Other assals 415/428 BOR 759 25471 BEE 708 BB TRE 711 &71
Total assels 42 354 619 1721327 40 673 292 42 628 B50 42 B20 412
LIABILITIES
Resounces. of central banks 4.16 1 520 735 1361 185 4 140 068
Finandal Esbillties heid fior trading 417744 284 318 326 TES 255 245
Resources. of other credit instRutions 4.18 1311781 1372441 1453 248
Resounces. of Customers and other detls 4.18 28 177 814 28 134617 25 630 473
Debt sacuriks 420 1077 381 22330M 2 508 455
Financial Eabiities retsting fo trarsfemed assels 421 &89 522 1047 731 1 387 256
Hedging deralives 44 161 556 377219 S48 458
Prossions 472 55 854 107 333 124 037
Technical provisions 4373 3 663 094 4151 830 2 589 768
Tax IlablIRks 474 97 050 42 630 57 711
Contingent comvertible subomdinated bands 435 920 433
Otheer subordinsted debt and participating bonds 4.6 B9 512 £9 521 135 931
Otheer Babillties 4Z7/428 &80 156 720 324 805 612
Total Lizhilitles I7 B37 793 40 099 &50 40 548 736
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Subscribed share capiial 428 1293 063 1233063 1 190000
Other equity insirumenis 4.30 5104 5270 3414
Revaluation reseres 431 (B7 564) [51 143) ({362 336)
Other resanves and retained esmings 432 972 587 1042 0BT 1025 154
{ Tressury shares) 4.30 (12 737} [13 EZE) [17 020
Consolldaied net income of the BF1 Group 447 Z36 369 {154 55E) &7 015
Shareholders’ equity atiributabie to the shareholders of BRI 2 406 852 2110891 1 906 167
Mor-coniroling Inberest 433 428 647 418 268 365 518
Total shareholders’ equity 2 B35 499 2 529 160 2 271 676
Total Ikabliities and shareholders' equity 40 673292 A2 62BE50 42 820 412
OFF BALAMCE SHEET ITEMS
Guaraniess ghen and offier contingent [labliRes 433 1 2R 7B1 2162711 2106 771
Ot which:
|Guaraniaes and suraties] [1 437 070] 11 B2E E25) 11 83z 700
[Others] 1331 711] 341 BBE] 1274 0711
CommEments 433 3 372508 3 355540 3 020 342
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEARS EMDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014 PROFORMA

[Mransiadon of s3kermonts originaly Exuod in Porfugeess - notn 5]
[Amounts aaprossar In SoUsands of gura)

Mates 31 Dec. 16 31 Dec. 14
Proforma
Intzrest and simiar ncome 111288y 1280 123
Interest and smiiar expenses (4BE 471) {804 T95)
Firancial mangin (narmow sefse) 4.36 624 566 485 328
Gross margn on unit inks 435 12 957 502
Income from equity Irsbuments 4.37 4 T35 3 &l2
Met commission relafing io amoriised cost 438 21 118 20 484
Firancial margin 663 390 514 453
Technical result of Insurance confracts 430 31 B804 34333
Commissions recekved 312574 322 58B
Commissions peaid {40 537) (47 &37
Oiher income, net 52 241 37222
Net commission Income 4.40 324 678 312 173
Galn and loss on oparafions Al tak valus 200 258 157 903
Galn and loss on assets vallable for e (E031) {135 005)
Interest and financial gain and kxss with pensions 413 1931
Het Income on financlal operations 441 194 540 24 BED
Operating Income 32 423 I3
Operating expanses {41 857) (44 428)
Other taxes {23 178) (17013
Met operating loss 4.42 (32 610) (28 203)
Operating Incoms from banking activity 1 181 902 BET TDE
Personnal oosts 443 (385 267) (402 538)
General adminisirative costs 4.44 (2453 233) {238 219)
Deprectation and amartisation 4.11/4.12 136 117) (30 7700
Overhead costs (6T0617) {671 527
Recovery of koans, Interest and experses 18 162 15 472
Impakmment losses and provisions for kans and guaraniess, met 422 (136 957) {193 191)
Impakment krsses and ofher provtsions, net 477 {19 523) (45 26E)
Het Income before InCome fax 72 927 {35 B{6)
Income tax 445 129 142) (31 598
Eamings of associsted companies (equity mathod) 445 33433 26125
Global consolidated net INcome 377 218 141 279
Income atiributabie o non-caniroling Interests 4.33 (140 843) {123 Z79)
Consolidated net Income of the BPI Group 447 236 369 {154 558)
Eamings per share (in Euro}
Eiasic 447 0163 {0.116)
Diluted 447 0162 {0.115)

Tha accompanying notes. jorm an integral part of these: Safomants.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014 PROFORMA

Attributable to
shareholders of

the
BPI Group
Consolidated net income 236 369
Income not included in the consolidated statement of income:
Items that will not be reclassified to net income:
Actuarial deviations 144783
Tax effect (42 263)
102 520
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to net income:
Foreign exchange translation differences (76 945)
Revaluation reserves of financial assets available for sale:
Revaluation of financial assets available for sale 38370
Tax effect (10 692)
Transfer to income resulting from sales 7089
Tax effect (1972)
Transfer to income resulting from impairment recognized in the period 10 019
Tax effect (2 290)
Valuation of assets of associated companies (12 817)
Tax effect 2303
(46 935)
Income not included in the consolidated statement of income 55 585
Consolidated comprehensive income 291 954

31 Dec. 15
Attributable to
non-controlling

interests

140 849

(66 218)

(66 218)
(66 218)
74 631

143

Total

377218

144783
(42 263)
102 520

(143 163)

38370
(10 692)
7089
(1972)
10 019

(2 290)
(12 817)
2303
(113 153)
(10 633)
366 585

(Translation of statements originally issued in Portuguese — note 5)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro)

31 Dec. 14 Proforma

Attributable to
shareholders of
the

BPI Group
(164 558)

(93 291)
17 892
(75 399)

24796

240 311
(71 430)
135544
(37 137)

25 844
(6 735)
22178
(6 217)
327 154

251 755

87 197

Attributable to
non-controlling
interests

123 279

23763

23 763
23763
147 042

Total

(41 279)

(93 291)
17 892
(75 399)

48 559

240 311
(71 430)
135 544
(37 137)

25 844
(6 735)
22178
(6 217)
350 917
275518
234 239

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements



Notes:

Pro forma figures at 31 December 2015 reflecting the retroactive application of IFRS 5 to the recognition of BFA
2015 results.

Pro forma figures at 31 December 2014 considering the adherence to the special deferred tax asset (DTA) regime
approved at the Shareholders’ General Meeting held on 17 October 2014 and the application of the new risk
weightings applied to the Issuer’s indirect exposure to the Angolan State and to BNA, expressed in Kwanza. The
application of both the alterations begun on 1 January 2015.

The denomination “pro forma” does not constitute the presentation of proforma financial information in accordance
to Annex Il to the Prospectus Regulation.

The auditor’s reports on the consolidated financial statements of the Issuer for the years ended on 31
December 2014 and on 31 December 2015 and for the first semester ended 30 June 2016 did not include
any reserves.

Please refer to the complete versions of the auditor’s reports included in the annual reports and half year
report of the Issuer, together with the respective financial statements, which are incorporated by reference
in this Prospectus.

INVESTMENTS

There have been no material investments by the Issuer since 30 June 2016.

RATINGS

The ratings assigned to the Issuer from time to time are available for consultation at
http://bpi.bancobpi.pt/index.asp?rildArea=AreaDivida&riChgLng=1&riLang=en&rild=IRatings&rildTop
0=. The long term/short term ratings currently assigned to the Issuer are Ba3/Not Prime by Moody's, BBB-
/F3 by Fitch and BB+/B by S&P.

Each of Fitch, S&P and Moody's is established in the European Community and has been registered in
accordance with the CRA Regulation. The full list of Credit Rating Agencies that are registered under the
CRA Regulation can be found at ESMA’s website.

A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction
or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Issuer's governance model is structured in compliance with the Portuguese Commercial Companies
Code as follows:

o the company's management is entrusted to the Board of Directors which includes an Executive
Committee — formed by professionals independent from any shareholders' or specific interests — to
which the Board has delegated wide management powers for conducting the day-to-day activity.
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Within the ambit of the Board of Directors, four specialist commissions function, composed
exclusively of non-executive members: (i) the Audit and Internal Control Committee, whose remit is
to work especially close to the Executive Committee; (ii) the Financial Risks Committee, whose role,
without prejudice to the functions of the Supervisory Board, is to monitor the policy management of
all financial risks, including credit risks, the Issuer's activities and the management of the pension
fund (iii) the Corporate Governance Committee, which is charged with supporting and advising the
Board of Directors for the improvement of the governance and oversight model and making
pronouncements on matters relating to social responsibility, ethics, professional conduct, and
environmental protection and (iv) the Nominations, Evaluation and Remuneration Committee, whose
role is to give opinions on the filling of vacancies occurring on the governing bodies, on the choice
of Directors to be appointed to the Executive Committee and on the evaluation and annual variable
remuneration of this body's members.

o the oversight functions are attributed to the Supervisory Board (“Conselho Fiscal””) — whose key
terms of reference include overseeing management, supervising compliance with the Law and the
Issuer's Articles of Association, verifying the accounts, supervising the independence of the Statutory
Auditor and the external auditor, as well as evaluating the work of the latter - and to the Statutory
Auditor (“Revisor Oficial de Contas”), whose prime function is to examine and then certify the
accounts.

o the General Shareholders’ Meeting, composed of all the shareholders of the Issuer, deliberates on the
issues which are specifically attributed to it by the law or by the Articles of Association — including
the election of the governing bodies, the approval of the directors' reports, the annual accounts, the
distribution of profits, and capital increases —, as well as if so solicited by the Board of Directors, on
matters dealing with the company's management.

o the Remuneration Committee, comprising three shareholders, is elected by the General Shareholders’
Meeting. The Committee sets out the remuneration of the officers serving on the Issuer's governing
bodies. It is bound to observe the limits defined by the General Shareholders’ Meeting as regards the
fixed compensation of the members of the Board of Directors and the variable compensation of the
Executive Committee.

o the Company Secretary is appointed by the Board of Directors and performs the functions
contemplated in the law and others attributed pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Issuer.

MANAGEMENT

The following is a list of the members of the Board of Directors and of the Executive Committee of the
Issuer for the 2014/2016 term of office. The business address of each of the below-mentioned members of
the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee is Banco BPI, S.A., Largo Jean Monnet, 1, 1269-067
Lisbon, Portugal.

The Annual Report for 2015, on pages 378 to 383, contains a description of the activities performed by the
members of the Board of Directors outside the Issuer
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Board of Directors?, 9, 10, 11 12.

Chairman: Artur Santos Silva
Deputy-Chairman: Fernando Ulrich
Members: Alfredo Rezende de Almeida

Allianz Europe, Ltd*®
Antonio Lobo Xavier
Armando Leite de Pinho
Carlos Moreira da Silva
Gonzalo Gortazar Roateche®
Ignacio Alvarez-Rendueles
Jodo Pedro Oliveira e Costa
José Pena do Amaral

Lluis Vendrell Pi

Manuel Ferreira da Silva

8 Mr. Anténio Domingues and Mr. Edgar Alves Ferreira submitted last 30 May and 13 October, respectively, their resignations as Member of the
Issuer’s Board of Directors. The Issuer’s Board of Directors resolved, at a meeting held on 26 October 2016, to co-opt to fill the vacancies thus
created, Mr. Gonzalo Gortédzar Roateche and Mr. Pablo Forero Calderén. The aforesaid co-options have been subject to ratification by the
Shareholders at a General Meeting held on 23 November 2016.

9 Mr. Isidro Fainé Casas and Mr. Marcelino Armenter Vidal submitted last 26 October 2016, their resignations as Members of the Issuer’s Board of
Directors.

10 The Members of the Board of Directors responsible for the 2014 Report were: Artur Santos Silva, Fernando Ulrich, Alfredo Rezende de Almeida,
Antoénio Domingues, Anténio Lobo Xavier, Armando Leite de Pinho, Carla Bambulo, Carlos Moreira da Silva, Edgar Alves Ferreira, Ignacio
Alvarez-Rendueles, Isidro Fainé Casas, Jodo Pedro Oliveira e Costa, José Pena do Amaral, Manuel Ferreira da Silva, Marcelino Armenter Vidal,
Maria Celeste Hagatong, Mario Leite da Silva, Pedro Barreto and Tomaz Jervell.

11 The Members of the Board of Directors responsible for the 2015 Report were: Artur Santos Silva, Fernando Ulrich, Alfredo Rezende de Almeida,
Antoénio Domingues, Anténio Lobo Xavier, Armando Leite de Pinho, Carla Bambulo, Carlos Moreira da Silva, Edgar Alves Ferreira, Ignacio
Alvarez-Rendueles, Isidro Fainé Casas, Jodo Pedro Oliveira e Costa, José Pena do Amaral, Lluis VVendrell, Manuel Ferreira da Silva, Marcelino
Armenter Vidal, Maria Celeste Hagatong, Mario Leite da Silva, Pedro Barreto and Vicente Tardio Barutel.

12 As disclosed by the Issuer to the market on 8 February 2017, the Shareholder Caixabank informed the Board of Directors of its intention to present
to the General Meeting of Shareholders, scheduled to 26 April 2017, the following proposal, subject to obtaining the relevant authorizations from
the supervisory entities; the election of a new Board of Directors with the following composition: Fernando Ulrich (Presidente), Pablo Forero (Vice-
Presidente), Antonio Lobo Xavier (Vice-residente), Alexandre Lucena e Vale, Anténio Farinha de Morais, Carla Bambulo, Francisco Manuel
Barbeira, Gonzalo Gortazar, Ignacio Alvarez Rendueles, Jodo Oliveira Costa, José Pena do Amaral, Javier Pano, Juan Antonio Alcaraz, Juan Ramon
Fuertes, Lluis Vendrell, Pedro Barreto, Tomas Jervell e Vicente Tardio (vogais). The list of the Board will be completed in a final proposal to be
presented in a timely manner to the Shareholders General Meeting.

13 Allianz Europe, Ltd. appointed, in terms of article 390 (4) of the Commercial Companies Code, Carla Sofia Bambulo for the exercise of this
office.
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Maria Celeste Hagatong

Mario Leite da Silva

Pablo Forero Calderén®

Pedro Barreto

Santoro Finance — Prestacdo de Servigos, S.A.14
Tomas Jervell

Vicente Tardio Barutel

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS

The Issuer is not aware of any potential conflicts of interests between any duties vis-a-vis the Issuer of the
members of either the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors and their
private interests or other duties.

SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board performs the functions attributed to it by law, the Articles of Association and the
Issuer's internal regulations.

The Supervisory Board for the 2014/2016 term of office is composed of the following members, whose
business address is the Issuer's head office:

Chairman: Abel Anténio Pinto dos Reis

Members: Jorge de Figueiredo Dias
Rui Campos Guimaraes

The Supervisory Board's composition is deliberated upon by the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the
Issuer. The Supervisory Board exercises its function for terms of three years.

Besides any other competence set out in law or in the Bank's articles of association, the Supervisory Board
is responsible for:

o Overseeing the process involving the preparation and disclosure of any financial information;

o Reviewing the effectiveness of internal-control, internal-audit and risk-management systems;

14 The appointment of the administrator Santoro Finance - Prestagdo de Servicos, S.A., depends on its appointment of natural person to exercise the
position in his/her own name, pursuant to article 390(4) of the Portuguese Companies Code.
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o Receiving reports of irregularities submitted by shareholders, company employees or others;
o Monitoring the statutory audit; and

o Reviewing and overseeing the independence of the statutory auditor, namely whenever the statutory
auditor provides other services to the Company.

The Supervisory Board meets at least every two months.

The Issuer is not aware of any potential conflicts of interest between any duties vis-a-vis the Issuer of the
members of the Supervisory Board and their private interests or other duties.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

The Statutory Auditor (“Revisor Oficial de Contas”) of the Issuer is Deloitte & Associados, SROC, S.A.,
which is a member of the Portuguese Association of the Chartered Accountants (“Ordem dos Revisores
Oficiais de Contas™), with registered office at Avenida Engenheiro Duarte Pacheco, 7, 1070-100 Lisbon,
Portugal, represented by Paulo Alexandre de S& Fernandes (Statutory Auditor — “Revisor Oficial de
Contas”), who is also a member of the Portuguese Association of the Chartered Accountants. The alternate
member is Carlos Luis Oliveira de Melo Loureiro.

Antonio Marques Dias was responsible for the legal certification of accounts and audit report for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Paulo Alexandre de S& Fernandes has been responsible for the legal certification
of accounts and audit report for the year ended 31 December 2015 and for the audit report for the period of
six months ended 30 June 2016.
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THE ORIGINATOR'S STANDARD BUSINESS PRACTICES, CREDIT ASSESSMENT
AND SERVICING OF THE COVER POOL

THE RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

The residential mortgage business is one of the most important segments in the credit activity of the Issuer,
representing about 48 per cent. of the Issuer’s credit portfolio. The Issuer is an innovative bank and its offer
of products and services is constantly updated in order to satisfy the client’s needs and achieve the market’s
best practices. The Issuer pays special attention to the management of credit risk and its credit policy is
constantly monitored against economic and market conditions.

ORIGINATION

The Issuer’s residential mortgage loans are originated through the branch network and real estate agents.

LENDING CRITERIA

Certain key features of the criteria applied prior to approval of any advance in respect of a mortgage loan to
be comprised in the Cover Pool (the "Lending Criteria") are set out below. The Originator has the right to
vary or waive the Lending Criteria from time to time in the manner of a reasonably prudent mortgage lender
(a"Prudent Mortgage Lender") and the Originator may have waived or varied the Lending Criteria acting
as a Prudent Mortgage Lender in respect of the mortgage loans to be comprised in the Cover Pool. Only
underwriting staff expressly granted the authority to do so may approve applications for mortgage loans
which vary from the Lending Criteria.

The key features of the Lending Criteria applicable to mortgage loans are as follows:
o Decision Criteria

Credit risk analysis and approval is based on: (i) basic criteria (age, residence, marital status...); (ii) no
credit in arrears in the national credit bureau; (iii) household disposable net income; (iv) the ratio of total
monthly instalments to disposable net income has to be below 50 per cent. (total monthly instalments of the
loan under analysis are calculated with 2.5 per cent. added to interest rate); (v) loan maturity, loan amount
and other loan requirements; (vi) insurances requirements; (vii) the loan to value ratio (LTV) has to be below
certain values defined according to the type of the loan (with a maximum of 85 per cent. for permanent
residence; (viii) probability of default of the proposal — credit scoring.

° Insurance Cover

Life, disability and property insurance coverage is mandatory for all mortgage loans. Although uncommon
among Portuguese banks, the Issuer requires the coverage of earthquake risk for all loans. Additional
insurance coverage for unemployment risk, hospitalisation and coverage for late payment of salaries
(“Seguro de Proteccao de Crédito”) is optional.
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. Centralised Real Estate Evaluation

All proposals are subject to an evaluation of the property carried out by an independent evaluator. The
results are received by the central services, which also scrutinise the performance of the independent
evaluators.

. Decision Levels

Branches may only approve credit proposals when all the lending criteria are fulfilled and the client loans
exposure is under the upper limit of branches credentials; other credit proposals require independent risk
analysis and decision from a central unit - DRCP (“Direc¢do de Decisdo de Crédito a Particulares™).

UNDERWRITING

The residential mortgage loan proposals are prepared at branches. Real estate agents must always channel
their proposal through a branch.

All the information is registered in GPC (“Gestor de Propostas de Crédito” — credit underwriting system).
GPC allows the customer to have a preliminary decision, taking into account the rules and criteria in place
at the time the proposal is analysed.

Once the proposal is pre-approved and the customer presents all required documents on income and identity,
the branch verifies these documents and registers all the information in GPC. GPC automatically collects
related credit information from the Bank of Portugal and the Issuer databases. All these elements allow the
branches and DRCP (if applicable) to verify the information previously provided by the customer.

Once this stage is passed, the Issuer sends an independent evaluator to visit and evaluate the property.

Results are received and verified centrally at DO-DOC (“Direccao de Operagdes de Crédito”). DO-DOC
then checks all documents including valuation report and insurance application, in order to assure
compliance with the existing rules and procedures. All additional information is registered in GPC and, if
everything is in order, the customer then receives a letter with the final approval.

After dealing with all the legal documents necessary for the contract, the client signs the contract and the
Issuer (DO-DOC) verifies all the public registrations regarding property and mortgage.

MORTGAGE PRODUCTS

The Issuer offers a broad range of mortgage credit products in terms of applicable interest rate (fixed rate,
EURIBOR index rate), and different reimbursement profiles. The maximum term is 50 years and maximum
LTV ratio is 85 per cent. The average LTV ratio of loans originated in 2016was 67.8 per cent., the average
amount by contract was € 85.6 thousand and the average term was 36.7 years. All mortgage loans, once
fully drawn, must be repaid in monthly instalments of principal and interest and paid by direct debit to an
account with the Issuer.

COLLECTIONS AND ARREARS PROCEDURES
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All collections including delinquencies, defaults, write-offs, recoveries, and foreclosure are dealt with at a
central level within the loan management system (ODS).

ODS debits the customer account automatically. If there are not enough funds, the system will debit the
amount available, with payment being made with the following priority: late payment fee, interest and
principal. Simultaneously it is automatically reported to the commercial department responsible for the
customer. While a payment is in arrears, this procedure will be repeated every day.

For credits in arrears for less than 100 days, the process is conducted by the Branches (which have the
responsibility for negotiating with Clients) with the support of automatic letters, SMS and e-mails; and the
Credit Decision Areas of DRCP are responsible for the decision on negotiation and restructuring of credit;
for credits in arrears for more than 100 days, the process is conducted by the Area of Pre-Judicial Recovery
of DRCP (which has the responsibility of negotiating with Clients); the transmission of responsibility for
the recovery of credit from the Branches to DRCP is automatic and compulsory; for credits under legal
action and written-off, the process is conducted by the Areas of Judicial Recovery of DRCP. If all the efforts
for solving the situation prove unsuccessful by the 240" day, the execution request is delivered to court and
the loan is accounted in "credits under legal action™. During all the phases of the recovery process, the Issuer
never stops the negotiation efforts in order to reach an extrajudicial agreement.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds resulting from each issue of Covered Bonds will be applied by the Issuer for its general
corporate purposes.
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THE COVERED BONDS LAW

FRAMEWORK

The Covered Bonds Law introduced a framework for the issuance of asset covered debt securities into
Portuguese law.

The Covered Bonds Law has been supplemented by the Bank of Portugal Regulations. The Bank of Portugal
Regulations address matters such as the segregation of cover pool assets from the insolvent estate of the
issuer in the event of insolvency, the compliance with asset and liability matching requirements and the
methodology for valuation of mortgages and properties.

ISSUERS OF COVERED BONDS

Mortgage covered bonds (“obrigacdes hipotecarias”) may be issued by credit institutions (the
“Institutions™) legally authorised to grant credits guaranteed by mortgages over property and having own
funds amounting to no less than €7,500,000. Institutions can either be universal credit institutions (“Credit
Institutions™) or special credit institutions incorporated under the Covered Bonds Law specialising in the
issuance of covered bonds (the “Mortgage Credit Institutions™).

If the issuer of covered bonds is a Credit Institution, there are no restrictions to its banking activities and it
may issue covered bonds directly maintaining the underlying cover pool on its balance sheet.

If the issuer of covered bonds is a Mortgage Credit Institution, its authorised banking activity is restricted
to granting and acquiring (i) credits guaranteed by mortgages, (ii) credits to, or guaranteed by, the central
public administration, regional or local authorities of any EU Member State. Mortgage Credit Institutions
may thus issue covered bonds backed by credits originated by itself or otherwise acquired from third party
originators.

If covered bonds are issued by a Mortgage Credit Institution backed by credits acquired from a third party
originator, the cover assets must be transferred to the Mortgage Credit Institution and, if such Mortgage
Credit Institution is wholly-owned by such originator, the assets and liabilities relating to the relevant issue
of covered bonds and the related cover pool will be consolidated with such originator. However, it is also
possible for a Mortgage Credit Institution to have multiple owners, in which case the issues of covered
bonds and the allocated cover pool may or may not be consolidated with the originator of the relevant
credits.

An Institution must manage its cover pool as well as any properties that it may acquire as a result of the
enforcement of delinquent mortgage credits. Institutions may also undertake certain activities necessary to
obtain additional liquidity.

In the event of insolvency, winding-up and dissolution of an Institution, the cover pool over which the
holders of covered bonds have a special creditor privilege will be segregated from the insolvent estate of
such Institution and will form a separate estate, i.e. an autonomous pool of assets managed in favour and to
the benefit of the holders of covered bonds and other preferred creditors as specified in the Covered Bonds
Law. In this respect, the Covered Bonds Law establishes a special regime which prevails over general
Portuguese insolvency regulations.
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If the cover assets are insufficient to meet interest and principal payments due on the covered bonds of the
insolvent Institution, the holders of covered bonds will also rank pari passu with unsecured creditors of the
Institution in relation to the remaining assets of the insolvent Institution.

COVER ASSETS

The following assets are eligible to collateralise issues of covered bonds made by an Institution in
accordance with the Covered Bonds Law:

e Pecuniary credits receivables which are not yet matured and neither subject to conditions nor
encumbered, judicially seized or apprehended and which are secured by:

(a) first ranking mortgages over residential or commercial real estate located in an EU Member
State; or

(o) junior mortgages but where all Mortgage Credits ranking senior thereto are held by the
Issuer and are also allocated to the Cover Pool;

(c) a personal guarantee granted by a credit institution or an appropriate insurance policy, in
any case together with a mortgage counter guarantee evidencing (a) or (b) above.

The following assets may also be included in the Cover Pool as Other Assets:

e Deposits with the Bank of Portugal, in cash or in securities eligible for credit transactions in the
Eurosystem (which is the monetary authority of the euro area which comprises the ECB and the
national banks of the EU Member States whose currency is the euro);

e Current or term account deposits with credit institutions (which are not in a control or group
relationship with the Issuer) having a rating equal to or higher than the minimum rating required at
any time by the Rating Agencies, provided that such minimum rating shall in any event be at least
“A-* or equivalent; and

e  Other assets meeting both the low risk and high liquidity requirements of the Bank of Portugal.

The Issuer undertakes that on any Business Day the Other Assets include assets specified under (a) above
corresponding to “AAA” or equivalent rated sovereign bonds from a EU Member-State, or Italian Sovereign
Bonds, the United States, Japan and/or Canada or other assets specified under (b) above with credit
institutions having a minimum rating at least equal to “A” or equivalent, in an amount (as calculated by the
Issuer on such Business Day) at least equal to the interest payments due by the Issuer under the outstanding
Covered Bonds during the next 90 days.

The aggregate value of the Other Assets may not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate value of the Cover
Pool allocated as collateral to all Covered Bonds issued by the Issuer.

The geographical scope of eligible assets is restricted to credits guaranteed by first ranking mortgages on
property located in the EU or loans granted to central governments and regional or local authorities located
in an EU Member State.
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Hedging contracts may also be included in the cover pool for hedging purposes, namely to hedge interest
rate, exchange rate and liquidity risks. The Bank of Portugal Regulations contain certain rules governing
the limits and conditions for the use of these hedging contracts.

The cover pool is of a dynamic nature. Accordingly, the Institution may be required, or may otherwise
decide to, include new assets in such cover pool or substitute assets in case the existing ones no longer
comply with the applicable financial and prudential requirements.

Furthermore, an Institution is required by the Covered Bonds Law to maintain a register of all the assets
comprised in the cover pool, including hedging contracts.

VALUATION AND LTV CRITERIA

Institutions are required to conduct valuations of mortgage properties and periodic updates of such
valuations in accordance with the rules defined by the Bank of Portugal (in particular, pursuant to Notice
5/2006, which establishes rules on the methods and frequency of the valuations of assets and derivatives).

The maximum Loan-to-Value for residential mortgages is 80 per cent. and 60 per cent. for commercial
mortgages loans.

The value of each property securing a mortgage credit comprised in a cover pool may not be higher than the
commercial value of such property, determined in accordance with a prudent criteria and taking into
consideration: (i) the sustainable long term characteristics of such property, (ii) the standard conditions of
the local market, (iii) the current use of the relevant property, and (iv) any alternative uses of each such
property.

Pursuant to the requirements of Notice 5/2006, the commercial value awarded by an issuer of covered bonds
to each of the properties securing mortgage credits comprised in a cover pool may not be higher than the
market value of the relevant properties. For these purposes, the market value of each property corresponds
to the price by which such property can be purchased by a third party purchaser on the date of the valuation
of such property, assuming that (i) the property is publicly put on sale, (ii) the market conditions allow for
a regular transfer of the property and (iii) there is a normal period of time to negotiate the corresponding
purchase and sale, considering the nature of the property.

Notice 5/2006 contains detailed provisions regarding valuation of properties securing mortgage credits
included in a cover pool (including subsequent valuations), the methods and frequency for such valuations,
the appointment, remuneration and role of the real estate valuation experts and transitional provisions
concerning valuations made prior to the enactment of the Bank of Portugal Regulations.

ASSET-LIABILITY MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS

The Covered Bonds Law and the Bank of Portugal Regulations establish the following asset and liabilities
matching requirements:

o The global nominal value of the outstanding mortgage covered bonds, cannot exceed 95 per cent. of
the global value of the mortgage credits and other assets at any time comprised in the relevant cover
pool (i.e., a mandatory overcollateralisation of 5.2632 per cent.);
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o The average maturity of outstanding mortgage covered bonds cannot exceed the average maturity of
the mortgage credits and substitution assets allocated to the relevant issue of covered bonds;

o The total amount of interest to be paid by an Institution under any covered bonds shall not exceed, at
any point in time, the amount of interest to be collected from the mortgage credits and other assets
comprised in the cover pool backing the relevant issue of covered bonds — this means, therefore, that
under the Covered Bonds Law cash flows from the cover pool must at all times be sufficient to meet
all scheduled payments due to the holders of covered bonds;

o The net present value of the liabilities arising from issues of covered bonds pursuant to the Covered
Bonds Law cannot exceed the net present value of the cover pool assigned to such covered bonds,
including any hedging contracts also comprised in the cover pool. This ratio must also be met for 200
basis points parallel shifts in the yield curve.

For the purposes of the calculation of the level of overcollateralisation, as well as of the remaining financial
and prudential requirements, Institutions are required to use the following criteria:

(i)  the mortgage credits shall be accounted for the nominal value of their outstanding principal, including
any accrued but unpaid interest;

(i) the covered bonds shall be accounted according to the nominal value of outstanding principal,
including accrued but unpaid interest; and

(iii) in relation to any other assets:

@) deposits shall be accounted for according to their amount together with any accrued but
unpaid interest; and

(b) securities eligible for Eurosystem credit transactions shall be accounted for under margin
valuation rules laid down by the Eurosystem or, if lower, according to their nominal value,
including accrued but unpaid interests.

If the relevant covered bonds are denominated in any currency other than euro, the Institution must use the
exchange rates published by the ECB as a reference.

The Covered Bonds Law also contains rules regarding the management of the cover pool allocated to one
or more issues of covered bonds, allowing the Institution, inter alia, to assign new mortgage credits to the
cover pool. The Institution may also enter into irrevocable credit facilities for the provision of liquidity in
connection with the liabilities arising under the covered bonds. The credit facility counterparty must have a
minimum credit rating of “A-" or equivalent.

An Institution is entitled to enter into derivatives contracts to hedge interest, exchange rate and liquidity
risks. These derivatives contracts are also included in the cover pool and the derivative counterparties (who
also benefit from the special creditor privilege) have to be rated “A-" or above. If a particular issue of
covered bonds is denominated in a currency other than euro, the Institution must enter into adequate hedging
contracts for the purpose of hedging the relevant currency exchange risk.

If the limits and requirements established in the Covered Bonds Law are exceeded, the issuer is required to
remedy the situation immediately by (i) allocating new mortgage credits, by (ii) purchasing outstanding
covered bonds in the secondary market and/or by (iii) allocating other eligible assets.
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Mortgage credits that become delinquent after being allocated to the cover pool may still remain in such
cover pool provided that the delinquency period is not equal to or higher than 90 days, in which case such
mortgage credits must be removed from the cover pool by the Institution and, if necessary to comply with
the prudential requirements established in the Covered Bonds Law, substituted by new mortgage credits.

Mortgage credits underlying covered bonds may only be sold or pledged if the Institution allocates new
mortgage credits to the covered bonds sufficient to maintain compliance with the financial and prudential
requirements set forth in the Covered Bonds Law.

Instruction 13/2006 contains rules to be followed in respect of notices to the Bank of Portugal regarding the
issue of covered bonds under the Covered Bonds Law. Prior to a first issuance of covered bonds, and on
each subsequent issuance, an Institution is required to provide the Bank of Portugal with certain
documentation and information, including a chart showing the detailed composition of the autonomous pool
of assets allocated to the covered bonds. On a monthly basis, the Institution is required to provide the Bank
of Portugal with information on the humber and amount of covered bonds outstanding and on any new
issues of covered bonds and redemptions occurred.

COVER POOL MONITOR, COMMON REPRESENTATIVE AND BANKING SUPERVISION

The Board of Directors of the Institution is required to appoint an independent auditor registered with the
CMVM for the purposes of monitoring the compliance by such Institution of the financial and prudential
requirements established in the Covered Bonds Law.

Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, the independent auditor is required to issue an annual report covering
the compliance by the issuer with the applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Also, a common representative of the holders of the covered bonds — common to all mortgage or public
covered bond issues — must be appointed by the Board of Directors of the Institution in order to represent
the interests of the holders of covered bonds.

The Bank of Portugal and the CMVM carry out banking and capital markets supervision, respectively.

SEGREGATION OF COVER ASSETS AND INSOLVENCY REMOTENESS
Asset segregation

The assets and hedging contracts allocated by the Institution to the issues of covered bonds will remain and
be registered in separate accounts of the Institution. The register will be maintained in codified form and
the code key will be deposited with the Bank of Portugal. This information will be deposited with the Bank
of Portugal in the form of a code key. If the holders of Covered Bonds decide to accelerate the relevant
covered bonds, the common representative of such holders shall request the Bank of Portugal to disclose
the information associated to such code key pursuant to article 4.5 of the Covered Bonds Law.

The assets included in the register maintained by the Institution will form a segregate estate over which the
holders of the covered bonds will have a special creditor privilege (“privilégio creditério™), in particular in
case of winding-up and dissolution of the Institution.

In the event of insolvency of the Institution, the assets allocated to one or more issues of covered bonds will
be segregated from the corresponding insolvent estate and will be managed autonomously by a third party
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until full payment of the amounts due to the holders of covered bonds. In any case, and even if the Institution
is declared insolvent, the Covered Bonds Law determines that timely payments of interest and
reimbursements under the covered bonds shall continue to be carried out.

In the case of voluntary dissolution of an Institution, the plan for such dissolution and winding-up, which
shall be submitted to the Bank of Portugal pursuant to Article 35-A of the Credit Institutions General
Regime, shall identify a substitute credit institution appointed to (i) manage the relevant cover pool allocated
to the covered bonds outstanding, and (ii) ensure that the payments of any amounts due to the holders of
such covered bonds are made. Such project shall also describe the general framework and conditions under
which those actions will be rendered by the substitute credit institution.

If the authorisation of an Institution to act as a credit institution in Portugal is revoked, the Bank of Portugal
shall, simultaneously with the decision to revoke such authorisation, also appoint a substitute credit
institution to manage the relevant cover pool allocated to the covered bonds outstanding and to ensure that
payments due to the holders of such covered bonds are made.

In accordance with Notice 8/2006, any substitute credit institution appointed by the Bank of Portugal to
service the cover pool following insolvency of the Institution shall: (i) immediately upon being appointed,
prepare an opening balance sheet in relation to the cover pool, supplemented by the corresponding
explanatory notes; (ii) perform all acts and things necessary or convenient for the prudent management of
the cover pool, including, without limitation, selling the mortgage credits comprised in the cover pool;
ensuring the timely collection in respect of the mortgage assets comprised in the cover pool; and performing
all other acts and administrative services in connection with such mortgage assets and related mortgages
and additional security; (iii) maintain and keep updated a segregated register of the cover pool in accordance
with the Covered Bonds Law; and (iv) prepare an annual financial report in relation to the cover pool and
the outstanding covered bonds, which report shall be the subject of an auditing report produced by an
independent auditor who shall be appointed as cover pool monitor by the substitute credit institution.

Furthermore, any substitute credit institution appointed by the Bank of Portugal to service the cover pool
following the insolvency of an Institution shall perform all acts and things necessary or convenient for
maintaining the relationship with the borrowers under the mortgage credits comprised in the relevant cover
pool.

Preferential status for covered bonds holders

Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, holders of covered bonds benefit from a special creditor privilege over
the assets assigned to the issue, with precedence over any other creditors, for the purpose of redemption of
principal and receipt of interest corresponding to the relevant covered bonds.

The mortgages that serve as collateral for the entitlements of the holders of covered bonds prevail over any
real estate preferential claims. If the assets comprised in the cover pool are not enough to pay interest and
principal under the covered bonds, the holders of covered bonds will then rank pari passu with unsecured
creditors of the relevant Institution.

The hedging contracts entered into by the Institution also form part of the cover pool and thus the relevant
counterparties will also benefit from the special creditor privilege over such cover pool. Accordingly, these
counterparties will have similar rights to those of the holders of the covered bonds and, consequently, their
contracts are not expected to be called in case of insolvency of the Institution.
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Pursuant to the Covered Bonds Law, in the case of dissolution and winding-up of an Institution, a meeting
of holders of all series of covered bonds then outstanding may decide, by a 2/3 majority vote, to accelerate
the covered bonds, in which case the administrator shall provide for the settlement of the estate allocated to
the relevant issue in accordance with the provisions defined in the Covered Bonds Law and in the relevant
terms and conditions that govern such issue.

RISK-WEIGHTING & COMPLIANCE WITH EUROPEAN LEGISLATION

Covered bonds issued in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law are in compliance with the requirements
of paragraph 4 of Article 52 of the UCITS Directive, as well as with subparagraphs (a) to (f) of paragraph
1 of Article 129 of the CRR. The risk-weighting applicable to covered bonds is also governed by Article
129 of the CRR.
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TAXATION

Portugal

The following is a general description of certain Portuguese tax consequences of the acquisition and
ownership of Covered Bonds. It does not purport to be an exhaustive description of all tax considerations
that may be relevant to decide about the purchase of Covered Bonds. Notably, the following general
discussion does not consider any specific facts or circumstances that may apply to a particular purchaser.

This summary is based on the laws of Portugal currently in full force and effect and as applied on the date
of this Base Prospectus, thus being subject to variation, possibly with retroactive or retrospective effect.

Prospective purchasers of Covered Bonds are advised to consult their own tax advisers as to the tax
consequences resulting from the purchase, ownership and disposition of Covered Bonds, including the effect
of any state or local taxes, under the tax laws of Portugal and each country where they are, or deemed to be,
residents.

The economic advantages deriving from interests, amortisation or reimbursement premiums and other types
of remuneration arising from Covered Bonds issued by private entities are qualified as investment income
for Portuguese tax purposes.

1. Covered Bonds not held through a centralised control system

Interest and other types of investment income obtained on Covered Bonds by a Portuguese resident
individual is subject to individual tax. If the payment of interest or other investment income is made
available to Portuguese resident individuals, withholding tax applies at a rate of 28 per cent., which is the
final tax on that income unless the individual elects to include such income in his taxable income, subject
to tax at progressive income tax rates of up to 48 per cent.. In the latter circumstance an additional income
tax will be due on the part of the taxable income exceeding EUR as follows: (i) 2.5 per cent. on the part of
the taxable income exceeding EUR 80,000 up to EUR 250,000, and (ii) 5 per cent. on the remaining part (if
any) of the taxable income exceeding EUR 250,000. Also, if the option of income aggregation is made an
additional surcharge will also be due for the tax year of 2017 according to the taxpayer taxable income, as
follows: (i) O per cent. for taxable income up to EUR 20,261.00; (ii) 0.88 per cent. for taxable income
exceeding EUR 20,261.00 up to EUR 40,522.00; (iii) 2.75 per cent. for taxable income exceeding EUR
40,522.00 up to EUR 80,640.00; (iv) 3.21 per cent. for taxable income exceeding EUR 80,640.Investment
income paid or made available on accounts held by one or more parties on account of unidentified third
parties is subject to a withholding tax rate of 35 per cent., except where the beneficial owner of the income
is identified, in which case the general rules will apply.

Interest and other investment income paid or made available (“colocado a disposi¢do™) to accounts in the
name of one or more accountholders acting on behalf of undisclosed entities is subject to a final withholding
tax at 35 per cent., unless the beneficial owner of the income is disclosed, in which case the general rules
will apply.

In the case of zero coupon Covered Bonds, the difference between the redemption value and the subscription
cost is qualified as investment income and is also subject to Portuguese income tax.
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Capital gains taxation of 28 per cent., applicable to Portuguese resident individuals, will apply on the
positive difference between the capital gains and capital losses arising from the transfer of the Covered
Bonds. Accrued interest qualifies as investment income, rather than as capital gains for tax purposes.

Interest and other investment income derived from Covered Bonds and capital gains realised with the
transfer of Covered Bonds by legal persons resident for tax purposes in Portugal and by non-resident legal
persons with a permanent establishment in Portugal to which the income or gains are attributable are
included in their taxable income and is subject to a 21 per cent. corporate tax rate applicable on taxable
profits, which may be subject to a municipal surcharge (“derrama municipal”) of up to 1.5 per cent. on their
taxable profits. A State Surcharge (“derrama estadual”) rate will be of 3 per cent. due on the part of the
taxable profits exceeding €1,500,000 up to €7,500,000 and of 5 per cent. on the part of the taxable profits
exceeding €7,500,000 up to €35,000,000, and taxable income above €35,000,000 will be subject to a 7 per
cent. rate.

Withholding tax on interest and other investment income at a rate of 25 per cent. applies, which is deemed
a payment on account of the final tax due.

Portuguese financial institutions, pension funds, mutual funds, retirement and/or education savings funds,
share savings funds, venture capital funds incorporated under the laws in Portugal and some exempt entities
are not subject to withholding tax.

Interest and other investment income paid or made available (“colocado a disposi¢do”) to accounts in the
name of one or more accountholders acting on behalf of undisclosed entities is subject to a final withholding
tax at 35 per cent., unless the beneficial owner of the income is disclosed, in which case the general rules
will apply.

Without prejudice to the special debt securities tax regime as described below, the general tax regime on
debt securities applicable to non-resident entities is the following.

Interest and other types of investment income obtained by nonresident individuals is subject to withholding
tax at a rate of 28 per cent.. Interest and other types of investment income obtained by a legal person non-
resident in Portugal without a Portuguese permanent establishment to which the income is attributable is
subject to withholding tax at a rate of 25 per cent., which is the final tax on that income.

Under the tax treaties entered into by Portugal which are in full force and effect on the date of this Base
Prospectus, the withholding tax rate may be reduced to 15, 12, 10 or 5 per cent., depending on the applicable
treaty and provided that the relevant formalities (including certification of residence by the tax authorities
of the beneficial owners of the interest and other investment income) are met. The reduction may apply at
source or through the refund of the excess tax. The forms currently applicable for these purposes were
approved by Order (“Despacho”) 30.359/2007, of the Portuguese Minister of State and Finance, published
in the 2nd Series of Portuguese official gazette no. 251, of 31 December, which may be available at
www.portaldasfinancas.gov.pt.

Interest and other investment income paid or made available (“colocado a disposi¢do’) to accounts in the
name of one or more accountholders acting on behalf of undisclosed entities is subject to a final withholding
tax at 35 per cent., unless the beneficial owner of the income is disclosed, in which case the general rules
will apply.

A withholding tax rate of 35 per cent. applies in case of investment income payments to individuals or
companies domiciled in a country, territory or region subject to a clearly more favourable tax regime
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included in the “low tax jurisdictions” list approved by Ministerial order (Portaria) No. 150/2004, of 13
February 2011, as amended from time to time (“Lista dos paises, territorios e regides com regimes de
tributagdo privilegiada, claramente mais favoraveis™).

Capital gains obtained on the transfer of Covered Bonds by non-resident individuals without a permanent
establishment in Portugal to which gains are attributable are exempt from Portuguese capital gains taxation
unless the individual is resident in a country, territory or region subject to a clearly more favourable tax
regime included in the “low tax jurisdictions” list approved by Ministerial order (Portaria) No. 150/2004,
of 13 February 2011, as amended from time to time (Lista dos paises, territorios e regioes com regimes de
tributagdo privilegiada, claramente mais favoradveis). Capital gains obtained by individuals that are not
entitled to said exemption will be subject to taxation at a 28 per cent. flat rate and should be declared in the
Portuguese annual tax return to be presented by the seller. Accrued interest does not qualify as capital gains
for tax purposes.

Regarding capital gains obtained on the disposal of Covered Bonds by a legal person non-resident in
Portugal for tax purposes and without a permanent establishment in Portugal to which gains are attributable
are exempt from Portuguese capital gains taxation, unless the share capital of the non-resident entity is more
than 25 per cent. directly or indirectly held by Portuguese resident entities or if the beneficial owner is
resident in a country, territory or region subject to a clearly more favourable tax regime included in the “low
tax jurisdictions” list approved by Ministerial order (Portaria) No. 150/2004, of 13 February 2011, as
amended from time to time (Lista dos paises, territorios e regides com regimes de tributacao privilegiada,
claramente mais favoraveis). If the exemption does not apply, the gains will be subject to corporate income
tax at a rate of 21 per cent. Under the tax treaties entered into by Portugal, such gains are usually not subject
to Portuguese corporate income tax, but the applicable rules should be confirmed on a case by case basis.

Stamp tax at a rate of 10 per cent. applies to the acquisition through gift or inheritance of Covered Bonds
by an individual who is domiciled in Portugal. An exemption applies to transfers in favour of the spouse, de
facto spouse, descendants and parents/grandparents. The acquisition of Covered Bonds through gift or
inheritance by a Portuguese resident legal person or a non-resident acting through a Portuguese permanent
establishment is subject to a 21 per cent. corporate tax rate applicable on the taxable profits, which may be
subject to a municipal surcharge (“derrama municipal”) of up to 1.5 per cent. over their taxable profits. A
State Surcharge (“derrama estadual”) rate will be of 3 per cent. due on the part of the taxable profits
exceeding €1,500,000 up to €7,500,000 and of 5 per cent. on the part of the taxable profits exceeding
€7,500,000 up to €35,000,000, and taxable income above €35,000,000 will be subject to a 7 per cent. rate.
No stamp tax applies to the acquisition through gift and inheritance of Covered Bonds by an individual who
is not domiciled in Portugal. The acquisition of Covered Bonds through gift or inheritance by a non-resident
legal person is subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 25 per cent. Under the tax treaties entered into by
Portugal, such gains are usually not subject to Portuguese tax, but the applicable rules should be confirmed
on a case by case basis.

There is no wealth or estate tax in Portugal on the Covered Bonds.
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2. Covered Bonds held through a centralised control system

The regime described in 1. above corresponds to the general tax treatment of investment income and capital
gains on Covered Bonds and to the acquisition through gift or inheritance of such Bonds.

Nevertheless, pursuant to the Special Tax Regime for Debt Securities, approved by Decree-law 193/2005,
of 7 November, as amended from time to time (“the special regime approved by Decree-law 193/2005”),
investment income and capital gains on the disposal of debt securities issued by Portuguese resident entities,
such as the Covered Bonds obtained by non-resident beneficial owners, are exempt from Portuguese income
tax provided that (i) the debt securities are integrated in a centralised system managed by an entity resident
in Portugal or by an international clearing system managing entity of a member state of the European Union
or of the European Economic Area (in this case, the member state of the European Economic Area should
be subject to administrative cooperation in tax issues similar to the administrative cooperation agreement in
force between EU countries), and (ii) the beneficial owners are:

(i) central banks or governmental agencies; or
(if) international organisations recognised by the Portuguese State; or

(iii) entities with residency in countries with whom Portugal has a double tax treaty or a tax
information exchange agreement in force; or

(iv) other entities without headquarters, effective management or a permanent establishment in the
Portuguese territory to which the relevant income is attributable and which are not domiciled in
a country, territory or region subject to a clearly more favourable tax regime included in the “low
tax jurisdictions” list approved by Ministerial order (Portaria) No. 150/2004, of 13 February
2011, as amended from time to time (“Lista dos paises, territérios e regides com regimes de
tributagdo privilegiada, claramente mais favordveis”).

The special regime approved by Decree-Law 193/2005 sets out the detailed rules and procedures to be
followed on the evidence of non-residence by the beneficial owners of the bonds to which it applies. Under
these rules, the direct register entity (i.e. the entity affiliated to the centralised system where the securities
are integrated), as the entity holding the relevant account with the relevant centralised system in which the
Covered Bonds are integrated, will be under the obligation to obtain and keep proof, in the form described
below, that the beneficial owner is a non-resident entity that is entitled to the exemption. As a general rule,
the evidence of non-residence status should be provided to, and received by, the direct registration entities
prior to the relevant date for payment of any interest, or the redemption date (for zero coupon Covered
Bonds), and prior to the transfer of Covered Bonds date, as the case may be. The relevant direct registering
entity shall withhold the relevant tax if the requirements for a withholding tax exemption are not met.

The following is a general description of the rules and procedures on the proof required for the exemption
to apply at source, as they stand on the date of this Base Prospectus.

(a) Domestically Cleared Covered Bonds

The beneficial owner of Covered Bonds must provide proof of non-residence in Portuguese territory
substantially in the terms set forth below.
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(i) If the beneficial owner of Covered Bonds is a central bank, an international organisation or a public
law institution integrated in the Public Administration (either central, regional, peripheral, indirect
or autonomous), a declaration of tax residence issued by the beneficial owner of Covered Bonds
itself, duly signed and authenticated or proof pursuant to (iv) below;

(ii) If the beneficial owner of Covered Bonds is a credit institution, a financial company, a pension
fund or an insurance company domiciled in any OECD country or in a country with which
Portugal has entered into a double taxation treaty and is subject to a special supervision regime
or administrative registration, certification shall be made by means of the following: (A) its tax
identification; or (B) a certificate issued by the entity responsible for such supervision or
registration confirming the legal existence of the beneficial owner of Covered Bonds and its
domicile; or (C) proof of non-residence pursuant to (iv) below.

(iii) If the beneficial owner of Covered Bonds is either an investment fund or other type of collective
investment undertaking domiciled in any OECD country or any country with which Portugal has
entered into a double tax treaty, certification shall be provided by means of any of the following
documents: (A) declaration issued by the entity which is responsible for its registration or
supervision or by the tax authorities, confirming its legal existence, the law of incorporation and
domicile; or (B) proof of non-residence pursuant to (iv) below.

(iv) In any other case, confirmation must be made by way of (A) a certificate of residence or
equivalent document issued by the relevant tax authorities; or (B) a document issued by the
relevant Portuguese consulate certifying residence abroad; or (C) a document specifically issued
by an official entity of the public administration (either central, regional or peripheral, indirect or
autonomous) of the relevant country certifying the residence; for these purposes, an identification
document such as a passport or an identity card or document by means of which it is only
indirectly possible to assume the relevant tax residence (such as a work or permanent residency
permit) is not acceptable.

There are rules regarding the authenticity and validity of the documents mentioned in paragraph (iv) above,
in particular that the beneficial owner of Covered Bonds must provide an original or a certified copy of the
residence certificate or equivalent document. This document must be issued up to until 3 months after the
date on which the withholding tax would have been applied and will be valid for a 3 year period starting on
the date such document is produced. The beneficial owner of Covered Bonds must inform the register entity
immediately of any change on the requirement conditions that may prevent the tax exemption to apply.

When the Covered Bonds are held by central banks, governmental agencies, investment funds or other type
of collective investment undertaking domiciled in any OECD country, the respective proof of non-residence
in Portuguese territory is provided just once, its periodical renewal not being necessary.

(b) Internationally Cleared Covered Bonds

If the Covered Bonds are held through a centralised system recognised under the Portuguese Securities Code
and complementary legislation, and registered in an account with an international clearing system under the
terms foreseen in Decree-Law 193/2005 (such as Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg), the identification
and amount of securities, as well as the amount of income, and, if applicable, the amount of withheld tax,
shall be communicated (as mentioned below) and the beneficiaries shall be identified under one of the
following categories:
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(i) Entities with residence, headquarters, effective management or permanent establishment to
which the income would be attributable, and which are exempt from taxation or not subject to
tax withholding;

(ii)  Entities with residence in a country, territory or region subject to a clearly more favourable tax
regime included in the “low tax jurisdictions” list approved by Ministerial order (“Portaria”)
No. 150/2004, of 13 February 2011, as amended from time to time (“Lista dos paises, territorios
e regioes com regimes de tributa¢do privilegiada, claramente mais favoraveis”).

(iii) Entities with residence, headquarters, effective management or permanent establishment to
which the income would be attributable, and which are exempt from taxation or not subject to
tax withholdings;

(iv) Other entities which do not have residence, headquarters, effective management or permanent
establishment to which the income would be attributable.

On each interest payment date, the following information with respect of each one of the beneficiaries
mentioned in (i), (ii) and (iii) should be communicated:

Q) Name and address;

(i) Tax identification number (if available);
(iii) Identification and amount of securities held:;
(iv)  Amount of income.

In addition, the international clearing system managing entity shall send the above information to the direct
register entity, or its representatives, and should send the information regarding all accounts under its
management.

No Portuguese exemption shall apply at source under the special regime approved by Decree-law 193/2005
if the above rules and procedures are not complied with. Accordingly, the general Portuguese tax provisions
shall apply as described above.

If the conditions for the exemption to apply are met, but, due to inaccurate or insufficient information, tax
was withheld, a special refund procedure is available under the special regime approved by Decree-law
193/2005. The refund claim is to be submitted to the direct or indirect register entity of the Covered Bonds
within 6 months from the date the withholding took place. A special tax form for these purposes was
approved by Order (“Despacho”) 2937/2014, of the Portuguese Secretary of State for Tax Affairs, published
in 2nd Series of Portuguese official gazette no. 37, of 21 February, which may be available at
www.portaldasfinancas.gov.pt.

The refund of withholding tax in other circumstances or after the above 6 months period is to be claimed to
the Portuguese tax authorities under the general procedures and within a 2 years period after the end of the
year where the income was obtained.

EU Savings Directive, OECD CRS and Directive 2014/107/EU

Under EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC, as amended from time to time, on the taxation of savings income
(the “EU Savings Directive”), Member States are required to provide to the tax authorities of another
Member State details of payments of interest (or similar income) paid by a person within its jurisdiction to
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an individual resident in that other Member State. However, for a transitional period, Austria is instead
required (unless during that period it elects otherwise) to operate a withholding system in relation to such
payments (the ending of such transitional period being dependent upon the conclusion of certain other
agreements relating to information exchange with certain other countries). A number of non-EU countries
and territories including Switzerland have adopted similar measures (a withholding system in the case of
Switzerland). Please note that Luxembourg, who also applied the withholding system until 31 December
2014, has implemented the automatic exchange of information system, effective as of 1 January 2015
onwards.

If a payment were to be made or collected through a Member State which has opted for a withholding system
and an amount of, or in respect of, tax were to be withheld from that payment, neither the Issuer nor the
Paying Agent nor any other person would be obliged to pay additional amounts with respect to any Notes
as a result of the imposition of such withholding tax. The Issuer is required to maintain a Paying Agent in a
Member State that is not obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to the EU Savings Directive.

However, on 10 November 2015 the Council of the European Union adopted the Council Directive (EU)
2015/2060, of 10 November 2015, repealing the EU Savings Directive from 1 January 2017 in the case of
Austria and from 1 January 2016 in the case of all other Member States of the European Union (subject to
on-going requirements to fulfil administrative obligations such as the reporting and exchange of information
relating to, and accounting for withholding taxes on, payments made before those dates). This is to prevent
overlap between the EU Savings Directive and a new automatic exchange of information regime to be
implemented under Council Directive 2011/16/EU on Administrative Cooperation in the field of Taxation
(as amended from time to time). The new regime under Council Directive 2011/16/EU (as amended from
time to time) is in accordance with the Global Standard released by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development in July 2014. Council Directive 2011/16/EU (as amended from time to time) is
generally broader in scope than the Savings Directive, although it does not impose withholding taxes.

Portugal has implemented the above Savings Directive on taxation of savings income into the Portuguese
law through Decree-Law no. 62/2005, of 11 March 2005, as amended from time to time. Accordingly, it is
expected that Decree-Law no. 62/2005, of 11 March 2005, as amended from time to time, will be revoked.

Moreover, Council Directive 2014/107/EU was transposed to Portuguese national law on October 2016 by
Decree-Law 64/2016, of October 11 (“Portuguese CRS Law”), which amended Decree-Law number
61/2013, of May 10, which transposed Directive 2011/16/EU.

Under the Portuguese CRS Law, the first exchange of information will be enacted in 2017 for information
related to the calendar year 2016.
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE AND SECONDARY MARKET ARRANGEMENTS

The Dealer has in the Programme Agreement agreed with the Issuer a basis upon which it may from time
to time agree to purchase Covered Bonds.

Any such agreement will extend to those matters stated under “Form of the Covered Bonds and Clearing
Systems” and “Terms and Conditions of the Covered Bonds”. In the Programme Agreement, the Issuer has
agreed to reimburse the Dealer for certain of its expenses in connection with the establishment and any
future update of the Programme and the issue of Covered Bonds under the Programme and to indemnify the
Dealer against certain liabilities incurred by it in connection therewith.

The following restrictions may be amended or supplemented in the relevant Final Terms.
United States

The Covered Bonds have not been and will not be registered under the US Securities Act, and may not be
offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except pursuant
to an exemption from or in a transaction not subject to the registration requirements of the US Securities
Act. The Covered Bonds are initially being offered and sold only outside the United States in reliance on
Regulation S under the US Securities Act. Terms used in this paragraph and the following paragraph have
the meanings given to them by Regulation S under the US Securities Act.

The Dealer has represented and agreed that it will not offer or sell any Covered Bonds (i) as part of their
distribution at any time or (ii) otherwise until 40 days after the completion of the distribution, as determined
and certified by the relevant Dealer or, in the case of an issue of Covered Bonds on a syndicated basis, the
relevant lead manager, of all Covered Bonds of the Tranche of which such Covered Bonds are a part, except
in accordance with Rule 903 of Regulation S under the US Securities Act. Accordingly, the Dealer has
represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to
represent and agree, that neither it, its affiliates nor any persons acting on its or their behalf have engaged
or will engage in any directed selling efforts with respect to any Covered Bonds, and that it and they have
complied and will comply with the offering restrictions requirement of Regulation S. The Dealer has agreed,
and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree, that, at or prior to
confirmation of sale of Covered Bonds, it will have sent to each distributor, dealer or person receiving a
selling concession, fee or other remuneration that purchases Covered Bonds from it during the distribution
compliance period a confirmation or notice to substantially the following effect:

“The Securities covered hereby have not been registered under the U.S. US Securities Act of 1933,
as amended (the “US Securities Act”), and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to,
or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (i) as part of their distribution at any time or (ii) otherwise
until 40 days after the completion of the distribution of the Securities as determined and certified by
the relevant Dealer, in the case of a non-syndicated issue, or the Lead Manager, in the case of a
syndicated issue, and except in either case in accordance with Regulation S under the US Securities
Act. Terms used above have the meanings given to them by Regulation S.”

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the offering of any Series of Covered Bonds, an offer
or sale of such Covered Bonds within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the
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offering) may violate the registration requirements of the US Securities Act if such offer or sale is made
otherwise than in accordance with an available exemption from registration under the US Securities Act.

Japan

The Covered Bonds have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange
Act of Japan (Act no. 25 of 1948, as amended from time to time; the “FIEA”) and, accordingly, the Dealer
has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to
represent and agree, that it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Covered Bonds, directly or
indirectly, in Japan to, or for the benefit of, a resident in Japan, as defined under Item 5, Paragraph 1, Article
6 of the Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Act (Act no. 228 of 1949, as amended from time to time), or
to others for re-offering or re-sale, directly or indirectly, in Japan to, or for the benefit of, a resident in Japan
except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with
the FIEA and any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan.

United Kingdom

The Dealer represents and agrees, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required
to represent and agree, that:

(@) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be
communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of
section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the “FSMA”) received by it in connection
with the issue or sale of any Covered Bonds in circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA
does not apply to the Issuer; and

(b) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything
done by it in relation to such Covered Bonds in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Italy

The offering of Covered Bonds has not been registered with the Commissione nazionale per le Societa e la
Borsa (“CONSOB”) pursuant to Italian securities legislation and, accordingly, the Dealer has represented
and agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree,
that, save as set out below, it has not made and will not make an offer of any Covered Bonds to the public
in the Republic of Italy, and that sales of the Covered Bonds in the Republic of Italy shall be effected in
accordance with all Italian securities, tax and exchange control and other applicable laws and regulations;
in particular, no Covered Bonds may be offered, sold or delivered, nor copies of the Base Prospectus or of
any other document relating to any Covered Bonds may be distributed in the Republic of Italy, except:

(i)  toqualified investors (investitori qualificati), as defined pursuant to Article 100 of Legislative Decree
No. 58 of February 1998, as amended from time to time (the “Financial Services Act”) and Article
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34-ter, paragraph 1 (letter b) of CONSOB Regulation No. 11971 of 14 May 1999, as amended from
time to time (“Regulation No. 11971”); or

(i)  inany other circumstances which are exempted from the rules on public offerings pursuant to Article
100 of the Financial Services Act and Article 34-ter of Regulation No. 11971.

Any offer, sale or delivery of the Covered Bonds or distribution of copies of this Base Prospectus or any
other document relating to the Covered Bonds in the Republic of Italy under (i) or (ii) above must be:

() made by an investment firm, bank or financial intermediary permitted to conduct such activities in
the Republic of Italy in accordance with the Financial Law, CONSOB Regulation No. 16190 of 29
October 2007, as amended from time to time, and Legislative Decree No. 385 of 1 September 1993,
as amended from time to time (the “Banking Act”);

(b) in compliance with Article 129 of the Banking Act, as amended from time to time, and the
implementing guidelines of the Bank of Italy, as amended from time to time, pursuant to which the
Bank of Italy may request information on the issue or the offer of securities in the Republic of Italy;
and

(c) in compliance with any other applicable laws and regulations or requirement imposed by CONSOB
or other Italian authority.

Public Offer Selling Restrictions under the Prospectus Directive

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus
Directive (each, a “Relevant Member State”), the Dealer represents, warrants and agrees, and each further
Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that with effect from and
including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State (the
“Relevant Implementation Date”) it has not made and will not make an offer of Covered Bonds which are
subject to the offering contemplated by this Base Prospectus as completed by the Final Terms in relation
thereto to the public in that Relevant Member State except that it may, with effect from and including the
Relevant Implementation Date, make an offer of such Covered Bonds to the public in that Relevant Member
State:

() at any time to legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

(o) at any time to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in
the Prospectus Directive) subject to obtaining the prior consent of the Dealer or Dealers nominated
by the Issuer for any such offer; or

(c) at any time in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,

provided that no such offer of Covered Bonds referred to in (a) to (d) above shall require the Issuer or any
Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus
pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an “offer of Covered Bonds to the public” in relation to
any Covered Bonds in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means
of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Covered Bonds to be offered so as to enable an
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investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the Covered Bonds, as the same may be varied in that Member
State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State and the expression
Prospectus Directive means Directive 2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto, including the 2010 PD Amending
Directive, to the extent implemented by the Relevant Member State)and includes any relevant implementing
measure in the Relevant Member State and the expression “2010 PD Amending Directive” means Directive
2010/73/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 24" November 2010.

Portugal

In relation to the Covered Bonds, the Dealer represents and agrees with the Issuer, and each further Dealer
appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that, except as permitted by the
Programme Agreement: (i) it has not directly or indirectly taken any action or offered, advertised, marketed,
invited to subscribe, gathered investment intentions, sold or delivered and will not directly or indirectly take
any action, offer, advertise, market, invite to subscribe, gather investment intentions, sell, re-sell, re-offer
or deliver any Covered Bonds in circumstances which could qualify as a public offer (“oferta publica”) of
securities pursuant to the Portuguese Securities Code and other applicable securities legislation and
regulations, notably in circumstances which could qualify as a public offer addressed to individuals or
entities resident in Portugal or having permanent establishment located in Portuguese territory, as the case
may be; (ii) all offers, sales and distributions by it of the Covered Bonds have been and will only be made
in Portugal in circumstances that, pursuant to the Portuguese Securities Code, qualify as a private placement
of Covered Bonds only (“oferta particular”); (iii) it has not distributed, made available or caused to be
distributed and will not distribute, make available or cause to be distributed the Base Prospectus or any other
offering material relating to the Covered Bonds to the public in Portugal; (iv) if the Covered Bonds are
subject to a private placement addressed (a) exclusively to qualified investors (“investidores qualificados™)
as defined from time to time in article 30 of the Portuguese Securities Code, or (b) to less than 150 natural
or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive), such private
placement will be considered as a private placement of securities pursuant to the Portuguese Securities
Code; (v) private placements addressed by companies open to public investment (“sociedades abertas”) or
by companies issuing securities listed on a regulated market shall be notified to the CMVM for statistics
purposes; (vi) it will comply with all applicable provisions of the Portuguese Securities Code and any
applicable CMVM Regulations and all relevant Portuguese laws and regulations, in any such case that may
be applicable to it in respect of any offer or sale of Covered Bonds by it in Portugal or to individuals or
entities resident in Portugal or having permanent establishment located in Portuguese territory, as the case
may be; notably, the Dealer has represented and agreed that it shall at all times comply with all applicable
laws and regulations in force in Portugal, including (without limitation) the Portuguese Securities Code, the
CMVM Regulations and the Prospectus Regulation implementing the Prospectus Directive, regarding the
placement of any Covered Bonds in Portugal or to individuals or entities resident in Portugal or having
permanent establishment located in Portuguese territory, as the case may be, including the publication of a
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Base Prospectus, when applicable, and that such placement shall only be authorised and performed to the
extent that there is full compliance with such laws and regulations.

General

These selling restrictions may be modified by the agreement of the Issuer and the Dealer following a change
in a relevant law, regulation or directive.

No action has been taken in any jurisdiction that would permit a public offering of any of the Covered
Bonds, or possession or distribution of the Base Prospectus or any other offering material or any Final
Terms, in any country or jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required.

The Dealer agrees that it will, to the best of its knowledge, comply with all relevant laws, regulations and
directives in each jurisdiction in which it purchases, offers, sells or delivers Covered Bonds or has in its
possession or distributes the Base Prospectus, any other offering material or any Final Terms and neither the
Issuer nor any other Dealer shall have responsibility therefore.

None of the Issuer and the Dealer represents that the Covered Bonds may at any time lawfully be sold in
compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant to any
exemption available thereunder, or assumes any responsibility for facilitating such sale.

Secondary Market Arrangements

The Issuer may enter into agreements with the Dealer or other persons in relation to a Tranche or Series of
Covered Bonds whereby the Dealer may agree to provide liquidity in those Covered Bonds through bid and
offer rate arrangements. The relevant Dealers or relevant persons in such agreements may agree to quote
bid and offer prices for the relevant Covered Bonds at such rates and in such sizes as are specified in the
relevant agreement and the provision of such quotes may be subject to other conditions as set out in the
relevant agreement. Not all issues of Covered Bonds under the Programme will benefit from such
agreements. A description of the main terms of any such agreements and the names and addresses of the
relevant Dealers or other persons who are party to such will be disclosed in the applicable Final Terms for
the relevant Covered Bonds.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Authorisation

The establishment of the Programme was duly authorised by resolutions of the Board of Directors of the
Issuer dated 13 December 2007 and 26 January 2017, in accordance with the provisions of the Covered
Bonds Law.

Listing

Application has been made to list the Covered Bonds on the regulated market Euronext Lisbon.

Interbolsa

The Covered Bonds have been accepted for settlement through Interbolsa. The appropriate common code
(if applicable) and ISIN for each Tranche of Covered Bonds will be specified in the relevant Final Terms.
If the Covered Bonds are to clear through an additional or alternative clearing system the appropriate
information will be specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Conditions for Determining Price

The price and amount of Covered Bonds to be issued under the Programme will be determined by the Issuer
and the relevant Dealer(s) at the time of issue in accordance with prevailing market conditions.

Significant or Material Change

Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, namely at the end of the risk factor “The fulfilment of both the current
and future capital requirements as set out by the European authorities and by the Bank of Portugal could
lead the Issuer’s Group to attract additional capital and/or to face adverse consequences” which could be
found on pages 15 to 20 (paragraphs starting in “The sale of...” and ending in ““...2015 BFA results.”), there
has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Issuer since the publication of the Half Year
2016 Report (Audited consolidated financial statements) and no significant change in the financial position
of the Issuer and BPI Group since the publication of the Issuer's unaudited consolidated financial
information as at 31 December 2016.

Litigation

Save as disclose in this Prospectus, namely at the end (three last paragraphs) of the risk factor ““The fulfilment
of both the current and future capital requirements as set out by the European authorities and by the Bank
of Portugal could lead the Issuer’s Group to attract additional capital and/or to face adverse consequences”

which could be found on pages 15 to 20, there have been no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings
(including any proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Issuer is aware) during the 12
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months preceding the date of this Base Prospectus which may have or have had in the recent past a
significant effect on the Issuer’s financial position thereof.

Accounts

Deloitte & Associados SROC, S.A., associated with the Portuguese Association of the Chartered
Accountants (“Ordem dos Revisores Oficiais de Contas™) under no. 43 and registered with the CMVM
under no. 231, have audited the consolidated accounts of the Issuer in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards in Portugal and the International Auditing Standards.

The consolidated accounts for the financial years ended on 31 December 2014 and on 31 December 2015
and for the first half of 2016 were prepared according to International Accounting Standards (IAS) and with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“lASB”) and endorsed by the European Union.

Documents Available

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at and may be obtained free of charge
from the registered offices of the Issuer and from the specified offices of the Common Representative and
the Paying Agents for the time being:

(@)  The English translation of the Articles of Association of the Issuer;

(b)  The English translation of the Issuer’s consolidated Annual Report in respect of the financial years
ended on 31 December 2014 and on 31 December 2015;

(c)  The English translation of the Issuer’s first half 2016 interim consolidated Report;

(d) The English translation of the unaudited consolidated quarterly information in respect of the first 9
months of 2016 (unaudited accounts);

(e) the Programme Agreement;

(f)  the Agency and Payments Procedures;

(9) the Common Representative Appointment Agreement;
(h)  this Base Prospectus and any supplement thereto;

(i)  anyrelevant Final Terms (save that Final Terms relating to Covered Bonds which are neither admitted
to trading on a regulated market in the EEA nor offered in the EEA in circumstances where a
prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus Directive will only be available for
inspection by a holder of such Covered Bonds and such holder must produce evidence satisfactory to
the Issuer or the relevant Paying Agent as to its holding of Covered Bonds and identity); and

(7)) in the case of an issue of Covered Bonds subscribed pursuant to a subscription agreement, the
subscription agreement (or equivalent document).

Electronic copy of this Base Prospectus
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Electronic copies of this Base Prospectus (and any supplements thereto) are available from the official
website of the Issuer (www.bancobpi.pt) and the official website of the CMVM (www.cmvm.pt).

Post issuance reporting

Any information which the Issuer is required by law or regulation to provide in relation to itself or securities
issued by it, including the Covered Bonds, will be made available at www.cmvm.pt and at
www.bancobpi.pt.

The Issuer publishes quarterly investor reports on the outstanding Covered Bonds, including information on
the Cover Pool and the applicable Overcollateralisation. Such reports are available at:
http://bpi.bancobpi.pt/index.asp?rildArea=AreaDivida&riChgLng=1&riLang=en&rild=ProgramaEmissoe
SOH2&rildTopo=.

The following information could be found on the December 2016 Investor Report:
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2. Regulatory Summary

GI11 UCITS Compiiance {#/N) ¥
Gilz LCRR Compidiance (V/N) ¥
G113 ILCR status hetps: .coweredbandiabel.comyssuer/23
1 Generni Information Nominal [mn}
G311 Cower Pool See £515
6312 Outstanding Covered Bands 4,700
06311 Cover Pool Size [NPV] [mm) 7524
06312 Outstanding Covered Bonds [KEV] {mn) 4852
06313
0G.3.1.4
2 Overoliterolisation (0C) Legal Actual Minimum Committed Purpose
G311 oc (%) 526 862 3250 Rating Requirements
3. Cover Pool Compesition Mominal [mn) % Cover Poal
[EER] Mortgages 5,459 55.75%
6332 Fublic Sector L1} 0%
6333 Shipping L1} 0%
G334 Subistiiste Assets 16 e
G335 Crther L1} 0%
GAIE Total £.515 bl
4. Cover Pool Amortisation Profile Contractual (mn) Upon {rnng % Total Contractual = Upon F
G341 ‘Weghted Average Iife (in years) 13.02 NO3
By busckets:
G342 a.1y 312 HD3 494% ND2
G243 1-2% = HD3 458 ND2
G344 z.3Y =7 HD3 455% ND2
GIAE 3.4Y =0 ND3 4.45% ND2
G346 4.5% a4 HD3 457% ND2
G347 5.10% 1374 HD3 2105 ND2
GA4H kY 3,540 HD3 55ETR ND2
G348 Total £.515 o bl o8
5. Maturity of Covered Bonds Initial Maturity (mn] Extended Maturity [mn) % Tatal Initial Maturity % Total Extended Matuarity
G351 ‘Waghted Average Iife (in years) L] 588
G352 By busckets:
G353 a.1y 1,000 1 28% 0.00%
Gi%4 1-2% 00 1,000 476% 1.28%
G385 2.3Y L1} 200 0% 4.26%
GALE 3.4Y 00 o 1T 0.00%
GIST 4.5Y 00 ] 1T 12.77T%
GASH 5.10% 2,300 2,500 EELE B1.700
G35E kY a o 000% 0.00%
63510 Todal 4,700 4,700 bl 100%
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13. Derivatives & Swaps

53131 Derivatives in the cover pool (min) a
E3132 Type of intenest rate swaps |imtra-group, extemal or both) NDZ
53133 yp af cu rate swaps [intra-growp, external or both) NDZ

4. References to Capital Iteqlim Regulation (CRR)
129(7)

Thirdauer b thal, of B dime of il asvoncr and Boied on Frompanecy dolo mody publicly sishle by e paue, e covmed bons woakd oty B sipbally enferia for Adticir 2507 of S Copsl Argairesenis Aequiatios [EL) BAE/0LY 1 shoukd be sotd, boweser, thet
ik o ot Fxpue in b fore of covered Bond orr g ibie ko preferessin! trea el arde Brguisfion (L] S48001 i wilimetey @ metier i by delerminad by @ rekeiant mersizy mBtuion ond i reiresal aupsmancry sulbority ond Hhe i dov nof seorp! ory erpons BT n il eod.

G411 ] Volue of the cover pool autstanding cowersd bands: 38

G412 1] Value of covered bonds: E:]

G413 N} Geogrophios distribution: A3

G214 fi}  Typpe of cower assets: 52

G415 (1] Lian stze: 1E7 for Bpsidential Morpage Assets 267 for Commercial Mortgage Ascots
GALE M dnterest rote risk - cover poal: 130 161
G417 ] Correncyrisk = cover pooi: pli]

G418 ] imterest rote risk - coveved bond: 181

G419 ) Currency nisk - covered Bond!: 135

G410 {Please refer ta Tab C. HTT Harmondsed Glassary® for hedging strategy) 17 in the Harmonised Glossary

GA111 i} Maturity structure of cover arsets -3

64112 i Maturity strecture of covered bands: a2

G.4.1.13 {hv]  Percentoge of kaans mose than ninety days past due. 160 for Mortzage Assets

129(1)
G511 Exposure to credit instRute credit quolty step 1 & 2 E
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Field
Number

MT.1.1
M.7.1.2
M7T.13
M.7.1.4

MT.2.1
M.T.31

M.7.4.1
MT.42
M.7.43
MT.44
MT.45
M.7.456
MTA47
M.7.58
M.7.43
BT 410
M.T411
MTAI12
MTL13
WLTA.14
MTA15
M.74.16
MTA17
M.T4.18
M.T4.19
BATA2D
M.T4.21
MATA22
MATA23
ML.T4.24
BATA35
M.74.26
ML.T4.27
BATA38
ML.T4.29
BT 430
BT 431
ML.T432
BAT233
WLTA.34
BT 435
BT 236
WLT4.37
M7 438
MLT4.39
MALT2.50
BATAA1
WLTA.42
MLTA43
WLTA.84
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Other
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2. General Infarmation
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3. Concentration Risks
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4. Breakdown by Geogrophy
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Netherlands
Hungary
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Lateia
Lithuania
Lumembourg
Mata
Foland
Farhagal
Romania
Slovakia
Sowenia
Spain
Sweden
United Kingdom

[Eurpgean Economic Sres (not member of EU)

leeland
Liechtenstein
[Marway
Other
Swezeriand
Australia
Birail
‘Canaida
lapan
Korea
New Tealand
SHrgapans
s
Other

‘Mominal (mn}

5,485

BA55

H

|
i

=
UUUUUUUUUUlUUUUI:IUUUUUUEUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUE
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M.T51 Liskaa 3923 a 3928
M.75.2 Morte 26.24 a 624
M.7.5.3 Cemtro 19.72 a 12.32
MT54 Alentejo B.12 a 612
MI5S Mgarve 511 0 511
M.I5E 188 a 185
MTS5T Macera 1.68 a 1B
. sbeodownbyimerstAme  Resdentalloas  WCommerallowns  STotslMorgages
M.TE1 Fixed rate 407 a 407
M52 Floating rate 9553 a a5.83
M7 63 Other o a [1]
. rerddownbyResmenthpe  NResdetlloms KCommemlaliams KTowlMempges
M7 Bullet/ interest only .18 a Qle
M772 Amortising 4826 a 926
M.7.7.3 Other 0.57 a as?
. stmmsemonng  NRedetlloas  WCommemhlloams  STowlMomgages
M.781 Up ta 12maonths 39 a EE]
M.7.8.2 @ 12 - 524 months 552 a 592
M7a3 214 - £ 36 months ER>] a 282
M7aa = 36 - £ 60 months BE3 a 663
M.785 = 50 months 80.03 a 80.03
. sNenreformingloassivesl  WRedetilloas  WCommerlloams  STowlMomgages
M.78.1 % NFLs .00 a [1]
T.A Residential Cover Pool
MTAL01 Average lcan size (D00s) 0.042
By buckess [mn):
M.7TAI0.2 Oto 10 114 15,435 1.75% 14.54%
M.7A103 10taZ0 3 12,01 5.02% 1647%
M.7A10.4 20ta 30 3 15819 6.05% 1181%
M.TAI0E 30ta 40 a85 13,870 T.88% 10.35%,
M.TAIDE Ata 50 556 132710 2.17% 5.50r%
M.TALLT S0tasd BES 10,094 253% T53%
M.TAI0E Bl ta 70 533 8712 B.20% B1T%
M.7TALDES Mtas] 47 B335 T.30% 4.73%
M.7A10.20 Bita S0 442 537 6.80% 1.88%
M.TAI0IL &0 to 100 a3 4473 547T% 3.30m%
M.TAIDTE 100 ta 200 1,839 14,077 28.15% 1050,
M.7ALDI3E =200 330 1132 5.07% 0.92%
M.TA 106 Total 5,455 134,053 100% 100%
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M.TALLL Walghted Average LTV (%] 54.50%
By LTV buckets [mn}:
M.7ALLD =0 - c=40% 1,348 45,171 20.75% 33.70%
M.7AIL3 20 = <250 % 443 15,553 1451% 14 59%
M.7AILY 500 = <=b % 1,284 13414 19.45% 1TATR
M.TALLE 60 - <=70 % L4m 3,819 2262% 17.77T%
M.TALLE >70-<=80 % 1472 2078 22.65% 1EATE
MTAILT B0 - =00 % 03 5 0.00% DD
M.7AILE =50 - ==100% k] 8 0.0% D.O1%
M.7ALILS =100% k] 5 0.00% 0.00%
M.7A11.10 Total B,A55 134053 100% il ]
~ iilcentoVele[UTVjinformotion-WDEXES  MNemmal  Nemberofteans  Oifesidentiblloans  %Nooflaams
M.TAL21 ‘Welghted Average LTV (%] NO3
By LTV buckets [mn}:
M.7A122 =0 - <=40% ND3 )]
M.7A123 40 - <=50 % ND3 N3
M.TA124 50 - =80 % ND3 3]
MTAL2E B0 - ==T0 % ND3 KO3
M.7A12E >0 - <=80 % ND3 )]
M.TALLT B0 - =90 % ND3 3]
MTAIZE >80« <=100 % HD3 L]
M.TA12ZS >100% HD3 L]
M.7A.12.10 Total o a 0% %
o meswewsynpe  MReMemllaans
M.7A131 Dwer ocoupled 2565
M.7A132 Secand hame/Holday howses 10.21
M.TA13E Buy-to-let/Non-owner occupied 333
M.7A.13.4 Other 0.23
o mMleenbyRekeg  WResdewalloans
M.7A.141 1st lien 100
M.7A14.2 Guaranteed o
M.7A.143 Other o

ML7E.18.1 Retall ND2
MLTH.1B.2 Office ND2
ML78.18.3 HodelTourism ND2
MLTE.18.4 Shopping malls ND2Z
MTB.185 Industry ND2
MTEIEE Agricutture ND2
MLTE.18.7 ‘Other commercially used ND2
MTE.18E Land ND2
MLTA.IBG Property developers / Bulding under construction ND2
MLTE.18.10 Other ND2
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Stabilising manager

In connection with the issue of any Tranche (as defined in General Description of the Programme), the Dealer
or Dealers (if any) named as the stabilising manager(s) (the “Stabilising Manager(s)”) (or persons acting on
behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the applicable Final Terms may over-allot Covered Bonds or effect
transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Covered Bonds at a level higher than that which
might otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurance that the Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on
behalf of a Stabilising Manager) will undertake any stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin
on or after the date on which adequate public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche is
made and, if begun, may be ended at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the
issue date of the relevant Tranche and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche. Any
stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilising Manager(s) (or person(s)
acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.

Rating of the Covered Bonds

Certain Series of Covered Bonds to be issued under this Base Prospectus may be rated or unrated. Where
an issue of Covered Bonds is rated, such rating will be specified in the relevant Final Terms. A rating is not
a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time by the assigning rating agency. Whether or not each credit rating applied for in relation to a
relevant Series of Covered Bonds will be issued by a credit rating agency established in the European Union
and registered the CRA Regulation will be disclosed in the Final Terms.

Rating of the Issuer

The information found on pages 34 and 35 of the Prospectus has been sourced from the websites of S&P,
Moody's and Fitch. As far as the Issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from the ratings information published
by S&P, by Moody's and by Fitch, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information
inaccurate or misleading.
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DEFINITIONS

In this Base Prospectus, the following defined terms have the meanings set out below:

“Acceleration Notice” means a notice served on the Issuer pursuant to Condition 9 (Events of Default and
Enforcement).

“Additional Security” means any other encumbrances or guarantees the benefit of which is vested in the
Issuer as security for the repayment of a Mortgage Credit.

“Agency and Payments Procedures” means the set of agency and payments procedures (such agency and
payments procedures as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated) dated 30 April 2008 and made and
agreed by Banco BPI, S.A. (acting in its capacity as Agent, which expression shall include any successor)
and by any subsequent agent, paying agent, transfer agent and/or agent bank appointed by the Issuer, as
amended.

“Agent” means Banco BPI, S.A., with head office at Rua Tenente Valadim, no. 284, 4100-476 Porto.
“Arranger” means Banco BPI, S.A., with head office at Rua Tenente Valadim, no. 284, 4100-476 Porto.

“Auditor” means Deloitte & Associados — SROC, S.A., member of the Portuguese Association of the
Chartered Accountants (“Ordem dos Revisores Oficiais de Contas”), registered with the CMVM with
registration number 231, with registered office at Avenida Engenheiro Duarte Pacheco, 7, 1070-100 Lisbon,
Portugal.

“Banco BPI1” means Banco BPI, S.A., with head office at Rua Tenente Valadim, no. 284, 4100-476 Porto.

“Bank of Portugal Regulations” means the legislation passed by the Bank of Portugal regulating certain
aspects of the Covered Bonds Law, namely Notice 5/2006, Notice 6/2006, Instruction 13/2006, Notice
7/2006 and Notice 8/2006 and any relevant regulations or instructions that may be issued by the Bank of
Portugal in the future.

“Base Prospectus” means this base prospectus dated 16 February 2017, prepared in connection with the
Programme.

“Bearer Covered Bonds” means any Covered Bonds in bearer (ao portador) form issued (whether or not
in global form).

“BPI Group” means the Issuer and its subsidiaries.

“Business Day” means a day which is both: (i) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange
markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and
foreign currency deposits) in London and Lisbon and any Additional Business Centre(s) specified in the
applicable Final Terms; and (ii) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than
euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for
general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the principal
financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than London and Lisbon and any
Additional Business Centre(s)) and which if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand
dollars shall be Sydney and Auckland, respectively or (2) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on
which the TARGET System is open.
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“Central de Valores Mobiliarios” means the Portuguese Centralised System of Registration of Securities.

“Clearing Systems” means Interbolsa, and/or Euroclear, and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or, in
relation to any Series of Covered Bonds, any other clearing system depositary as specified in the relevant
Final Terms, and, each, a “Clearing System”.

“Clearstream, Luxembourg” means Clearstream Banking société anonyme, Luxembourg.

“CMVM” means the Comissdo do Mercado de Valores Mobiliarios, the Portuguese Securities Market
Commission.

“Common Representative” means BNP Paribas Trust Corporation UK Limited, in its capacity as
representative of the holders of the Covered Bonds pursuant to Article 14 of the Covered Bonds Law in
accordance with the Terms and Conditions and the terms of the Common Representative Appointment
Agreement, having its registered office at 10 Harewood Avenue, London, England, NW1 6AA, United
Kingdom.

“Common Representative Appointment Agreement” means the agreement dated 30 April 2008 entered
into between the Issuer and the Common Representative and which sets out the terms and conditions upon
and subject to which the Common Representative has agreed to act as Common Representative, as amended
from time to time.

“Condition” means a reference to a particular numbered condition set out in the “Terms and Conditions”.
“Couponholders” means the persons who for the time being are holders of the Coupons.

“Coupons” means the interest coupons related to the Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds and for the time
being outstanding or, as the context may require, a specific number of such coupons.

“Cover Pool” means the pool of assets maintained by the Issuer and allocated to the issue of Covered Bonds
under the Programme, held to the benefit of the holders of Covered Bonds and the Other Preferred Creditors,
and including the Mortgage Credits, the Hedging Contracts and the Other Assets, as specified in the
Register.

“Cover Pool Monitor” means Deloitte & Associados — SROC, S.A., member of the Portuguese Association
of the Chartered Accountants (“Ordem dos Revisores Oficiais de Contas ), registered with the CMVM with
registration number 231, with registered office at Avenida Engenheiro Duarte Pacheco, 7, 1070-100 Lisbon,
Portugal.

“Cover Pool Monitor Agreement” means the agreement dated 30 April 2008 entered into between the
Issuer and the Cover Pool Monitor, as amended from time to time.

“Covered Bond” means any mortgage covered bond issued by the Issuer pursuant to the Covered Bonds
Law in the form specified in the applicable Final Terms and “Covered Bonds” shall be construed
accordingly.

“Covered Bonds Law” means the Portuguese legal framework applicable to the issuance of covered bonds,
enacted by Decree-Law no. 59/2006, of 20 March 2006, as amended from time to time.

“CRA Regulation” means Regulation (EC) no. 1060/2009, of the European Parliament and of the Council,
of 16 September 2009, as amended from time to time;

“CRD IV” means Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013,
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on access to the activity of credit institutions and the prudential supervision of credit institutions and
investments firms, as amended from time to time;

“Credit Institutions General Regime” means Decree-Law no. 298/92 of 31 December, as amended from
time to time.

“CRR” means Regulation (EU) no. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June
2013, on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms, as amended from time to time.

“CSD” means a central securities depositary.

“Current Property Value” means, in relation to a Property securing a Mortgage Credit, the updated
Property Valuation of such Property;

“Day Count Fraction” means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest for any Interest Period:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

if “Actual/Actual (ICMA)” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days
in the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Interest Period falls in a leap year,
the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a leap year
divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a
non-leap year divided by 365);

if “Actual/Actual (ISDA)” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in
the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Interest Period falls in a leap year, the
sum of (I) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a leap year
divided by 366 and (1I) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a
non-leap year divided by 365);

if “Actual/365 (Fixed)” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in the
Interest Period divided by 365;

if “Actual/365 (Sterling)” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in
the Interest Period divided by 365 or, in the case of an Interest Payment Date falling in a leap year,
366;

if “Actual/360” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in the Interest
Period divided by 360;

if “30/360”, “360/360” or “Bond Basis” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of
days in the Interest Period divided by 360 calculated on a formula basis as follows:
[360 X (Yz - Yl)] + [30 X (Mz - Ml)] + (Dz - D1)
Day Count Fraction = 360

where:
"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day of the Interest Period falls;
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"M:" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

"M" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day of the Interest Period falls;

"D;" is the first calendar day, expressed as a humber, of the Interest Period, unless such
number is 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

"Dy" is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31 and D, is greater than 29,
in which case D will be 30;

(vii)  if “30E/360” or “Eurobond Basis” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days
in the Interest Period divided by 360 calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360 X (Yz - Yl)] + [30 X (Mz - Ml)] + (Dz - D1)
Day Count Fraction = 360

where:
"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day of the Interest Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

"M_" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day of the Interest Period falls;

"D;" is the first calendar day, expressed as a humber, of the Interest Period, unless such
number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

"Dy" is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31, in which case D, will be
30; and

(viii)  if “30E/360 (ISDA)” is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days in the Interest
Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360 X (Yz - Yi)] + [30 X (M2 - M1)] + (D2 - Di)
Day Count Fraction = 360
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where:
"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day of the Interest Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a humber, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

"M_" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day of the Interest Period falls;

"D1" is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless (i) that
day is the last day of February or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D1 will be
30; and

" D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Interest Period, unless (i) that day is the last day of February but not the
Maturity Date or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D, will be 30.

“DBRS” means DBRS Ratings Limited, which as it is not established in the EU and has not applied for
registration under the CRA Regulation, issues ratings that are endorsed in accordance with the CRA
Regulation by DBRS Ratings Limited (entity registered with the European Securities and Markets Authority
under the CRA Regulation).

“Dealer” means Banco BPI, S.A., with head office at Rua Tenente Valadim, no. 284, 4100-476 Porto.

“Definitive Covered Bond” means any definitive Covered Bond, in bearer or registered form, issued only
in exchange for a Global Covered Bond in bearer form held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

“Definitive Bearer Covered Bond” means any definitive Covered Bond in bearer form issued only in
exchange for a Global Covered Bond in bearer form held through Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

“Definitive Registered Covered Bond” means any definitive Covered Bond in registered form issued
whether or not in exchange for a Global Covered Bond in registered form held through Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg.

“Determination Period” means each period from (and including) a Determination Date to (but excluding)
the next Determination Date (including, where either the Interest Commencement Date or the final Interest
Payment Date is not a Determination Date, the period commencing on the first Determination Date prior to,
and ending on the first Determination Date falling after, such date).

“Distribution Compliance Period” means, in respect of Covered Bonds held through Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg, the period that ends 40 days after the completion of the distribution of each
Tranche of Covered Bonds, as certified by the relevant Dealer (in the case of a non-syndicated issue) or the
relevant Lead Manager (in the case of a syndicated issue).
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“EBA” means the European Banking Authority.
“ECB” means the European Central Bank.
“EEA” means the European Economic Area.
“EU” means the European Union.

“Euro”, “€” or “euro” means the lawful currency of Member States of the European Union that adopt the
single currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union, and as
defined in Council Regulation (EC) No. 974/98, of 3 May 1998, on the introduction of the euro, as amended
from time to time.

“Euroclear” means Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V.

“Euronext Lisbon” means the regulated market managed by Euronext Lisbon — Sociedade Gestora de
Mercados Regulamentados, S.A..

“Eurosystem” means the monetary authority which comprises the ECB and the national central banks of
the EU Member States whose currency is the Euro.

“Exchange Date” means the date which is 40 days after a Temporary Bearer Global Covered Bond is issued,;

“Final Terms” means, in relation to each Tranche, the applicable final terms attached to, or endorsed on,
such Covered Bonds.

“Fitch” means Fitch Ratings Limited, which is registered with the European Securities and Markets
Authority under the CRA Regulation.

“Final Settlement Date” means the date which the financial settlement becomes definitive and irrevocable
after the Bank of Portugal’s confirmation to Interbolsa;

“Fixed Interest Period” means the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest
Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date.

“GBP”, “£”or “pounds sterling” means pounds sterling, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom.
“Global Covered Bond” means any global covered bond (whether temporary or permanent, if applicable).

“Hedge Counterparties” means the party or parties that, from time to time, will enter into Hedging
Contracts with the Issuer in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law.

“Hedging Contracts” means the hedging contracts entered into by the Issuer in accordance with the
Covered Bonds Law for the purpose hedging interest rate, exchange or liquidity risks in relation to the Cover
Pool.

“Insolvency Event” means the winding-up and dissolution of the Issuer under any applicable laws and
regulations (including under Decree-Law no. 199/2006, of 25 October 2006, Decree-Law no. 298/92, of 31
December 1992 and/or (if applicable) under the Code for the Insolvency and Recovery of Companies
introduced by Decree-Law no. 53/2004, of 18 March 2004).

“Instruction 13/2006” means the regulatory instruction (“Instrucdo”) no. 13/2006 issued by the Bank of
Portugal relating to certain information duties applicable in relation to the issue of mortgage covered bonds
in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law.
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“Interbolsa” means Interbolsa — Sociedade Gestora de Sistemas de Liquidacéo e de Sistemas Centralizados
de Valores Mobiliarios, S.A. as operator of the Central de Valores Mobiliarios.

“Interbolsa Participant” means any authorised financial intermediary entitled to hold control accounts
with Interbolsa on behalf of their customers and includes any depository banks appointed by Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg for the purpose of holding accounts on behalf of Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

“Interest Amount” means, as applicable, the amount of interest payable on the Floating Rate Covered
Bonds in respect of Specified Denomination, calculated by the Calculation Agent pursuant to Condition 4
(Interest).

“ISDA” means the International Swaps and Derivatives Association Inc.

“Issue Date” means the date so specified in the applicable Final Terms being, in respect of any Covered
Bond, the date of issue and purchase of such Covered Bond pursuant to and in accordance with the
Programme Agreement or any other agreement between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s).

“Issuer” means Banco BPI, S.A.

“Loan-to-Value” means, in respect of a Mortgage Credit, the ratio of the aggregate Value of such Mortgage
Credit to the Current Value of the Property securing such Mortgage Credit.

“Maturity” means the final legal maturity of any outstanding Covered Bonds, Mortgage Credits, Hedging
Contracts or Other Assets, as applicable;

“Moody's” means Moody's Investors Service Ltd, which is registered with the European Securities and
Markets Authority under the CRA Regulation.

“Mortgage” means, in respect of any Mortgage Credit, the charge by way of voluntary mortgage over the
relevant Property the benefit of which is vested in the Issuer as security for the repayment of that Mortgage
Credit.

“Mortgage Credit” means the pecuniary credit receivables secured by a Mortgage and/or any Additional
Security which is comprised in the Cover Pool and which complies with the following eligibility criteria
established in the Covered Bonds Law:

(a) itis a pecuniary receivable not yet matured, which is neither subject to conditions nor encumbered,
judicially seized or apprehended and which is secured by first ranking mortgages over residential or
commercial real estate located in an EU Member State;

(b) notwithstanding (a) above, it is a pecuniary receivable secured by a junior mortgage but where all
Mortgage Credits ranking senior thereto are held by the Issuer and also allocated to the Cover Pool,;

(c) it is a receivable secured by (i) a personal guarantee granted by a credit institution, or (ii) an
appropriate insurance policy, in any case together with a mortgage counter guarantee evidencing (a)
or (b) above.

“NGN” means any bearer Covered Bond to be issued in new global note form.

“Non-Performing Mortgage Credits” means, with respect to a Mortgage Credit, that such Mortgage
Credit:

(c) is in the course of being foreclosed or otherwise enforced; or
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(d) has one or more payments of principal or interest past due more than 90 days.

“Notice 5/2006” means the regulatory notice (“Aviso”) no. 5/2006 issued by the Bank of Portugal and
published on 11 October 20086, relating to the valuation of real estate assets serving as security for mortgage
credits comprised in cover pools allocated to the issue of mortgage covered bonds in accordance with the
Covered Bonds Law.

“Notice 6/2006” means the regulatory notice (“Aviso”) no. 6/2006 issued by the Bank of Portugal and
published on 11 October 2006, relating to the prudential limits applicable in relation to the issue of mortgage
covered bonds in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law.

“Notice 7/2006” means the regulatory notice (“Aviso”) no. 7/2006 issued by the Bank of Portugal and
published on 11 October 2006, relating to the weighting coefficient applicable to the ownership of covered
bonds issued in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law.

“Notice 8/2006” means the regulatory notice (“Aviso”) no. 8/2006 issued by the Bank of Portugal and
published on 11 October 20086, relating to the insolvency, winding-up or dissolution of a credit institution
which has issued covered bonds issued in accordance with the Covered Bonds Law.

“Other Assets” means all assets other than Mortgage Credits and Hedging Contracts which comply with
the eligibility criteria established in the Covered Bonds Law and which are included in the Cover Pool as
specified in the Register, including:

@) deposits with the Bank of Portugal, in cash or in securities eligible for credit transactions in the
Eurosystem;

(b) current or term account deposits with credit institutions (which are not in a control or group
relationship with the Issuer) having a rating equal to or higher than the minimum rating required at
any time by the Rating Agencies, provided that such minimum rating shall in any event be at least
“A-” or equivalent; and

(c) other assets meeting both the low risk and high liquidity requirements of the Bank of Portugal;

The Issuer undertakes that on any Business Day the Other Assets include assets specified under (a) above
corresponding to “AAA” or equivalent rated sovereign bonds from a EU Member-State, or Italian Sovereign
Bonds, the United States, Japan and/or Canada or other assets specified under (b) above with credit
institutions having a minimum rating at least equal to “A” or equivalent, in an amount (as calculated by the
Issuer on such Business Day) at least equal to the interest payments due by the Issuer under the outstanding
Covered Bonds during the next 90 days

For the avoidance of doubt, the Other Assets do not include any cash collateral that may be transferred under
the Hedging Contracts.

“Other Preferred Creditors” means the Common Representative (or any successor thereof) and Hedge
Counterparties.

“Overcollateralisation Percentage” means 105.26 per cent. or such other percentage as may be selected
by the Issuer from time to time and notified to the Cover Pool Monitor, provided that: (i) the
Overcollateralisation Percentage shall not, for so long as there are Covered Bonds outstanding, be reduced
by the Issuer below 105.26 per cent.; and (ii) (A) so long as the Covered Bonds are rated A3 or above by
Moody’s, the Issuer shall not at any time reduce the Overcollateralisation Percentage which applies for the

189



purposes of Condition 15, unless, always provided that (i) above is satisfied, Moody’s has confirmed in
writing to the Issuer that such reduction would not result in any credit rating then assigned to the Covered
Bonds by Moody’s being reduced, removed, suspended or placed on credit watch and (B) so long as the
Covered Bonds are not rated A3 or above by Moody’s, the Issuer shall not at any time reduce the
Overcollateralisation Percentage which applies for the purposes of Condition 15.

“Paying Agents” means the paying agents named in the Agency and Payments Procedures together with
any successor or additional paying agents appointed from time to time in connection with the Covered Bonds
under the Agency and Payments Procedures.

“Permanent Bearer Global Covered Bond” means any Covered Bond issued in the form of a permanent
bearer global covered bond.

“Portuguese Commercial Companies Code” means the commercial companies code approved by Decree-
Law no. 262/86, dated 2 September 1986, as amended from time to time.

“Portuguese Securities Code” means Decree-Law no. 486/99, of 13 November 1999, as amended from
time to time.

“Principal Amount Outstanding” means in respect of a Covered Bond the principal amount of that
Covered Bond on the relevant Issue Date thereof less principal amounts received by the relevant holder of
Covered Bonds in respect thereof.

“Programme” means the €7,000,000,000 covered bonds programme established on 30 April 2008 for the
issuance of Covered Bonds by the Issuer as described in this Base Prospectus.

“Programme Agreement” means the agreement dated 30 April 2008 entered into between the Issuer and
the Dealer, as amended from time to time.

“Programme Documents” means the Base Prospectus, the Programme Agreement, the Agency and
Payments Procedures, the Common Representative Appointment Agreement, the Cover Pool Monitor
Agreement and any other agreement or document entered into from time to time by the Issuer pursuant
thereto and in relation to the Programme.

“Programme Resolution” means any Resolution directing the Common Representative to accelerate the
Covered Bonds pursuant to Condition 9 (Events of Default and Enforcement) or directing the Common
Representative to take any enforcement action and which shall only be capable of being passed at a single
meeting of the holders of Covered Bonds of all Series then outstanding.

“Property” means, in relation to any Mortgage Credit, the property upon which the repayment of such
Mortgage Credit is secured by the corresponding Mortgage and “Properties” means all of them.

“Property Valuation” means, in relation to any Property:

(a) the amount determined as the commercial value or the market value (as applicable) of such Property
in accordance with the most recent independent valuation of such Property, at the time or after the
relevant Mortgage Credit was originated, in accordance with Notice 5/2006; and

(b) the amount determined by resorting to the use of adequate and recognised indexes or statistical
methods, whenever an independent valuation of the Property is not required pursuant to the Covered
Bonds Law and Notice 5/2006.
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“Prospectus Directive” means Directive no. 2003/71/EC, of the European Parliament and of the Council,
of 4 November 2003, as amended from time to time and implemented through delegated regulations.

“Prospectus Regulation” means Commission Regulation (EC) no. 809/2004, of 29 April 2004, as amended
from time to time.

“Rating Agencies” means Moody’s which is registered with the European Securities and Markets Authority
under the CRA Regulation; DBRS which as it is not established in the EU and has not applied for registration
under the CRA Regulation, issues ratings that are endorsed in accordance with the CRA Regulation by
DBRS Ratings Limited, which is registered with the European Securities and Markets Authority under the
CRA Regulation; and any other rating agency registered under the same CRA Regulation.

“Rating” means the then current rating of rated Covered Bonds given by the relevant Rating Agency and
“Ratings” means all of such Ratings;

“Receiptholders” means the persons who for the time being are holders of the Receipts.
“Receipts” means the principal receipts related to the Definitive Bearer Covered Bonds.
“Reference Price” means the reference price appearing in the relevant Final Terms.

“Register” means the register of the Cover Pool and associated collateral maintained by the Issuer in
accordance with the Covered Bonds Law and the Bank of Portugal Regulations.

“Registered Covered Bond” means any Covered Bond in registered form.
“Regulation S” means the United States Regulation S under the Securities Act.

“Relevant Date” means the date on which a payment first becomes due, except that, if the full amount of
the moneys payable has not been duly received by the Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, on or prior
to such due date, it means the date on which, the full amount of such moneys having been so received, notice
to that effect is duly given to the holders of Covered Bonds in accordance with Condition 11 (Notices).

“Reserved Matter” means any proposal: (i) to change any date fixed for payment of principal or interest in
respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series, (ii) to reduce the amount of principal or interest
due on any date in respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series or to alter the method of
calculating the amount of any payment in respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series on
redemption or maturity; (iii) to effect the exchange, substitution or conversion of the Covered Bonds of all
or of a given Series into shares, bonds or other obligations or securities of the Issuer or any other person or
body corporate formed or to be formed; (iv) to change the currency in which amounts due in respect of the
Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series are payable; (v) to alter the priority of payment of interest or
principal in respect of the Covered Bonds of all or of a given Series; (vi) any other provided for pursuant to
Portuguese law; or (vii) to amend this definition.

“Resolution” means a resolution adopted at a duly convened meeting of holders of Covered Bonds and
approved in accordance with the applicable provisions.

“Securities Act” means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended from time to time.

“Series” means a Tranche of Covered Bonds together with any further Tranche or Tranches of Covered
Bonds which are (i) expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (ii) identical in all respects
(including as to listing) except for their respective Issue Dates, Interest Commencement Dates, interest rates
and/or Issue Prices.
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“Stabilising Manager” means the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the stabilising manager(s) for a
particular Tranche of Covered Bonds.

“Substitute Credit Institution” means the credit institution appointed in case of an Insolvency Event to
manage the Cover Pool allocated to the outstanding Covered Bonds and to ensure the payments of the
amounts due to the holders of such Covered Bonds.

“Stock Exchange” means Euronext Lisbon or any other stock exchange where Covered Bonds may be
listed as per the relevant Final Terms and references herein to the relevant Stock Exchange shall, in relation
to any Covered Bonds, be references to the stock exchange or stock exchanges on which such Covered
Bonds are from time to time, or are intended to be, listed.

“S&P” Standard & Poor’s Credit Market Services Europe Limited, which is registered with the European
Securities and Markets Authority under the CRA Regulation.

“sub-unit” means, with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such currency that is
available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro, one cent.

“Talon” and “Talons” means the talons for further Receipts and further Coupons attached to the Definitive
Bearer Covered Bonds on issue.

“TARGET System” means the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross Settlement Express Transfer
Payment System which utilises a single shared platform and which was launched on 19 November 2007
(TARGET 2).

“Tax” shall be construed so as to include any present or future tax, levy, impost, duty, charge, fee, deduction
or withholding of any nature whatsoever (including any penalty or interest payable in connection with any
failure to pay or any delay in paying any of the same) imposed or levied by or on behalf of any Tax Authority

G LR T3

and “Taxes”, “taxation”, “taxable and comparable expressions shall be construed accordingly.

“Tax Authority” means any government, state, municipal, local, federal or other fiscal, revenue, customs
or excise authority, body or official anywhere in the world exercising a fiscal, revenue, customs or excise
function including the Portuguese Tax and Customs Authority, the Irish Revenue Commissioners and H.M.
Revenue and Customs.

“Tax Deduction” means any deduction or withholding on account of Tax.

“Temporary Bearer Global Covered Bond” means any Covered Bond issued in the form of a temporary
bearer global covered bond.

“Terms and Conditions” means in relation to the Covered Bonds, the terms and conditions to be endorsed
on or applicable to the Covered Bonds and any reference to a particular numbered Condition shall be
construed in relation to the Covered Bonds accordingly.

“Tranche” means Covered Bonds which are identical in all respects (including as to listing).
“Treaty” means the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as amended from time to time.
“US” or “USA” means the United States of America.

“U.S.$”, “USD” or “US dollars” means United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America.
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“UCITS Directive” means Directive no. 2009/65/EC, of the European Parliament and of the Council, of 13
July 2009, relating to undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities, as amended from
time to time.

“Value” means:

@) in relation to a Mortgage Credit, (i) for the purpose of the Overcollateralisation Percentage, an
amount equal to the book value of such Mortgage Credit entered on the Register, together with any
matured and accrued interest; and (ii) for the purpose of Loan to Value calculation, an amount equal
to the book value of such Mortgage Credit entered on the Register;

(b) in relation to any Other Assets:

0] the aggregate amount of any deposits together with any matured and accrued interest, as
entered on the Register;

(i) the value resulting from the rules regarding valuation of margins defined by the Eurosystem
for securities eligible for Eurosystem credit transactions or, if lower, the nominal value of
such securities, including matured and accrued interests.
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